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Indo Count Industries Ltd

In terms of the said Order of the Hon'ble NCLI and in compliance with the provisions of (a) Sections
230-232 read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 20l3; (b) Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (c) Rule 20 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014; (d) Regulation 44 and o~
applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dis¢osJ~ USf"'$
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and (e) Paragraph 9(a) of Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dat d IS'("'
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Pursuant to the aforesaid order of Hon'ble NCLT, Notice of the Tribunal convened meeting, together
with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent through electronic mode to those Members
whose names appear in the register of members/ list of beneficial owners as received from Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Transfer Agent (RIA) as on October 1,2021 and whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depositories. Further, members whose email address are not registered,
the notice together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent through physical mode.

A copy of the Notice of the Tribunal convened meeting dated October 5, 2021 along with the
Explanatory Statement and other Annexures inter alia containing the copy of scheme is enclosed
herewith for your information and records.

We wish to inform the exchanges that pursuant to the order dated August 18, 2021 in the Company
Scheme Application No. CA(CAA)/143/MB/2021 ("Order"), passed by the Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("Hon'ble Tribunal" or "NCLT"), a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
Indo Count Industries Limited ("the Company") will be held 00 Monday, November 15,2021 at 2:30 p.m.
(ISn through Video Conferencing ("VC,,) / Other Audio Visual Means (·OAVMj ("Tribunal convened
meeting") to consider and approve scheme of amalgamation (by way of merger by absorption) of
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited ("First Applicant Company"/ "Transferor Company") with Indo Count
Industries Limited ("The Company"/ "Transferee Company"/ "Second Applicant Company") and their
respective shareholders, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and other
applicable provisions of the Act read with rules framed thereunder ("Scheme").

Dear Sir/Madam

Subject: Notice ofthe Meeting of the Equity Shareholders oUndo Couot Indystries Limited ("Company"1
Transferee Compan>",) to be held on Monday, 15th November, 2021 at 2.30 p.m. osn throygh
video conferencing (yo or other Audio visual means (OAYM) pursuant to the directions of
the National Company Law Tribynal. Mumbai Bench (-Hon'ble NClT1 vide its order dated 18th
Augyst. 2021, in the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills
Limited (iransferor Companyj with the Company and their respective shareholders under
Sectioos 230 to 232 of the Companies Act. 2013 ('Scheme').

Scrip Code: 521016Company Symbol: ICIL

BSELimited
Department of Corporate Services
Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Listing Department
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051

October 12, 2021
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Encl.:As Above

M_ I t4 v---L--e=:
Amruta Avasare
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No: A18844

For Indo Count Industries Limited

Yours truly,

We request you to take the above information on record.

This disclosure is being made in compliance with Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The above announcements are also being made available on the website of the Company
www.indocountcom.

The remote e-voting period commences on-Thursday, November 11,2021 (9:00 A.M. 1ST)and ends on
Sunday, November 14, 2021 (5:00 P.M. 1ST).The remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting
thereafter. During this period, members of the Company holding shares as on November 8, 2021 (Cut­
off date), can cast their vote electronically. The voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on Cut-off Date. The Equity
Shareholders are requested to read the instructions in the Notes in this notice for electronic voting and
attending the meeting.

March 10, 2017 issued by SEBI ("SEBI Circular"), the Company has provided the facility of voting by
remote electronic voting ("remote e-voting") and e-voting during the Meeting through the platform
provided by National Securities Depository Limited ("NSDL") so as to enable the equity shareholders of
the Company, to consider and approve the Scheme by way of the resolution mentioned in the Notice.
Further, the facility of attending the meeting through VC/OAVM is also provided through NSDL
platform.

Complete Comfort
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MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(convened pursuant to the order dated August 18, 2021 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

NOTICE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

DETAILS OF THE MEETING:

Day Monday
Date November 15, 2021
Time 2:30 p.m. (IST)
Mode of Meeting In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms, as per the 

directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench,  the meeting shall be 
conducted through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means.

REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING AT THE MEETING:

Cut Off date for 
e-voting

November 8, 2021

Remote e-voting start 
and end date and time

From November 11, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) to November 14, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. (IST).

E-voting at the meeting 
start and end time

As  may  be  instructed  by  the  Chairperson  of  the  Meeting,  during  the proceedings of the 
meeting.

INDEX OF DOCUMENTS ENCLOSED:

Sr. 
No.

Contents Page No.

1. Notice of meeting of the equity shareholders of Indo Count Industries Limited convened under Sections 
230- 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013  read with Rules made thereunder, 
as per the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench

3-12

2. Explanatory Statement under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of 
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”) 13-33

3. Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of merger by Absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
(“Transferor Company”) with Indo Count Industries Limited (“Transferee Company”/ “The Company”) 
and their respective shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”) 
enclosed as ANNEXURE I

34-60

INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L72200PN1988PLC068972

Registered Office: Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, 
Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur – 416109 Maharashtra, India

Tel No.: + 91 230 2463100/2461929;
Corporate Office: 301, 3rd Floor, “Arcadia”, Nariman Point, Mumbai -400 021 

Tel No.: + 91 22 43419500 / 501; Fax No.: + 91 22 22823098
Email: icilinvestors@indocount.com; Website: www.indocount.com
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Sr. 
No.

Contents Page No.

4. Order dated August 18, 2021 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench in 
Company Application No. CA(CAA)/143/MB/2021, enclosed as ANNEXURE II 61-78

5. Valuation report dated October 21, 2020 on recommendation of share exchange ratio issued by Mr. Amit 
Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer, enclosed as ANNEXURE III 79-94

6. Valuation report dated October 21, 2020 on recommendation of share exchange ratio issued by AZR & 
Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants enclosed as ANNEXURE IV 95-110

7. Fairness Opinion dated October 21, 2020 issued on share exchange ratio to Indo Count Industries 
Limited by Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services LLP, a Category-I Merchant Banker, registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Board of India, enclosed as ANNEXURE V

111-118

8. Fairness Opinion dated October 21, 2020 issued on share exchange ratio to Pranavaditya Spinning Mills 
Limited by Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, a Category –I Merchant Banker, registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, enclosed as ANNEXURE VI

119-124

9. Complaints Report dated December 14, 2020 filed by Indo Count Industries Limited with BSE Limited 
enclosed as ANNEXURE VII 125-126

10. Complaints Report dated December 15, 2020 filed by Indo Count Industries Limited with National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, enclosed as ANNEXURE VIII 127-129

11. Complaints Report dated December 14, 2020 filed by Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited with BSE 
Limited, enclosed as ANNEXURE IX 130-131

12. Observation letter dated March 25, 2021 conveying no objection to the scheme issued by BSE Limited to 
Indo Count Industries Limited, enclosed as ANNEXURE X 132-133

13. Observation letter dated March 26, 2021 conveying No-objection to the scheme issued by National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited to Indo Count Industries Limited, enclosed as ANNEXURE XI 134-135

14. Observation letter dated March 25, 2021 conveying No-objection to the scheme issued by BSE Limited 
to Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited, enclosed as ANNEXURE XII 136-138

15. Audited Standalone Financial Statements along with Auditors Report of Indo Count Industries Limited for 
the year ended  March 31, 2021 enclosed as ANNEXURE XIII 139-206

16. Unaudited Financial Results of Indo Count Industries Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 along 
with the Limited Review Report issued by Statutory Auditors enclosed as ANNEXURE XIV 207-209

17. Audited Standalone Financial Statements along with Auditors Report of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills 
Limited for the year ended  March 31, 2021 enclosed as ANNEXURE XV 210-260

18. Unaudited Financial Results of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 
along with the Limited Review Report issued by Statutory Auditors enclosed as ANNEXURE XVI 261-262

19. Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Indo Count Industries Limited, as required under Section 
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, enclosed as ANNEXURE XVII 263-265

20. Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited, as required under 
Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, enclosed as ANNEXURE XVIII 266-268

21. Statutory Auditor’s certificate dated October 21, 2020 issued by M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Statutory 
Auditors to Indo Count Industries Limited confirming that the accounting treatment proposed in the 
Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, enclosed as ANNEXURE XIX

269-271
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AT MUMBAI BENCH
CA(CAA) /143/ MB/ 2021

(Under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013)

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 
AND
In the matter of application under Sections 230 to 232 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 
AND 
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Merger 
by Absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
(‘Transferor Company’ or ‘First Applicant Company’) with 
Indo Count Industries Limited (‘Transferee Company’ or 
‘Second Applicant Company’ or ‘The Company’) 
AND
their respective shareholders.

Indo Count Industries Limited a public limited company, 
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having its 
Registered Office situated at Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur 
- 416109 Maharashtra, India
CIN: L72200PN1988PLC068972

)
)
)
)
)
)

Second Applicant Company / Transferee Company / The 
Company

NOTICE OF THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 
INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

To
The Equity Shareholders of Indo Count Industries Limited,

NOTICE is hereby given that by an order dated August 18, 2021 in the above mentioned Company Scheme Application  
(“Order”), the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal” or “NCLT”) has directed that a 
meeting of the equity shareholders of Indo Count Industries Limited (“The Company”), be held for the purpose of considering, 
and if thought fit, approving the proposed scheme of amalgamation (by way of merger by absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning 
Mills Limited (“First Applicant Company”/ “Transferor Company”) with Indo Count Industries Limited (“The Company”/ 
“Transferee Company”/ “Second Applicant Company”) and their respective shareholders, under Sections 230 to 232 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”).

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in pursuance of the aforesaid Order and as directed therein, a meeting of the equity 
shareholders of the Company, will be held on Monday, November 15, 2021 at 2.30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) (“Meeting”) following the operating procedures (with requisite modifications as 
may be required) referred to in Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General 
Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, General Circular No. 
39/2020 dated December 31, 2020 and General Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Government of India (“MCA Circulars”) and circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 
and circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (“SEBI Relaxation Circulars”). 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that pursuant to the aforesaid order passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal and in view of ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting of members of the Company shall be convened through VC/OAVM and there shall be no 
meeting requiring physical presence of members at a common venue. Members are requested to attend the meeting through 
VC/OAVM.
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TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in terms of the said Order of the Hon’ble Tribunal and in compliance with the provisions of 
(a) Sections 230-232 read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013; (b) Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (c) Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014; (d) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and (e) Paragraph 9(a) of Circular No. CFD/
DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 issued by SEBI (“SEBI Circular”), the Company has provided the facility of voting 
by remote electronic voting (“remote e-voting”) and e-voting during the Meeting through the platform provided  by National 
Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) so as to enable the equity shareholders of the Company, to consider and approve the 
Scheme by way of the below mentioned resolution.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that remote e-voting period begins from 09:00 a.m. (IST) on Thursday, November 11, 2021 and 
ends at 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Sunday, November 14, 2021. Remote e-voting module will be disabled by NSDL thereafter. The 
voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 
November 8, 2021 (“Cut-off Date”). The Equity Shareholders opting to cast their votes by remote e-voting or e-voting during 
the Meeting are requested to read the instructions in the Notes in this notice carefully.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that each equity shareholder can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. (a) remote e-voting or (b) 
e-voting during the Meeting. If the shareholders opt for remote e-voting, they will be entitled to attend and participate in the 
Meeting, but will not be entitled to vote again during the Meeting. 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of members has been dispensed with, there is no requirement 
of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by members under Section 105 of the Companies 
Act 2013, (“Act”) will not be available for the said meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed 
to this Notice. However, pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, in case of body corporates, authorized representatives 
can be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-voting, for attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and 
e-voting during the Meeting. Further, an authority letter/ power of attorney by the board of directors or a certified copy of the 
resolution passed by its board of directors or other governing body authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the 
Meeting on its behalf be emailed to the Scrutinizer at csvrca@gmail.com or amruta.avasare@indocount.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the time for holding the Meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements  and  Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, 
along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index, are enclosed herewith. A copy of this notice and the accompanying 
documents will be placed on the website of the Company at www.indocount.com and will also be available on the website 
of BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, 
respectively and also on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. Pursuant to Rule 11 of Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016, a copy of the Scheme along with explanatory statement shall be furnished by 
the Company, on requisition from equity shareholders to the Company on its email icilinvestors@indocount.com.   

The Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Kailash R. Lalpuria, Executive Director & CEO (Non-promoter) of the Company, and 
failing him, Mr. Kamal Mitra, Director (Works) (Non-promoter) of the Company, as the Chairperson of the Meeting, including 
for any adjournment thereof. Further, the Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Vikas R. Chomal, (Membership No.: ACS 24941; 
CP No: 12133), Proprietor of M/s. Vikas R. Chomal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for the 
Meeting, including for any adjournment thereof.

The Scheme, if approved by the equity shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders), will be subject to the subsequent 
approval of the Hon’ble Tribunal.

The result(s) of the meeting shall be announced by the Chairperson within 2 working days of the conclusion of the Meeting 
upon receipt of Scrutinizer’s report and the same shall be displayed on the website of the Company at www.indocount.com 
and websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with paragraph 9(a) of SEBI Circular 
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, the Scheme shall be considered approved by the Equity Shareholders 
and be acted upon only if (a) the Scheme is approved by majority in number representing three-fourths in value of the Equity 
Shareholders of the Company; and (b) the votes cast by the public shareholders of the Company in favour of the Scheme are 
more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.
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The Equity shareholders are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, by requisite majority, the following 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to  the provisions of Section 230 read with Section 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and the rules, circulars, notifications made thereunder, including the Companies 
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, 
relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and any other applicable laws, relevant provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/
DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (as amended from time to time), issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, the observation letter dated March 25, 2021 issued by BSE Limited and the observation letter 
dated March 26, 2021 issued by National Stock Exchange of India Limited and subject to the approval of the Mumbai Bench of 
the National Company Law Tribunal (“Hon’ble Tribunal”), and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of 
regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed 
or imposed by the Hon’ble Tribunal or any other regulatory authority while granting such consents, approvals and permissions 
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall 
be deemed to mean and include one or more committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any other person 
authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution), the scheme of amalgamation by way 
of merger by absorption of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Indo Count Industries Limited 
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”) on a going concern basis, as enclosed to the notice 
of the Hon’ble Tribunal convened meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, 
in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively 
implement the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be 
required and/or imposed by the Hon’ble Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be 
required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the Scheme as the Board may 
deem fit and proper, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making  such adjustments in  the books of accounts 
as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper, and delegate all or any of 
its powers herein conferred to any Director(s) and/ or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to this resolution, if required, 
as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary or desirable, without being required to seek any further approval of the 
Shareholders or otherwise to the end and intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by authority under this resolution and the Board be and is hereby further authorized to nominate one or more officers 
of the Company to execute such further deeds, documents and writings that may be considered necessary, make necessary 
filings and to carry out any or all activities that the Board is empowered to do for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

Dated this October 5, 2021 	 For Indo Count Industries Limited

Sd/-
Mr. Kailash R. Lalpuria

DIN: 00059758
(Chairperson appointed for the meeting)

 
Registered Office:  Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India
CIN: L72200PN1988PLC068972
Email: icilinvestors@indocount.com
Website: www.indocount.com
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NOTES

1.	 In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its General Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 
dated June 15, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 
December 31, 2020 and General Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, (“MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the General Meetings through Video Conferencing (“VC”) 
or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without physical presence of the members at a common venue. Pursuant to 
the order dated August 18, 2021, in Company Scheme Application CA(CAA) /143/ MB / 2021 (“collectively referred to 
as the “Order”), passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal”) and in accordance 
with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/
CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 
(“SEBI relaxation circulars”) and the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), this meeting is being held through VC/OAVM. The 
deemed venue for the meeting will be “301, 3rd Floor, Arcadia, NCPA Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400 021”. Since the 
Meeting will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

 
2.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 6 

of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time) in respect 
of the above Resolution included in the notice is annexed hereto.

3.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this meeting is being 
held pursuant to the aforesaid MCA circulars and SEBI relaxation circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance 
of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 
available for this meeting and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4.   	 In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Members whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names 
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

5.	 The attendance of the Members at the meeting through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 The members, seeking any information or having questions with regard to the resolution / scheme placed at meeting, are 
requested to send an email to the Company on icilinvestors@indocount.com. The same will be replied suitably.

7.	 Notice of the Meeting, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent through electronic mode to 
those Members whose names appear in the register of members/ list of beneficial owners as received from Link Intime 
India Pvt. Ltd., Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) as on October 1, 2021 and whose email addresses are registered 
with the Company/ Depositories. Further, members whose email address are not registered, the notice together with the 
documents accompanying the same, is being sent through courier/ registered post/ speed post. Members may note that 
the Notice is also available on the Company’s website www.indocount.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on 
the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

8.	 Voting rights shall be reckoned on the basis of paid-up value of the shares registered in the name(s) of the equity 
shareholders as on the Cut-off Date i.e. November 8, 2021. Persons who are not equity shareholders of the Company as 
on the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice for information purposes only.

9.	 As directed by the Hon’ble Tribunal, Mr. Vikas R. Chomal, (Membership No.: ACS 24941; CP No: 12133), Proprietor of 
M/s. Vikas R. Chomal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries shall act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize votes cast 
through remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting and shall submit a combined report on votes cast by the Equity 
Shareholders, which includes Public Shareholders of the Company to the Chairperson of the Meeting or to the person so 
authorised by him within 2 working days from the conclusion of the Meeting. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of 
the vote shall be final.



7

Complete Comfort

10.	 The result of the voting shall be announced within 2 working days of the conclusion of the Meeting, upon receipt of 
Scrutinizer’s report and same shall be displayed on the website of the Company at www.indocount.com and on the 
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com and on websites of BSE Limited www.bseindia.com and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited www.nseindia.com. 

11.	 The Notice convening the Meeting will be published through an advertisement in Business Standard (All editions) & 
Times of India (Kolhapur edition) in English language and Navshakti (All editions) & Pudhari (Kolhapur edition) in Marathi 
language.

12.	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

	 Pursuant the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing ‘remote e-voting’ facility 
through the platform provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to all Members of the Company to enable 
them to cast their votes electronically, on the resolution mentioned in the notice of the Meeting of the Company. Apart from 
remote e-voting, the Company has also provided e-voting facility at the meeting through NSDL platform.

	 General Instructions:

a)	 The remote e-voting period begins on Thursday, November 11, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Sunday 
November 14, 2021 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). During this period, members of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, November 8 , 2021 may cast their 
votes by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting after 5.00 p.m. 
(IST) on Sunday, November 14, 2021.

b)	 Mr. Vikas R. Chomal, (Membership No.: ACS 24941; CP No: 12133), Proprietor of M/s. Vikas R. Chomal & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries has been appointed as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and 
e-voting at meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

c)	 In accordance with Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Company has fixed Monday, November 8, 2021 as the “cut-off date” 
to determine the eligibility of members to vote by remote e-voting and e-voting at the meeting. A person whose name 
is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on 
the cut-off date, i.e. Monday, November 8 , 2021, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or e-voting 
at the meeting. Only those members, who will be present at the Meeting through VC/ OAVM facility and who would 
not have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-voting system at the meeting.

d)	 The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting can also attend the meeting through VC/ OAVM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

e)	 Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is sent   
and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, November 8, 2021, may obtain the login ID and password 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or the Company or RTA. However, if he / she is already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voting, then he / she can use his / her existing user ID and password for casting the vote. If he 
/ she has forgot his / her password, he / she can reset his / her password by using “Forgot User Details/ Password” 
or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30. In case of Individual Shareholder holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the 
Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off 
date i.e. Monday, November 8, 2021 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the meeting  under  “Access  to  
NSDL  e-Voting  system”.

f)	 The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, November 8 , 2021.
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g)	 The Scrutinizer shall submit his consolidated report to the Chairman within 2 working days from the conclusion of the 
meeting.

h)	 The result declared along with the Scrutiniser’s Report shall be placed on the website of the                                                                                    
Company at www.indocount.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com and shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution shall be deemed 
to be passed on the date of the meeting, i.e. November 15, 2021.

	 PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING TO VOTE THROUGH REMOTE E-VOTING:

	 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

	 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
	 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join virtual meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

	 Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

	 Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on “e-Voting facility provided 
by Listed Companies”, E-Voting process has been enabled to all the individual demat account holders, by way of single 
login credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the efficiency of the 
voting process. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the 
e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of 
participating in e-Voting process. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs 
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

A.	 NSDL IDeAS facility:
If you are already registered, follow the below steps:
1.	 Visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2.	 Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section.
3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
4.	 Click on “Access to e-Voting” appearing on the left hand side under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
5.	 Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting service provider - 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and e-Voting during the 
meeting.

If you are not registered, follow the below steps:
1.	 Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
2.	 Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 

SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
3.	 Please follow steps given in points 1-5.
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Type of shareholders Login Method
B.	 e-Voting website of NSDL
1.	 Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a personal computer or on a mobile phone.
2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 

demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen.

4.	 After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL website wherein you 
can see e-Voting page. Click on options available against Company name or e-Voting 
service provider - NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and 
e-Voting during the meeting.

Individual	 Shareholders	
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their   user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting 
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on 
NSDL to cast your vote.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities   in   demat    
mode) login through their 
depository participants

1.	 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

2.	 Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, 
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

3.	 Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot User ID and Forgot 
Password option available at respective websites.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending 
a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or                                 
022-23058542-43
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B)	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile

 
2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/ 

Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. 

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares 
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

Your User ID is:

a)	 For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b)	 For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12**************

c)	 For Members holding 
shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company For example 
if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 118510 then user ID is 101456001***

 
5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
 

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned  in  process  for  those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.
co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

	 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

	 How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

 
2.	 Select “EVEN” of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 

vote during the General Meeting. EVEN of the Company is 118510. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click 
on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

	 Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolution set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to icilinvestors@indocount.com

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to icilinvestors@indocount.com. If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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4.	 In terms of SEBI  circular  dated  December  9,  2020  on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants.

5.	 Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility.

	 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote 
e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-voting system in the Meeting.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the Meeting. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the Meeting.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-voting on the day 
of the Meeting shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the Meeting through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 
Members may access the same by following the abovementioned steps under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”. 
After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against 
Company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link 
for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice.   

2.	 Members may join the Meeting through Laptops, Smartphones, Tablets and iPads for better experience. Further, 
Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting. Members 
will need the latest version of Chrome, Safari, Internet Explorer 11, MS Edge or Firefox. Please note that participants 
connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via mobile hotspot may experience audio/
video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
connection to mitigate any glitches.

3.	 Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the Meeting may register themselves as 
a speaker by sending their request at icilinvestors@indocount.com by November 9, 2021 from their registered 
Email ID mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio No, PAN, mobile number. Those Shareholders who 
have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views / ask questions during 
the Meeting. For ease of conduct, speakers should send the questions in advance by sending the email on                                                      
icilinvestors@indocount.com. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the Meeting. Members are requested to restrict their questions/views only 
on the Scheme. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of 
time for the Meeting.

4.	 The Members can join the Meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of commencement 
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice and the Company may close the window for 
joining the VC/OAVM Facility 15 minutes after the scheduled time to start the Meeting. The facility of participation at 
the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1,000 members on first come first served basis.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AT MUMBAI BENCH
CA(CAA) /143/ MB/ 2021

(Under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013)

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 
AND
In the matter of application under Sections 230 to 232 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 
AND 
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Merger 
by Absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
(‘Transferor Company’ or ‘First Applicant Company’) with 
Indo Count Industries Limited (‘Transferee Company’ or 
‘Second Applicant Company’ or ‘The Company’) 
AND
their respective shareholders.

Indo Count Industries Limited a public limited company,        
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having its 
Registered Office situated at Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur 
- 416109 Maharashtra, India
CIN: L72200PN1988PLC068972

)
)
)
)
)
)

Second Applicant Company / Transferee Company/ The 
Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3), 232 AND SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016, FOR 
THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED BEING CONVENED AS PER 
THE DIRECTIONS OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH

1.	 This is a statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company 
(“Meeting”) on Monday, November 15, 2021 at 2:30 p.m. (IST) through VC /OAVM pursuant to the Order dated August 
18, 2021 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal” or “NCLT”) in 
the Company Scheme Application No. CA(CAA)/143/MB/2021 (“Order”), for the purpose of considering and, if thought 
fit, approving, the Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“First Applicant Company” / 
“Transferor Company”) with Indo Count Industries Limited (“Second Applicant Company” / “Transferee Company”/ 
“The Company”) and their respective shareholders. (“Scheme”).

2.	 In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the Meeting for equity shareholders shall be as prescribed under Section 103 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. 30 equity shareholders, present through VC/OAVM. If the quorum is not present within half 
an hour from the time appointed for the holding of the Meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and 
thereafter, the persons present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum and the Meeting shall be held. Further, in terms 
of the said Order, the Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Kailash R. Lalpuria, Executive Director & CEO (Non-promoter) 
of the Company and failing him, Mr. Kamal Mitra, Director of the Company, as the Chairperson of the Meeting of the 
Company (“Chairperson”), including for any adjournment thereof. Further, the Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Vikas 
R. Chomal (Membership No.: ACS 24941; CP No: 12133), Proprietor of M/s. Vikas R. Chomal & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting (“Scrutinizer”), including for any adjournment thereof.

3.	 A copy of the Scheme is enclosed herewith as Annexure I.  The proposed scheme is envisaged to be effective from the 
Appointed Date. The Appointed Date is October 1, 2020 or such other date as may be approved by the NCLT. 

4.	 Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date and Share Exchange Ratio and Other Considerations:

	 Clause 1(d) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Appointed Date” as “1st October 2020 or such other date as may be 
approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’)”.



14

Complete Comfort

	 Clause 1(f) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Effective Date” as “the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the 
Order of NCLT, Mumbai bench under Sections 230 & 232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, Pune, at Maharashtra by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company”. 

	 Clause 1(k) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Record Date” as “such date as may be mutually fixed by the Board of 
Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company for determining the names of the shareholders of the 
Transferor Company to whom equity shares of the Transferee Company will be allotted pursuant to the Scheme”.

	 Clause 6.2 of Part B of the Scheme states “Share Exchange Ratio” as “ 2 (Two) fully paid Equity Shares of face value 
of INR 2/- each of Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for every 15 (Fifteen) Equity shares of face value of 
INR 10/- each held in Transferor Company”

5.	 The proposed Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee of the Company (“ICIL Audit Committee”) at its meeting 
held on October 21, 2020. In accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 
10, 2017, (“SEBI Circular”), the ICIL Audit Committee vide resolution passed at its meeting held on October 21, 2020, 
recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Company inter alia on the basis of its evaluation and 
independent judgment and consideration of the following documents:

(a)	 Valuation reports dated October 21, 2020, issued by AZR & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and Mr. 
Amit Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer containing the Share Exchange Ratio (defined hereinafter);

(b)	 Fairness opinion, dated October 21, 2020, issued to the Company by Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services 
LLP, a Category-I Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) on the 
fairness of the share exchange ratio.

(c)	 Certificate dated October 21, 2020, issued by Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors 
of the Company, confirming that the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme is in conformity with the 
accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 Based upon the recommendations of the ICIL Audit Committee and on evaluation of the scheme, the Board of Directors 
of the Company has come to the conclusion that the Scheme is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. 
A copy of the Scheme, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, taking into account the Valuation Reports, 
Fairness Opinion and the independent recommendation of the ICIL Audit Committee, is enclosed herewith to this Notice. 
The rationale and salient features of the Scheme are also mentioned in this Explanatory Statement. 

7.	 The proposed Scheme was also placed before the Audit Committee of Transferor Company (“PSML Audit Committee”) 
at its meeting held on October 21, 2020. In accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular, the PSML Audit Committee 
vide resolution passed at its meeting held on October 21, 2020, recommended the Scheme to Board of Directors of 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited inter alia on the basis of its evaluation and independent judgment and consideration 
of the following documents:

(a)	 Valuation report dated October 21, 2020, issued by AZR & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and by 
Mr. Amit Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer containing the Share Exchange Ratio (defined hereinafter);

(b)	 Fairness opinion, dated October 21, 2020, issued to First Applicant Company by Saffron Capital Advisors Private 
Limited, a Category-I Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) on the 
fairness of the share exchange ratio.

8.	 Based upon the recommendations of the PSML Audit Committee and on evaluation of the scheme, the Board of Directors 
of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“Transferor Company”) has come to the conclusion that the Scheme is in the best 
interest of the Transferor Company and its shareholders. A copy of the Scheme, as approved by the Board of Directors of 
Transferor Company, taking into account the Valuation Reports, Fairness Opinion and the independent recommendation 
of the PSML Audit Committee, is enclosed herewith to this Notice. Please refer to Explanatory Statement for the rationale 
and salient features of the Scheme.

9.	 The Scheme is presented for Amalgamation (by way of Merger by Absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited with 
the Company, on a going concern basis in accordance with the Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and in compliance with 
Section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (“Amalgamation”).
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10.	 In terms of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered approved by the equity shareholders of the 
Company if the resolution mentioned in the Notice is approved at the Meeting by a majority in number representing three-
fourths in value of the equity shareholders of the Company, through electronic voting. Further, in accordance with the 
SEBI Circular, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if the number of votes cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of 
the aforesaid resolution for approval of Scheme is more than the number of votes cast by the Public Shareholders against 
it. Public shareholders shall have same meaning as defined in said circular.

DETAILS OF Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited / FIRST APPLICANT COMPANY / Transferor Company 
AS PER RULE 6(3) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATION) RULES, 2016 
(“RULES”)

11.	 Details of First Applicant Company:

Name of First Applicant Company Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited
Corporate Identification No. (CIN) L17119PN1990PLC058139
Permanent Account No.(PAN) AAACP4716B
Incorporation Date September 12, 1990
Type of Company & Name of stock 
exchanges in which equity shares of 
the Company are listed

Public Limited Company
The equity shares of the First Applicant Company are listed on the BSE 
Limited (Scrip Code : 531172).

Registered Office Address Office No. 2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra, India

Details of change of Name, Registered 
Office and Objects of the Company 
during the last five years

There has been no change in the name, Registered Office and  the object 
clause of First Applicant Company during the last 5 years.

Email address investors@pranavaditya.com 
Relationship with the parties to the 
Scheme

The First Applicant Company is a subsidiary of Second Applicant Company.

12.	 Summary of the main objects as per the memorandum of association of the First Applicant Company:

	 The main objects of the First Applicant Company, as set out in Clause III(A) of its memorandum of association, are as 
under:

	 “To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, processors, cultivators, fabricators, assemblers, ginners, balers, 
pressers, carders, sizers, spinners, woolcombers, worsted spinners woollen spinners, weavers, knitters, bleachers, 
dyers, printers, convertors, crimpers, texturisers, doublers, twisters, packers, reelers, refiners, distributors, traders, 
dealers agents, brokers, financiers, buyers, sellers, importers and exporters of cotton yarn, waste yarn, staple fibre yarn, 
synthetic yarn, blended yarn of all kinds, all other kinds of yarns and threads, including sewing thread and tyre cord 
yarn, natural and man-made fibres including cotton, staple fibre, synthetic, viscose, artificial silk, jute silk, hemp, flex 
wool, linen, nylon, terylene, cotton & synthetic waste or any other fibrous materials whether blended, spun, filament or 
otherwise and cloth including floor cloth, Tarapaulin cloth, American cloth, table cloth, upholstery, curtains, dress linings, 
boot linings, trunk linings and synthetic materials, knitted products, garments, readymade or otherwise including shirts, 
bush shirts, pyjama suits, uniform for the Army, Navy, Airforce and other personnel, safaries, suits, pants, coats, hosiery, 
vests, undergarments for men, women and childrens, madeups, shawls, sweaters, laces, stockings, mats, rugs, blankets, 
packing materials tapes socks fabrics whether textile felted, netted or looped”.

13.	 Main business carried on by the First Applicant Company:

	 The First Applicant Company is authorised to carry on, inter alia, the business of manufacturing of cotton yarn. The First 
Applicant Company is in Textile segment.  
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14.	 Details of the capital structure of the First Applicant Company including authorized, issued, subscribed and 
paid-up share capital:

Authorised Share Capital as on August 31, 2021 Amount (in Rs.)
1,92,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 19,27,00,000
Total 19,27,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital as on August, 31, 2021
1,92,41,280 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 19,24,12,800
Total 19,24,12,800

	 Subsequent to August 31, 2021, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share 
capital of First Applicant Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire authorised share capital of the First 
Applicant Company shall stand transferred to Second Applicant Company.

	 The details regarding the pre-scheme shareholding pattern of the First Applicant Company as on September 30, 2020 is 
as under. The First Applicant Company will be automatically dissolved after the Scheme becomes effective.

Sr.
No.

Category of Shareholder(s) No. of shares % holding

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group   
1 Indian   

(a) Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family  NIL  NIL
(b) Central Government/ State Government(s)  NIL  NIL
(c) Bodies Corporate (Indo Count Industries Limited) 1,43,41,280 74.53
(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks  NIL  NIL 
(e) Any Others  NIL  NIL 
 Sub Total(A)(1) 1,43,41,280 74.53
2 Foreign   

(a) Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/ Foreign Individuals)  NIL  NIL 
(b) Bodies Corporate  NIL  NIL 
(c) Institutions  NIL  NIL 
(d) Any Others  NIL  NIL 
 Sub Total(A)(2)  NIL  NIL
 Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 1,43,41,280 74.53

(B) Public shareholding   
1 Institutions  NIL  NIL

(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI  NIL  NIL 
(b) FPI  NIL  NIL 
(c) Financial Institutions / Banks  NIL  NIL 
(d) Central Government/ State Government(s)  NIL  NIL 
(e) Venture Capital Funds  NIL  NIL 
(f) Insurance Companies  NIL  NIL 
(g) Foreign Institutional Investors  NIL  NIL 
(h) Foreign Venture Capital Investors  NIL  NIL 
(i) Any Other  NIL  NIL 
 Sub-Total (B)(1)  NIL  NIL
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Sr.
No.

Category of Shareholder(s) No. of shares % holding

2 Non-institutions   
(a) Individuals   
I Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs 7,97,696 4.15
II Individual shareholders holding nominal   share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs 15,90,427 8.27

(b) Any Other 
Bodies Corporate 19,59,835 10.19
Clearing Members 1,700 0.01
Non-Resident Indian (NRI) 27,858 0.14
HUF 5,14,888 2.68
Trusts 7,596 0.04

 Sub-Total (B)(2) 49,00,000 25.47
(B) Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 49,00,000 25.47
 TOTAL (A)+(B)   

(C) Shares held  by Custodians and against which DRs have been issued  NIL  NIL 
 GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 1,92,41,280 100.00

	 The First Applicant Company does not have any stock options or equity linked benefits to its employees, as on August 31, 
2021. Further, there are no convertible securities outstanding as on August 31, 2021. 

 
15.	 Names and addresses of the promoters of the First Applicant Company as on August 31, 2021 along with their 

addresses:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Promoter Address

1. Indo Count Industries Limited Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra, India

16.	 Names of the directors of the First Applicant Company as on August 31, 2021 along with their addresses:

Sr. 
No.

DIN Name of the Director Category Residential Address

1. 00400892 Mr. S K Agrawal Non-Executive 
Independent Chairman 

A-2, Matru Ashish Building, 14th floor, 454, 
Nepeansea Road, Near Petrol Pump, Nepeansea 
Road, Mumbai - 400 036

2. 00086106 Mr. Anil Kumar Jain Non-Executive 
Non-Independent 

Director

FRH -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps 
Corner, Near Shalimar Hotel, August Kranti Marg, 
Mumbai - 400 036

3. 01839261 Mr. Kamal Mitra Non-Executive 
Non-Independent 

Director

House No. D -1, R. S. No. 177, Hari Puja Puram, E 
ward, Nagala Park, Karvir, Kolhapur, Maharashtra 
- 416 003

4. 03609419 Dr. Ashok Desai Non-Executive 
Independent Director

1804, Victoria Lodha Paradise, Majiwada, Thane 
West, Thane – 400 601

5. 08015576 Ms. Kala Agarwal Non-Executive 
Independent Director

B / 4, New Rakhi CHS, M. G. Road, Opp. 
Corporation Bank, Kandivali (West), Mumbai - 
400 067

6. 00193056 Mr. L. Viswanathan Non-Executive 
Independent Director

Flat No: 804, B wing, Tower 6, Elisium Building, 
New Cuffe Parade, Wadala (East), Mumbai -               
400 037
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17.	 The date of the board meeting at which the Scheme was approved by the Board of the First Applicant Company 
including the names of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and 
who did not vote or participate on such resolution:

	 The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of  the First Applicant Company on October 21, 2020. All Directors 
were present at the meeting and voted unanimously in favour of the scheme. The details of voting on the resolution are 
as under:

Sr. 
No.

Names of the Directors Voted in favour/against/did not 
participate

1. Mr. S K Agrawal In Favour
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Jain In Favour
3. Mr. Kamal Mitra In Favour
4. Dr. Ashok Desai In Favour
5. Ms. Kala Agarwal In Favour
6. Mr. L. Viswanathan In Favour

18.	 Amount due to unsecured creditors: As on December 31, 2020, the aggregate amount due to the unsecured creditors 
of the First Applicant Company is Rs. 6,02,68,498/- (Six Crore Two Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety 
Eight Rupees Only). There were no secured creditors as on December 31, 2020 in First Applicant Company. 

19.	 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme / amalgamation on promoter, non-promoter shareholders, directors & 
key managerial personnel, creditors, employees, depositors & deposit trustee, debenture trustee of the First 
Applicant Company:

Sr. 
No.

Category of Stakeholder Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

1. Promoters Indo Count Industries Limited (Promoter & Transferee Company) holds 
1,43,41,280 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each of Pranavaditya Spinning 
Mills Limited (Transferor Company) representing 74.53% of paid up equity share 
capital of Transferor Company. The said shares held by Transferee Company in 
Transferor Company will stand cancelled pursuant to this scheme on account of 
amalgamation without any further application, act and deed.

2. Non-Promoter Shareholders As consideration for the amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee 
Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed and 
without receipt of any cash, issue and allot to the shareholders of Transferor 
Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), 2 equity shares of 
Rs. 2 each of the Transferee Company for every 15 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
of Transferor Company. (“Share Exchange Ratio”).
Upon the amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, 
Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound-up and without 
any further act or deed. The name of Transferor Company shall be struck off from 
the records of the Registrar of Companies on amalgamation.

3. Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel (“KMPs”)

All KMPs (Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary) of Transferor Company shall cease to hold their respective positions in 
the Transferor Company. Any KMPs holding equity shares in Transferor Company, 
as on record date, will receive the shares of Transferee Company as per the 
aforementioned share exchange ratio. 
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Sr. 
No.

Category of Stakeholder Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

4. Creditors There are no secured creditors in Transferor Company.
Inter-company unsecured creditors: Upon the scheme becoming effective, 
w.e.f. Appointed Date, the Receivables of Transferee Company from Transferor 
Company shall stand cancelled.
Further, other unsecured creditor of Transferor Company would become creditor of 
Transferee company and Transferee company shall be liable to meet, discharge or 
satisfy the same in accordance with terms agreed with creditors. 
The Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors 
of the Transferor Company. The liability of the Transferor Company towards its 
creditors is neither being reduced nor being extinguished under the Scheme 
and the Scheme is therefore not prejudicial to the interests of the creditors of the 
Transferor Company.

5. Depositors & Deposit Trustee Not Applicable, as the Transferor Company does not have any outstanding public 
deposits.

6. Employees Upon the amalgamation becoming effective, in terms of the Scheme, all employees 
of the Transferor Company, as on the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme), 
shall be deemed to have become employees of the Transferee Company, without 
any interruption of service and on the basis of continuity of service and on the 
same terms and conditions as those applicable to them with reference to the 
Transferor Company, on the Effective Date. The services of such employees with 
the Transferor Company up to the Effective Date shall be taken into account for 
the purposes of all benefits to which the said employees may be eligible, including 
for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, severance pay, 
gratuity and other terminal benefits. In these circumstances, the rights of such 
employees of the Transferor Company would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

7. Debenture holders & 
Debenture Trustee

Not Applicable, as the Transferor Company does not have any outstanding 
debentures.

20.	 Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of directors and key managerial personnel of 
the First Applicant Company:

	 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferor Company have any interest, financial or otherwise in 
the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the Transferor Company and Transferee Company.

 	 As on the date of this notice, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra, Directors hold 75 and 1 equity share of Rs. 10/- 
each of the Transferor Company respectively. Further, Mr. Ashok G. Halasangi, Chief Executive Officer, holds 1 equity 
share of Rs. 10/- of the Transferor Company. They will be allotted equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each of the 
Transferee Company in the share exchange ratio as defined in the scheme. None of the other Directors and KMP hold 
any equity shares of the Transferor Company as on the date of this notice. Further, as on date of this notice, Mr. Anil 
Kumar Jain and Mr. Mohit Jain, Directors of Transferee Company hold 18,67,555 (0.95%) and 6,92,850 (0.35%) equity 
shares of Rs. 2/- each of the Transferee Company, respectively.  

 
	 Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra are common Directors in Transferor and Transferee Company. Further, Mr. K. 

Muralidharan and Mrs. Amruta Avasare are Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary respectively in Transferor and 
Transferee Company. They shall cease to hold their respective offices from effective date in Transferor Company.  

 
21.	 In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of the First Applicant Company, has adopted 

a report, inter-alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their respective shareholders and key managerial personnel 
among others. A copy of the report adopted by the Board of the First Applicant Company is enclosed as ANNEXURE 
XVIII.

22.	 As on the date of this notice, no investigation proceedings are pending in relation to the First Applicant Company under 
Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 206 to 229 (Chapter XIV) of the Companies Act,2013. 
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23.	 No winding-up petition (including under Section 433 read with Section 434 of the Companies Act, 1956) and/ or insolvency 
proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 are pending against the First Applicant Company.

24.	 The audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 of First Applicant Company along with the auditor’s 
report and the Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2021, of the First Applicant Company along with 
the Limited Review Report thereon issued by the Statutory Auditors are enclosed as ANNEXURE XV and ANNEXURE 
XVI, respectively.

DETAILS OF INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED / SECOND APPLICANT COMPANY / TRANSFEREE COMPANY AS 
PER RULE 6(3) OF THE RULES

25.	 Details of Second Applicant Company:

Name of Second Applicant Company Indo Count Industries Limited
Corporate IdentificationNo. (CIN) L72200PN1988PLC068972
Permanent Account No. (PAN) AAACI0866P
Incorporation Date November 7, 1988
Type of Company & Name of stock 
exchanges in which equity shares of 
the Company are listed

Public Limited Company
The equity shares of Second Applicant Company are listed on BSE Limited 
(Scrip Code: 521016) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE 
Symbol: ICIL)

Registered Office Address Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India

Details of change of Name, Registered 
Office and Objects of the Company 
during the last five years

There has been no change in the name, Registered Office and/or the object 
clause of Second Applicant Company  during the last 5 years.

Email address icilinvestors@indocount.com
Relationship with the parties to the 
Scheme

Second Applicant Company is the promoter & Holding Company of First 
Applicant Company and holds 74.53% of the equity share capital of First 
Applicant Company.

26.	 Summary of the main objects as per the memorandum of association of Second Applicant Company:

	 The main objects of Second Applicant Company, as set out under Clause III(A) of its memorandum of association, are as 
under:

1.	 To set up or acquire plant or plants and also to set up Rolling Mill for the Manufacture of Aluminium billets, ingots, 
aluminium extrusions of all kinds and sizes, rods, wires and all kinds of re-rolled sections such as flats, angles, 
squares, channels, strips steels, plants and also to manufacture, buy, sell, manipulate, import or export or otherwise 
deal in aluminium, brass, copper, lead, silver wires and parts of billets, wire bars or ingots by extrusion process or 
any other process.

2.	 To set up a plant-for drawing aluminium rods and wires of all sizes from aluminium ingots and to manufacture and 
fabricate the aluminium structurals and fittings and to deal in such products.

3.	 To carry on the business as manufacturers, processors, re-rollers, refiners, converters, producers, exporters, 
importers, traders, dealers, distributors, stockists, buyers, sellers, agents or merchants in all kinds and forms of 
nonferrous and ferrous metals,. ferro-alloys including aluminium, copper,. Brass and bronze and to manufacture 
extrusion and sections of various sizes and description ingots, billets, bars, joists, plates, pipes, sheets, wire, rails, 
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rolling materials, Insulated cables, conductors, codes and semi-manufactured and other materials made wholly or 
partly of aluminium, copper, brass, bronze, alloys and metals required in all use for industrial, defence, agriculture, 
transport, commercial, domestic, building, power transmission and/or construction purposes.

4.	 To carry on business as producers, importers, exporters, manufacturers, buyers, sellers, distributors, stockists, 
agents of aluminium, aluminia, copper, bauxite, nickel, zinc, .lead, brass, ferro-alloys and ferrous and lion-ferrous 
metals and to act as metal founders, manufacturers, agents, dealers or metals of all kinds.

5.	 To carry on the business as traders, dealers, wholesalers, retailers, importers, exporters, spinners, weavers, 
finishers, processors, printers, dyers and manufacturers of yarns and fabrics of cotton, wool, silk, rayon, nylon, 
terene, terelene, and other natural, synthetic and/or fibrous substances including polyesters, poly-acrylonitriate, poly 
vinyl, acetate, cashmilon, acrylic, fabrics, poly or polylene polymers, monimers, elastomers and resins of all types, 
grades and copolymer formulations and forms or as processed products and to carry on the business as droppers 
and dealers of furnishing fabrics in all its branches.

6.	 To manufacture, design, develop, rent out, buy, sell, repair, service, import, export, take on lease of otherwise deal in 
and render services through computers, computing systems, software systems, software material, instrumentations, 
medical electronics, communication and visual devices, telecommunication, television, video, video equipments, 
electronics and electrical products equipments and device and to act as consultants in the matter of manufacturing, 
mining, engineering, quality control and to carry on general research and development.

7.	 To carry on the business of providing, through the medium of high speed telecommunication, computer networking 
and satellite. services covering the Internet and intranet services, electronic and e-commerce services, information 
technology enables services, internet access devices and services, all kinds of data analyzing and processing 
services and services related to computer software and hardware development.

8.	 To Set up and run computer center / educational institution imparting education and /or training in computers, 
information technology, electronic and telecommunications.

9.	 To set up, operate and manage establishments carrying-on the business of entertainment and amusement activities.

27.	 Main business carried on by Second Applicant Company:

	 The Second Applicant Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of home textiles and its products broadly 
falls under the categories of Bed Sheets, Quilts and Comforters.

28.	 Details of the capital structure of Second Applicant Company including authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-
up share capital:

Authorised Share Capital as on August 31, 2021 Amount (in Rs.)
27,50,00,000 shares of Rs. 2/- each 55,00,00,000
50,00,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,00,00,000
Total 60,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital as on August 31, 2021
19,73,99,670 shares of Rs. 2/- each 39,47,99,340
Total 39,47,99,340

	 Subsequent to August 31, 2021, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share 
capital of Second Applicant Company. 
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	 The details regarding the pre-scheme shareholding pattern of Second Applicant Company as on September 30, 2020 and 
indicative shareholding pattern of the Second Applicant Company after the Scheme becomes effective is as under:

Sr.
No.

Description Name of Shareholder Pre- Amalgamation Post – Amalgamation*
 No. of equity 

shares 
% holding  No. of equity 

shares 
% holding

(A) Shareholding of Promoter 
and Promoter Group

     

1 Indian      

Individuals/ Hindu Undivided 
Family

Gayatri Devi Jain 66,85,855 3.39 66,85,855 3.38
Shikha Mohit Jain 52,48,825 2.66 52,48,825 2.65
Neha Singhvi 22,79,130 1.15 22,79,137 1.15
Shivani Patodia 21,73,750 1.10 21,73,750 1.10
Anil Kumar Jain 18,67,555 0.95 18,67,565 0.94
Mohit Anilkumar Jain 6,92,850 0.35 6,92,850 0.35
Anil Kumar Jain HUF 75,000 0.04 75,000 0.04
Sunita Jaipuria 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01

(b) Central Government/ State 
Government(s)

-  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

(c) Bodies Corporate -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

(e) Any Others 
(Bodies Corporates)

Indocount Securities Limited 3,10,41,385 15.73 3,10,41,385 15.67
Yarntex Exports Limited 23,12,500 1.17 23,12,500 1.17
Margo Finance Limited 15,20,020 0.77 15,20,020 0.77
Slab Promoters Private Limited 3,08,325 0.16 3,08,325 0.16
Rini Investment And Finance 
Private Limited

1,19,100 0.06 1,19,100 0.06

 Sub Total(A)(1)  5,43,44,295 27.53 5,43,44,312 27.44
2 Foreign      

(a) Individuals (Non-Residents 
Individuals/ -

 NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Foreign Individuals)  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(b) Bodies Corporate -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(c) Institutions -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(d) Any Others 

(Bodies Corporates)
Sandridge Investments Limited 6,20,02,455 31.41 6,20,02,455 31.31

 Sub Total(A)(2)  6,20,02,455 31.41 6,20,02,455 31.31
 Total Shareholding of 

Promoter     and Promoter 
Group (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

 11,63,46,750 58.94 11,63,46,767 58.75

(B) Public shareholding      
1 Institutions      

(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI - 1,07,000 0.05 1,07,000 0.05
(b) FPI - 1,69,98,096 8.61 1,69,98,096 8.58
(c) Financial Institutions / Banks - 43,720 0.02 43,720 0.02
(d) Central Government/ State 

Government(s)
-  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

(e) Venture Capital Funds -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(f) Insurance Companies -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(g) Foreign Institutional Investors -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(h) Foreign Venture Capital 

Investors
-  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

(i) Any Other -  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
 Sub-Total (B)(1)  1,71,48,816 8.69 1,71,48,816 8.66
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Sr.
No.

Description Name of Shareholder Pre- Amalgamation Post – Amalgamation*
 No. of equity 

shares 
% holding  No. of equity 

shares 
% holding

2 Non-institutions      
(a) Individuals -     
I Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital 
up to Rs 2 lakh

- 2,75,29,835 13.95 2,76,36,177 13.95

II Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 2 lakh.

- 1,40,41,486 7.11 1,42,53,543 7.20

(b) Any Other (Foreign Nationals, 
HUF, Non-Resident Indian 
(NRI), Clearing Members, 
Bodies Corporate)

- 2,23,32,783 11.31 2,26,67,700 11.45

 Sub-Total (B)(2)  6,39,04,104 32.37 6,45,57,420 32.60
(B) Total Public Shareholding 

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)
 8,10,52,920 41.06 8,17,06,236 41.25

 TOTAL (A)+(B)  19,73,99,670 100.00 19,80,53,003 100.00 
(C) Shares held  by Custodians 

and against which DRs have 
been issued

 - -    -  -  -

 GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C)  19,73,99,670 100.00 19,80,53,003 100.00

	 *	Proposed post-amalgamation shareholding of transferee Company. However, it may vary due to fractional entitlement 
treatment, mentioned in the scheme

29.	 Names of the promoters & promoter group of Second Applicant Company as on August 31, 2021 along with their 
add

 
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Promoter & Promoter Group Address

1. Mrs. Gayatri Devi Jain Frh -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, Near Shalimar 
Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai  400 036

2. Mrs. Shikha Mohit Jain Frh -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, Near Shalimar 
Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai  400 036

3. Mrs. Neha Singhvi House No 227, East of Kailash, Phase-1 ,South Delhi 110 065
4. Mrs. Shivani Patodia Frh -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, Near Shalimar 

Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai  400 036
5. Mr. Anil Kumar Jain Frh -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, Near Shalimar 

Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai  400 036
6. Mr. Mohit Anilkumar Jain Frh -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, Near Shalimar 

Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai  400 036
7. Anil Kumar Jain (HUF) 1101, Arcadia, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
8. Mrs. Sunita Jaipuria A 9/24, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi 110 057  
9. Indocount Securities Limited 1101, Arcadia, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

10. Yarntex Exports Limited 301, 3rd Floor, Arcadia, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
11. Margo Finance Limited Office No. 3, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka 

Hatkanangale, Kolhapur - 416 109 Maharashtra,  
12. Slab Promoters Private Limited 1101, Arcadia, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
13. Rini Investment and Finance Private Limited 1101, Arcadia, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
14. Sandridge Investments Limited 6/ 7th Floor, Dias Pier Building, Le Caudan Waterfront Caudan Port 

Louis Mauritius Pin 11307 



24

Complete Comfort

30.	 Names of the directors of Second Applicant Company as on August 31, 2021 along with their addresses:

Sr. 
No.

Name Category Address

1. Mr. Anil Kumar Jain Executive Chairman FRH -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, 
Near Shalimar Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai – 400 
036

2. Mr. Mohit Anilkumar Jain Executive Vice Chairman FRH -5, Grand Paradi Apt, A. K. Marg, Kemps Corner, 
Near Shalimar Hotel, August Kranti Marg, Mumbai – 400 
036

3. Mr. Kailash R Lalpuria Executive Director & CEO D – 901, Lakshachandi Apartment, Krishna Vatika Marg, 
Near Gokuldham Temple, Gokuldham, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai – 400 063

4. Mr. Kamal Mitra Director (Works) House No. D -1, R. S. No. 177, Hari Puja Puram, E ward, 
Nagala Park, Karvir, Kolhapur, Maharashtra – 416003

5. Mr. Dilip J Thakkar Independent Director 12/22, Acropolis – B, Little Gibbs Road, Malabar Hill, 
Mumbai – 400 006

6. Mr. Prem Malik Independent Director 1201, Lok Nirman Apartment, A – 2, Dr. Ambedkar Road, 
Khar (W), Mumbai – 400 052

7. Dr(Mrs.) Vaijayanti Pandit Independent Director B-9, Taj Building, 30, August Kranti Marg, Near Sripati 
Arcade – Nana Chowk, Mumbai – 400 036

8. Mr. Sushil Kumar Jiwarajka Independent Director 33-34, Suraj CHS, 71 Bhulabhai desai Road, Breach 
Candy, Cumballa Hill, Mumbai – 400 026

9. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Panda Independent Director 515, Ward No – 3, Sidheswar Sahi, Cuttack Sadar, 
Tulasipur, Cuttack, Odisha – 753008

10. Mr. Siddharth Mehta Independent Director 4, Matruchhaya, 70 Marine Drive, Marine Lines, Mumbai 
– 400 020

31.	 The date of the board meeting at which the Scheme was approved by the Board of Second Applicant Company 
including the names of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and 
who did not vote or participate on such resolution:

	 The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of  the Second Applicant Company on October 21, 2020. All 
Directors were present at the meeting and voted unanimously in favour of the scheme. The details of voting on the 
resolution are as under:

Sr. 
No.

Names of the Directors Votes In Favour/ against/ abstained 

1. Mr. Anil Kumar Jain In favour
2. Mr. Mohit Anilkumar Jain In favour
3. Mr. Kailash R Lalpuria In favour
4. Mr. Kamal Mitra In favour
5. Mr. Dilip J Thakkar In favour
6. Mr. Prem Malik In favour
7. Dr.(Mrs). Vaijayanti Pandit In favour
8. Mr. Sushil Kumar Jiwarajka In favour
9. Dr. Sanjay Kumar Panda In favour
10. Mr. Siddharth Mehta In favour

32.	 Aggregate amount due to secured creditors & unsecured creditors:
	
	 As on December 31, 2020, the aggregate amount due to the Secured creditors and to the unsecured creditors of the 

Second Applicant Company is Rs.374,86,30,407/- (Three Hundred and Seventy Four Crore Eighty Six Lakh Thirty 
Thousand Four Hundred and Seven Rupees Only) and Rs. 223,52,92,851/- (Two Hundred and Twenty Three Crore Fifty 
Two Lakh Ninety Two Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty One Rupees Only) respectively.
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33.	 Disclosure about effect of the Scheme on material interests of directors, key managerial personnel, debenture 
trustee and other stakeholders of Second Applicant Company:

Sr. 
No.

Category of Stakeholder Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders

1. Shareholders (a)	As consideration for the amalgamation of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills 
Limited (Transferor Company) with Indo Count Industries Limited (Transferee 
Company), the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed and 
without receipt of any cash, issue and allot to the shareholders of Transferor 
Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), 2 equity shares 
of Rs. 2/- each of the Transferee Company for every 15 equity shares of                         
Rs. 10/- each of Transferee Company (“Share Exchange Ratio”).

(b)	Simultaneous with the amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee 
Company, the shareholding of Transferor Company in the Transferee Company 
shall stand cancelled.

2. Promoters Due to allotment of equity shares by the Transferee Company in the aforesaid 
share exchange ratio, the overall shareholding percentage of promoter/ Promoter 
Group of the Transferee Company will get diluted by ~ 0.19%. 

3. Non-Promoter Shareholders Upon the scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company will issue equity 
shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company as on Record Date in the 
following share exchange ratio: 
“2 (Two) fully paid up equity shares of face value Re. 2/- each of Transferee 
Company to the equity shareholders of Transferor Company as on Record Date, 
for every 15 (Fifteen) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held by them in 
Transferor Company.”
The equity shares of the Transferee Company which will be issued & allotted to 
the Shareholders of Transferor Company shall be listed on BSE Limited and the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and shall rank pari passu in all respects 
with the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.
Due to aforesaid allotment, the total public shareholding of the Transferee 
Company will increase by ~ 0.19%. This will in turn increase the trading stock of 
the equity shares of the Transferee Company.

4. Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel (“KMPs”) 

There is no effect of the scheme on the KMPs (Directors, Chief Financial Officer 
and Company Secretary) of the Transferee Company. All KMPs shall continue to 
hold their respective positions in the Transferee Company. Further, as Transferor 
Company will get dissolved, any KMP holding directorship/ KMP positions in 
Transferor Company shall cease to hold those respective positions. Any KMPs 
holding equity shares in Transferor Company, as on record date, will receive the 
shares of Transferee Company as per the aforementioned share exchange ratio.

5. Creditors The Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors 
of the Transferee Company. The liability of the Transferee Company towards 
its creditors is neither being reduced nor being extinguished under the Scheme 
and the Scheme is therefore not prejudicial to the interests of the creditors of the 
Transferee Company

6. Depositors/ Deposit Trustee Not applicable as Transferee Company does not have any public deposits.
7. Debenture/ Debenture 

Holders 
Not applicable as Transferee Company does not have any Debentures. 

8. Employees There is no effect of the scheme on the employees of Transferee Company. The 
rights of the employees of Transferee Company are not affected by the scheme.
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34.	 Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of directors and key managerial personnel of 
Second Applicant Company:

	 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferee Company have any interest, financial or otherwise in 
the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the Transferor Company and Transferee Company.

 	 As on date of this notice, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Mohit Jain, Directors hold 18,67,555 (0.95%) and 6,92,850 (0.35%) 
equity shares of Rs. 2/- each of the Transferee Company, respectively. None of the other Directors and KMP hold any 
equity shares of the Transferee Company as on the date of this notice. Further, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra, 
Directors hold 75 and 1 equity share of Rs. 10/- each of the Transferor Company respectively and will be allotted equity 
shares of face value of Rs 2/- each of the Transferee Company in the share exchange ratio as defined in the scheme.

	 Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra are common Directors in Transferor and Transferee Company. Further, Mr. K. 
Muralidharan and Mrs. Amruta Avasare are Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary respectively in Transferor and 
Transferee Company. They shall cease to hold their respective offices from effective date in Transferor Company.

35.	 In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of the Second Applicant Company, has 
adopted a report, inter-alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their respective shareholders and key managerial 
personnel among others. A copy of the report adopted by the Board of the Second Applicant Company is enclosed as 
ANNEXURE XVII

36.	 As on the date of notice, no investigation proceedings are pending in relation to the Second Applicant Company under 
Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 206 to 229 (Chapter XIV) of the Act.

37.	 No winding-up petition (including under Section 433 read with Section 434 of the Companies Act, 1956) and/ or insolvency 
proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 are pending against the Second Applicant Company.

38.	 The audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 of Second Applicant Company along with the 
auditors report and the Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2021, of the Second Applicant 
Company along with the Limited Review Report thereon issued by the Statutory Auditors are enclosed as ANNEXURE 
XIII and ANNEXURE XIV, respectively.

39.	 Relationship between the Parties to the Scheme : As on date of this notice, Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (First 
Applicant Company) is a subsidiary of Indo Count Industries Limited (Second Applicant Company). Indo Count Industries 
Limited holds 74.53% paid up equity share capital in Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited.

40.	 Relevant Extracts of Rationale of the Scheme and the benefits of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of 
Directors of the respective Companies: Clause II of the Scheme (i.e. Rationale for the Scheme) is as under. 

	 “The Transferor Company, listed on BSE Limited and the Transferee Company, listed on BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, both are a part of the same group. Further, the Transferor Company is a subsidiary of the 
Transferee Company wherein the Transferee Company holds majority shareholding in the Transferor Company. The main 
business of PSML has been manufacturing of cotton yarn and it has a huge freehold land of ~ 34 acres at Plot No 2, 
Village Alte, Tal. Hatkanangale, Dist. Kolhapur (near textile hub Ichalkaranji) and ~ 20000 spindle capacity for spinning. 
The land, machinery, infrastructure and all other resources available with the Transferor Company can be utilized in cost 
effective and efficient manner to carry out Transferee Company’s business expansion. The Transferor and Transferee’s 
industrial units are situated within a distance of ~ 40 kilometers. Hence, it is proposed to amalgamate Transferor Company 
into the Transferee Company in this Scheme. Further, the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee 
Company would inter alia have the following benefits:

a.	 Consolidation of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company will achieve simplified corporate structure, 
rationalise the number of listed entities and result in a single listed entity with combined businesses.

b.	 Provide an opportunity to leverage combined assets and build a stronger sustainable business. Specifically, it will 
also enable optimal utilization of existing resources which are in excess of the current business requirements of the 
Transferor Company and provide an opportunity to fully leverage assets, capacities, experience and infrastructure of 
the Transferor Company and Transferee Company. 
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c.	 Reducing managerial overlaps involved in operating multiple entities, enable cost savings and effective utilization 
of valuable resources which will enhance the management focus thereby leading to increase in operational and 
management efficiency; integrate business functions; eliminate duplication and rationalization of administrative 
expenses. 

d.	 Synchronization of efforts to achieve uniform corporate policy, greater integration and greater financial strength and 
flexibility for the Transferee Company.

e.	 Better value creation for the shareholders of both the companies enabling the public shareholders to hold shares of 
the combined listed entity. 

f.	 Upon completion of the amalgamation, the Transferor Company will be dissolved. Consequently, there would be 
lesser regulatory and legal compliance obligations including accounting, reporting requirements, statutory and 
internal audit compliance requirements, tax filings, company law compliances, Stock Exchange compliances etc. 
and therefore reduction in administrative costs.

	 The intended Scheme is not prejudicial to the interest of the creditors or the employees of the Transferor Company and 
the Transferee Company.”

	 Appointed Date, Effective Date, Record Date and Share Exchange Ratio and Other Considerations:

	 Clause 1(d) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Appointed Date” as “1st October 2020 or such other date as may be 
approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’)”.

	 Clause 1(f) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Effective Date” as “the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the 
Order of NCLT, Mumbai bench under Sections 230 & 232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, Pune, at Maharashtra by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company”. 

	 Clause 1(k) of Part A of the Scheme defines “Record Date” as “such date as may be mutually fixed by the Board of 
Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company for determining the names of the shareholders of the 
Transferor Company to whom equity shares of the Transferee Company will be allotted pursuant to the Scheme”.

	 Clause 6.2 of Part B of the Scheme states “Share Exchange Ratio” as “ 2 (Two) fully paid Equity Shares of face value 
of INR 2/- each of Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for every 15 (Fifteen) Equity shares of face value of 
INR 10/- each held in Transferor Company”

41.	 Salient Features of the Scheme:

	 DEFINITIONS

	 Part A of the Scheme

	 1(d) 	“Appointed Date” means 1st October 2020 or such other date as may be approved by the Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’).

	 1(f) “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the Order of NCLT, Mumbai bench under 
Sections 230 & 232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Pune, at Maharashtra by 
the Transferor Company and Transferee Company;

	 1(k) 	“Record Date” means such date as may be mutually fixed by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company 
and the Transferee Company for determining the names of the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity 
shares of the Transferee Company will be allotted pursuant to the Scheme; 

	 1(s) 	“Transferor Company” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Point 1 of Clause I of the Preamble of this Scheme 
and shall include but not be limited to: 

(i)	 all assets, whether moveable or immoveable, plant and machinery, equipment, stocks and inventory including all 
rights, title, interest, claims, covenants in such assets of the Transferor Company; 
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(ii)	 all investments, receivables, loans and advances extended (including CENVAT credit or other tax assets), including 
accrued interest thereon of the Transferor Company; 

(iii)	 all debts, borrowings and liabilities, whether present or future, secured or unsecured, availed by the Transferor 
Company; 

(iv)	 all permits, rights, entitlements, licenses, approvals, grants, allotments, recommendations, clearances, tenancies, 
offices, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, refund of any tax, duty, cess or any excess payment 
(including all amounts claimed as refund, whether or not so recorded in the books of accounts), tax credits (including, 
but not limited to, credits in respect of income tax, tax deducted at source, CENVAT, sales tax, value added tax, 
turnover tax, excise duty, service tax, minimum alternate tax, goods and service tax etc.) of every kind and description 
whatsoever of the Transferor Company; 

(v)	 rights to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of tax, duty, cess or 
other charge, including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made by the Transferor Company and any interest 
thereon, under Applicable Law, and in respect of set-off, carry forward of un-absorbed losses, deferred revenue 
expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance, amortization benefit, etc. whether under the IT Act, the rules 
and regulations thereunder, or any other Applicable Law, or any other or like benefits under the said acts or under 
and in accordance with any Applicable Law or act, whether in India or anywhere outside India;

(vi)	 all Intangible Assets of every kind and description whatsoever of the Transferor Company; 

(vii)	 all privileges and benefits of, or under, all contracts, agreements or arrangements of any kind, and all other rights 
including lease rights, licenses and facilities of every kind and description whatsoever of the Transferor Company; 

(viii)	all employees of the Transferor Company existing as on the Effective Date; 

(ix)	 all advance payments, earnest monies and/or security deposits or other entitlements of the Transferor Company; 

(x)	 all legal, tax, regulatory, quasi-judicial, administrative or other proceedings, suits, appeals, applications or proceedings 
of whatsoever nature initiated by or against the Transferor Company; and 

(xi)	 all books, records, files, papers, computer programs, engineering and process information, manuals, data, production 
methodologies, production plans, catalogues, quotations, websites, sales and advertising material, marketing 
strategies, list of present and former customers, customer credit information, customer pricing information, and 
other records whether in physical form or electronic form or in any other form, in connection with or relating to the 
Transferor Company; 

	 Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the draft of the Scheme 
enclosed as Annexure I.

	 CONSIDERATION FOR AMALGAMATION (Part B clause 6.2)

	 “Upon this Scheme becoming effective, in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company, Transferee 
Company shall without any further application or deed, issue and allot its equity shares at par credited as fully paid up, as 
per the swap-ratio provided by the valuation report of the registered valuer and valuation report of chartered accountants 
and the fairness opinion dated provided by merchant banker, to the members of Transferor Company, holding equity 
shares in Transferor Company and whose names appear in the Register of Members/Depository Participant on the Record 
Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title 
as may be recognized by the respective Board of Directors in the following manner:

	 2 (Two) fully paid Equity Shares of face value of  INR 2/- each of Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted for 
every 15 (Fifteen) Equity shares of face value of INR 10/- each held in Transferor Company”

	 CANCELLATION OF EQUITY SHARES (Part B clause 6.7)

	 “Upon the Scheme being effective and on allotment of new shares by the Transferee Company, the shares held in 
Transferor Company by the Transferee Company shall stand automatically cancelled without any further act or deed. 



29

Complete Comfort

Further, it is clarified that no shares will be issued for the shares that are held by the Transferee Company in Transferor 
Company.”

	 AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE SECOND APPLICANT COMPANY

	 Part B Clause 8.4

	 “It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of this Clause 8 of this Scheme, the consent of the shareholders of the 
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of 
effecting the above amendment to the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company and no further resolution 
under Section 13 of the Act and/or any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act and rules and regulations 
framed thereunder would be required to be separately passed, nor shall the Transferee Company be required to pay any 
additional registration fees, stamp duty, etc.”

	 LISTING OF NEW SHARES

	 Part B Clause 6.8 

	 “The new shares to be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of Clause 6 of this Scheme shall be 
listed and shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges. The Transferee Company shall make all requisite 
applications and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of Applicable Laws, including, as applicable, the provisions 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the 
SEBI Circulars. The Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till 
relevant directions in relation to listing/trading are provided by the Stock Exchanges.”

	 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

	 Part B Clause 7

7.1	 The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company shall be accounted for in the books 
of account of the Transferee Company in accordance with ‘Pooling of Interest Method’ of accounting as per Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, which is applicable to the Company since this is a common control business combination as follows:

7.2	 All the assets, liabilities and reserves in the books of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested in 
the Transferee Company pursuant to the scheme and shall be recorded by the Transferee Company at their carrying 
amounts as appearing in the books of Transferor Company, on the Appointed Date. 

7.3	 The Transferee Company shall credit to its share capital account, the aggregate face value of the new shares issued 
by it pursuant to Clause 6 of this Scheme.

7.4	 The carrying amount of investments in the equity shares of the Transferor Company to the extent held by Transferee 
Company, shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

7.5	 Upon the scheme coming into effect, the surplus /deficit, if any of the net value of assets, liabilities and reserves of 
the Transferor Company acquired and recorded by the Transferee Company in terms of clause 7.2 over the sum of 
(a) the face value of the new shares on Amalgamation issued and allotted pursuant to clause 6; and (b) the value 
of investments cancelled pursuant to Clause 7.4, shall be adjusted in “Capital Reserve Account” in the financial 
statements of the Transferee Company.

7.6	 Any inter-company balance(s) and inter-company investments, debts, borrowings (secured or unsecured), if any 
between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and corresponding effect shall 
be given in the books of account and the records of Transferee Company for the reduction of any assets or liabilities, 
as the case may be. There would be no accrual of interest or other charges and there shall be no obligation/
outstanding in that behalf in respect of any such intercompany loans, debt, securities or balances with effect from 
the Appointed Date. 
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7.7	 In case of any difference in any of the accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company, the impact of the same in the merger by absorption will be quantified and adjusted in the Capital Reserves 
of the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the true 
financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policies.

7.8	 Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the Transferee Company, as on the Appointed Date shall be 
reconstructed with the terms of this Scheme.

7.9	 The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the Transferor Company shall be 
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the Transferee Company. 

7.10	The identity of the reserves shall be preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of the Transferee 
Company in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the Transferor Company.

CONDITIONALITY OF THIS SCHEME

Part C Clause 15

This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to: 

a)	 The requisite consent, approval or permission from the Stock Exchanges under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which by law or otherwise may be necessary for 
implementation of the Scheme in compliance with. the provisions of SEBI Circular;

b)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India and the Stock Exchanges approving this Scheme and the other transactions 
contemplated in this Scheme.

c)	 Approval of the requisite majority of the shareholders of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company to the 
Scheme and the requisite orders of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme in exercise of the powers vested in it under 
the Act;

d)	 Approval of public shareholders of the Transferor and Transferee Company through e-voting in terms of Para 9 of 
Annexure I of the SEBI Circular dated 10th March 2017, provided that the same shall be acted upon only if the votes 
cast by the public shareholders in favour of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast by them against the 
Scheme; and

e)	 such other sanctions and approvals including sanctions of any government or regulatory authority as may be required 
by law in respect of the Scheme and the certified copies of the NCLT order sanctioning the Scheme being filed with 
ROC.

	 Comments via observation letters dated March 25, 2021 & March 26, 2021 issued by Stock 
Exchanges:
 
Clause 24
 

	 Pursuant to the observation letters dated March 25, 2021 issued by BSE Limited to Transferor Company and March 
25, 2021 & March 26, 2021 issued by BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, respectively to the 
Transferee Company, following information and facts on methods of valuation are provided below: 

i.	 In case of ICIL only one method of valuation i.e. Market Approach has been used because its shares are frequently 
traded on Stock Exchanges, and market price reflects significant multiple of book value. Therefore, it was inappropriate 
to consider cost and income approach in case of ICIL. Further, ICIL is a listed Company and information related to 
the future profit and loss account, balance sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the 
valuer.

 ii.	 Two Methods of Valuation i.e. Cost and Market Approach have been used for PSML and Income approach method 
has not been used as PSML is a listed Company and information related to the future profit and loss account, balance 
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sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the valuer. Further, PSML’s production was 
stopped at the time of appointed date.”

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME, THE EQUITY 
SHAREHOLDERS ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME (ANNEXED HEREWITH) TO 
GET FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF AND THE RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME.

 
42.	 Summary of the Valuation Reports including basis of valuation and the Fairness Opinion:

	 A Valuation report dated October 21, 2020 was issued by Mr. Amit Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer and AZR & Associates, 
Independent Chartered Accountants recommending the Share Exchange Ratio to the First Applicant Company and 
Second Applicant Company (“Valuation Reports”). Copies of the said Valuation Reports are enclosed herewith as 
Annexure III and IV. The information and facts on methods of valuation are also mentioned above (Clause 24 of the 
Scheme).

	 In terms of the SEBI Circular, Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services LLP, a Category-I Merchant Banker submitted 
to the Board of Directors of the Second Applicant Company, fairness opinion, certifying that the Share Exchange Ratio 
provided in the Valuation Reports is fair and reasonable. Copy of the said fairness opinion is enclosed herewith as 
Annexure V.

	 Further, In terms of the SEBI Circular, Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, a Category-I Merchant Banker submitted 
to the Board of Directors of the First Applicant Company, fairness opinion, certifying that the Share Exchange Ratio 
provided in the Valuation Reports is fair and reasonable. Copy of the said fairness opinion is enclosed herewith as 
Annexure VI.

43.	 Details of capital or debt restructuring, if any: Upon the Amalgamation becoming effective on Effective Date, the 
authorised Share Capital of the First Applicant Company to the extent of Rs. 19,27,00,000 divided into 1,92,70,000 Equity 
Shares of Re. 10 each shall stand transferred/ added to and be merged with the authorised Share Capital of the Second 
Applicant Company, without any liability for payment of any additional fees or stamp duty. Thus, the authorized capital 
of the Second Applicant Company shall stand increased to Rs. 79,27,00,000 divided into 37,13,50,000 equity shares of 
Re. 2 each and 50,00,000 Preference shares of Rs.10 each. The Memorandum of Association of the Second Applicant 
Company shall be amended to reflect the same as an effect of the Scheme.

	 The scheme does not involve any debt restructuring.

44.	 Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s), if any, from regulatory or any other governmental authorities 
required, received or pending for the proposed Scheme:

(a)	 The equity shares of the First Applicant Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”). The BSE was appointed as the 
designated stock exchange by the First Applicant Company for the purpose of coordinating with SEBI, pursuant to 
the SEBI Circular. The First Applicant Company has received an observation letter dated March 25, 2021 from BSE 
wherein the Stock Exchange has granted its no objection to filing the Scheme with the Hon’ble Tribunal. The said 
observation letter issued by the BSE is enclosed as ANNEXURE XII.

(b)	 The equity shares of the Second Applicant Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) (collectively, the” Stock Exchanges”). The BSE was appointed as the designated 
stock exchange by the Second Applicant Company for the purpose of coordinating with SEBI, pursuant to the SEBI 
Circular. The Second Applicant Company has received an observation letter dated March 25, 2021 from BSE and an 
observation letter dated March 26, 2021 from NSE wherein the Stock Exchanges have granted their no objection to 
filing the Scheme with the Hon’ble Tribunal. The said observation letters issued by BSE and NSE are enclosed as 
ANNEXURE X and ANNEXURE XI, respectively.

(c)	 As required by the SEBI Circular, the First Applicant Company has filed its Complaints Report with BSE on December 
14, 2020. The Complaint Report filed by the First Applicant Company indicates that it has received ‘Nil’ complaints. 
Copy of the Complaints Report is enclosed as ANNEXURE IX.
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(d)	 As required by the SEBI Circular, the Second Applicant Company has filed its Complaints Report with BSE and 
NSE, on December 14, 2020 and December 15, 2020 respectively. The Complaint Reports filed by the Second 
Applicant Company indicates that it has received ‘Nil’ complaints. Copies of the Complaints Report are enclosed as 
ANNEXURE VII and ANNEXURE VIII respectively.

(e)	 Notice under Section 230(5) of the Act is being given to/filed with (i) the Central Government through the office 
of jurisdictional Regional Director with respect to both Companies, (ii) jurisdictional Registrar of Companies with 
respect to both Companies, (iii) Income Tax Authorities in respect of both Companies, (iv) BSE with respect to both 
Companies, (v) NSE with respect to Second Applicant Company, (vi) SEBI with respect to both Companies, and (vi) 
Official Liquidator, High Court, Bombay with respect of the First Applicant Company for their representation/approval 
to the Scheme.

(f)	 The application and scheme was filed with the Hon’ble Tribunal, on June 10, 2021. Consequently, the Hon’ble Tribunal 
vide order dated August 18, 2021, has directed, inter alia, the convening of the Meeting of equity shareholders of the 
First and Second Applicant Company.  

(g)	 On the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders of the respective companies involved in 
the Scheme as per the requirement of Section 230 of the Act, both the Companies will file petitions with the Hon’ble 
Tribunal for sanction of the Scheme.

(h)	 The First and Second Applicant Company have filed a copy of the Scheme with the Registrar of Companies, Pune, 
pursuant to Section 232(2)(b) of the Act in GNL-1.

45.	 Inspection of Documents: Copies of the following documents will be open for inspection to the equity shareholders of 
the Company on its website www.indocount.com and also at its registered office situated at Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, on all days except Saturday, Sunday 
and public holidays between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. up to the date of the Meeting:

a.	 Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of merger by Absorption) of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“Transferor 
Company”) with Indo Count Industries Limited (“Transferee Company”/ “The Company”) and their respective 
shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”).

b.	 Order dated August 18, 2021 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench in Company 
Application No. CA(CAA)/143/MB/2021.

c.	 Valuation report on recommendation of share exchange ratio dated October 21, 2020 issued by Mr. Amit Kumar 
Singh, Registered Valuer and AZR & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants. 

d.	 Fairness Opinion dated October 21, 2020 issued on share exchange ratio to Indo Count Industries Limited by 
Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services LLP, a Category-I Merchant Banker, registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India.

e.	 Fairness Opinion dated October 21, 2020 issued on share exchange ratio to Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
by Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, a Category –I Merchant Banker, registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India.

f.	 Complaints Report dated December 14, 2020 filed by Indo Count Industries Limited with BSE Limited.

g.	 Complaints Report dated December 15, 2020 filed by Indo Count Industries Limited with National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited.

h.	 Complaints Report dated December 14, 2020 filed by Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited with BSE Limited.

i.	 Observation letter dated March 25, 2021 conveying no objection to the scheme issued by BSE Limited to Indo Count 
Industries Limited.
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j.	 Observation letter dated March 26, 2021 conveying No-objection to the scheme issued by National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited to Indo Count Industries Limited.

k.	 Observation letter dated March 25, 2021 conveying No-objection to the scheme issued by BSE Limited to 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited.

l.	 Audited Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) along with Auditor’s Report of Indo Count Industries 
Limited for the year ended  March 31, 2021.

m.	 Unaudited Financial Results of Indo Count Industries Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 along with the 
Limited Review Report issued by Statutory Auditors.

n.	 Audited Standalone Financial Statements along with Auditor’s Report of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited for the 
year ended  March 31, 2021.

o.	 Unaudited Financial Results of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 along with 
the Limited Review Report issued by Statutory Auditors

p.	 Report of the Audit Committee of Indo Count Industries Limited dated October 21, 2020 recommending the Scheme 
to the Board.

q.	 Report of the Audit Committee of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited dated October 21, 2020 recommending the 
Scheme to the Board.

r.	 Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Indo Count Industries Limited, as required under Section 232(2)(c) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

s.	 Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited, as required under Section                      
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

t.	 Pre-Scheme and estimated post-Scheme shareholding pattern of Indo Count Industries Limited. 

u.	 Pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited.

v. 	 Board Resolution dated October 21, 2020 passed by Board of Directors of Indo Count Industries Limited.

w. 	 Board Resolution dated October 21, 2020 passed by Board of Directors of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited.

x.	 Statutory Auditor’s certificate dated October 21, 2020 issued by M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Statutory Auditors 
to Indo Count Industries Limited confirming that the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity 
with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Dated this October 5, 2021 	 For Indo Count Industries Limited

Sd/-
Mr. Kailash R. Lalpuria

DIN: 00059758
(Chairperson appointed for the meeting)

 
Registered Office:  Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India
CIN: L72200PN1988PLC068972
Email: icilinvestors@indocount.com
Website: www.indocount.com
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Authorised Signatory

~'11~!Copy~::::.::::::I ~ustrles Umited
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("Tht Scheme")

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SIIAREBOLDERS UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF TilE COll1PANTESACT. 2013 AND RULES
FRAMED THEREUNDER

WITH

TRANSFEREE COMPANYINDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

TRANSFEROR CO~1PM YPltANA VA D1TY A SPINNINC~ULLSLl~lITED

OF

SCHEME OF AMALCAMATION

(By way of Mtratr by Ab&orplion)
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II. RATIONALE FOR THIS SCHEME

The Transferor Company. listed on BSE Limited and the Transferee Company, listod on BSE

Limitod and National Stock Exchange of India limited, both are a part of the same group.

Further, the Trat\sferor Company is 3 subsidiary of (he Transferee Company wherein tho
Transferee Comp;.my holds majority shareholding in the Transferor Company. The main

busin ess of PSMI.. has been manuf.eluring of eonon y:>rnand it has a huge freehold land of-

34 acres at Plot No. 266 Villase Alte, Tal. Hatkaaangale, Dist. Kolh'pur (near textile hub

Ic:halkaranji) and -- 20000 spindle capacity (or spinning. TIle land. machinery. infrastructure
~d aU ether resources available with the Transferor Company can be utilized In cost effective

and efficient manner (0 carry out Transferee Company's business expansion. The TrJnsfcror
and TransfC"rt'cts industrial unil$ are situ:l(cd within a distance or - 40 kilometers. Hence, it is

2. Indo Count Industries Limited (here-inafter referred to as tbe "Transferee Company" or

"ICIL') is a public company, Limited byshares, incorporated under the Indian Companies ACt,

1956, under corporate identification number (CIN) L7Z200PNI988PLC068972 and having

its registered office at Office No. I, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Roed, TaJuka
Hatkanangale, Kolh.pur - 416109 Maharoshtra. India. The Transferee Company was

incorporated on" November 1988 as Vishnu Aluminium Limited and subsequently. name

was changed to Indo Coum Industries Limited w.e.f3at" April 1990. The equity shares of the

Transferee Company are listed on the SSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India

Limited (together the "Stock Exchanges"). TheTransfe.ree Company holds 1,43,41.280 equity

shares of Rs 10/- each of the Transferor Company constituting 74.53% of the total paid up

equity share capital of the Traasferer Company. The Transferee Company is engaged in the
business of manufactwing of home textiles and its products broadly falls under the categories
of Bed Sheet, Pillow Cover and Comforter.

PREM1BLE

I. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

1. PrAn~yaditya Spinning ,.filts Umitcd (hereinafter referred to as the "Transferor Company"

or "~SML") is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956, under corporate identification number (CIN) L17119PN1990PLC058139 and having

its "'!:iste"'" office at Office No.2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte. Kumbhoj Road, Taluka

Hatk.nang.le, Kolhapur - 416109. Maharashtra, India. The Transferor Company was

incorporated on 12lf1tSeptember, 1990. The equity shares of the-Transferor Company are listed

on the SSE: Limited. The Transferor Company is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company.
The Transferor Company is authorised to carry on, inter alia, the business of manufacturing

of conon yarn.
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III. PARTS OF'THIS SCHE~1E
This Scheme is divided into the follo\ving parts:

• Vart A dealing with the definitions, interpretation and share capibl details orthe Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company.

• Pan B dealing \yith arnalgemation of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee

Company. eonsiderntion. accounting trentment in the books of the Transferee Company,

combirwion of Iluthorized shl.Veeaph:,\l of Transferor Company with the TrMsferce Company,

dissolution without winding up of the Transferor Company. exemptlons under SAST

proposed to amalgamate Transferor Company into the Transferee Company in this Scheme.
further. the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company would
inter alia have the follo\ving benefits:

a. Consolidation of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company will
achieve simplified corporate structure, rationalise the number of listed entities and

result in a single listed entity with combined businesses.

b. Provide an opportunity to leverage combined assets and build a stronger
s.ustainable business. Specifically. it will aJso enable optimal utilization of existing

resources which are in excess of the current business requirements of the

Transferor Company and provide an opportunity to fully leverage assets,

capacities, experience and infrastructure of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company.

c. Reducing managerial overlaps involved in operating multiple entities, enable cost

savings and effective utilization of valuable resources which will enhance the

management focus thereby leading to increase in operationaJ and management
efficiency; Integrate business functions; eliminate duplication and rationalization

of administrative expenses.

d. Synchronization of efforts to achieve: unifonn corporate policy. greater integration

and greater financial strength and flexibility for the Transferee Company.
c. Belter value creation for the shareholders of both the companies enabling the public

shareholders to hold shares of the combined listed entity.
f. Upon cempletion of theamalgamalion, theTransferor Company will be dissolved.

Consequently. there would be lesser regulatory and legal compliance obligations

including accounting, reporting requirements. statutory and internal audit
compliance requirements, tax filings, company law compliances, Stock Exchange

compliances etc. and therefore reduction in admlnistrative costs.

The inte-nded Scheme is not prejudiciaJ to the interest of the crcdhcrs Or the employees of

the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.
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FOTthe: purposes of this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning Or context thereof, the following

expressions shall have the meanings mentioned herein below:

(3) '-the Act'· or "Companres Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 any re-enactment [hereof

including the rules and regulations made thereunder, and, circulars, notifications, eterlfieaticns and

orders issued thereunder, each as amended from time to time and to the ex-lent in force;
(b) "Accounting Standards" means the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under Section l33

of the Companies Act. 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules. 2015 and as amended from time to time by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs

and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India;
(c) "Applicable Laws" means any starute.Iaw, regulation. ordinance. rule. bye laws.judgment, order,

decree, clearance, approval. terms of any approvaL permit or no-obiecuon of any Governmental

Authority, directive, guideline, policy, code, requirement, listing agreement or other governmental

restriction or any similar fonn of decision. or determination by, or any interpretation or

administration of any of the foregoing by, any Governmental Authority, in each ease !IS in effect
from time to lime;

(d) "App<linlcd 0.10" means I" October 2020 or such other date as may be approved by the Hon'ble
National Company LawTribunal ('NCl T·).

(e) "Baird of Dlrecters" Or "'Boanl", with respect to a company, means the board or directors of

Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company as the case may be, as constituted from time to

time and, unless teptlgnMt to the subject, context or mc.aning thereof, includes every committee of
tbe Board or such committee of Directors for the purpose of various matters pertaining to the

scheme or any other related. connected Orincidental maners;

(I) "Effectivc Date" means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the Order of NCLT,

Mumbai bench under Sections 2:30 & 232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is riled with the

Regis;:.r of Companies. Pune, at M3.hara.shtra by the Transferor Company and Transferee
Compen),;

(,) "Encumbrance" means any: (8) charge. lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any casement, right
otway, right or first refusal or oiher encumbrance or security Interest securing any obligation or
an)' person; (b) pee-emption right, oprion, right to acquire, right to sct ofT or other third party right
Or claim or ;ny kind. including any rntriction on use, voting, Transfer, receipt of income or

1. DEFINITIONS

PART A

Regulations (as defined hereinajler).

• Part C comprising of general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.
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exercise; or (c) any equity. assignments. hypothecation, title retention. restriction, power of sale or

other type of preferential arrangements; or (iv) any agreement to create any of the above, and the
term "EnCllmbcred" shall be constructed accordingly;

(h) ··Govrrnmtnr:al Authority" means any competent governmental. regulatory. statutory or

administrative authority. agency. department. commission or instrumentality (whether local,

municipal, national or ctherwise), court, boardor tribunal of competent jurisdiction or othe-r entity

having, under any law, rule, rqulation or order, jurisdiction over. or the power to regulate or pass

orders binding upon. any person or matter and shall include any stock exchanges. on which

securities of any of such person are currently listed or may be listed in future. or arbitral tribunal

Or dispute resolution body empowered to pass orders binding on any person;

(i) "Intangfble Assets""means and includes all intellectual property rights and licenses of every kind

and descripncn throughout the world. in each case whether registered or unregistered, and

including any applications for registration of any of the follow'ing. including without limitation

inventions (whether patentable or not). patents. rights in computer programs (whether in source

code, objc:ct code; or Other (ann). algorithms, databases, compilations and data, technology

supporting the foregoing, and all documentation, including user manuals and training materials,

related to any of the foregoing; copyriglll$ and ccpyrightable subject matter: trademarks, service
marks, track: names. domain names. logos. slogans, trade dress, design rights together with the

goodwill symbolized by any of the foregoing; knew-how, confidential and proprietary informaricn,

trade secrets, moral rights; any rights or forms of protection ora similar nature or having equivalent

Or similar effect to any of the foregoing \\l1ich subsist anywhere in the world; and gccdwill.

\vhdher or not covered in the foregoing. in connection with the businesses of the Transferor

Company, together with the exclusive rigllt for the Transferee Company and its assignees to

represent themsel ves as carrying on the business in succession to the Transferor Company

including business informaticn and records; and product registrations and approvals;

0) "iT Act" means the lncomc-tax Act, 1961. any re..enactment thereof and the rules. regulations.

circulars and notifiQtions issued thereunder. each as amended from time to time and 10 the extent

in force;
(k) "Record Date' means such date as nlay be mutually fixed by the Board or Directors of the

TranJferor Company and the Transferee Company for determining the names or the shareholders

of the Tmns(eror Company 10 \yhom equity shares or the Transferee ComPAnY \yill be allotted

pursuant to the Scheme;

(I) "RoC" means the Rcgislrat of Companies, Punt. Moharashtra;

(m) OoISASTRegulations" means the Securities and Exchanae Board of India (Substantial Acquisition

of Shares and Takec verS) Regulations, 2011;

(n) "Scheme" or "Scbenle of AmalgamatJon" or "Scheme or Mtrger by Ab$orIHion" or "Scheme

ofArnngrmrnt'" or "this Scheme"mew this Scheme of Arnalgnmatien in its present form as
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submitted to the Hon'ble Tribunal or this Scheme with such modification($), if any;
(0) "SEBl" meo.ns the Securities and E:'I(change Board of India established under Section 3 of the

Securities and Exchange Board or IndiaAct, 1992;

(p) "SERI Scheme Circular" or "SEDI Circular" means the SEDI Circular no CPDI'OIL3/CIRJ20

17121dated March 10,2017 as modified by SEBI Circular No. CFDIDIL3/CIRJ20 17126dated 23"'
March, 2017. rcad with SEBI Circular CFO/OIL3/CIRJ201812 doted January 03, 20lS issued by

SEDI Md .11 crber applicable circul ..... nd regulotions i$Sued by S8DI Q.$ amended or replaced
from time to time;

(q) "St ec k E,ch.ng"" means the stock exchanges where the Equity Shares are listed and admitted

to trading. viz, aSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited as applicable to the
respective Tr3nsferor Company and the Transferee Company;

(r) "Taxationn or ""Tlx" or WfIlXfS" means all forms of taxes (whether direct or indirect) and

statutory. governmental. state. provincial, local governmental Or municipal impositions. duties ..
contributions and levies and whether levied by reference to income, profits. book profits, pins,

OSlct \'81\1es, turnover, added value or otherwlse and shall further include: payments in respect of
oron account OfULX, whether by W'''y ofdcduction tit source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax

or otherwise or attribulabl< directly orprimarily 10PSML.nd ICIL and nil penalties, chlltie., eosts

end inlem' relaling thereto;
(s) "Transferer Company' shall have the meaning assigned to it in Point J of Clause I of (he

Preamble of this Scheme and shall include but nOt be: limiled 10:

(i) all assets, whether moveable or immoveable, plant and machinery, equipment. stocks and

inventory including all rights. title. interest. elainu. covenants in such assets ef'the Transferor
Company:

(ii) all invtslmCnl$. recel vabtes. loans and advances extended (including CENV AT credit or other
tax assets), including accrued interest thereon cfthe Transferor Company;

(iii) all debts, borrowings and liabilities, whether present Or future, secured or unsecured, availed
by the Transferor Company:

(iv) all permits, nehlS, entitlements, licenses. approvals. ,rants.. allotments. recommendations.
clearances. tenancies. offices. tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, refund of any

tax. duty, cess or any excess p:ayment (including all amounts claimed 3S refund, whether or

nOt so recorded in the books of aceounts), t~ credits (includins. bUI not limited to. credits in
respect of income tax, tax deducted at source. CENVAT. wes to.:<. VAlueadded tax. turnover

lOX.exelse duty. service tax, minimum alternate tDX, goods and service tax crc.) of every kind
and dC'1eriplion \Vhauoc:vCToflhe Transferor Company;

(v) ri¥hl5 to any claim nOI preferred or mode by the Transferor ComJXU'Y in respect of any refund

of tax, duty, cess or other charge, including any crrcnccus or excess payment thereof made
by the Tronsferor Company and 1liiyinterest thereon, .ndcr Applicable Law, and in respeet of
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J. INTERPRETATION
(a) The expressions, terms and words which arc used in this Scheme and not defined In thls Scheme

shOlIl. unlcss repugnant or ClOntrary co the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning

assigned to them under the Comp3J1lcs Act, the IT Act, and ether Applicab1e Laws.
(b) In this Scheme, unless the context other.vise requires:

(i) thoword. "including"."include" or "include." sholl be interpretedin 0manner as thoughIhe

2. DATE OF TAKINC EFFECT ANDOPERATIVE DATE
The Scheme set out hereln In its prescnt fonn or with any modificution(s) approved or imposed or
directed by the NCI..T or made as per the Scheme.shall be effective from the AppointedDate but
shall ccme into legal cffec:t fronl the Effective Date.

set-on'. carry forward of un-absorbed losses, deferred revenue expenditure, deduction,

exemption, rebate, allewenee, amcrtizaticn benefit, etc. whether under the IT Act, the rules
and regulations thereunder, or any ether Applicable Law. or any other or Likebenefits undcr
the said acts or under and in accordance with any Applicable Law or act, whether ill India Or

anywhere outside India;

(vi) .11IntangibleAssetsof everykind and descriptionwh.tsoevcr of the TransferorCompany;
(vii)nll privileges and benefits of. or under. all contracts, agreements Orarrangements of

nny kind, and all other rights including lease rights. licenses and facillties of every
kind and description whatsoever of theTransferor Company;

(viii) all employees ofthc Transferer Company existing as on the Errcxttve Date;

(ix) BJIadvQJ\ce payments. eamest monics andzcr security dCpOsiL$ or other entitlements of the
Trnnsferor Company;

(x) all legal. tax. regulatory. quasi ..[udiclal, adminlsrrativeor other proceedings, suits, appeals,

applications or proceedings or whatsoever nature initiated by or against the Transferor
Company;and

(xi) 3.11books. records. files, po.pcrs. computer programs. engineering and prOCC$Sinformation,

manuals. data, product jon methodologies, production plans. catalogues. quotations. websltes,
sales and advertising material. marketing strategies. list or present and fonner customers,

customer credit information, C\lstomer pricing infonnation. and other records whether in
physical ronn or electronic form or in any other form, in eonnectlcn with or rclming to the

Tr.msferor COlnpanYi
(t) "Transferee Company" shall have the meaning assigned to it in Point 2 of Clause I of the

Preamble of this Scheme;

(u) "Tribunal" or "NCLT" means the Natlcnal Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench;
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4.2 The share c.pit>1 $llUclu",oflh. Transferee Company as ODSeptember 30,2020 is 3$ follows:

The equity ,"01'<:$ of Ihe T..... feeer Company nrc listed on 8SE Limited,

Anluunlln INR
I>:lrti+;:ulfln

iAulhori'f.d

1.92,70.000 equity ,hom of INR 10 cach INR 19,27.00,000
Issued and And Full. ."
C.nllnl

1,92.41.280 eqllilysh.rcs otlNR 10 each INR 19,24.12,800

4.1 The s.hare:capltal structure or the Transferor Cornpany D.S on September 30, 2020 is as rouows:

4. SIIAR£ CAPITAL

words "'without limiuuion" immediately followed the same;

(ii) any doeumenl Or ""cemenl includes a reference to 1M! document or aglccment as varied,
amended. supplemented, substituted. novated or assigned, from time to lime. in accordance
with the provisions of such 3document cr agreement;

(iii) the words "other", "Or omerwlse' and "whatsoever" shall not be construed IIjlJsdfl'" generis

Of be construed as any limitation upon the genernlity of any preoeding \Iio'ordsor matters
.pecifically "'ferred 10:

(iv) the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and .shall not Un'Ccl the consiructlon or
imerpretatlon oflhe relevant provi5ions oftbis Scheme;

(v) the term "Clause" refers 10 the specified clause In of this Scheme, as the CU$Cmo), be;

(vi) reference to tiny legislation. StatUu:, regulation. rule. nodn~lion or any other provision orin,,,

mtans and includes references to such lcaal provisions as amended, supplemented or re­

euacted (rom time to time, nnd any reference to legislation or $tatutc includes any subordinate
legislation made from time to time under such 3. legislation or statute and regulaljons, rules,

nOllficalions or circular'S is.s-uedunder such 3. legislation or SCGCute;and
(vii) words in the. sin,gul31 shaH include. the plum! o.ndvte« ~tJr.tQ.
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S. AMALCAMATION Of TilE TRANSfEROR CO,\'PAI'Y INTO AND WITIJ THE

TRANSFEREE COMPANY
S.I. Transfer and vestinE of assets, lIabllltle" and entire bUllous of the: Transferor Company

Into and \t"Uh the Tr:tn,'trte Company
5_l.1. \Vith effect frQm the Appoinled Date and upon the Scheme being effective. the Transferor

Company, together \yith all lrs present and future propertles, W¢l$, InvC$tments., rights,

obligations. lillbilillCS. benefits Gild intcrests therein. whether kno\\ln or unknown. stulll
.malgama re In.o and with the Trruureree Company and shall become the property of, and an

integral pan or.lhe Transferee Company subja:lto 'he chnrgcs and encumbrances (to the extent
they are outstnnding on the Effective O:lIc). irany. c:realed by the Transferor Company on its

propcnlcs and tU$Ct.$ in favour of lenders, 3S it guing concern, by operation or taw pursuant to

the vesling 0«11."of the NCL.T sanc:tionin& this Scheme, without any further act. instrulncnt or

deed r<quircd by either of the Tnmsfc",r Comp.flY or the Traesferee Company. Wi.hou.
pn:judic.c: 10 the generality of the above, In particular. the Transferor Company $h3H sltlnd
!Unalg3matcd into and with the Transferee Company, in the manner described in su~paragruphs

(0) - (m) below:

(0) With .«OCI from the Appointed D••e and upon Ihe Scheme beinge«cclive. ali Immovable
propenics (including land. buildings. "Nctures and any other immovable properties) of
the Tronsferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold. and any documcnlS of rille. righls

PARTB

The equity shares orehe Transferee Com~y are lisled on Stock Exchang.es t.e BSE
Limiled ond Notion.1 Slock Exchongc of Indl. Limiled.

,\nlounl In tNlt
P.u·lic:utuni

luthori sed
Equity Shsrcs
27,50,00,000 shn=oflNR 2 each lNR 55,00.00,000
Preferenee Sharts

50,00,000 shares oflNR 10 tach INR 5,00,00,000

if·..1 fNR 60,00,00,000
tssued and Subs(rlbtd lind Fullv nald-u

ldni!!I
[guitySha~

19.73,99.670 shores oflNR 2 eaeh tNR 39,47.99.J40
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Co) With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Seheme being effective, any and .11
other movable property {except those specified elsewhere in this Scheme} including
Investments in shares and MY other securities, all sundry debts and receivables,

outstanding loons and advances relating to the Transferor Company which are recoverable
in e:lShor in kind or fOT value to be received, actionable claims, bank balances and deposits,

if any \vith government. semi-gcvernmem, local and other authorities and bodies.

(;ustomc:r$ and other persons, cheques on hl'lJ1dshall, by operation of law pursuant to the
vesting order of theNetT sanctioning this Scheme, without any further act. instrument or

deed ofthe Transferor Company or tho Transferee Company become the property of the
Transfe= Company, Without p"'judiee to the foregoing, the Transferee Company shall
be cn1itlw to deposit ;,1lany lime after e:rft .."CliveDatu. cheques received in the name of the

ComJXUlY, to enable the Transferee COnlpa,\y to receive the :lInounts

(b) \Vitheffect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme being effective, aILthe assets

of the Transferor Company which arc movable in nature or are otherwise capable of being
transferred by physical Orconstructive delivery and, or, by endorsement and delivery, or

by vesting and reccrdaf including equipment, furniture and fixtures, shall stand vested in

Transferee Company, and shall become the property and an integral part of Transferee
Company. The vesting pursunnl to this sub-clause shall be deemed to have occurred by

ph)"$ical OT constructive delivery or by endorsement and delivery, Or by vesting and
reeordal. as appropriate to the property being vested and the title to such property shall be
deemed to have been transferred accordingly to the Transferee Company;

:md easements in relation thereto, shall stand vested in or be deemed to be vested in the

Transferee Company, by operation of law pursuant to the vesting order of the NCl,T
sanctioning this Scheme, without any funher act, instrument or deed done or executed by

die Transferor Company Orthe Transferee Company. Upon this Scheme coming into effect
on the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise ;til rights and

privileges and be liable to pay all taxes, rent and eharges, and fulfil all obligations, in
relation to or applicable to such immovable properties and the relevant landlords, owners

and lessors shall continue to comply with the terms. conditions and covenants under 3]1
relevant lease I license or rent agreements and shall, in accordance with the terms of such

agreements, refund the security deposits and advance I prepaid lease f license fee, if any,
to the Transferee Company. "[he mutatiolV substitution of the title to and interest in such

immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Transferee
Company. by the relevant Governmental Authorities pursuant to the sanction of this

Schemeby (he NeLT and upon this Schemecomins intoeffect;
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(e) \vi!h effect from !he Appolnred Date and upon the Sebcme being effecnvc, all incorpore.1
or intangible property of the Trnnsferor Company shall stnnd vested in the Transferee

Company Md shall become .h. property and an inlegral pari oflhc Transferee Company.

(d) With effect from the Appolnted Dale and upon the Scheme belng effective. 311debts)

borrowings, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, secured or unsecured.
"'I"ing '0 the Transferor Company. whether provided for or not in tbe books of accounts
cf tbc Transferor Companyor disclosed in the balance sheet of such Transferor Company,

shall stand transferred to and vested in the,Transferee Company, along with any charge,
lien. encumbrance or security thereon, and the same shall be assumed to the extent they

orecutstanding on me Effeclive Dateand beoome and be decmedto be the deblS.liabili.ics.
contingent liabilities. duties and obligations of the Transferee Company, by operation of

lawpursuantto the vestingotderofthe NCLTsanctioning this Scheme. without any further
act. instrumentor deed of theTransferorCompanyor the TransfereeCompany. It is hereby

clarified thai it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent Or any third party or other

person. who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of \\lhich such debts.
liabililies, du'ies and obliga.ions have arisen in order te give effect .0 the provisions oflhis
Clause. However. if any lender of the Transferor Cornpany requires s:ni5l'aclionof the

charge over theTransferor Company's properties and recording of a new charge with the
Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall for good order and for statistical

purposes, file appropri:lte ronns \vith the RoC as accompanied by the sMc:tionorder or a
"nificd copy thereof and any deed of modifieeticn or novation executed inter alta by the
Transferee Company;

mereunder. From .he EffeCIive Oate and .iII such time .ha.me names of me bank accounts

of the Transferor Companies including but not limited to balances with scheduled banks

in current :!ccounl$ and in deposit aocounts arc replaced with that of the Transferee
Company. the Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the

Transferor Companies, in Its namel in so far as may be: necessary. further, all other

negotiable instruments, payment orders, electronic fund transfers like NEFT. RTGS etc.
received or presented for cncashmcnt which are in the name of Transferor Company after

the Effecth'C Date by virtue of the NCLT order sanctioning this scheme shall be accepted
by the ban.ker(s}ofthe Transferee Company and credited to the account of Transferee
Company, if presented by Transferee Company or received through electronic transfer.

Similarly, me banker(s) ofTnlnsferee Company shall honour all cheques. electronic find
transfers. instructions issued by the Transferor Company for payment after the Effective

Date.
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(8) With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme being effecrivc, all permits,

grnnl$. no-objection certificates, licenses (including the licenses granted to the Transferor

Company by any Governmental Authority for the purpose of carrying on its business Or in

connection therewith). permissions (including statutory and regulatory permissions).

approvals, clearances, registrations (including relating to sales lax. service lax, excise,

value added tax, goods and service tax), {including, but not limited to, credits in respect of

income (4.'(. s.a1estax, value added taX. rumover ta.'(. excise duty. service tQJ(. goods and

service taX. tAX credits. tax refunds, tax: holidays, security transaction tax. minimum

alternate lax credit nnd duty entitlement credh cenlficatcs), tenancies, quotas,

recommendarlcos, privlleges, powers, offices, facilities of every kind and description or

whatsoever nature, casements, goodwill, allotments, concessions, exemptions, advantages,

or ri&ll'" required to ..... ry on the operations of lhe Tt:wferor CompOtly or granted to the

(I) Wilh en-eel from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme being effective. all letters of

intoo.t, contracts, deeds. bonds. agreements, insurance policies, capital investment,

subsidies. guarantees- and indemnities. schemes, arrangements) and other instruments of

whatsoever nature in relation to the Transferor Company or to which the Transferor

Company Is a party or to the benefit of which it may be entitled or eligible, shall be in full

force and effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company, by operation of law

pursuant 10the vesting order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme, without any further

aet. instrument or deed of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, and may

be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company. the

Transferee Company i.$a partyOr beneficiary or obligor thereto. Without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing, bank guaremees, performance guarantees, letters of credit,

agreements with any Governmental Authority, hire purchase agreements, lending

agreements and such other agreements, deeds, documents and arrangements pertaining to

the business of Transferor Company or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company

may be eligible and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective

Date, including all rights and benefits (Including benefits or any deposit, advances,

receivables or claims) arising or accruing therefrom, shan, upon this Scheme becoming

effective, by operation of law pursuant to the vesting orders of the NCLT. be deemed to

be bonk guarantees, performance guarantees, leners of credit. agreements, deeds.

documents, and arrangements, etc. as the: case may be, or Transferee Company;

by operation of 13\1/pursuant to the vesting order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme,

\\'ithout any further act, instrument or deed done or executed by the Transferor Company

or the Transferee Company;
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0) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, aJl employees of the Transferor Company in service

on the Effective Date shall become employees of the Transferee Company, by operation

of law pursuant to the vest'ing order of the Net.T Silnctioninc this Scheme, without any
further act. instrument or deed done or executed by the Transferor Cornpany or the

Transferee Company, on the lerm.s and conditions no less favourable tban those thaI \VCR:

appliCllblt to such employees .u on the Effective Date, with the benefit of continuity of

service and ,vithout any brenk or interruption in service. With regard to provident fund.
,nuuity fllnd. superannuation fund or any other special fund or obligation created or

(i) With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme being effective, the Transferee
Company shall bear the burden and the benefits of any legal or other proceedings initiated

by or against the Transferor Company. Upon this Scheme coming into effett on the
Effective Date, if any notice, dispute, suit, appeal, complaint, claim or other proceeding of

whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Company including those before any

Governmental Authority. be pending, the same shall not abate. be discontinued or in any

Yo"Y be prejudiCially affected by reason of the amalgamation of Transferor Company or of
anything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings shall be continued, prosecuted and

enforced by or against theTransferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent

3$ it would or mighl have been ecntinued, prosecuted and c:nforc:edby or agninst the
Transferer Company. by operotion of law PUt$U4nt to the vesting order of the NCI.T
sancdoning this Scheme. without any further net, lnstmment or deed done Or executed by

the Transferor Company or the:Transferee Company;

(h) With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme being effective •• 11Intangible
Assel$ of the Transferer Company or granted to the Transferor Company. shall stand
vested in or transferred to the: Transferee Company. by operation of law pursuant to the

vesting order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme. without any further act, instrument or
deed done Or executed by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company; provided

that the Transferee Company may take such actions as may be necessary and permissible
to get the Intangible Assets. intellectual property rights and licenses transferred to and I Or
registered in (he name of the Transferee Company;

Transferor Company, shall stand vested in or transferred to the Transferee Company, by

cperaticn of law pursuant to the vesting order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme.

without any further act, instrument or deed done or executed by the Transferor Company

or me Transferee Company, and shal! be appropriately transferred or assigned by the

concerned Governmental Authority in favour of Transferee Conlpany;
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(I) With .ffed from the Appoinled OoIe and upon the Scheme bel", .ffOdI ve, all .... 1..,
as_ ri&h1S, title, int...,.u and authorilies accrued 10and, or, ""'Iuir<d by the Tnruferor

Company shall be deemed 10hive been """rued 10 and, or. acquired for IItIdOn behalf of
the Tnlns(ercc Company, without MY further act. instrument Or deed be lind sUlnd

(k) Iho Tnansfcmo Company undertakes lhal (or the purpose of paymenl of any retrenchment

comptnsalion, gratuity and othtr tcnninaJ benefits to the employees or Tn.lnsfcror

Company exisdng on the Effectlve 0.14::. the past services of such employees with the

Tnansf.ror Company .h.1I also be Illkcn Inlo o«ounl and il shall pey Ih... me a.cordingly.
os and when such amounts .... duo and payable; and

existing for the beDefit of such cmplo)'tC$ of the Transferor Company in service on the
Effcctivel>3te. upon this Scheme comi", inlo effect, lb.Tnmsf eree Company shall stand

substituted for the Transferer Company. by operation of law pursuant to the: vesting order
of the NetT sanctioning this Scbcme • without any further act, instrument or deedof the

Tnnsfcror Company or the Transferee Company, rOT all purposes \vhatsocver relining to

the obligations to make contributions to the smid funds in aeeerdanee with the provisions
of weh schemes or funds in the respeclive trusl deeds Or other documents. and th.
Transferee Company shall continue 10abide by ogreemcnl(sy.culancnl(s) en10m! inlOby

the Transf.,.". Company with Illy ofies employtts IS on the Effective Dale. II is the aim
and Intenl of this Scheme tba1 upon this Scheme coming 10 .ffcec on th. Appoinled Dare

and upon lhe Effect;". Dale. all the n&h1S. dUlies, powers and obliCOIionsofche Transferor
Com~y in relation to such funds shall become those of the Transferee COll'lpany. For the
avoldence of doubt, it is clarified that with regard to provident fund, gratulty, IC3ve

cncashment. deferred cash benefits and lon, term incentive plaru and any other special

scheme 0( benefits created or "-<isci,,, for the benefil or such employees oflhe Transferor
Company. T...".f""", Company shall stand subslituted for Transferor Company, by

opmIion of I2w pwsuatIIIO the vestinc O<der of the NCLT sandioninc chis Scheme upon
the Elf",;".Date. fO(all purposes whacsocver. including with rcprd 10 lhe obliplion 10
make: contributjons if any to relevant .ulhoriti~such as the Regional Provident fund

Commissio~r or to stl~h other fund$ maintained by the Transferor Company, in
""(Ordan~e with Ihe provisions of Applic:nble lAws or otherwise, II is etarifled Ihac Ih.
servlees of the- employees of the Tnansfcror Company will be treated as hllvin.& been
continuous (or the purpo$C' oflhe .(orc:seid schemes, funds. benefit plan. Or pollcles. The

Tromferor Company ar;d the Tnmsfcftt Company shall undcnake alilhe nec<SSOrYsteps

and (onnalities as may be ""Iuired 10be..med out for cransf.r ofsuch f\Ind. assecs. value.
de. 10 the Tnmsfe= eompony In this rcprd:
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5.1.3. The Transferee Company shall. at any time after this Scheme becomes effective in aeeerdanee
,vith the provisions hereofOJ1tlas the SUCces.50r entity of the Transferor Company, if $0 required

under any Applicable LaW$ or otherwise, execute appropriate deeds of conflrmaticn or other
writings or arrangements with any pruty to any contract or arransement in relation to which the

5.1.2. With effect from the Appointe'" Dale and upon the Scheme being effective, and the consequent

amalgamation of Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company, the secured
creditors ofTransfcrceCompany. if any. shall only continue to be: entitled to security ever such

identified propcnies and tlSSL1.$ fonning part of Ttansferee Company, as existing immediately
prior to the amalgamation of Transferor Company into and with Transferee Company and the

secured creditors of Transfcror Company. if any. shall continue to be entitled to securiry only

OYer such properties, assets, ri&hts~benefits and interest of and in Transferor Company. as
existing immediately prior to the amalgamation of Transferer Company into and with
Transferee Company. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that all the assets of Transferor

C01npany and Transferee Company which arc not currently encumbered shtlll, subject to
Applicable U\vS, remain free and available for creation of any security thereon in ftlture in

relation to any new Indebtedness that may be incurred by Transferee Company. For this
purpose, no further consent (rom the existing creditors shall be required and sanction of this

Scheme sh:aJ1 be considered 3S a specific consent of such creditors.

(m) It is clarified that for the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the

Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on
their business and activities and shall stand possessed of\\'holc of their businesses. in trust
for the Transferee Company and shall account for the same to the Transferee Company.

Any income or profit accruing or arising to the Transferor Company and all costs, charges,
expenses and losses (including brought forward losses. book losses. etc.) or taxes

(including but not llmlted to advance tax, tax deducted at source, mlniruum alternative tax.
credit. taxes withheld, ere.), incurred by the Transferor Company between the Appointed

Datc and up to and including the Effectivc Date shall for all pUI'j)03CObe treated as the
income, profiu. costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes, as the case may be. of the

Transferee Company and shall be available to the Transferee Company for being disposed

of in any manner as it thinks fit.

transferred to or vested in or be deemed to have been transferred 10 Or vested in the

T ransferee Company to that extent and shall become the estates, assets, right, title, interests

and authorities of the Transferee Company.
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6.2. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, in ecnsideraticn of the:(l,malgnmolion of the Transferor
Company, Transferee Company shall without any further application or deed. issue and allot its
equity shares It par credited as fully paid up, as per the swap-ratio provided by the valuation

report or the reg.iJte~ valuer and valuation report of chartered accountants and the f:.imC:$$
opinion d:ued 21.10.2020pro\ ided by merchant banker, Cothe members of Transferor Company,

holding equity sh.res in Tr:tnsfcror Compony Md whose names appear in the RcSi'ter of
MembcrsfDc:positoryParticipant on the Record Date or to such of their respective heirs,

6.1. The share exchange ratio sbted in Clouse 6.2 ofSeetion I oflhis Scheme has been determined

by the BOGrdof Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company based on

their independentjudgment after lakin, intoconsideration the valuation report of'the registered
valuer dated 21.10.2020 provided and the fairness opinion dated 21.10.2020 provided by
merchant banker.

6. CONSIDERATION

5.1.4. The Transferee Company shall. at any time after this Scheme becoming effective in accordance

with the provisions hereof, if so required under Applicable Laws, do all such acts or things as

may be necessary 10 transfer I obtain the approvals, consents. exemptions, registrarions. no­
objection certitlcates, pennils. quotas. rights, entitlements. licenses and certiflcates which were
held or enjoyed by Transferor Company. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that if the

consent of either a third party or Governmental Authority is required to give effect to the
provisions of this Clause, the said third party or Governmental Authority shall make and duly

record the necessary substitution f endorsement in the name of Transferee Company pursuant
to the sanction of this Scheme by 'he NeLT. and upon this Scheme beccming effective. The

Transferee Company sh311 file appropriate applications f documents with thc relevant
authorities concerned for infonnation and record purposes and the Transferee Company shat],
under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to CXl.'CulC any such writings

on behalf of Transferor Company and to earry out or perfonn all such acts, forrnalittes or

compliances referred to above :1S may be required in this regard,

Transferor Company has been a party. including any filings with the Governmental Authorities,
in order to give formal effect (0 the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall. under the

provisions hereof. be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings in the name. of and
on behalf of Transferor Company and 10 carry out or perform aU such formalities or

compliances referred to above on the pan of Transferee Company, infer alta, in its capacity as
the SUCCC$SOrentity of the Transferor Compa.ny.
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(b) if the fnoctional cntitIcmcntlsO.s (...., poIn. five) 0< mon: iuhall be round<-dup so tIw
such pmonwill receive, one (I) equity short: ofth. Transf....e Compony Instead of ouch

frICtion.' enthtement.

(D) If the fmetional entitlement i,lCSSlhln O.S (zero polnt five) it .hall be rounded down ,0
Ih.. luch person will receive, zero (0) equity Sh~NSof the Tron,f eree Compony In.... d of

such rtlClional tntilJemcnt; :and

6.4. If.lII>Plyi", the Sholc Exohangc Rlllio •• person cli,ible to reee! ve new shares of the TnlDSf""",
Compony punuantlO the Scheme undct Ihis Clouse 6, becomes Itled to .--ivc any f..... ionol

equity sI1arcs ofTransf eree CUmpooy (I -r....tlo ... , ••• III ").SUM penon shall beentitled
to reeeive Instead of such fractional cnli.lc:tncnt. equity sI1arcs of the Trsnsf eree Company as
follows'

6.3. The sb=s bsued pumwll 10 the provisions of 1MScheme as per Cbwc 6.1 ("New Shares").
sI1all be issued to Ihc _Iders of the Tronsrcror Company in clcmal form, th>l is,

dcmolerializal shara unl= 0IhawUc notified in writing by • sharchold<-r of the Transferor
Company to the Tnlnsfcree Company on Of before s~h date as may be determined by tho Board

ofTrans(eree Company. In the event thot such notice has not been received by the Transferee

COlnpany in mpecl or any of the 3harcholdcrs or the Transferor Company, the equity shares.
'hall be wued 10 such shareholder.! in dctnOleri.Ii:K<l form provided Ihal the 'hare holders of the
T"""f.ror Company sholl be required to have an lceounl with. depository participant and shall

be required to provi&: deUils_f IIIId...,h othu confirmations ISmay be ~uired. In 1M

event tIw the Tnonsf_ CUmpony has rcccl"ed noli"" from any sharehold e- tho! the equity
sI1a........ ,0 be issued in phY$ioaJform or if Illy shareholder hasnOlprovid<-d Ihe requisite details
",Ial nc I. hi" her/ its tICCOUnlwith • depository porticipant or other confinnotion. IS may be

rcquirc:d or if the d~aHs furni.shed by an)' shattholdt:r do not permit electronic credit of the sheres
of the Transferee Company, then the TnIOsfcrec Ccrnpany 'hall issue tbe equilY shores in physical
(onn (0 such Shll~holderor shareholckn.

1 (Two)fully paid Equity Shares offao. valu« of lNR 11· eoch ofTron.rf., .. Company shall

"" Isslled and o/lOft.dfor every / j (Fif/ •• fI) Equity shares offoce value of INR /01· .ocil held
In Tronsftrw Company.

executors. ldmin1sttators or otbtr legal tq)ft'Kt\tative or other successors in title as may be
recosnilt<d by 1M.... peetive Bo3Id of Direct"" in the following mann.,.;
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6.S. The IloW shores to be issued and allotted by the Transferee Company ln tcrms ofClouso 6 ofthi.

Scheme ,h.1I be li$led and sholl be admitted ror tmdin, on the Stoele Exchanges. The Transferee
Compan)' $hall make all requisite applications and shall oihcrwlse cOlnply with the provisions of

Applicable lAws, including. as applicable, the prcvtstees of Securtttcs and Exchange Board of
India (Li$ting Obligations Md Oiselesure Requirements) Regulmlons, 2015 and the SEBI

Circulm. The Equity SIIares alloned pursuant to this Scheme sholl remain frozen in the
depositories s),slem lill relcvunl directions in relation to listing/eroding arc provided by the Stock
E..ehnngcs.

6.7. Upon the Scheme beioa effective and on allotment cf'new shares by the Transferee Company.
the shares held in Transreror Company by the Transferee Company shall stolid uutomutically

C30CClledwithout ony further act or deed. Further, it is ctariflcd that no shares will be Issued for

the sllares that .... held by the Transferee Company in Transferor Company,

6.6. The new eheres issued by Transferee Company to the members of Transferor Comp<lIlY'hall rank

pari~pas.su \yilh the existing equity shares of Transferee Company subject to other provision of
this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall. lt ncccssary and to the extent required, increase its

Authorized Share Capita] to facilitate issue of shares under this Scheme. by follcwlng the
requisite procedure under applicable provisions of law tlnd the. resolution approving the Scheme
shllll be deemed to be the approval or increase in the authorized sho.ro capital of the Transferee
Cornpany.

6.S. On the approval orthis Scheme by the members of the Transferee Company pursuant to Sections

23()'232 of theAct andfor the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, if applicable, it sholl be
deemed that the said mcmbcn have also accorded their consent under Sections 13.42. 6l. alld
62(1 Xc) or the Act and/or any other applicable provisions of the Companies Aet and rules and
regulations framed thereunder as may be applicable for the afcresald Issuance of new shares to

the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company. and no further resolution or actions shall be
requlred to be undertaken by the Transferee Company under Sections 13. 42 or 62( IXc) of the
Act or any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act and rules and regulations fral11cd

thereunder t.

Pursuant to the rounding up or rounding down as per (0) nnd (b) above, the 10tnlnumber orsbarcs
thai will be issued to equity shareholdc1"$Of the Transferor Company, may vary from the 10101

number or shares of the Transferee Company to be issued as set forth in the first sentence of
Clause 6.3. However, each shareholder of the Transferor Company shall get at least one share or
the Transferee Company.
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7.7. In c:ascofany difference in MYo(lhe ac:oounting policies between the Transferor Co'UPMY and
the: Transferee Company, the impact of the same in the me-rger by absorption will be qU3.ltified

7.6. Any int~omJXl.nY bGJancc(s) And tnter·company investments, debts, borro" v ings (secured or

unsecured). ir any between the Transferor Company and Ihe Transferee Company shall sta nd

ClUlccllcd and oom:sponding effcci shall be aiven in tho books of account and the records of
1'r3n~(ctee Comp3JlY (or the eeduetlcn of any wets or Ilabillties, as the case Inay be. There would

be no accrual of intcrc:.StOf other charges and there shall be no obligl'llion/oulStandingin that
behalf in rtSptCt of an)' such inttrcomp;.ny 10..ns, debl, securities or balances with ctT("-CIfrom

the Appoinled 0 are,

7.5. Upon the schcmt (omi", into errect, the surplus Idcl1cit, if any of the net value or assets,

liabilities and reserves of the Tratlsfcror Company acquired and recorded by the Transferee

Company in terms of clause 7.2 over the sum of (a) the face value of the new shorts on

AmaJgamation issued and allotted pursuant to clause 6; and (b) the value of invesnncnts cancelled
pursuant 10ClaU$C'7.4, shall be adjusted in "Capital Reserve ACCOunt·in the rinancial statements
of the Tmnsfe ree Compo.ny.

7.4. The ca.rryin, nmount o(investments in the equity shares of the Transferor Company to the extent
held by Tl'll!I$fercc Compony .• hall>land cancelled and there ,h.1I be no lurthcr obligation in that

behalf.

7.:;, The Transferee Company ,Nillcredit to its sharo capital account, the aggregote face value of the

new shatc:s issued by it pursuant to Clause 6 orthis Scheme.

7.2. AU the assets. liabilities and reserves in the books of the TrJnsfcror Company shall stand

IrMSferr<d 10Md vested in Ihe Tr.wf~ CompOJlYpursuanl to Ihe scheme and shall be recorded
by the Transferee Company al their carrying runounts as appearing in the books of Transferor

Company. 00 the Appointed Dale.

7. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
7.1. n.Amalgam'lion oflhe Tr.wferor Company with the TransfereeCom pony sh.1I be accounted

for in the books of IICcount of the Transferee Company in accordance w,ith IPooling of Interest

Method' ofacx:ounling as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Buslness Combination)

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013. which is applicable 10 the Company

since thi$ Is a COmmon control business cemblnatlon as follows:

52



20

8.3. For the: avoidance of doubt. it is clarified that. in case. the authorised share capital of the

Transferee COlnpany and, or, the Transferor Company, as the case may be, undergoes any

Change, prior (0 this Scheme becoming effective, then Ihi$ Ctaose 8 of this Scheme shall

automllieaUy stand mcxlified I adjusted ac~rdingly to take into a<:count the efYc:.ctof such

chan,•.

8.2. PllJ'S\Ulnt(0 the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite forms with the ROC fer

alteration QI'Idreclassification of its authoris.c:d sh~c eapiULI.

S.I. As an integral pan. of this Scheme and upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, the authorised

equity share capital of the Transferor Company amounting 10 INR 19,21.00.000 (Rupees

Nineteen Crore Twenty-Seven Lakh) shall stand consolidated and vested in and merged with the

authorised share capital of the Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall

accordingly increase its authorized share capital and reclassify it as equity shares and/or

preference shares as may be required by it 3$ on the Effective Dates without any further act or

deed and \vithout any further payment of the stamp duty or the registration fees and acccrdtngly

Claw< V of the memorandum of associ.tion of the Transferee Company (relating to the
authorised share capital) shall. without any further act, instrument or deed. be and stand altered,

modi fled end amended.

8. CONSOLIDATION OF AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEROR

COMPANY WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

7.10. The identity of the reserves shall be preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of the

Transferee Company in the same fonn in which they appeared in thc financial statements ofthc

Transferor Company.

7.9. The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the Transferor

Company shall be aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial

statements of the Transferee Company.

7.8. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the Transferee Company, 3S on the

Appointed Date shall be reconstrUcted with the terms of this Scheme,

and :sdjusted in the Capital Reserves of the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial

statements of the Transferee Company reflect the true financial position on th~ basis or consistent
accounting policies,
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10.2. OnOrafter the Effcc::tiveDate. financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms,
fiUngs and annexuees under the Income-tax Act. 1961 (including for the purpose of rc­
computjng minhnum altenlative tax, and claiming other tax benefits), central sales tax.

applicable stale value added tax. service tax laws. excise duty laws. goods and services tax.

10. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

10.1. This Scheme is in compliance with the conditions relating to 'amalgamation' as specified

under section 2(1 B) and oth~r relevant sections of the Income-tax Act. 1961. If any terms or
provisions of the Scheme are found 10beor interpreted to be inconsistent with an)' of the said
prov~sions at a later date. \vhether as a result of any retrospective amendment of 13w or any

judicia] or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatscever, the aforesaid

provisions of the Incom e-tax Act, 1961 shall prevail. The Scheme shall then stand modified

to the extent dctcnnincd necessary to comply with Section 2(1B) ofthc Income Tux Act, 1961
and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

PARTC

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

9. EXEMI'TIOi'i UNDERSAST REGULATIONS

For the avoidance of doubt. it is clarified that pursuant to amalgamation of the Transferor
Company into and \vith the Transferee Company. the issuance of new shares of the Transferee

Company to the shareholderS of the Transferor Company as consideration for the amalgamation
of the Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company in terms of this Scheme and

me consequent grant of certaln riglllS to the shareholders wbo hold shares beyond a certam
lhres.hotd as may be prescribed from time- to time in the charter documents of the Transferee

Company. is exempt under the provisions of Regulation 100lXdXii) of the SAST Regulations,
and therefore. the requirement to make an 'open offer' shall not be triggered in terms of the

provisions of the SAST Regulations.

8.4. It is hereby clarified dw for the purposes of this Clause 8 of this Scheme. the consent of the

sherehcfders of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be
deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above amendment to the Memorandunl
of Association of til_ Transferee Company and no further resolution under Section 13 of the Act
andlor any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act and rules and regulations framed.

thereunder would be required to be separately passed. nor shall the Transferee Company be
required to pay any additional registration fees. stamp duty. etc.
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10.7. All t~es including Income-tax, minimum nJtemate tax, sales tax, excise duty, custom duly,

service tax. vatue added tax, goods lind servtee tax etc, paid or payable by the Transferor
Company in respect of the operations and! or the profits of the business before the Appointed

10.6. Any refund under the Income-tax Act. 1961. wealth-tax Act, 1957, customs duty laws, central
sales tax. applicable state value added lax. service tax laws. excise duty la, ...s, goods and
service tax, VAT law Or other applicable la,vsI regulations dealing with taxcsl dutiesz Ievies

allocable: or related to the business or the Transferer Company due to any of the Transferor
COfnpGnyconsequCf\t to the assessment made on such Transferor COlnp311Y and for which no

credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shull
also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

10.5. Any tax liabilities under the: Income-tax Act. 1961. Wealth-tax Act. 1957. customs duty laws,

central sales tax. applicable state value added tax, service tax laws, excise duty Jaws. goods

and service tax, VAT law or other applicable laws! regulations dealing with taxes, duties,
levies allocable or related to the business of theTransferor Company to the extent not provided
for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date immediately preceding
tho Appointed Dale shall b. transferred or stand transferred 10Transferee Company. Any
surplus in the provision for taxation J duties! levies account including advance tax and tax

deducted ;tl source as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Dale will also be
transferred to the account of the Transferee Company.

10.4. Further, all tax proceedings shall not abate or bediscontinued nor be in any way prejudicially

affected by reason of the MergerfAmalgamation or anything contained in the Scheme.

10.3. All lax assessment proceedings/appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor

Company pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor
Company shall be continued andlor enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the

Transferee Company. As and from the Effective Date, all tax proceedings shall be continued

and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent
as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company.

VAT law and other tax laws, and to claim refunds and! or credits for taxes paid (including
minimum alternate tax. tax deducted at source, goods and service tax etc.), and to claim tax

benefits etc. and for matters incidental thereto, shall be entitled (0 be revised for the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company if required to give effect to the provisions of the

Scheme.
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11.2. The members of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shell, save as
expmsly provided otherwise in this Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing riiht$ under

their respective Articles of Association Includingthe right to receive dividends.

ILL The Transferor Company and the Transferee COlnpany shall be entitled to declare and pay

dividends. whether interim or final. to their respective members in respect of me accounting

period to the Effective date .. approved by their Respective Boards.

t I. DIVIDENDS

10.10. Uponthe Schemecoming into effect, all lax compliancesunder any tax laws bythe Transferor
Company on or after Appointed Date shall bedeemed to bemode by tho Transferee Company.

10.9. \\'ithom prejudice to the: generality of the above, all benefits, incentives. losses(including but
not limited to, lax losses, tax unabsorbed depreciation). accumulated losses, credits (including,

\vithout limitation income tax, minimum alternate tax, tax deducted at source. wealth tax,
service tax, excise duty, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax. customs dUly

dr.l'ovooek.goods and service:tax etc.) to which the Transferor Company are entitled to in
terms of applicable laws, ,hall beavailable to and VCStin the Transferee Company, upon this

Scheme coming into effect.

10.S. Obligeticn for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by the.
Transferer Company under the Income-taxAct. 1961.customs duty 13\\'S,central sales tax,

applicable state value added tax. service tax law-s, excise duty laws, goods and service tax,
VAT law or other applicable laws I regula. ions dealing with taxes! duties !Ievies shall be
made or deemed to have been made and duly complied with by the TransfereeCompany.

Date. shall be on aeeoum of the Transferor Company and) in SO far as it relates (0 the tax

payment (including, without limitation. income-tax.minimum alternate tax, sales tax, excise
duty, custom duty. sen-ice tax, value added tax, goods and service tax etc.) whether by way

of deduction at source, advance lax or otherwise howsoever. by the Transferor Company in
respect of the profits or activities or opemtion of the: bcslness after the Appointed Date, the

sameshall bedeemed to be the corresponding itempaid by the Transferee Company and shall,
in all proceedings, bedealt with accordingly. Further. any tax deducted at source byTransferor
Companyl Transferee Company on payables to Transferee Companyl Transferor Company
which has been deemed not to be accrued. shall be deemed to be advance taxes paid by the

Transferee Company and shaH,in all proceedings. be dealt with accordingly.
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15. CONDITIONALITY OFTHISSCHEM£

This Sch<rn. is conditional upon and subject to:
a) Th. requisite con~~ approval Or pennission from theStoclc E>chan&cs _nder Reg_Lotion
nofth. SEBI (Listin, DbliplioO$.nd Disclosure Rcquin:menu) Rei_lolions. 201S.

which by law or OthcN;SC may be n«lcssary (or Implementarlcn or me Scheme in

14. APPLICATION TO TIfE NCLT
The T,.nsf"",. Company and the Transferor Company shall make applicatlonslp'1itions under

Sections 230 10 232 or the Act, as applic.ble and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act 10 the NCLT, MumbGi for the- s:Lnction ofthlJ Scheme :tnd all matters ancilll.'uy or incidental
there to.

All books. records. files, papers, databases. cl:'ltaJoiues. if any. lists of present and renner clients
and all OIher book< and records, wh<ther in physical Or eleetrcnic fonn. of the 1iIl0$feror

Compony. to Ihr extent possible and pennitted under applicable 131'''. be handed over by the
Transferor Compony to theTransferee Compeny.

13. BOOKS AND RECORDS Of THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

12. DISSOLUTION OfTRE TRANSfEROR COMPANY
Upon this Scheme c:oming iDlo effect. Ihr Tronsferor Company shall. without any furtMr act,

i""""",,,t or deed of Ihr Transfero< Compony or the Transferee Company. stand dissolved
wltbeut ,"indin& up.

11.4. It is claified tIw Ihr afO«S3id provisions In rospect of declaration of dividends ore .... bling
provisions only and shall net bedeemed to eonfer any righton :my member of the TrlllSferor

Compony andInrlhr Traasferee Compony to demand or claim any di';dends which. subject
to the provisions of the Act. shall be entirely .t the discretion of the respective Boards of
Din:c:ton ohl>< Transferor Company Md II><Trmufcrc:c Company res poctiv.ly, ond subject

to the approval. if required, of the members of the Transferer Company [lnd the Transferee

Comp"ny respoctiv.ly.

11.3. Fnr llle .,oidonee of doubc, il is I><rebyclarified tIw nothing in Ihis Scl><",. shall I""""nl
Transferee Company from declaring. and paying dividends, whether interim or final, '0 its
membt':rs :as on the record date for (he purpose or dividend and those who are members only

oflhe Tnlnsferor Company shall nOIbe entitled 10dividends. if any. deel"",d by Transferee

Compony prior 10 the ElTedi"" dat ••
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17. MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THIS SCITEME
The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may. through mutual consent and acting

through their respective Board of Directors, assent to any modiflctltions/amcndmr.:nts to this

Scheme andl or to any conditions or limitations th.lt the NCLT and I or any other Governmental

Authority may deem fit Codirect or impoK or which may otherwise be considered necessary,

desirable or appropriate by them.

16. SEQUENCING OF EVENTS
Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the following shall

be deemed to have occurred I shall occur and become effective sud operative, only in the

sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

a) amalgamation of the Transferer Company into and with the Transferee Company in
accordance with this Scheme:

b) consolidation of the authorised share capita) of me Transferor Company with the

authorised share capital of Transferee Company in accordance with Clause 8 of this

Scheme, and eonsequentioJ incrusc/reelassificltion in the authorised shore capital of the
Transferee Company:

c) dissolution of'the Transferor Company without wlnding-up in accordance with Clause 12

orchis Scheme; and

d) issue and alletment of new shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the

Tronsferor Company as on the Record Oat. in accordance with Clause 6 of Ihis Scheme.

compliance with, the provisions ofSEBI Circular;
b) Securities and Exchange Boanl of India and the Stock Exchanges approving this Scheme

and the other transactions contemplated in (his Scheme.

c) Approval of the requisite majority of the shareholders of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company to the Scheme and the requisite orders of the:NCLT sanctioning the

Scheme in exercise of the powers vested in it under the Act;
d) Approval of public shareholders of the Transferor and Transferee Company Ihrough e­

vOling in terms of Para 9 of Annexure I of the SEBI Circular dated JOmMarch 2017.

provided that the same shall be acted upon only if'the voles cast by Ihe public shareholders

in fa"'our of the. Scheme are morc than the number of votes cast by them against the
Scheme; and

c) such other sanctions and approvals including sanctions of any government Or regulatory

authority as may be required by 13\Vin respect of the Scheme and the certified copies of

the NeLT order sanctioning the Scheme being filed with ROC
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22. EFFf.CTOF NON- RECEIPTOF APPROVALS
to the event ofnnyoflho soid sanctions Md approvals referred 10in Clouse 15not beinll obtained
ondl or tho Scheme not being senetlcned by the NCLT or such oiher approprialc authority. if any.
Ihi' Scheme Shollstand revoked, cancelled Gndbe of no elTecl, save ttnd except in respect ofany
ect or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or 1\$ to any rights and! or liabilities
whleb might have arisen or accrued pursunnl thereto and which shall be governed and be
preserved or worked Oul as is specifically provided in tbe Scheme Oras may otherwise arise in
law and "sreed between the respective parties 10 this Seheme, Each P:lrty ,hAil bear 3nd pay its

respective costs, ch.rges and expenses for and or in connection with the Scheme unless otherwise
rmuually agreed.

21. COSTS,CHARGES AND EXPENSES

The Transferee Company shall bear all their respective costs, charges, raxcs including duties.
lovl.$ and all other expenses. ifany (save ASexpressly otherwise .greed) ari.ing oul of or incurred
in Innklna Ihis Scheme effective and matters lncidental thcreto,

The transfer or assets, liabilities and business to, and the eentinuance of proceedings by or
against, IheTransferee Company 8$ envisaged in this Scheme shall not .rreet any transaction or
proceedlngs already concluded by the Transferor Company or the TI"JJlsferee Company on Or
before the Eff<"CliveDale, to the end and intonl Ihal the Transferee Company shall be

autcmatically deemed 10accept ond adopt oil such nets, deeds and Ihings done ond executed by
Ihe 1'ronsfe,or Company.

20. IU;P~:ALANOSAVINGS

19. WITILDRAWAL OF THIS SClfEME
The Scheme may be wllhdrawn from the NCLT anYtime bymutual consent of ~\e Transferor
COlnp30Y and the Transferee Cnlnp8.t\)', acting through their respective Board of Directors and

with further approval ofthe NCLT for withdrawal.

18. ItEMOYAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Trnnsferor Company and the Transferee Company may, through mutual consent and aCling

lhrough their reseeeuve Board of Directors, agree 10 cake steps, os may be necessary, desirable

or proper, 10 resolve all doubis, difficulties or questions, whether by reason of any orders of the
Tribunal or any directive or orders of ;_tnyGovernmental Authority Or etherwlse arising out of,
under or by virtue Oflhis Scheme in relatlcn to the arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and
lor matters concerning or connecte..d therewith.
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c;ertlfied Trua Copy
For I 0 Count I1'1dusln88 LlmllOd

4V"'-
Certified Truo Copy
For PranavadllyaSpinningMills Um'led

II. Twa Methods 0/ Va/flalloll I.e. CoS! and Mark., Appl"(J(1c"11("" been used lor I'SML and
Il1cQllutUppl'cxtch file/hod has nOI beln IIsed us P$}.IL ($ Q IIsfed COfliJXlfl)' aud in/om,orion
rc/u/(!d 10 thtJjitturt profit and loss Dccouni. be/ancl! s/r"tl and cashflows Is price I""S/I/"O and
hence H'OSIJQIpro,'/dcd to I/U! valuer. Further, PS}'{L 's prodUt;llOIJ 1t'aJ' Ilop}H!d at tJur lime 0/
t,ppo;ut,:tl dole."

i. 1" ,'(1St qf JCIL 0111)'one method of valuatlon I,~.Market Approach htu been used because its
.'("(/re$o,.e!reql'll-ntly traded OilStock Exchanges, ond market price reflects ,slg"iflctJul multtple

0/ book value. rhereyore., It )I'tl$ ""clpproprlate 10 consider COSIand tneome approach tn ~(Jst
o/ICIL. /0"111'1".,. ICIL /s a /ismi Company and toformatton r./mod 10 '''"jUrld" prO/I1and loss
acct),uU, balance $/111111and cash flows Is prtce sensttlve and hence "'0.\' 1101provided 10 ,,,~
vtllu(!,.

Pursuant to the observaticn leners dated 25 Morch. 2021 issued by SSE Limited 10Transferor Company
and 25 March. 2021 & 26 March, 2021 iss ued by SSE Limited and National Steck Exchange of India

Limited. respectively to the Transferee Company, following information and fucts on methods of
valuation nrc provided below:

24. Comments vi. observation letters doted 25 Mare h 2021 & 26 Mo re h 2021 issutd by Sto<k

f';xchllnKCJ:

No third party r:laiming 10 have acted or changed his position in anticip:uion of the Scheme taking
effect, shall get any cause of aerlon againsl.he Transferor Company or Transferee Company or
their directors or officers, ifthis Sebemc does not take effect Or is withdrawn, eaecelled, revoked,
anlcndcd Ormodified for all)' reason whatsoever.

23. NOCAUSEOFACTION
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(CIN: L72200I'NI988PI.C0689721

Indo Count Induslries Limited.

Page I 01'18

... First Applicant Company

Transferor Company

Pranuv.dity. Spinning Mills Limited.

(CIN' Ll7119Pl"I990I'LC0581391

(Cottectively re/erret! 10 11.''Appttcant
Companies ~

(frolls/ert·,· CompallY)

Wrth

Indo Count Industries limited

Prunavnditya Spinning Mills Limited

ITransferor Company)

Of

Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (by

way of merger by Absorption)

10 the matter of

And

In the maucr ofSections 230 - 2.12 and

other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act. 2013 and Rules framed

thereunder;

And

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

C.A.(C.A.A.)1143/M 8/2021

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAl BENCH-IV

CA. (CA.A.)II43IMBI202 1

61
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Applicant Company shall issue and allot equity shares 10 the shurcholdcrs

of First Applicant Company as on lhe Record Dale «(IS "ej,~)I): \ ~~
1\. t? -)t> .'),

Scheme), 2 fully paid equity share of Re. 2 each of the Scce a :tXppli'o~'Il ~
I i3 ~ .1. ~.~~ r ,.,';,.'i F:

.~ •• 1' ft'!

t'age 2 of tg \. :/<rfi ~TJ,~~~
"",,{"!J.!;_,\10l\t 'O'i~.--

FUliher, UpOIl the said nmalgummion becoming effective. the Second

other applicable provisions of the ACI and Rules framed thereunder.

Company, by absorption. in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 1111<1

(a) Amalgamation of First Applicant Company with Second Applicant

Company'). The Scheme envisages the following:

Count Industries Limited ('Transferee Company' or 'Second Applicant

Mills Limited ('Transferor Company' or First Applicant Company) with Indo

Amalgamariu» (by \vuy of Merger by Absorpuou) of l'runavadirya Spinning

2. The Counsel for the Applicants states that the present Scheme is a Scheme of

1. The court is convened via video confercncing.

Per: Slie/lilrll Kanuparth], Member (!lIdid,")

ORDER

Mr. Hemant Sethi, Ms Vidisha Poonja

iIb Hernam Sethi & Co .. Advocates

Appearances (via videoconferencingt :

For the Applicants:

Hon'blc Sml. Suchitra Kanuparthi, Member (Judicial)

Hon'ble Shri, Satya Ranjan Prasad, Member (Technical)

Coram:

Order delivered 011 18.08.2021

C.A.(C.A.A.)1l43/MB/2021
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Company con be uulizcd In cost effective and efficient mann

('o&e 3 of 1M

(8) The Transferor Company, listed on BSE Limited and the Transferee

Company, tistcd On BSE Limited and :-.Iulional Stock Exchange of India

Limucd. both arc a pan of the saruc group I·unhcr. the I ransferor

Company is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company wherein the

Transferee Company holds majority sharcholding in the Transferor

Company. The main business of PSM L has been manufacturing of cotton

yam and it has a huge freehold land of - 34 acres M Piol No.266 Village

Alte, Tal, Hathkanangale. Dist, Kolhapur (ncar textile hub lehalkaran)l)

and - 20000 spindle capacity for spinning

Rutionale (or on,o/ganullion of Fir.rtApplicunt Conrpallv with Second

AllnlicQllt Cn/npnny. bv absorption

S. The background, circumstances, rationale and benefits of the Scheme arc that:

4. The Counsel for the Applicants further submits that Second Applicant

Company. is engaged in the business of manufacturing ofhomc textiles and

its products broadly falls under the categories of Bed Sheet, Pillow Cover and

Comforter,

3. The Counsel for the Applicants submits thai First Applicant Company is

authorised 10 carry on. inter alia, the business of manufacturing of conon yam.

Company lor every 15 equity share or Rs. 10 each ofthe Frrst Applicant

Company.

C.A.(C.A.A.)l143I1\ffil2021
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I'age4 or I~

out Transferee Company's business expansion. The Transferor and

Transferee's industrial units are situated within a distance of - 40

kilometers. Hence. it is proposed to amalgamate Transferor Company into

the Transferee Company in this Scheme.

(b) Further, the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the

Transferee Company would inter alia have the following benefits:

i. Consolidation of the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company will achieve simplified corporate structure, rationalise

the number of listed entities and result in a single listed entity with

combined businesses.

ii. Provide an opportunity to leverage combined assets and build.

stronger sustainable business. Specrfically, it will also enable

optimal utilization of existing resources which arc In excess of the

current business requirements of the Transferor Company and

provide an opportunity to fully leverage assets. capacities.

experience and infrastructure of the Transferor Company and

Transferee Company.

ill. Reducing manage";11 ovcrlap-, ",,"I\Cd III opcraung muillple

entities, enable cost savings and effective utilization of valuable

resources which will enhance the management focus thereby

lending to increase in operauonal and management efflcieney:

integrate business functions; eliminate

rationnlizarion of administrauve expenses.

C.A.(C.A.A.)I143JMB/2021
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CFD/DIL3/CI Rl20 I7121 dared March 10.2017. as amended from iiI
Page S of 18

5, The Counsel for the Applicem Cernpanics further suborns Ihal the equny

4. 111eCounsel for the Applicant Companies submits that the Board of'Direcrors

of the First Applicant Company and Second Applicant Company 31 their

respective board meetings bOlhheld on October 21. 2020 have approved the

Scheme,

The intended Scheme is nOI prejudicial to the interest of ihc crcduors or

the employees of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

iv, Synchronization of efforts 10 achieve uniform corporate policy.

greater integration and greater financial strength and flexibility for

Ihe Transferee Company.

v, Bcuer value creation for Ihe shareholders of both the compames

enabling the public shareholders 10 hold shares of the combined

listed entity.

vi. Upon completion of the amalgarnanon, the Transferor Company

will be dissolved. Consequently, there would be lesser regulatory

and legal compliance obligations including accounting. reponing

requirements. statutory and internal audit compliance

requirements, tax filings. company law compliances, Stock

hchange comphanccs etc and therefore reducuon rn

udrnmistraiivc costs.

C.A.(C.AA.)l143jMBn021

65



taclllly or e-voung d"nn~ the nl.,rl!!'o:lId 1111:t.'III1!'tn he held throu

confercncmg andlor other audiu-visuul means on November I .

Page 6 of 18

7 In view of provisions of Sccuon 230(4) read with Sccuon 108 uf Ihc

Compamcs Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of

the Companies (Management and Administrauon) Rules. 2014 and in

accordance with Regulation 44(1) of the SESI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 201S. the First Applicant Company

proposes to provide the facility of remote c-voring 10 us Equity Shareholders

In respect of the resolution 10 be passed at the aforesaid meeting. The llquilY

6. This Tribunal hereby directs that a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the

FiNI Applicant Company be convened and held on November IS. 2021 at

12:30 pm for the purpose or considering, lind if thought fit. approving the

proposed Scheme, through video confercncing andl or other audio visual

means. without holding a general mecung requiring thc physical presence

of shareholders at a common venue, as the same in the current Covid-

19 environment mandaung social distancing norms shall nOIbc feasible.

r'SERI Circular") reeadwilh Regulanon 37 of ure SElll (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 C'LODR Regulauons"),

First Applicant Company had applied 10 BSE for their "Observation Leiter" I

"No Objection Letter" to file the Scheme for sanction of the Tribunal. BSE by

its letter dated March 25, 2021, given their "No Objection Letter" to First

Applicant Company, to file the Scheme with the Tribunal.

C.A.(C.A.A. )1I431M B'2021
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thereof in "Pudhari" (Kolhnpur edition) both having circulation in

Pose 7 or t8

9. Notice of convening the Meellng ortbe Equity Shareholders of First Applicant

8. That at least 30 (thiny) clear days before tlie aforesaid meeting of the Equity

Shareholders of the First Applicant Company to be held as aforesaid. a nonce

convening the said meeting at the day. date and time aforesaid. together with

a copy of the Scheme. a copy of the Lxplanatery Statement required to bc sent

under Section 230(3) of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the

Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

shall be sent bye-mail to the Equity Shareholders of the First Applicant

Company whose email addresses are duly registered with the First Applicant

Company, addressed to each of the shareholders, al their last known e-mail

addresses a, per the record, ofthe Fit>tApplicant Company or by courier or

registered post or speed POStIDCasC the e-mail ids of any of the shareholders

are not available.

12:30 pm respectively. The e-voting facility for the Equity Shareholders of

the First Applicant Company shall be provided in compliance with the

condinons specified under the Companies C)lanagcmcnt and Adrninistrauon)

Rules, 2014. Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations.2015 and Secretarial Standard on General

Meetings (SS2) issued by tht Institute of Company Secretaries of India, as

applicable.

C.A.(C.AA.)l143IMBI2021
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13.The voting by PI'IlXY shall IIll1 be permuted as the meeting would be held

through video confcrencing lind! ()I' other audio- vis u a I

However, voting in case 01' body corporate be permuted. pro

prescribed Conn louthorismioll is filed with the First Applican

Page8 of 18

12.Tl1c quorum for .hc aforesaid meeting of Ihc Equity Sbareholders of Firs.

Applicant Company shall be u, prescribed under Sccuon 10.1 or rhc

Companies /\c', 2013 and would include Equi: y Shareholders PI'CSCnI

through video confercncing nnd/ol' other audio- vi 511a I means. In elise the

required quorum as s.ated above is 110' present 01 the connncncemcnt of

the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and

thereafter .he persons present Shall be deemed ,0 constiunc ihe quorum.

II. That the scrutinizer for the aforesaid meeting of Equity Shareholders of

First Appllcam Company shall be Mr. Vikns R. Chomal, Practicing Company

Secretaries, willI remuneration Iixcd 61 Rs. 30.000/ -,

10.'I'hat Mr. Sushilkumar Allr~\\,III.lndcpcndcm Director of the I'II'st Apphcnn:

Compuny, "n" fuilinll hun, Ms. Kula Agllr\\':II. lndcpcndcm D,rectQr of the

First Applicant Company, shall be .he Chairperson of .he aforesaid meeting

of'the Equity Shareholders of'the F,rs. Applic8Il' Company.

no. less 30 days before tbe date fixed lor .hc meeung. Considering the

lockdown prevailing duo to CQVID·19 pandemic, the Firs. Applicant

Company will have thc option '0 publish notices online rn ihe respective c­

newspaper editions,

C A,IC.i\.A.)114.1IMB/2021
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16 The Chairperson appointed for the aforesaid meeting or the Equity

decision in that behalf would be liM).

value for the purposes of the meeting of' Equtly Shareholders and hi~hcr

records arc disputed. the Cluurpcrson of the meeting shull determine the

depository records and where the entries in the books! registerl depository

accordance with the books/ register of the Fltst Applicant Company or

15.The value and number of the shares of each Equity Shareholder shall be in

at any adjournment thereof.

including for deciding procedural questions that may arise at the meeting or

extent necessary and applicable. in relation to the conduct of the meeting(s),

(Compromises. Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules. 2016. to the

also under the Companies Act, 2013 read \\ itlt the Companies

the Articles of Association of the First Applicant Company respectively and

Shareholders of the First Applicant Company shall have all powers as pcr

14.The Chairperson appointed for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity

(Compromises. Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

the aforesaid meeting as required under Rule 10 of the Companies

amruta.3vasare@;indocounl.com> no later than 48 hours before the start of

<toawnh<pooja.mandave@indocounLeom>at

C.A.(C.A.A.)l143IMBI2021
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IS,This Tribunal hereby directs that 3meeting of the Equi.y Shareholders of the

Second Applicant Company be convened and held OnNovember 15,2021 3.
2:30 pm for the purpose of considenng, and if thought li.. approving tile

proposed chcme .• hrough video confcrencing and' or other audio visual

means, wuhout holdlllg • general meeung requmng the phYSIcalpresence

of shareholders a. a common venue, as the Same In .he current Covid-

of the Tribunal, SSE and NSE by its leuer dated March 25, 2021 and March

262021 respectively have. given thelr "No Objection Leuer't lcuers .0 Second
Applicant Company, '0 liIe the Scheme with the Tribunal.

17,The Counsel for the Applicant Companies further submits that the equity

shares of Second Applicant Company ere listed 011 BSE Limited ("BSE") and

Na.ional Stock Exchange of lndra Limited (-~SE") Pursuan•• o jhe

Securities Exchange Board of India (-SE8[") circular

CFDIDIL3/CIRI20 17121dated March 10,2017. as amended [rom time '0 lime

(''SEB[ Circular") read with Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Reguletions. 2015 ("LODR Regulations").

Second Applicant Company had applied '0 BSE and :-;SE for thcrr

"Observation Leucr" ""0 ()bJ~Cl1onI cncr" to file the Scheme fnr sanelion

his Affidavit as per Rule 14 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016,

C,A.t C.A,A,)l143/MBI2021
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Page II errs

last known e-rnail addresses as per the records of the Sccond

20 Th., at least 30 (ihmy) clear days before rhc aforesaid meellng of Ihe );qllity

Shareholders of the Second Applicant Company 10 be held as aforesaid. 0

notice convemng the said meeting at the day. dale and time aforesaid, together

wnh 3 copy of the Scheme. a copy of the Explanatory Statement required 10

be sent under Secuon 230(3) of ihe Companies ACI,2013 read wuh Rule 6 of

the Companies (Compromises. Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,

2016. shall be sent by e-mail It> the Equny Shareholders of the Second

Apphcan. Company whuec email "d"r,,.,e. lire lluly registered with the
..&"'~~

C.I\.(C.A.A.)! I431MB/2021

19.1n view of provisions of Section 230(4) read wuh Section 108 of the

Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Second

Applicant Company proposes to provide the facility of remote c-voiing 10 its

Equity Shareholders in respect of the resolurion 10 be passed at the aforesaid

meeting. The Equity Shareholders cf the Second Applicant Company are also

allowed 10 .\'311 the faciluy of c-voring c1unngthe aforesaid meeting 10be held

through video confercncing and/or other uudio-visual means on November

15,2021 a12:30 pm. The e-voting facility for the Equity Shareholders of the

Second Applicant Company shall be provided in compliance with the

conditions specified under the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS2) issued by

the lnstitute of Company Secretaries of India. a, applicable.
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24.l'bc quorum for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Second

Applicant Company shull be as prescribed under Section 103 of the

Companies Act.2013 and would include Equity

throllgh video conference [lnd/or other nudic visual means.

required quorum as staled above is not present at the commcn

Ilrlge l~ of IX

23 '11':11the Sel1l1l11i/cr for the af..resaid m~ctlll~t ol' ""lIity Shurcholdcrs of

Second AppliclInl Compo II)' shull be Mr. Viknsh R. Chomnt, Pracucing

Company Secretaries. with ilS remunerarion fixed at Rs, 30,000/-.

22. That Mr. Kailash Lalpuria, Executive Director & CEO (Non-promoter) of the

Second Applicant Company. and failing him, Mr.Kamal Mitra. Director of'the

Second Applicant Company shall be the Chairperson of'thc aforesaid meeting

of the Equity Shareholders of the Second Applicant Company.

21.Notice of convening the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Second

Applicant Company, indicating the day. date and time aforesaid, shall be

advertised once each in the "Times of India" (Kolhapur edition) and Marathi

translation thereof in "Pudhari" (Kolhapur edition) both having circulation in

Kolhapur, not less 30 days before the date fixed for the meeting. Considering

the lockdown prevailing due to COVID-19 pandemic. the Second Applicant

Company will have the oplion to publish notices online in the respective c­

newspaper editions.

Company or by courier or registered post or speed post or incase the e-mail

ids of any of the sbarchohlcrs nrc nOl available.

C.A.(C.A.A.)1I43IMB/202J
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accordance with the books! register of the Second Applican; Company or

27.The value and number of the shares of each Equiry Shareholder shall be ID

adjoummcnt thereof.

deciding procedural questions thai may arise al the meeting or al any

and applicable. in relation to the conduct of the meetingts), iocludmg for

Arrangements and Amalgamanons) Rules. 2016. to the extent necessary

the Companies ACI, 20 IJ read with the Companies (Compromises.

the Arucles of Association of the Second Apphcaru Company and also under

Shareholders of the Second ApplIcanl Company shall have all powers as pcr

26.The Chairperson appointed for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules. 2016

aforesaid meeting as required under Rule 10of the Companies (Compromises.

amruta.avasare@iodocounl.coDl DO later than 48 hours before the start of the

a tocopywithpooja.mandave@indcount.com

I authorisation is filed with the Second Applicant Company at

voting in case of body corporate be pcrmntcd, provided the prescribed form

through video conferencing and or other audie visual means, However.

25. The voting by proxy shall not be permitted as the meeting would be held

thereafter the persons present shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

Ihe meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and

C.A.(C.A.A.)l143IMBI2021
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December 11. 2020. the FiN Applocant Cnonpanyhu> 2 unsecured creditors.

31.The Counsel for the Applicant Compames has submitted that M on

ercdirors of Second Applicant Company to seek their approval to the Scheme.

the aforesaid. there is no requirement 10 hold the meeting of the secured

Annexure A 10 the Supplementary Affidavit dated July 8,2021. In view of

secured creditors of the Second Applicant Company hu> been submitted as

value of such secured creditors being R< 374.81>.30.4071 -, The consent ofthc

2020. the Second Applocant Company has 6 secured crcduors, the aggregate

30.The Counsel for the Apphcant Compamcs submns that as on December 31.

Applicant Company.

there is no requirement to hold the meeting of the secured creditors of First

2020, the First Applicant Company has NIL secured creditors. Accordingly.

29.The Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that as on December 31,

2016.

of the Companies (Compromises. Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules.

meeting, and the said report shall be verified by his Affidavit M per Rule 14

meetings within 30 (thiny) days of the conclusion of the aforesaid

28. The Chairperson sball report to this Tribunal, the result of the aforesaid

decision in that behalf would be final.

value for the purposes of the meeting of Equity Shareholders and hislher

C.A.(C.A.A.) 143/MBn021
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unsecured creditors bcmg Rs. 223.52.92.851/-. The Counsellor Ihe Applican;

Companies fun her subrmucd Ihal the Scheme rs 3 composue arrangemenr

between shareholders of ihc Applicant Companies 3S contemplated under

Section 230(1)(b) find not III accordance wuh the provtsicns of

Section 230(1)(a) of the ACIas there is no compronuse andlor arrangement

with unsecured creditors, and thai the unsecured creditors of the Applicant

Companies arc being paid in the nonnol course of business and as pcr the

agreed terms and arc not called upon 10 make any sacrifices, hence their

interests arc not getting affccled rn nny way and arc also secured. The present

Scheme is 111no manner JlI\:jUtlIClllllU ,II..' InleTc,l, ofthe unsecured cr\.."tJilor,

of'thc Applicant Companies. In view the fact Ihat there is no arrangement with

the unsecured creditors, the meeting of the unsecured creditors 10 seek their

approval 10 Ihe Scheme is dispensed with, The Firsl Applicant Company rs

directed 10 issue individual notices 10 all their unsecured creditors by courier

or registered POSIor speed POSIor hand delivery or through e-mail (to those

unsecured creditors whose cmnrl .ddrcs<e, ure duly registered with the FIflH

Applicant Company) and The Second Applicant Company is directed 10 Issue

individual nouccs to lheir unsecured creduors who UI'C having out:-.tnndlllg

value of Rs.S,OO,OOOand above by courier or registered post or speed post or

hand delivery or through e-mail (to those unsecured creditors whose email

addresses arc duly registered with the Second Applicant Company). 31 thelr

C.A.(C.A.A.)l143IMBl2021
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whose jurisdiction the assessments oftbe Second Applicant Compo

Page 160fl8

33.The Second Applicant Company. pursuant to Section 230(5) of the

Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Comprormses,

Arrangemerns and Amalgamatiolls) Rules. 2016. is directed to serve the

notice of the meeting of liS hqulty Shareholders upon: (a) the Central

Government of India (through the Regional DIrector, Western

Central Cirele 7(4). MUMBAl. AAYKAR BHAVAN,MUMBAJ); (c)

Registrar of Companies. Pune, Maharashtra; (d) BSE Limited; (c) Securities

and Exchange Board of Ind,a. faIling \\ hich, 11 WIll be presumed that the

aforesaid authorities have no representations to make on the Scheme.

32.The First Applicant Company. pur"uant to Seeuon 230(5) of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises. Arrangements

and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, is directed to serve the notice of the

meeting of its Equity Shareholders upon: (a) the Central Government of

India (throUgh the Regional Director, Western Region. MInistry of Corporate

Arrail'S); (b) concerned Income Tax Authonty withm whose Jurisdiction the

assessments of the First Apphcant Company ISmade (mcnnomng the PAN of

Flr<l Apphcum Cumpan> 1'\:-" AA.\l'I'11I611 JI the 101l0\\lng addrcvs

that they may subrmt their represeruauons, ifnny.lo Ihe Tribunal within Ihirty

days from the date of receipt of the said notice and copy of such

representations shall srmultaneously be served upon the Applicant

Companocs

C.A.(C.A.A.)/143IMBI2021
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received by the Tnbunal from 01 fic,al Liqmdator. llornbllYwuh

Page 17 of 18

34. The First Applicant Company is also directed 10 serve notice upon Official

Liquidator, High Court, Bombay. pursuant to secti0I1230(5) of'the Companies

Act. 2013 and as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises. Arrangements

and I\maillamalitlll» J(uk~. 1011>. 'I he Irrhllnal i, appoinung' M,s CAS &

Associates, (Formerly Known as S. B. Amberkar & Co.) Chartered

Accountants, having their office al 13, Viglmahana CHSL. Gr. Floor. Or.

Ambedkar Road, Behind One Avighna park, Curry Road. Mumb3,-400 012

[Email:info@casnssociales.co.inl. Tel No. 22 2471610116102 to aSSISIthe

Official Liquidator 10 scrutinize the books of accounts of the said First

Applicant Company for the last 5 years and submn liS rcprcscruauon 1 report

10 the Tribunal l'he aforesaid Company to pay fcc. of R•. 2.00. 000/- 10 Ihe

C./qC A.A.) 143IMBl2021

(memionmglhe.PAN of Second Applicant Company- PA:>l:AAAC10866P

at the following address Central Circle 7(4), MUMBAI, A/I.YKAR

BHAVAN, MUMBAI); (c) Registrar of Companies, Pune, Maharashtra (d)

BSE Limited: (e) National Srock Excbange of India Limned; (I) Securities

and Exchange Board of India. with a direction Ihat Ihey may submit their

represcmation. if any. within a period of 30 (thiny) days from the dale of

receipt of such notice. 10 ihe Tribunal and copy uf such representations

shall simultaneously be served upon the Second Applicam Company. failing

which, it will be presumed thai the aforesaid auihoriucs have no

representations 10make on the Scheme.
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Sd/-
SUCHITRA KANUPARTBI
MEMBER (Judicial)

SdI-
SATYA RANJAl" PRASAD
MEMBER (Technical)

37. Ordered accordingly. Pronounced in open court today.

publication of advertisement as stated in above paragraphs have been duly

complied with.

report to this Tribunal lhat the directions regarding issue of notices and

36.The Applicant Companies shall file proof of compliance electronically to

35.The Applicant Companies sball host the notices directed herein, on their

respective websites, if any.

Scheme as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

lbat Official Liquidator bas no representation I objection to the proposed

30 (thirty) days from the dale of receipt of such notice. it ,,;11 be presumed

C.A.{C.A.A.)l1431MB1202I
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AMIT KUMAR SINGH 
REGISTERED VALUER – SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS  
(REG. NO. IBBI/RV/06/2019/12357) 
INSOLVENCY AND BANCRUPTCY BOARD OF INDIA 
E-MAIL: amit@amitksingh.in                                                  

 

Corp. Office: G-47, Jalvayu Vihar, Sector-29, Faridabad-121008, Haryana 
Ph. +91-129-2500013, M:+91-9990867861 

Email:amit@amitksingh.in 
 

      Dated: 21 October 2020 
 
To 
 
The Board of Directors, 
 
Indo Count Industries Limited 
Office No. 1, Plot No. 266,  
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road,  
Taluka Hatkanangale,  
Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra,  
India 
 
AND 
 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
2, Plot No. 266,  
Village Alte Kumbhoj Road,  
Taluka Hatkanangale  
Kolhapur Maharashtra -416109  
India 
 
 
Sub: Recommendation of Fair Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited into Indo Count Industries Limited  
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
I, Amit Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer registered with the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Board of India 
vide registration no. IBBI/RV/06/2019/12357 (hereinafter referred to as the “Valuer” or “I” or “me”) 
refer to the engagement letter dated 09 September 2020 wherein I have been retained as Valuer 
jointly by Indo Count Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ICIL” or “Transferee Company”) 
and Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “PSML” or “Transferor Company 
”) for the recommendation of fair exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of PSML into ICIL 
(collectively referred to as the “Clients” or the “Companies”) as per the draft Scheme of 
Amalgamation (referred to as “the Scheme”). 
 
Accordingly, I have prepared the Report for recommendation of the fair exchange ratio of equity 
shares as at 20 October 2020 (“Valuation Date”) for the proposed amalgamation of PSML into ICIL 
(“Proposed Amalgamation”).  
 
The fair exchange ratio for the Report refers to number of equity shares of face value of INR 2/- 
each of ICIL, which would be issued to the equity shareholders of PSML in lieu of number of equity 
shares of face value INR 10/- each held by them in PSML, pursuant to the Proposed Amalgamation.  
 
My deliverable for this engagement would be a fair exchange ratio report (the “Report”). 
 

 

ANNEXURE III
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BACKGROUND, PURPOSE, SCOPE AND DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORT  
 
Indo Count Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ICIL” or the "Transferee Company") is a public 
company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1956, under corporate 
identification number (CIN) L72200PN1988PLC068972 and having its registered office at Office No. 1, 
Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India. 
The Transferee Company was incorporated in the year 1988 as Vishnu Aluminium Limited and 
subsequently, name was changed to Indo Count Industries Limited. The equity shares of the Transferee 
Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (together the 
“Stock Exchanges”). The Transferee Company holds 1,43,41,280 equity shares of Rs 10/- each of the 
Transferor Company constituting 74.53% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Transferor 
Company. The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of home textiles and 
its products broadly falls under the categories of Bed Sheets, Pillow Cover and Comforter. As per the 
audited financials for the year ended 31 March 2020, ICIL reported revenue from operations of INR  
20,801.3 mn and Profit After Tax (“PAT”) of INR  731.0 mn.  
 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “PSML” or the "Transferor Company") is 
a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, under corporate 
identification number (CIN) L17119PN1990PLC058139 and having its registered office at Office No. 2, 
Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra, 
India. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on BSE Limited. The Transferor Company 
is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The Transferor Company is authorised to carry on the inter 
alia the business of manufacturing of cotton yarn. As per the audited financials for the year ended 31 
March 2020, PSML reported revenue from operations of INR 694.1 mn and PAT of INR (-) 26.8 mn.  
 
I understand that the Companies are contemplating the merger in nature of amalgamation of PSML into 
ICIL. Accordingly, the valuation of equity shares of both the companies is required for compliance with 
Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Purpose”). 
 
I further understand that as per the draft Scheme, PSML is proposed to be amalgamated into ICIL. As 
a consideration for the Proposed Amalgamation, equity shareholders of PSML would be issued equity 
shares of ICIL, in lieu of their shareholdings in PSML.  
 
For the aforementioned Purpose, the Board of Directors of the Companies have jointly appointed me to 
recommend a fair exchange ratio, for the issue of ICIL’s equity shares to the equity shareholders of 
PSML, to be placed before the Board of Directors of the Companies. 
 
The scope of my services is to conduct a relative valuation of equity shares of the Companies and report 
a fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation in accordance with internationally accepted 
valuation standards/methods and valuation standards issued by ICAI Registered Valuer Organisation 
(RVO). 
 
Valuation Bases 
The valuation bases used for the Report is ‘Relative Value’. As per IVS 103 issued by ICAI RVO, in 
transactions of the nature of merger or amalgamation of companies or merger or demerger of 
businesses, the consideration is often discharged primarily by issue of securities in the nature equity of 
the acquirer or transferee entity with reference to an exchange ratio or entitlement ratio, considering the 
relative values. Such relative values are generally arrived at by applying an appropriate valuation 
approach or a combination of valuation approaches. 
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Special Assumption/Aspects Considered in the Report 
I have considered the following special assumptions/aspects for the valuation: 
 

(a) Any capital infusion in either of the Companies from the date of my Report till the Proposed 
Amalgamation becomes effective would not have a material impact on the recommendation of the 
fair exchange ratio only if (a) it is immaterial or (b) it occurs at or around the fair values as computed 
in the Report. 

(b) Till the Proposed Amalgamation becomes effective, neither Companies would declare any 
dividends which are materially different from those already factored in the calculations. Similarly, 
there should not be any other change in capital structure due to buybacks etc., different from those 
already factored in the calculations, which can impact the recommendation of the fair exchange 
ratio. 

(c) I have been informed that there are no unusual/abnormal events in the Companies since the latest 
accounts provided to me which would materially impact their operating/financial performance. 

(d) In case of PSML, I have been given to understand that the as on Valuation Date the production has 
been stopped and the workers have availed voluntary retirement scheme (VRS)/separation 
scheme.  

I have relied on the above while arriving at the fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation.  

The Report is my deliverable for the above engagement. 

The Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, qualifications, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers 
detailed hereinafter. As such, the Report is to be read in totality and not in parts. 
 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION 
 
In connection with this exercise, I have relied upon the following information provided by the 
Management of the Companies (the “Management”)/from public domain. I have been given to 
understand that the information provided are accurate and that the Management was duly authorised 
to provide the same. 

 
1. Historical financial and Market Price information: 

 
− PSML: 

 Audited financials for years ended 31 March 2020  
 Unaudited limited review P&L and Balance sheet (without notes) for the  3-month 

period ended 30 June 2020  
 Unaudited limited review P&L and Balance sheet (without notes and schedules) for the 

6-month period ended 30 Sep 2020 
 Historical and current trading price and volume of equity shares on stock exchanges 
 Details of the industrial land situated at Hatkanangale, Village - Alate, Maharashtra,  
 Fixed Assets Register as on the Valuation Date,  
 Shareholding pattern as at 30 September 2020, 
 

− ICIL:  
 Unaudited limited view P&L and Balance sheet (without notes and schedules) for the 

3-month period ended 30 June 2020 
 Historical and current trading price and volume of equity shares on stock exchanges  
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2. Draft Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
3. Other information and explanations as required by me which have been provided by 

Management. 
 
Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Companies which may not 
have been perused by me in any detail, if not considered relevant for my defined scope. 
 
The Companies have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft Report (excluding the 
recommended fair exchange ratio) as part of my standard practice to make sure that factual 
inaccuracy/omissions are avoided in my Report. 

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS 

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of my regular 
practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting / tax due diligence, 
consulting or tax related services. 

The Report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation agreed as per 
the terms of my engagement; (ii) the Report Date, (iii) trading price and volume near the Report Date, 
and (iii) the unaudited balance sheet of PSML as at 30 September 2020.  

I have been informed that the business activities of the ICIL have been carried out in the normal and 
ordinary course between the Valuation Date and the date of issue of the Report and that no material 
changes have occurred in their respective operations and financial position during this period. Similarly, 
I have also been informed that there are no material changes in the position of assets and liabilities of 
PSML between the 30 September 2020 and the Report Date/ Valuation Date. 

The recommendation contained herein is not intended to represent the fair exchange ratio at any time 
other than the Valuation Date. A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on financial, economic 
and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on and the information made 
available to me as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect the Report and 
the assumptions used in preparing it, and I do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm 
the Report. 

The recommendation rendered in the Report only represent my recommendation based upon 
information furnished by the Companies and gathered from public domain (and analysis thereon). My 
recommendation should not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which specific 
opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors. 

The determination of exchange ratio is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many 
cases will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. In the 
ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by the valuer 
and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. There is, therefore, no indisputable single 
exchange ratio. While I have provided my recommendation of the fair exchange ratio based on the 
information available to me and within the scope and constraints of my engagement, others may have 
a different opinion as to the fair exchange ratio of the equity shares of the Companies. The final 
responsibility for the determination of the fair exchange ratio at which the Proposed Amalgamation shall 
take place will be with the Board of Directors of the Companies who should take into account other 
factors such as their own assessment of the Proposed Amalgamation and input of other advisors. 

I have assumed that the Proposed Amalgamation will be consummated on the terms set forth in the 
Scheme document and that the final version of the Scheme Document will not change in any material 
respect from the draft version I have reviewed for the purpose of the valuation. 

I have not independently audited or otherwise verified the financial information provided to me. 
Accordingly, I do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and fairness 
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of the financial position as indicated in the financial statements. My conclusion is based on the 
information given by/on behalf of the Companies. The Management has indicated to me that they have 
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect my valuation 
analysis/results. 

The Report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations applicable in 
all their areas of operations, and that the Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible 
manner. Further, the Report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of 
legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not 
disclosed in the audited/unaudited balance sheet of the Companies. My conclusion of value assumes 
that the assets and liabilities of the Companies, reflected in their respective latest balance sheets remain 
intact as of the Report Date. 

The Report does not address the relative merits of the Proposed Amalgamation as compared with any 
other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could 
be achieved or are available. 

The fee for the engagement is not contingent upon the results reported.  

I will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions 
of or advice given by any other party to the Companies. In no event shall I be liable for any loss, 
damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default 
on part of the Companies, their directors, employees or agents.  

It is understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. The Report is not a substitute 
for the third party’s own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independent advice that the third party 
should undertake for its purpose.  

The Report is subject to the laws of India. 

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement, 
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or document 
given to third parties, other than in connection with the Proposed Amalgamation, without my prior written 
consent. I express no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of either company should 
vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held in connection with the Proposed Amalgamation. 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

ICIL  

The shareholding pattern of ICIL India as at 30 September 2020 was as follows: 

Shareholding pattern  Number of 
shares Stake (%) 

Promoter and Promoter Group 116,346,750 58.94 
Public -Institutional 17,148,816   8.69 
Public- Non Institutional 63,904,104 32.37 
Total 197,399,670   100.00 

Source: Capitaline 
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PSML 

 
The shareholding pattern of PSML as at 30 September 2020 was as follows: 

Shareholding pattern  Number of 
shares Stake (%) 

Promotor & Promoter Group 14,341,280 74.53 
Public- Institutional - - 
Public- Non Institutional 4,900,000 25.47 
Total 19,241,280 100.00 

Source: Capitaline 
 
APPROACH - FAIR EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMATION 

The Companies contemplate the Proposed Amalgamation of PSML into ICIL. Arriving at the fair 
exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation would require determining the relative value of the 
equity shares of the Companies. These values are to be determined independently, but on a relative 
basis for the Companies, without considering the effect of the Proposed Amalgamation. 
 
There are several commonly used and accepted methods under the market, income and asset 
approaches of valuation for determining value of equity shares for determination of  the fair exchange 
ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation which have been considered in the present case, to the extent 
relevant and applicable, and subject to availability of information, including: 
 
1. Market Approach 

a) Market Price method 
b) Comparable Companies’ Multiples method 

2. Income Approach: Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method 
3. Cost Approach: Net Asset Value method 

 
It should be understood that the valuation of any company or its assets is inherently subjective and is 
subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond my 
control. In performing my analysis, I made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance 
and general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the 
Companies. In addition, this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market conditions, the 
conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Companies, and other factors which generally 
influence the valuation of the Companies. 
 
The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the valuation is 
done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it cannot be too strongly emphasized 
that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. My choice of methodology of valuation has 
been arrived at by using usual and conventional methodologies adopted for mergers of a similar nature 
and my reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner based on previous experiences 
of assignments of a similar nature.  
 
Market Price method 
 
The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value 
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly 
and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in the value of the 
shares. 
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The Pricing formula provided in Regulations 164 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') in pricing of preferential issue, 
incase of frequently traded shares, has been considered for arriving at the value per equity share of the 
Companies under the market price Method. Though, I have adopted this method in case of PSML, 
considering that the shares of PSML are not frequently traded on stock exchange, I have given very low 
weight to this method.  
 
The market price is considered as higher of following:  
 

(a) average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 26 weeks 
preceding 20 October 2020; or 

(b) average of weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 2 weeks 
preceding 20 October 2020 
 

In addition to the above existing provision of pricing, the additional option under regulation 164B of ICDR 
in pricing of preferential issue, incase of frequently traded shares, has been also considered. As per 
regulation 164B, in case of frequently traded shares, the price of the equity shares to be allotted 
pursuant to the preferential issue shall be not less than higher of the following:  
 

a) the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the related 
equity shares quoted on the recognised stock exchange during the twelve weeks preceding the 
relevant date; or  

b) the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average prices of the related 
equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange during the two weeks preceding the 
relevant date 

 
Therefore, I have also considered higher of following for determination of the Market Price:  
 

(a) higher of average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 
12 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 and average of weekly high and low of the volume 
weighted average price during the 2 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 

(b) higher of average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 
26 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 and average of weekly high and low of the volume 
weighted average price during the 2 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 
 

In the present case, the equity shares of ICIL are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National 
Stock Exchange (NSE) and the equity shares of PSML are listed on BSE. The shares of ICIL are shares 
being regularly and freely traded on both the stock exchanges, whereas the shares of PSML are very 
thinly and infrequently traded on BSE. In case of ICIL, the share price on the NSE has been considered, 
as the trading volumes are higher at NSE as compared to BSE.  
 

Comparable Companies’ Multiples (“CCM”) method 

Under this method, value of equity shares of a company is arrived at by using multiples derived from 
valuations of comparable companies, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed companies. 
This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers 
and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen 
carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances. 
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Discounted Cash Flows (“DCF”) method  

Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows to the equity shareholders are discounted at the 
cost of equity. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the value of the firm for equity 
shareholders. 
 
Using the DCF analysis involves determining the following: 
 
Estimating future free cash flows:  
 
Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available to the 
providers of the company’s equity capital, factoring in the minimum solvency required as per law. 
 
Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e. the cost of equity: 
 
This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost to the 
equity capital providers (namely equity shareholders). The opportunity cost to the equity capital provider 
equals the rate of return the equity capital provider expects to earn on other investments of equivalent 
risk. 
 
Net Asset Value (“NAV”) method 
 
In case of Net Assets Method, the value is determined by dividing the Net Assets of the Company by 
the number of shares. The asset-based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net 
assets of the business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. 
 
MAJOR FACTORS THAT WERE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT DURING VALUATION 
 
 Latest shareholding pattern of the Companies 
 Trading volume and market price of the shares of the Companies 
 Fair value of the assets of PSML 

 
BASIS FOR FAIR EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMTION 
 
The basis for the fair exchange ratio of the Proposed Amalgamation would have to be determined after 
taking into consideration all the factors and methods mentioned hereinabove. Though different values 
have been arrived at under each of the above methods considered, for the purposes of recommending 
the fair exchange ratio of equity shares, it is necessary to arrive at a final value for both Companies’ 
shares. It is however important to note that in doing so, I am attempting to arrive at the relative values 
of the Companies to facilitate the determination of the fair exchange ratio. For this purpose, it is 
necessary to give appropriate weights to the values arrived at under each approach /method. 
 
The fair exchange ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative equity valuation of the Companies 
after considering suitability of various approaches / methods explained herein earlier and based on the 
Market Price method for ICIL and Market Price method and Adjusted NAV method for PSML, along with 
various qualitative factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics having regard to 
information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations. 
 
I have independently applied methods discussed above, as considered appropriate and arrived at value 
per share of the Companies. 
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The computation of fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation is tabulated below: 
 

 ICIL PSML 

Valuation approach 
Weight  Value per 

equity share 
(INR) 

Weight (%) Value per 
equity share 

(INR) 
Cost Approach: NAV Method*  NA 0% 90% 17.2 
Income Approach: DCF Method**  NA 0% NA 0% 
Market Approach: Market Price 
Method*** 

100% 124.1 10% 11.2 

Relative Value per Share  124.1  16.6 
Fair exchange ratio (Rounded off) 2:15 

NA= Not Applicable 
* I have not used NAV method of Cost Approach in case of ICIL as its shares are frequently traded on 
stock exchanges. However, in case of PSML, I have used NAV method and given higher weight to it as 
the shares of PSML are traded infrequently on the stock exchange.  
** I have not considered the DCF method as the Companies are listed on the Stock Exchanges and 
information related to the future profit and loss account, balance sheet and cash flows is price sensitive 
and not made available to me. 
***I have used only Market Price method in case of ICIL as its shares are frequently traded on stock 
exchanges. In case of PSML though I have used Market Price method, I have given very low weight to 
it as the shares of PSML are traded infrequently on the stock exchange.  
 
Detailed workings are given in Annexure A. 

In light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed 
and outlined hereinabove, I recommend the following fair exchange ratio for the Proposed 
Amalgamation: 

 
 2 equity shares of ICIL of INR 2/- each fully paid-up for every 15 equity shares of PSML of INR 

10/- each fully paid-up. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

CA Amit K Singh,  
Registered Valuer – Securities And Financial Assets  
(REG. NO. IBBI/RV/06/2019/12357)   
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Annexure A 
 

A. Computation of equity share value of ICIL 
Market Price method 
 

Period    
Weekly Maximum 
(Volume weighted) 

Weekly Minimum 
(Volume weighted) 

Average of 
Maximum and 
Minimum price   

Source 

26 Weeks   63.4 56.3 59.8 
Table 
A.1  

12 Weeks  93.5 83.4 88.4  
2 Weeks   131.0 117.1 124.1  

      
 

As per the pricing formula provided in Regulations 164(1) and 164B of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') to arrive 
at the value per equity share of the Companies under the market price Method, higher of the 
above three has been considered. Hence, I have considered INR 124.1 per share.  
 
Table A.1 
 

Date Average 
Price 

Day Weekly 
Maximum 

Weekly 
Minimum 

Week 

April 22, 2020 28.0 Wednesday 28.86 27.08 26 
April 23, 2020 28.9 Thursday   
April 24, 2020 27.7 Friday   
April 27, 2020 27.1 Monday   
April 28, 2020 28.3 Tuesday   
April 29, 2020 29.5 Wednesday 29.61 27.19 25 
April 30, 2020 29.6 Thursday   
May 4, 2020 28.3 Monday   
May 5, 2020 27.2 Tuesday   
May 6, 2020 25.9 Wednesday 25.93 24.32 24 
May 7, 2020 25.4 Thursday   
May 8, 2020 24.8 Friday   
May 11, 2020 24.3 Monday   
May 12, 2020 24.4 Tuesday   
May 13, 2020 25.6 Wednesday 28.2 25.63 23 
May 14, 2020 26.9 Thursday   
May 15, 2020 28.2 Friday   
May 18, 2020 27.5 Monday   
May 19, 2020 26.5 Tuesday   
May 20, 2020 25.3 Wednesday 25.59 25.18 22 
May 21, 2020 25.2 Thursday   
May 22, 2020 25.2 Friday   
May 26, 2020 25.6 Tuesday   
May 27, 2020 25.3 Wednesday 28.13 25.29 21 
May 28, 2020 25.5 Thursday   
May 29, 2020 26.0 Friday   
June 1, 2020 26.8 Monday   
June 2, 2020 28.1 Tuesday   
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Date Average 

Price 
Day Weekly 

Maximum 
Weekly 

Minimum 
Week 

June 3, 2020 29.8 Wednesday 40.17 29.75 20 
June 4, 2020 31.2 Thursday   
June 5, 2020 34.7 Friday   
June 8, 2020 40.2 Monday   
June 9, 2020 40.0 Tuesday   
June 10, 2020 38.6 Wednesday 44.28 38.62 19 
June 11, 2020 40.5 Thursday   
June 12, 2020 44.3 Friday   
June 15, 2020 41.4 Monday   
June 16, 2020 38.7 Tuesday   
June 17, 2020 40.1 Wednesday 40.97 40.12 18 
June 18, 2020 40.3 Thursday   
June 19, 2020 40.8 Friday   
June 22, 2020 41.0 Monday   
June 23, 2020 40.2 Tuesday   
June 24, 2020 39.9 Wednesday 39.93 37.58 17 
June 25, 2020 38.9 Thursday   
June 26, 2020 38.7 Friday   
June 29, 2020 37.6 Monday   
June 30, 2020 37.8 Tuesday   
July 1, 2020 37.1 Wednesday 40.39 37.11 16 
July 2, 2020 38.5 Thursday   
July 3, 2020 40.1 Friday   
July 6, 2020 39.7 Monday   
July 7, 2020 40.4 Tuesday   
July 8, 2020 40.7 Wednesday 43.47 39.27 15 
July 9, 2020 43.5 Thursday   
July 10, 2020 42.0 Friday   
July 13, 2020 40.2 Monday   
July 14, 2020 39.3 Tuesday   
July 15, 2020 40.7 Wednesday 41.19 40.29 14 
July 16, 2020 40.3 Thursday   
July 17, 2020 40.8 Friday   
July 20, 2020 40.7 Monday   
July 21, 2020 41.2 Tuesday   
July 22, 2020 45.5 Wednesday 68.94 45.45 13 
July 23, 2020 54.9 Thursday   
July 24, 2020 61.2 Friday   
July 27, 2020 68.9 Monday   
July 28, 2020 68.3 Tuesday   
July 29, 2020 65.0 Wednesday 68.87 65.02 12 
July 30, 2020 66.7 Thursday   
July 31, 2020 66.1 Friday   

August 3, 2020 65.5 Monday   
August 4, 2020 68.9 Tuesday   
August 5, 2020 73.5 Wednesday 74.64 66.82 11 
August 6, 2020 74.6 Thursday   
August 7, 2020 71.9 Friday   
August 10, 2020 69.4 Monday   
August 11, 2020 66.8 Tuesday   
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Date Average 

Price 
Day Weekly 

Maximum 
Weekly 

Minimum 
Week 

August 12, 2020 65.6 Wednesday 68.96 64.12 10 
August 13, 2020 64.7 Thursday   
August 14, 2020 64.1 Friday   
August 17, 2020 66.6 Monday   
August 18, 2020 69.0 Tuesday   
August 19, 2020 70.0 Wednesday 78.13 70.04 9 
August 20, 2020 71.2 Thursday   
August 21, 2020 74.7 Friday   
August 24, 2020 78.1 Monday   
August 25, 2020 77.3 Tuesday   
August 26, 2020 76.6 Wednesday 76.95 70.61 8 
August 27, 2020 77.0 Thursday   
August 28, 2020 74.3 Friday   
August 31, 2020 70.6 Monday   

September 1, 2020 71.2 Tuesday   
September 2, 2020 71.4 Wednesday 80.31 69.78 7 
September 3, 2020 69.8 Thursday   
September 4, 2020 72.3 Friday   
September 7, 2020 75.4 Monday   
September 8, 2020 80.3 Tuesday   
September 9, 2020 78.6 Wednesday 93.02 78.57 6 
September 10, 2020 82.5 Thursday   
September 11, 2020 84.4 Friday   
September 14, 2020 87.8 Monday   
September 15, 2020 93.0 Tuesday   
September 16, 2020 97.1 Wednesday 100.79 89.77 5 
September 17, 2020 94.2 Thursday   
September 18, 2020 99.8 Friday   
September 21, 2020 100.8 Monday   
September 22, 2020 89.8 Tuesday   
September 23, 2020 95.3 Wednesday 100.73 90.37 4 
September 24, 2020 90.4 Thursday   
September 25, 2020 93.4 Friday   
September 28, 2020 100.5 Monday   
September 29, 2020 100.7 Tuesday   
September 30, 2020 101.0 Wednesday 117.43 101.04 3 

October 1, 2020 108.8 Thursday   
October 5, 2020 117.4 Monday   
October 6, 2020 116.5 Tuesday   
October 7, 2020 111.8 Wednesday 120.78 109.67 2 
October 8, 2020 110.3 Thursday   
October 9, 2020 109.7 Friday   
October 12, 2020 113.5 Monday   
October 13, 2020 120.8 Tuesday   
October 14, 2020 124.6 Wednesday 141.14 124.61 1 
October 15, 2020 130.6 Thursday   
October 16, 2020 128.9 Friday   
October 19, 2020 133.2 Monday   
October 20, 2020 141.1 Tuesday   
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Computation of equity share value of PSML 

 
Valuation Method   Adjusted NAV Market Price  
Value Equity per Share  (INR) 17.2 11.2 
Weight 90% 10% 
Weighted Equity Value per Share (INR) 16.6 

 
Market Price method 
 

Period    
Weekly Maximum 
(Volume weighted) 

Weekly Minimum 
(Volume weighted) 

Average of 
Maximum and 
Minimum price   

Source 

26 Weeks   11.4 10.9 11.2 Table B.1 
12 Weeks   10.7 10.0 10.4  
2 Weeks   10.5 10.1 10.3  

 
As per the pricing formula provided in Regulations 164(1) and 164B of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') to arrive 
at the value per equity share of the Companies under the market price Method, higher of the above  
three has been considered. Hence, I have considered INR 11.2 per share. Though, I have adopted 
this method in case of PSML, considering that the shares of PSML are not frequently traded on 
stock exchange, I have given very low weight (10%) to this method. 
 
Table B.1 

Date  Average 
Price  

Day  Weekly 
Maximum  

 Weekly 
Minimum  

Week 

May 7, 2020 14.7 Thursday 14.7 14.7 26 
May 11, 2020  Monday   
May 12, 2020  Tuesday   
May 13, 2020  Wednesday 14.0 14.0 25 
May 14, 2020  Thursday   
May 15, 2020  Friday   
May 18, 2020  Monday   
May 19, 2020 14.0 Tuesday   
May 20, 2020  Wednesday   24 
May 21, 2020  Thursday   
May 22, 2020  Friday   
May 25, 2020  Monday   23 
May 26, 2020  Tuesday   
May 27, 2020  Wednesday 13.7 13.7 22 
May 28, 2020  Thursday   
May 29, 2020  Friday   
June 2, 2020 13.7 Tuesday   
June 8, 2020 13.4 Monday 13.4 12.5 21 
June 9, 2020 12.5 Tuesday   
June 10, 2020 12.1 Wednesday 12.1 11.0 20 
June 11, 2020 11.8 Thursday   
June 12, 2020 11.0 Friday   
June 15, 2020 10.9 Monday 10.9 10.0 19 
June 16, 2020 10.0 Tuesday   
June 22, 2020 10.9 Monday 10.9 10.7 18 
June 23, 2020 10.7 Tuesday   
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Date  Average Price  Day  Weekly 

Maximum  
 Weekly 

Minimum  
Week 

June 24, 2020 11.4 Wednesday 11.4 10.9 17 
June 26, 2020 10.9 Friday   
June 29, 2020 11.1 Monday   
July 1, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.9 16 
July 2, 2020 10.3 Thursday   
July 3, 2020 9.9 Friday   
July 6, 2020 10.1 Monday   
July 7, 2020 10.4 Tuesday   
July 8, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.0 10.4 15 
July 9, 2020 10.8 Thursday   

July 10, 2020 10.4 Friday   
July 13, 2020 11.0 Monday   
July 16, 2020 11.4 Thursday 11.4 11.4 14 
July 24, 2020 11.4 Friday 11.4 11.4 13 
July 27, 2020 11.4 Monday   
July 30, 2020 10.8 Thursday 10.8 10.3 12 
July 31, 2020 10.3 Friday   

August 3, 2020  Monday   
August 4, 2020  Tuesday   
August 5, 2020  Wednesday 10.3 10.3 11 
August 6, 2020  Thursday   
August 7, 2020  Friday   
August 11, 2020 10.3 Tuesday   
August 12, 2020 9.8 Wednesday 11.3 9.8 10 
August 13, 2020 11.0 Thursday   
August 14, 2020 11.3 Friday   
August 18, 2020 11.0 Tuesday   
August 19, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.7 9 
August 20, 2020 10.2 Thursday   
August 21, 2020 9.7 Friday   
August 24, 2020 9.7 Monday   
August 25, 2020 9.7 Tuesday   
August 26, 2020 10.4 Wednesday 10.4 9.6 8 
August 27, 2020 10.1 Thursday   
August 28, 2020 9.6 Friday   
August 31, 2020 9.9 Monday   

September 1, 2020 10.0 Tuesday   
September 7, 2020 10.2 Monday 10.2 10.2 7 
September 9, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.7 6 
September 10, 2020 10.5 Thursday   
September 11, 2020 9.7 Friday   
September 14, 2020 10.0 Monday   
September 15, 2020 9.7 Tuesday   
September 16, 2020 9.5 Wednesday 10.0 9.5 5 
September 21, 2020 10.0 Monday   
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Date Average 
Price 

Day Weekly 
Maximum 

Weekly 
Minimum 

Week 

September 23, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.9 11.0 4 
September 24, 2020 11.5 Thursday   
September 25, 2020 11.9 Friday   
September 28, 2020 11.9 Monday   
September 29, 2020 11.3 Tuesday   
September 30, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.3 10.2 3 

October 1, 2020 11.3 Thursday   
October 5, 2020 10.7 Monday   
October 6, 2020 10.2 Tuesday   
October 7, 2020  Wednesday 10.6 10.2 2 
October 8, 2020 10.6 Thursday   
October 9, 2020 10.2 Friday   
October 13, 2020 10.5 Monday   

  Saturday   
October 14, 2020 10.0 Wednesday 10.3 10.0 1 
October 15, 2020 10.3 Thursday   
October 16, 2020  Friday   
October 19, 2020 10.3 Monday   
October 20, 2020 10.3 Tuesday   
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Adjusted Net Asset Value method 
I have used the adjusted NAV method for valuation, wherein the value of the land, which is the 
major asset of PSML, has been estimated at current market value using guideline/circle rates. The 
building being very old, the carrying value of the building has been assumed to be fair value. All 
other assets and liabilities have been taken at book value to estimate the adjusted NAV. The 
Following table shows the NAV and Adjusted NAV as of valuation date,  

  INR MN 
Particulars  Book Value Fair Value 
A. ASSETS   
Non Current Assets   
Property, Plant and Equipment Note 1 247.4 333.6 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 22.3 22.3 
Other Non-Current Assets 0.1 0.1 
Total Non-Current Assets 269.8 356.1 
Current Assets   
Inventories 0.9 0.9 
Financial Assets   
(i) Trade Receivables   
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.2 2.2 
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 8.8 8.8 
Loans 0.0 - 
Current Tax assets 17.0 17.0 
Other Current Assets 12.6 12.6 
Total Current Assets 41.5 41.5 
Total ASSETS 311.3 397.6 
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
LIABILITIES   
Non-Current Liabilities   
Provisions - - 
Total Non-Current Liabilities - - 
Current Liabilities   
Financial Liabilities   
(i) Trade Payables due to    
-Micro &Small Enterprises - - 
-Other than Micro &Small Enterprises 57.2 57.2 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.0 0.0 
Other Current Liabilities 8.9 8.9 
Total -Current Liabilities 66.2 66.2 
Adjusted Net Asset Value 245.1 331.4 
Total equity Shares ( in MN) 19.2 19.2 
NAV per share (in INR) 12.7 17.2 

 
Note 1:  
Computation of Adjusted Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment  
Particulars  Net Book Value (INR MN) Fair Value (INR MN) 
Land Note 2 84.6 170.8 
Building 63.9 63.9 
Computer 0.1 0.1 
Furniture & fixtures 0.3 0.3 
Plant & machinery 95.6 95.6 
Vehicles 0.8 0.8 
Electrical & installations 1.1 1.1 
Office equipment 0.3 0.3 
Lab equipment 0.7 0.7 
Total  247.5 333.6 

Note 2: for valuation of land I have considered the guideline/circle rates as fair value. The 
guideline rate is INR 5.02 mn per acre.   

 



95

A Z R & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Office: L-64 Basement, Lajpar Nagar- II, New Delhi -110 024, Delhi 
Ph. :  +91-11-2982364|M:+91-9999989682 | Email: info@azrindia.com | www.azrindia.com 

  
      Dated: 21 October 2020 

To 
 

The Board of Directors, 

Indo Count Industries Limited 
Office No. 1, Plot No. 266,  
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road,  
Taluka Hatkanangale,  
Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra,   
India 
 
AND 
 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
2, Plot No. 266,  
Village Alte Kumbhoj Road,  
Taluka Hatkanangale  
Kolhapur Maharashtra -416109  
India 
 

Sub: Recommendation of Fair Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Pranavaditya 
Spinning Mills Limited into Indo Count Industries Limited  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
We, A Z R & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (hereinafter referred to as the “Valuer” or “AZR” or 
“We”) refer to the engagement letter dated 09 September 2020 wherein we have been retained as 
Valuer jointly by Indo Count Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ICIL” or “Transferee 
Company”) and Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “PSML” or “Transferor 
Company ”) for the recommendation of fair exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of PSML 
into ICIL (collectively referred to as the “Clients” or the “Companies”) as per the draft Scheme of 
Amalgamation (referred to as “the Scheme”). 
 
Accordingly, we have prepared the Report for recommendation of the fair exchange ratio of equity 
shares as at 20 October 2020 (“Valuation Date”) for the proposed amalgamation of PSML into ICIL 
(“Proposed Amalgamation”).  
 
The fair exchange ratio for the Report refers to number of equity shares of face value of INR 2/- each 
of ICIL, which would be issued to the equity shareholders of PSML in lieu of number of equity shares 
of face value INR 10/- each held by them in PSML, pursuant to the Proposed Amalgamation.  
 
Our deliverable for this engagement would be a fair exchange ratio report (the “Report”). 
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BACKGROUND, PURPOSE, SCOPE AND DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORT  
 
Indo Count Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “ICIL” or the "Transferee Company") is a public 
company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1956, under corporate 
identification number (CIN) L72200PN1988PLC068972 and having its registered office at Office No. 1, 
Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India. 
The Transferee Company was incorporated in the year 1988 as Vishnu Aluminium Limited and 
subsequently, name was changed to Indo Count Industries Limited. The equity shares of the Transferee 
Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (together the 
“Stock Exchanges”). The Transferee Company holds 1,43,41,280 equity shares of Rs 10/- each of the 
Transferor Company constituting 74.53% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Transferor 
Company. The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of home textiles and 
its products broadly falls under the categories of Bed Sheets, Pillow Cover and Comforter. As per the 
audited financials for the year ended 31 March 2020, ICIL reported revenue from operations of INR 
20,801.3 mn and Profit After Tax (“PAT”) of INR 731.0 mn.  
 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “PSML” or the "Transferor Company") is 
a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, under corporate 
identification number (CIN) L17119PN1990PLC058139 and having its registered office at Office No. 2, 
Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra, 
India. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on BSE Limited. The Transferor Company 
is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The Transferor Company is authorised to carry on the inter 
alia the business of manufacturing of cotton yarn. As per the audited financials for the year ended 31 
March 2020, PSML reported revenue from operations of INR 694.1 mn and PAT of INR (-) 26.8 mn.  
 
We understand that the Companies are contemplating the merger in nature of amalgamation of PSML 
into ICIL. Accordingly, the valuation of equity shares of both the companies is required for compliance 
with Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Purpose”). 
 
We further understand that as per the draft Scheme, PSML is proposed to be amalgamated into ICIL. 
As a consideration for the Proposed Amalgamation, equity shareholders of PSML would be issued 
equity shares of ICIL, in lieu of their shareholdings in PSML.  
 
For the aforementioned Purpose, the Board of Directors of the Companies have jointly appointed us to 
recommend a fair exchange ratio, for the issue of ICIL’s equity shares to the equity shareholders of 
PSML, to be placed before the Board of Directors of the Companies. 
 
The scope of our services is to conduct a relative valuation of equity shares of the Companies and 
report a fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation in accordance with internationally accepted 
valuation standards/methods and valuation standards issued by ICAI Registered Valuer Organisation 
(RVO). 
 
Valuation Bases 
The valuation bases used for the Report is ‘Relative Value’. As per IVS 103 issued by ICAI RVO, in 
transactions of the nature of merger or amalgamation of companies or merger or demerger of 
businesses, the consideration is often discharged primarily by issue of securities in the nature equity of 
the acquirer or transferee entity with reference to an exchange ratio or entitlement ratio, considering the 
relative values. Such relative values are generally arrived at by applying an appropriate valuation 
approach or a combination of valuation approaches. 
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Special Assumption/Aspects Considered in the Report 
We have considered the following special assumptions/aspects for the valuation: 
 
(a) Any capital infusion in either of the Companies from the date of our Report till the Proposed 

Amalgamation becomes effective would not have a material impact on the recommendation of the 
fair exchange ratio only if (a) it is immaterial or (b) it occurs at or around the fair values as computed 
in the Report. 
 

(b) Till the Proposed Amalgamation becomes effective, neither Companies would declare any 
dividends which are materially different from those already factored in the calculations. Similarly, 
there should not be any other change in capital structure due to buybacks etc., different from those 
already factored in the calculations, which can impact the recommendation of the fair exchange 
ratio. 

 
(c) We have been informed that there are no unusual/abnormal events in the Companies since the 

latest accounts provided to us which would materially impact their operating/financial performance. 
 

(d) In case of PSML, we have been given to understand that the as on Valuation Date the production 
has been stopped and the workers have availed voluntary retirement scheme (VRS)/separation 
scheme.  

 
We have relied on the above while arriving at the fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation.  
 
The Report is our deliverable for the above engagement. 
 
The Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, qualifications, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers 
detailed hereinafter. As such, the Report is to be read in totality and not in parts. 
 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION 
 
In connection with this exercise, we have relied upon the following information provided by the 
Management of the Companies (the “Management”)/from public domain. We have been given to 
understand that the information provided are accurate and that the Management was duly authorised 
to provide the same. 

 
1. Historical financial and Market Price information: 

 
− PSML: 

 Audited financials for years ended 31 March 2020  
 Unaudited limited review P&L and Balance sheet (without notes) for the  3-month 

period ended 30 June 2020  
 Unaudited limited review P&L and Balance sheet (without notes and schedules) for the 

6-month period ended 30 Sep 2020 
 Historical and current trading price and volume of equity shares on stock exchanges 
 Details of the industrial land situated at Hatkanangale, Village - Alate, Maharashtra,  
 Fixed Assets Register as on the Valuation Date,  
 Shareholding pattern as at 30 September 2020, 
 

− ICIL:  
 Unaudited limited view P&L and Balance sheet (without notes and schedules) for the 

3-month period ended 30 June 2020 
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 Historical and current trading price and volume of equity shares on stock exchanges  
 

2. Draft Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
3. Other information and explanations as required by us which have been provided by 

Management. 
 
Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Companies which may not 
have been perused by us in any detail, if not considered relevant for our defined scope. 
 
The Companies have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft Report (excluding the 
recommended fair exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice to make sure that factual 
inaccuracy/omissions are avoided in our Report. 

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS 

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our regular 
practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting / tax due diligence, 
consulting or tax related services. 

The Report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation agreed as per 
the terms of our engagement; (ii) the Report Date, (iii) trading price and volume near the Report Date, 
and (iii) the unaudited balance sheet of PSML as at 30 September 2020.  

We have been informed that the business activities of the ICIL have been carried out in the normal and 
ordinary course between the Valuation Date and the date of issue of the Report and that no material 
changes have occurred in their respective operations and financial position during this period. Similarly, 
we have also been informed that there are no material changes in the position of assets and liabilities 
of PSML between the 30 September 2020 and the Report Date/ Valuation Date. 

The recommendation contained herein is not intended to represent the fair exchange ratio at any time 
other than the Valuation Date. A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on financial, economic 
and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on and the information made 
available to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect the Report and 
the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm 
the Report. 

The recommendation rendered in the Report only represent our recommendation based upon 
information furnished by the Companies and gathered from public domain (and analysis thereon).  Our 
recommendation should not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which specific 
opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors. 

The determination of exchange ratio is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many 
cases will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. In the 
ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by the valuer 
and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. There is, therefore, no indisputable single 
exchange ratio. While we have provided our recommendation of the fair exchange ratio based on the 
information available to us and within the scope and constraints of our engagement, others may have a 
different opinion as to the fair exchange ratio of the equity shares of the Companies. The final 
responsibility for the determination of the fair exchange ratio at which the Proposed Amalgamation shall 
take place will be with the Board of Directors of the Companies who should take into account other 
factors such as their own assessment of the Proposed Amalgamation and input of other advisors. 

We have assumed that the Proposed Amalgamation will be consummated on the terms set forth in the 
Scheme document and that the final version of the Scheme Document will not change in any material 
respect from the draft version we have reviewed for the purpose of the valuation. 
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We have not independently audited or otherwise verified the financial information provided to us. 
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and 
fairness of the financial position as indicated in the financial statements. Our conclusion is based on the 
information given by/on behalf of the Companies. The Management has indicated to us that they have 
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our valuation 
analysis/results. 

The Report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations applicable in 
all their areas of operations, and that the Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible 
manner. Further, the Report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of 
legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not 
disclosed in the audited/unaudited balance sheet of the Companies. Our conclusion of value assumes 
that the assets and liabilities of the Companies, reflected in their respective latest balance sheets remain 
intact as of the Report Date. 

The Report does not address the relative merits of the Proposed Amalgamation as compared with any 
other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could 
be achieved or are available. 

The fee for the engagement is not contingent upon the results reported.  

We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, 
omissions of or advice given by any other party to the Companies. In no event shall we be liable for any 
loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful 
default on part of the Companies, their directors, employees or agents.  

It is understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. The Report is not a substitute 
for the third party’s own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independent advice that the third party 
should undertake for its purpose.  

The Report is subject to the laws of India. 

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement, 
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or document 
given to third parties, other than in connection with the Proposed Amalgamation, without our prior written 
consent. We express no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of either company 
should vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held in connection with the Proposed Amalgamation. 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

ICIL  

The shareholding pattern of ICIL India as at 30 September 2020 was as follows: 

Shareholding pattern  Number of 
shares Stake (%) 

Promoter and Promoter Group 116,346,750 58.94 
Public -Institutional 17,148,816   8.69 
Public- Non Institutional 63,904,104 32.37 
Total 197,399,670   100.00 

Source: Capitaline 
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PSML 
 
The shareholding pattern of PSML as at 30 September 2020 was as follows: 

Shareholding pattern  Number of 
shares Stake (%) 

Promotor & Promoter Group 14,341,280 74.53 
Public- Institutional - - 
Public- Non Institutional 4,900,000 25.47 
Total 19,241,280 100.00 

Source: Capitaline 
 
APPROACH - FAIR EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMATION 

The Companies contemplate the Proposed Amalgamation of PSML into ICIL. Arriving at the fair 
exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation would require determining the relative value of the 
equity shares of the Companies. These values are to be determined independently, but on a relative 
basis for the Companies, without considering the effect of the Proposed Amalgamation. 
 
There are several commonly used and accepted methods under the market, income and asset 
approaches of valuation for determining value of equity shares for determination of  the fair exchange 
ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation which have been considered in the present case, to the extent 
relevant and applicable, and subject to availability of information, including: 
 
1. Market Approach 

a) Market Price method 
b) Comparable Companies’ Multiples method 

2. Income Approach: Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method 
3. Cost Approach: Net Asset Value method 

 
It should be understood that the valuation of any company or its assets is inherently subjective and is 
subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond our 
control. In performing our analysis, we made numerous assumptions with respect to industry 
performance and general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of 
the Companies. In addition, this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market conditions, the 
conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Companies, and other factors which generally 
influence the valuation of the Companies. 
 
The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the valuation is 
done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it cannot be too strongly emphasized 
that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. Our choice of methodology of valuation has 
been arrived at by using usual and conventional methodologies adopted for mergers of a similar nature 
and our reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner based on previous experiences 
of assignments of a similar nature.  
 
Market Price method 
 
The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value 
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly 
and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in the value of the 
shares. 
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The Pricing formula provided in Regulations 164 (1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') in pricing of preferential issue, 
incase of frequently traded shares, has been considered for arriving at the value per equity share of the 
Companies under the market price Method. Though, we have adopted this method in case of PSML, 
considering that the shares of PSML are not frequently traded on stock exchange, we have given very 
low weight to this method.  
 
The market price is considered as higher of following:  
 

(a) average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 26 weeks 
preceding 20 October 2020; or 

(b) average of weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 2 weeks 
preceding 20 October 2020 
 

In addition to the above existing provision of pricing, the additional option under regulation 164B of ICDR 
in pricing of preferential issue, incase of frequently traded shares, has been also considered. As per 
regulation 164B, in case of frequently traded shares, the price of the equity shares to be allotted 
pursuant to the preferential issue shall be not less than higher of the following:  
 

a) the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the related 
equity shares quoted on the recognised stock exchange during the twelve weeks preceding the 
relevant date; or  

b) the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average prices of the related 
equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange during the two weeks preceding the 
relevant date 

 
Therefore, we have also considered higher of following for determination of the Market Price:  
 

(a) higher of average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 
12 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 and average of weekly high and low of the volume 
weighted average price during the 2 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 

(b) higher of average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 
26 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 and average of weekly high and low of the volume 
weighted average price during the 2 weeks preceding 20 October 2020 
 

In the present case, the equity shares of ICIL are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National 
Stock Exchange (NSE) and the equity shares of PSML are listed on BSE. The shares of ICIL are shares 
being regularly and freely traded on both the stock exchanges, whereas the shares of PSML are very 
thinly and infrequently traded on BSE. In case of ICIL, the share price on the NSE has been considered, 
as the trading volumes are higher at NSE as compared to BSE.  
 

Comparable Companies’ Multiples (“CCM”) method 

Under this method, value of equity shares of a company is arrived at by using multiples derived from 
valuations of comparable companies, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed companies. 
This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place between informed buyers 
and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen 
carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances. 
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Discounted Cash Flows (“DCF”) method  

Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows to the equity shareholders are discounted at the 
cost of equity. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the value of the firm for equity 
shareholders. 
 
Using the DCF analysis involves determining the following: 
 
Estimating future free cash flows:  
 
Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available to the 
providers of the company’s equity capital, factoring in the minimum solvency required as per law. 
 
Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e. the cost of equity: 
 
This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost to the 
equity capital providers (namely equity shareholders). The opportunity cost to the equity capital provider 
equals the rate of return the equity capital provider expects to earn on other investments of equivalent 
risk. 
 
Net Asset Value (“NAV”) method 
 
In case of Net Assets Method, the value is determined by dividing the Net Assets of the Company by 
the number of shares. The asset-based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net 
assets of the business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. 
 
MAJOR FACTORS THAT WERE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT DURING VALUATION 
 
 Latest shareholding pattern of the Companies 
 Trading volume and market price of the shares of the Companies 
 Fair value of the assets of PSML 

 
BASIS FOR FAIR EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMTION 
 
The basis for the fair exchange ratio of the Proposed Amalgamation would have to be determined after 
taking into consideration all the factors and methods mentioned hereinabove. Though different values 
have been arrived at under each of the above methods considered, for the purposes of recommending 
the fair exchange ratio of equity shares, it is necessary to arrive at a final value for both Companies’ 
shares. It is however important to note that in doing so, we are attempting to arrive at the relative values 
of the Companies to facilitate the determination of the fair exchange ratio. For this purpose, it is 
necessary to give appropriate weights to the values arrived at under each approach /method. 
 
The fair exchange ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative equity valuation of the Companies 
after considering suitability of various approaches / methods explained herein earlier and based on the 
Market Price method for ICIL and Market Price method and Adjusted NAV method for PSML, along with 
various qualitative factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics having regard to 
information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations. 
 
We have independently applied methods discussed above, as considered appropriate and arrived at 
value per share of the Companies. 
 
The computation of fair exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation is tabulated below: 
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 ICIL PSML 

Valuation approach 
Weight  Value per 

equity share 
(INR) 

Weight (%) Value per 
equity share 

(INR) 
Cost Approach: NAV Method*  NA 0% 90% 17.2 
Income Approach: DCF Method**  NA 0% NA 0% 
Market Approach: Market Price 
Method*** 

100% 124.1 10% 11.2 

Relative Value per Share  124.1  16.6 
Fair exchange ratio (Rounded off) 2:15 

NA= Not Applicable 
* We have not used NAV method of Cost Approach in case of ICIL as its shares are frequently traded 
on stock exchanges. However, in case of PSML, we have used NAV method and given higher weight 
to it as the shares of PSML are traded infrequently on the stock exchange.  
** We have not considered the DCF method as the Companies are listed on the Stock Exchanges and 
information related to the future profit and loss account, balance sheet and cash flows is price sensitive 
and not made available to us. 
***We have used only Market Price method in case of ICIL as its shares are frequently traded on stock 
exchanges. In case of PSML though we have used Market Price method, we have given very low weight 
to it as the shares of PSML are traded infrequently on the stock exchange.  
 
Detailed workings are given in Annexure A. 

In light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed 
and outlined hereinabove, we recommend the following fair exchange ratio for the Proposed 
Amalgamation: 

 
 2 equity shares of ICIL of INR 2/- each fully paid-up for every 15 equity shares of PSML of 

INR10/- each fully paid-up. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________ 

CA Amit K Singh, Managing Partner  
A Z R & Associates  
(Chartered Accountants) 
FRN: 027550N  

 



104

A Z R & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

 

Page 10 of 16 
 

 
Annexure A 
 

A. Computation of equity share value of ICIL 
Market Price method 
 

Period    
Weekly Maximum 
(Volume weighted) 

Weekly Minimum 
(Volume weighted) 

Average of 
Maximum and 
Minimum price   

Source 

26 Weeks   63.4 56.3 59.8 
Table 
A.1  

12 Weeks  93.5 83.4 88.4  
2 Weeks   131.0 117.1 124.1  

      
 

As per the pricing formula provided in Regulations 164(1) and 164B of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') to arrive 
at the value per equity share of the Companies under the market price Method, higher of the 
above three has been considered. Hence, we have considered INR 124.1 per share.  
 
Table A.1 
 

Date Average 
Price 

Day Weekly 
Maximum 

Weekly 
Minimum 

Week 

April 22, 2020 28.0 Wednesday 28.86 27.08 26 
April 23, 2020 28.9 Thursday   
April 24, 2020 27.7 Friday   
April 27, 2020 27.1 Monday   
April 28, 2020 28.3 Tuesday   
April 29, 2020 29.5 Wednesday 29.61 27.19 25 
April 30, 2020 29.6 Thursday   
May 4, 2020 28.3 Monday   
May 5, 2020 27.2 Tuesday   
May 6, 2020 25.9 Wednesday 25.93 24.32 24 
May 7, 2020 25.4 Thursday   
May 8, 2020 24.8 Friday   
May 11, 2020 24.3 Monday   
May 12, 2020 24.4 Tuesday   
May 13, 2020 25.6 Wednesday 28.2 25.63 23 
May 14, 2020 26.9 Thursday   
May 15, 2020 28.2 Friday   
May 18, 2020 27.5 Monday   
May 19, 2020 26.5 Tuesday   
May 20, 2020 25.3 Wednesday 25.59 25.18 22 
May 21, 2020 25.2 Thursday   
May 22, 2020 25.2 Friday   
May 26, 2020 25.6 Tuesday   
May 27, 2020 25.3 Wednesday 28.13 25.29 21 
May 28, 2020 25.5 Thursday   
May 29, 2020 26.0 Friday   
June 1, 2020 26.8 Monday   
June 2, 2020 28.1 Tuesday   
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Date Average 

Price 
Day Weekly 

Maximum 
Weekly 

Minimum 
Week 

June 3, 2020 29.8 Wednesday 40.17 29.75 20 
June 4, 2020 31.2 Thursday   
June 5, 2020 34.7 Friday   
June 8, 2020 40.2 Monday   
June 9, 2020 40.0 Tuesday   
June 10, 2020 38.6 Wednesday 44.28 38.62 19 
June 11, 2020 40.5 Thursday   
June 12, 2020 44.3 Friday   
June 15, 2020 41.4 Monday   
June 16, 2020 38.7 Tuesday   
June 17, 2020 40.1 Wednesday 40.97 40.12 18 
June 18, 2020 40.3 Thursday   
June 19, 2020 40.8 Friday   
June 22, 2020 41.0 Monday   
June 23, 2020 40.2 Tuesday   
June 24, 2020 39.9 Wednesday 39.93 37.58 17 
June 25, 2020 38.9 Thursday   
June 26, 2020 38.7 Friday   
June 29, 2020 37.6 Monday   
June 30, 2020 37.8 Tuesday   
July 1, 2020 37.1 Wednesday 40.39 37.11 16 
July 2, 2020 38.5 Thursday   
July 3, 2020 40.1 Friday   
July 6, 2020 39.7 Monday   
July 7, 2020 40.4 Tuesday   
July 8, 2020 40.7 Wednesday 43.47 39.27 15 
July 9, 2020 43.5 Thursday   
July 10, 2020 42.0 Friday   
July 13, 2020 40.2 Monday   
July 14, 2020 39.3 Tuesday   
July 15, 2020 40.7 Wednesday 41.19 40.29 14 
July 16, 2020 40.3 Thursday   
July 17, 2020 40.8 Friday   
July 20, 2020 40.7 Monday   
July 21, 2020 41.2 Tuesday   
July 22, 2020 45.5 Wednesday 68.94 45.45 13 
July 23, 2020 54.9 Thursday   
July 24, 2020 61.2 Friday   
July 27, 2020 68.9 Monday   
July 28, 2020 68.3 Tuesday   
July 29, 2020 65.0 Wednesday 68.87 65.02 12 
July 30, 2020 66.7 Thursday   
July 31, 2020 66.1 Friday   

August 3, 2020 65.5 Monday   
August 4, 2020 68.9 Tuesday   
August 5, 2020 73.5 Wednesday 74.64 66.82 11 
August 6, 2020 74.6 Thursday   
August 7, 2020 71.9 Friday   
August 10, 2020 69.4 Monday   
August 11, 2020 66.8 Tuesday   
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Date Average 
Price 

Day Weekly 
Maximum 

Weekly 
Minimum 

Week 

August 12, 2020 65.6 Wednesday 68.96 64.12 10 
August 13, 2020 64.7 Thursday   
August 14, 2020 64.1 Friday   
August 17, 2020 66.6 Monday   
August 18, 2020 69.0 Tuesday   
August 19, 2020 70.0 Wednesday 78.13 70.04 9 
August 20, 2020 71.2 Thursday   
August 21, 2020 74.7 Friday   
August 24, 2020 78.1 Monday   
August 25, 2020 77.3 Tuesday   
August 26, 2020 76.6 Wednesday 76.95 70.61 8 
August 27, 2020 77.0 Thursday   
August 28, 2020 74.3 Friday   
August 31, 2020 70.6 Monday   

September 1, 2020 71.2 Tuesday   
September 2, 2020 71.4 Wednesday 80.31 69.78 7 
September 3, 2020 69.8 Thursday   
September 4, 2020 72.3 Friday   
September 7, 2020 75.4 Monday   
September 8, 2020 80.3 Tuesday   
September 9, 2020 78.6 Wednesday 93.02 78.57 6 
September 10, 2020 82.5 Thursday   
September 11, 2020 84.4 Friday   
September 14, 2020 87.8 Monday   
September 15, 2020 93.0 Tuesday   
September 16, 2020 97.1 Wednesday 100.79 89.77 5 
September 17, 2020 94.2 Thursday   
September 18, 2020 99.8 Friday   
September 21, 2020 100.8 Monday   
September 22, 2020 89.8 Tuesday   
September 23, 2020 95.3 Wednesday 100.73 90.37 4 
September 24, 2020 90.4 Thursday   
September 25, 2020 93.4 Friday   
September 28, 2020 100.5 Monday   
September 29, 2020 100.7 Tuesday   
September 30, 2020 101.0 Wednesday 117.43 101.04 3 

October 1, 2020 108.8 Thursday   
October 5, 2020 117.4 Monday   
October 6, 2020 116.5 Tuesday   
October 7, 2020 111.8 Wednesday 120.78 109.67 2 
October 8, 2020 110.3 Thursday   
October 9, 2020 109.7 Friday   
October 12, 2020 113.5 Monday   
October 13, 2020 120.8 Tuesday   
October 14, 2020 124.6 Wednesday 141.14 124.61 1 
October 15, 2020 130.6 Thursday   
October 16, 2020 128.9 Friday   
October 19, 2020 133.2 Monday   
October 20, 2020 141.1 Tuesday   
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B. Computation of equity share value of PSML 
 
Valuation Method   Adjusted NAV Market Price  
Value Equity per Share  (INR) 17.2 11.2 
Weight 90% 10% 
Weighted Equity Value per Share (INR) 16.6 

 
Market Price method 
 

Period    
Weekly Maximum 
(Volume weighted) 

Weekly Minimum 
(Volume weighted) 

Average of 
Maximum and 
Minimum price   

Source 

26 Weeks   11.4 10.9 11.2 Table B.1 
12 Weeks   10.7 10.0 10.4  
2 Weeks   10.5 10.1 10.3  

 
As per the pricing formula provided in Regulations 164(1) and 164B of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ('ICDR') to arrive 
at the value per equity share of the Companies under the market price Method, higher of the above  
three has been considered. Hence, we have considered INR 11.2 per share. Though, we have 
adopted this method in case of PSML, considering that the shares of PSML are not frequently 
traded on stock exchange, we have given very low weight (10%) to this method. 
 
Table B.1 

Date  Average 
Price  

Day  Weekly 
Maximum  

 Weekly 
Minimum  

Week 

May 7, 2020 14.7 Thursday 14.7 14.7 26 
May 11, 2020  Monday   
May 12, 2020  Tuesday   
May 13, 2020  Wednesday 14.0 14.0 25 
May 14, 2020  Thursday   
May 15, 2020  Friday   
May 18, 2020  Monday   
May 19, 2020 14.0 Tuesday   
May 20, 2020  Wednesday   24 
May 21, 2020  Thursday   
May 22, 2020  Friday   
May 25, 2020  Monday   23 
May 26, 2020  Tuesday   
May 27, 2020  Wednesday 13.7 13.7 22 
May 28, 2020  Thursday   
May 29, 2020  Friday   
June 2, 2020 13.7 Tuesday   
June 8, 2020 13.4 Monday 13.4 12.5 21 
June 9, 2020 12.5 Tuesday   
June 10, 2020 12.1 Wednesday 12.1 11.0 20 
June 11, 2020 11.8 Thursday   
June 12, 2020 11.0 Friday   
June 15, 2020 10.9 Monday 10.9 10.0 19 
June 16, 2020 10.0 Tuesday   
June 22, 2020 10.9 Monday 10.9 10.7 18 
June 23, 2020 10.7 Tuesday   
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Date  Average Price  Day  Weekly 
Maximum  

 Weekly 
Minimum  

Week 

June 24, 2020 11.4 Wednesday 11.4 10.9 17 
June 26, 2020 10.9 Friday   
June 29, 2020 11.1 Monday   
July 1, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.9 16 
July 2, 2020 10.3 Thursday   
July 3, 2020 9.9 Friday   
July 6, 2020 10.1 Monday   
July 7, 2020 10.4 Tuesday   
July 8, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.0 10.4 15 
July 9, 2020 10.8 Thursday   

July 10, 2020 10.4 Friday   
July 13, 2020 11.0 Monday   
July 16, 2020 11.4 Thursday 11.4 11.4 14 
July 24, 2020 11.4 Friday 11.4 11.4 13 
July 27, 2020 11.4 Monday   
July 30, 2020 10.8 Thursday 10.8 10.3 12 
July 31, 2020 10.3 Friday   

August 3, 2020  Monday   
August 4, 2020  Tuesday   
August 5, 2020  Wednesday 10.3 10.3 11 
August 6, 2020  Thursday   
August 7, 2020  Friday   
August 11, 2020 10.3 Tuesday   
August 12, 2020 9.8 Wednesday 11.3 9.8 10 
August 13, 2020 11.0 Thursday   
August 14, 2020 11.3 Friday   
August 18, 2020 11.0 Tuesday   
August 19, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.7 9 
August 20, 2020 10.2 Thursday   
August 21, 2020 9.7 Friday   
August 24, 2020 9.7 Monday   
August 25, 2020 9.7 Tuesday   
August 26, 2020 10.4 Wednesday 10.4 9.6 8 
August 27, 2020 10.1 Thursday   
August 28, 2020 9.6 Friday   
August 31, 2020 9.9 Monday   

September 1, 2020 10.0 Tuesday   
September 7, 2020 10.2 Monday 10.2 10.2 7 
September 9, 2020 10.7 Wednesday 10.7 9.7 6 
September 10, 2020 10.5 Thursday   
September 11, 2020 9.7 Friday   
September 14, 2020 10.0 Monday   
September 15, 2020 9.7 Tuesday   
September 16, 2020 9.5 Wednesday 10.0 9.5 5 
September 21, 2020 10.0 Monday   

  

 

 

  

 



109

A Z R & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

 

Page 15 of 16 
 

Date Average 
Price 

Day Weekly 
Maximum 

Weekly 
Minimum 

Week 

September 23, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.9 11.0 4 
September 24, 2020 11.5 Thursday   
September 25, 2020 11.9 Friday   
September 28, 2020 11.9 Monday   
September 29, 2020 11.3 Tuesday   
September 30, 2020 11.0 Wednesday 11.3 10.2 3 

October 1, 2020 11.3 Thursday   
October 5, 2020 10.7 Monday   
October 6, 2020 10.2 Tuesday   
October 7, 2020  Wednesday 10.6 10.2 2 
October 8, 2020 10.6 Thursday   
October 9, 2020 10.2 Friday   
October 13, 2020 10.5 Monday   

  Saturday   
October 14, 2020 10.0 Wednesday 10.3 10.0 1 
October 15, 2020 10.3 Thursday   
October 16, 2020  Friday   
October 19, 2020 10.3 Monday   
October 20, 2020 10.3 Tuesday   
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Adjusted Net Asset Value method 
 
We have used the adjusted NAV method for valuation, wherein the value of the land, which is the 
major asset of PSML, has been estimated at current market value using guideline/circle rates. The 
building being very old, the carrying value of the building has been assumed to be fair value. All 
other assets and liabilities have been taken at book value to estimate the adjusted NAV. The 
Following table shows the NAV and Adjusted NAV as of valuation date,  

  INR MN 
Particulars  Book Value Fair Value 
A. ASSETS   
Non Current Assets   
Property, Plant and Equipment Note 1 247.4 333.6 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 22.3 22.3 
Other Non-Current Assets 0.1 0.1 
Total Non-Current Assets 269.8 356.1 
Current Assets   
Inventories 0.9 0.9 
Financial Assets   
(i) Trade Receivables   
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.2 2.2 
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 8.8 8.8 
Loans 0.0 - 
Current Tax assets 17.0 17.0 
Other Current Assets 12.6 12.6 
Total Current Assets 41.5 41.5 
Total ASSETS 311.3 397.6 
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
LIABILITIES   
Non-Current Liabilities   
Provisions - - 
Total Non-Current Liabilities - - 
Current Liabilities   
Financial Liabilities   
(i) Trade Payables due to    
-Micro &Small Enterprises - - 
-Other than Micro &Small Enterprises 57.2 57.2 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 0.0 0.0 
Other Current Liabilities 8.9 8.9 
Total -Current Liabilities 66.2 66.2 
Adjusted Net Asset Value 245.1 331.4 
Total equity Shares ( in MN) 19.2 19.2 
NAV per share (in INR) 12.7 17.2 

 
Note 1:  
Computation of Adjusted Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment  
Particulars  Net Book Value (INR MN) Fair Value (INR MN) 
Land Note 2 84.6 170.8 
Building 63.9 63.9 
Computer 0.1 0.1 
Furniture & fixtures 0.3 0.3 
Plant & machinery 95.6 95.6 
Vehicles 0.8 0.8 
Electrical & installations 1.1 1.1 
Office equipment 0.3 0.3 
Lab equipment 0.7 0.7 
Total  247.5 333.6 

Note 2: for valuation of land we have considered the guideline/circle rates as fair value. The 
guideline rate is INR 5.02 mn per acre.   
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Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services LLP
12th Floor, The Ruby,
29 Senapati Bapat Marg,
Dadar West,
Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 61920000
ey.com

  21 October 2020

The Board of Directors
Indo Count Industries Limited
Office No. 1, Plot No. 266
Alte, Kumbhoj Road,
Hatkanangale, Kolhapur
Maharashtra – 416 109

Sub: Fairness opinion on the fair exchange ratio recommended by A Z R & Associates,
Chartered Accountants for the proposed merger of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited
into Indo Count Industries Limited

Dear Sir/Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated 1 October 2020 with Ernst & Young Merchant Banking
Services LLP (hereinafter referred to as “we” or “EY” or “us”), wherein Indo Count Industries
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “you” or “Client” or “ICIL”) has requested us to provide a
fairness opinion on fair exchange ratio recommended by A Z R & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (“Independent Valuer”) as at 20 October 2020 (“Valuation Date”) for the proposed
merger of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“PSML”) into ICIL (together PSML and ICIL are
referred to as “Companies”).

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

We understand that the Board of Directors of the Companies are evaluating the merger between
the Companies (“Proposed Merger”), under a Scheme of Amalgamation, under Section 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”). Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Companies would merge PSML into ICIL.

As a consideration for this Proposed Merger, equity shareholders of PSML would be issued
equity shares of ICIL in lieu of their shareholding in PSML.

In this connection, the Client has engaged EY to provide fairness opinion on share exchange
ratio for the Proposed Merger as proposed by A Z R & Associates, Chartered Accountants for
the Proposed Merger.

ANNEXURE V
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This fairness opinion report (“Report”) is our deliverable in respect of the above engagement.

This Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers
detailed hereinafter. As such the Report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction
with the relevant documents referred to therein.

This Report has been issued only for the purpose of facilitating the Proposed Merger and should
not be used for any other purpose.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have received the following information from the
management of ICIL (“Management”) / obtained from public domain:

· Draft and Final report from A Z R & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Independent Valuer
titled “Recommendation of Fair Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited into Indo Count Industries Limited” dated 20 October
2020 and 21 October 2020 respectively

· Draft Scheme of Arrangement for the Proposed Merger
· Annual report for years ended 31 March 2018 to 31 March 2020 for ICIL and PSML
· Unaudited consolidated financial statements of ICIL for quarter ended 30 June 2020
· Unaudited financial statements of PSML for half-year ended 30 September 2020
· Shareholding pattern as at 30 September 2020;
· Details of the industrial land of PSML situated at Hatkanangale, Village - Alte, Maharashtra.
· Fixed Assets Register of PSML as on 30 September 2020;
· Details of contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2020 and confirmation that there is no

material change in contingent liabilities from 30 September 2020 till Report date for PSML;
· Background information provided through emails or during discussions.

We have also obtained further explanations and information considered reasonably necessary
for our exercise, from the Management.
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PROCEDURES ADOPTED

In connection with this exercise, we have adopted the following procedures to carry out the
valuation:
· Requested and received financial and qualitative information
· Obtained data available in public domain
· Discussions (over calls) with the Management to:

· Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect its earning-generating
capability including strengths, weaknesses, opportunity and threats analysis and
historical financial performance of the Companies

· Undertook Industry Analysis:
· Research publicly available market data including economic factors and industry trends

that may impact the valuation
· Analysis of key trends and valuation multiples of comparable companies/comparable

transactions using:
o Proprietary databases subscribed by us

· Selection of internationally accepted valuation methodology/(ies) as considered appropriate
by us

· We have had discussions with A Z R & Associates, Chartered Accountants, on such matters
we believed were necessary or appropriate for the purpose of issuing this opinion
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STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS

Provision of fairness opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our
regular valuation practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting /
tax due diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us or our
affiliates.

The user to which this fairness opinion is addressed should read the basis upon which the
Report has been prepared and be aware of the potential for later variations in value due to
factors that are unforeseen at the Valuation Date. Due to possible changes in market forces
(including prevailing quoted prices) and circumstances, this opinion can only be regarded as
relevant as at the Valuation Date.

This document has been prepared for the purposes stated herein and should not be relied upon
for any other purpose. Our Report is restricted for the purpose indicated in the engagement
letter. This restriction does not preclude the Client from providing a copy of the report to third-
party advisors whose review would be consistent with the intended use. We do not take any
responsibility for the unauthorized use of this Report.

While our work has involved an analysis of financial information and accounting records, our
engagement does not include an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
of the client existing business records. Accordingly, we express no audit opinion or any other
form of assurance on this information.

The valuation has been performed on the provisional unaudited balance sheets of ICIL as of 30
June 2020 and PSML as of 30 September 2020 as provided by Management.

We have been informed that the business activities of Companies have been carried out in the
normal and ordinary course between 30 September 2020 and the Report date and that no
material changes have occurred in their respective operations and financial position between 30
September 2020 and the Report date.

The Client and its Management warranted to us that the information they supplied was complete,
accurate and true and correct to the best of their knowledge. We have relied upon the
representations of the Client, their Management and other third parties, if any, concerning the
financial data, operational data and other information, except as specifically stated to the
contrary in the report. We shall not be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising
from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations, or wilful default on part of the companies, their
directors, employee or agents.
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Providing fairness opinion is not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases
will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. In the
ultimate analysis, our opinion will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion
and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. There is, therefore, no indisputable
single equity share exchange ratio.

The final responsibility for the determination of the equity share exchange ratio at which the
Proposed Merger shall take place will be with the Board of Directors of the Companies who
should take into account other factors such as their own assessment of the Proposed Merger
and input of other advisors.

We have assumed that the merger will be consummated on the terms set forth in the Scheme
Document and that the final version of the Scheme Document will not change in any material
respect from the draft version we have reviewed for the purpose of this opinion.

We have also relied on data from external sources to conclude the fairness opinion. These
sources are believed to be reliable and therefore, we assume no liability for the truth or accuracy
of any data, opinions or estimates furnished by others that have been used in this analysis.
Where we have relied on data, opinions or estimates from external sources, reasonable care
has been taken to ensure that such data has been correctly extracted from those sources and
/or reproduced in its proper form and context.

EY is not aware of any contingency, commitment or material issue which could materially affect
the Companies' economic environment and future performance and therefore, the fair value of
the Companies.

The Report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and that the Companies
will be managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further, as specifically stated to the
contrary, this Report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of
legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigations and other contingent liabilities that are
not recorded/reflected in the balance sheet/fixed assets register provided to us.

The Report does not address the relative merits of the Proposed Merger as compared with any
other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives
could be achieved or are available.

The fee for the Report is not contingent upon the results reported.
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Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or
document given to third parties, other than in connection with the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation, without our prior written consent. In addition, this Report does not in any manner
address the prices at which equity shares of the Companies will trade following announcement
of the Proposed Merger and we express no opinion or recommendation as to how the
shareholders of either company should vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held in
connection with the Proposed Merger.

The fairness opinion is governed by concept of materiality.

We owe responsibility to only to the Board of Directors of the Client that has appointed us under
the terms of the engagement letters. We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or
liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions or advice given by any other person.
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BACKGROUND

Indo Count Industries Limited

ICIL manufactures and sells home textile products in India. ICIL also produces cotton yarns and
bed linens. It exports its products to more than 50 countries in the world. It was founded in 1988
and is headquartered in Mumbai, India. The equity shares of ICIL are listed on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and BSE Limited (“BSE”). For the financial year ended
31 March 2020, ICIL reported consolidated revenues from operations of INR 20,801.3 million
and consolidated profit after tax of INR 731.0 million.

The shareholding pattern is as follows:

Shareholding Pattern as on 30 September 2020  No of Shares  % Shareholding
Promoter & Group 116,346,750 58.94%
Public – Institutions 17,148,816 8.69%
Public – Non- Institutions 63,904,104 32.37%
 Grand Total   197,399,670 100.00%

Source: BSE filings

Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited

PSML manufactures and sells cotton and synthetic yarns in India. PSML was incorporated in
1990 and is based in Mumbai, India. During the year, all the workers of PSML have availed for
Voluntary Retirement Scheme/ Separation Scheme (VRS/SS) and currently the production in
the factory has stopped. ICIL holds 74.53% stake in PSML and remaining is held by public
shareholders. The equity shares of PSML are listed on BSE. For the financial year ended
31 March 2020, PSML reported revenues from operations of INR 694.1 million and net loss after
tax of INR 26.8 million.

The shareholding pattern is as follows:
Shareholding Pattern as on 30 September 2020  No of Shares  % Shareholding
Promoter & Group 14,341,280 74.53%
Public – Non- Institutions       4,900,000 25.47%
Grand Total 19,241,280 100.00%

Source: BSE filings



118

Page 8 of 8

APPROACH - BASIS OF DETERMINATION OF THE SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO FOR THE
PROPOSED MERGER

The Independent Valuer has recommended the following share exchange ratio for the Proposed
Merger:

· 2 (Two) equity shares of INR 2/- each fully paid up of ICIL for every 15 (Fifteen) equity
shares of PSML of INR 10/- each fully paid up.

OUR COMMENT ON THE INDEPENDENT VALUER’S REPORT

Based on our independent calculation and on consideration of all the relevant factors
and circumstances, we believe that the share exchange ratio as recommended by the
Independent Valuer, as stated above in our opinion is fair to the equity shareholders of
ICIL.

It should be noted that we have examined only the fairness of the share exchange ratio
for the Proposed Merger only for the Board of Directors/shareholders of ICIL and have
not examined any other matter including economic rationale of the transfer per se or
accounting and tax matters involved in the Proposed Merger.

Respectfully submitted,

Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services LLP

Navin Vohra
Partner



• • • • • enorglsing Ideas

-

SAFFRON

119

 

 Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited 
605, Sixth Floor, Centre Point, Andheri Kurla Road 
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059 
Tel.: +91-22-40820912 | Fax: +91-22-40820999 
Email: info@saffronadvisor.com 
Website: www.saffronadvisor.com 
CIN No.: U67120MH2007PTC166711 

Date: October 21, 2020 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
Office No. 2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte,  
Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale,  
Kolhapur, Maharashtra, 416109   
 
Dear Members of the board, 
 
1. Engagement Background 
 
We Understand that the Board of Directors of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“PSML” or the 
“Transferor Company”) and Indo Count Industries Limited (“ICIL” or the “Transferee Company”) are 
contemplating the amalgamation by way of Merger by Absorption of the Transferor Company with the 
Transferee Company (“Amalgamation”) under a Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement under the 
provisions of Sections 230-232 read with other applicable provisions of the companies act, 2013 and 
rules framed thereunder. As a consideration for this Proposed Merger, equity shareholders of 
Transferor Company would be issued equity shares of Transferee Company in lieu of their shareholding 
in Transferor Company. 
 
The broad terms and conditions of the proposed mergers are more fully set out in the draft scheme 
document shared with us on October 15, 2020, the final version of which will be filed by the 
aforementioned companies with the appropriate authorities. 
 
We understand that the Valuation as well as the swap ratio thereof is based on the Valuation Certificate 
dated October 21, 2020 issued by A Z R & Associates, Chartered Accountants, signed by CA Amit K 
Singh, Managing Partner, FRN: 027550N (“Valuer”). 
 
We, Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, a SEBI registered Category-I Merchant Banker, have been 
engaged by Transferor Company to give a fairness opinion (“Opinion”) on Valuation Certificate dated 
October 21, 2020 issued by the valuer. 
 
2. Background of the companies and Rationale 
 
The Transferor Company is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Companies 
Act, 1956, under corporate identification number (CIN) L17119PN1990PLC058139 and having its 
registered office at Office No. 2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, 

 
Registered Office: H-130, Bhoomi Green, Raheja Estate, Kulupwadi, Borivali (East), Mumbai-400 066/ SEBI Registration No: INM000011211 

ANNEXURE VI
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 Continuation Sheet 

Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra, India. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on the 
BSE Limited. The Transferor Company is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The Transferor 
Company is authorised to carry on the inter alia the business of manufacturing of cotton yarn.   
 
The Transferee Company is a public company, limited by shares, incorporated under the Indian 
Companies Act, 1956, under corporate identification number (CIN) L72200PN1988PLC068972 and 
having its registered office at Office No. 1, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka 
Hatkanangale, Kolhapur - 416109 Maharashtra, India. The Transferee Company was incorporated in 
the year 1999 as Vishnu Aluminium Limited and subsequently, name was changed to Indo Count 
Industries Limited. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on the BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (together the “Stock Exchanges”). The Transferee Company 
holds 1,43,41,280 equity shares of Rs 10/- each of the Transferor Company constituting 74.53% of the 
total paid up equity share capital of the Transferor Company. 
 
The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company is sought to be 
undertaken to achieve the following:  

(a) Consolidation of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company will achieve 
simplified corporate structure, rationalise the number of listed entities and result in a 
single listed entity with combined businesses. 

(b) Provide an opportunity to leverage combined assets and build a stronger sustainable 
business. Specifically, it will also enable optimal utilization of existing resources which are 
in excess of the current business requirements of the Transferor Company and provide an 
opportunity to fully leverage assets, capacities, experience and infrastructure of the 
Transferor Company and Transferee Company.  

(c) Reducing managerial overlaps involved in operating multiple entities, enable cost savings 
and effective utilization of valuable resources which will enhance the management focus 
thereby leading to increase in operational and management efficiency; integrate business 
functions; eliminate duplication and rationalization of administrative expenses.  

(d) Synchronization of efforts to achieve uniform corporate policy, greater integration and 
greater financial strength and flexibility for the Transferee Company. 

(e) Better value creation for the shareholders of both the companies enabling the public 
shareholders to hold shares of the combined listed entity.  

(f) Upon completion of the amalgamation, the Transferor Company will be dissolved. 
Consequently, there would be lesser regulatory and legal compliance obligations including 
accounting, reporting requirements, statutory and internal audit compliance 
requirements, tax filings, company law compliances, Stock Exchange compliances etc. and 
therefore reduction in administrative costs. 

  

CIN No.: U67120MH2007PTC166711        SEBI Registration No: INM000011211        Website: www.saffronadvisor.com        Email: info@saffronadvisor.com 
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3. Key Features of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement  
 
The key features of the scheme provided to us through Draft Scheme Document are as under: 
 

a) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, in consideration of the amalgamation of the 
Transferor Company, Transferee Company shall without any further application or deed, 
issue and allot its equity shares at par credited as fully paid up, as per the swap-ratio 
provided by the valuation report of the registered valuer and valuation report of chartered 
accountants and the fairness opinion provided by merchant banker, to the members of 
Transferor Company, holding equity shares in Transferor Company and whose names 
appear in the Register of Members/Depository Participant on the Record Date or to such 
of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other 
successors in title as may be recognized by the respective Board of Directors in the 
following manner: 
 
2 (Two) fully paid Equity Shares of face value of INR 2/- each of Transferee Company shall 
be issued and allotted for every 15 (Fifteen) Equity shares of face value of INR 10/- each 
held in Transferor Company. 

 
b) If, applying the Share Exchange Ratio, a person eligible to receive new shares of the 

Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme, becomes entitled to receive any fractional 
equity shares of Transferee Company (a “fractional entitlement”), such person shall be 
entitled to receive instead of such fractional entitlement, equity shares of the Transferee 
Company as follows:  

 
(a) if the fractional entitlement is less than 0.5 (zero point five) it shall be rounded down 
so that such person will receive, zero (0) equity shares of the Transferee Company 
instead of such fractional entitlement; and  
 
(b) if the fractional entitlement is 0.5 (zero point five) or more it shall be rounded up 
so that such person will receive, one (1) equity share of the Transferee Company 
instead of such fractional entitlement.  

 
Pursuant to the rounding up or rounding down as per (a) and (b) above, the total number 
of shares that will be issued to equity shareholders of the Transferor Company, may vary 
from the total number of shares of the Transferee Company to be issued as set forth above. 
However, each shareholder of the Transferor Company shall get at least one share of the 
Transferee Company. 
 

c) The Transferee Company shall make all requisite applications and shall otherwise comply 
with the provisions of Applicable Laws, including, as applicable, the provisions of Securities 

CIN No.: U67120MH2007PTC166711        SEBI Registration No: INM000011211        Website: www.saffronadvisor.com        Email: info@saffronadvisor.com 
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and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI Circulars. The Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this 
Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till relevant directions in relation to 
listing/trading are provided by the Stock Exchanges. 

 
We have relied upon the draft scheme Document and taken the aforementioned key features (together 
with the other facts and assumptions set forth therein) into account while determining the meaning of 
“fairness”, from a financial point of view, for the purposes of this Opinion. 
 
4. Exclusions and Limitations  
 
Our opinion and analysis is limited to the extent of review of the valuation report by the valuer and the 
Draft scheme document. In connection with the opinion, we have 

a) Reviewed the Draft Scheme Document and the valuation report by the valuer dated 
October 21, 2020. 

b) Reviewed audited financials for Transferee Company and Transferor Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2020. 

c) Reviewed unaudited financial statements for Transferor Company for six months ended 
September 30, 2020. 

d) Held discussions with the valuer, in relation to the approach taken to valuation and the 
details of various methodologies utilized by them in preparing the valuation report and 
recommendations. 

e) Reviewed historical stock prices and trading volumes of Transferor Company and 
Transferee Company. 

f) Reviewed such other information and explanations that we have sought and which have 
been provided by the management of Transferor Company and Transferee Company. 

 
This opinion is intended only for the sole use and information of Transferor Company and in connection 
with the Scheme, including for the purpose of obtaining judicial and regulatory approvals for the 
Scheme as also for the purpose of complying with the SEBI regulations and requirement of stock 
exchanges on which the company is listed, and for no other purpose. We are not responsible in any 
way to any person/party/statutory authority for any decision of such person or party or authority based 
on this opinion. Any person/party intending to provide finance or invest in the shares/business of either 
Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company or their subsidiaries /joint ventures/associates shall 
do so after seeking their own professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence 
procedures to ensure that they are making an informed decision. 
 
For the purpose of this assignment, Saffron has relied on the Valuation Certificate for the proposed 
“Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement” of Transferor Company and Transferee Company and 
their respective shareholders and information and explanation provided to it, the accuracy whereof 
has not been evaluated by Saffron. Saffron’s work does not constitute certification or due diligence of 
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any past working results and Saffron has relied upon the information provided to it as set out in working 
results of the aforesaid reports. 
 
Saffron has not carried out any physical verification of the assets and liabilities of the companies and 
takes no responsibility on the identification and availability of such assets and liabilities. 
 
We hereby give our consent to present and disclose the Fairness Opinion in the general meetings of 
the shareholders of Transferor Company and to the Stock Exchanges and to the Registrar of Companies. 
Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance of the 
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement with the provisions of any law including 
companies, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues 
arising thereon. 
 
The information contained in this report is selective and is subject to updating, expansions, revisions 
and amendment, if any. It does not purport to contain all the information recipients may require. No 
obligation is accepted to provide recipients with access to any additional information or to correct any 
inaccuracies which might become apparent. Recipients are advised to independently conduct their own 
investigation and analysis of the business of the Companies. The report has been prepared solely for 
the purpose of giving a fairness opinion on Valuation Certificate issued for the proposed Scheme of 
Amalgamation and Arrangement between Transferor Company and Transferee Company and their 
respective shareholders, and may not be applicable or referred to or quoted in any other context. 
 
Our opinion is dependent on the information provided to us being complete and accurate in all material 
respects. Our scope of work does not enable us to accept responsibility for the accuracy and 
completeness of the information provided to us. The scope of our assignment does not involve 
performing audit tests for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any 
financial or analytical information used during the course of our work. As such we have not performed 
any audit, review or examinations of any of the historical or prospective information used and, 
therefore, do not express any opinion with regard to the same. In addition, we do not take any 
responsibility for any changes in the information used for any reason, which may occur subsequent to 
this date. 
 
One should note that valuation is not an exact science and that estimating values necessarily involves 
selecting a method or approach that is suitable for the purpose. Moreover in this case where the shares 
of the company are being issued as consideration to the shareholders of Transferor Company, it is not 
the absolute valuation that is important for framing an opinion but the relative valuation of the 
company vis-a-vis shares of Transferor Company. 
 
We have assumed that the Final Scheme will not differ in any material respect from the Draft Scheme 
Document shared with us.  
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We do not express any opinion as to any tax or other consequences that might arise from the Scheme 
on Transferor Company, Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, nor does our opinion 
address any legal, tax, regulatory or accounting matters, as to which we understand that the respective 
companies have obtained such advice as they deemed necessary from qualified professionals. We have 
undertaken no independent analysis of any potential or actual litigation, regulatory action, possible 
unasserted claims, government investigation or other contingent liabilities to which Transferor 
Company, Transferee Company and/or their associates/ subsidiaries, are or may be a party. 
 
The company has been provided with an opportunity to review the Draft Opinion (excluding the 
recommended fair exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice to make sure that factual 
inaccuracy/omissions are avoided in our Final Opinion. 
 
Our Opinion in not intended to and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder as to 
how such holder should vote or act in connection with the Scheme or any matter thereto. 
 
5. Conclusion  
 
Based on and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the share issuance ratio as arrived at 
in the valuation report i.e. “2 (Two) equity shares of ICIL of INR 2/- each fully paid up for every 15 
(Fifteen) equity shares of PSML of INR 10/- each fully paid up” is fair to the shareholders of Transferor 
Company from the financial point of view. Further the valuation of Transferor Company and Transferee 
Company as detailed by the valuer is fair. 
 
For Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, 
 
 
 
Sakshi Gupta 
Head-Valuation 
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Date: 14'" December, 2020
Place:Mumbai

~
Amruta Avasare
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No.: ACS 18844

Yours faithfully
For indo Count Industries Limited

Not Applicable

I Status (Resolved/PendinQ)I Date of complaintSr. No. I Name of complainant

Part B

Sr. No. Particulars Number
1. Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/ SEBI NIL
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4. Number of complaints resolved Nil
5. Number of complaints pending Nil

Part A

Complaint Report of Indo Count Industries Limited (Transferee Company)

Complete Comfort
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AmrvtI Avastre
Comp.any_01Y &ComplianceOffl<or
Membership No.:ACS11W

0.:.: lS"_.2020
_,",umbll

Yours _fully
For IndoCount IndustriesUmlted

ISr. No. INlme of compLoiNm

PanS

Sr.No. - Numbor
L Numbtrof roaived_ NlI.
2. _of _:dec! byStodc seal NIl.
3. Total Number of """",~n"'oomments '_>'eel (1.2) N'lI.
4. Number of compl.lnts ,esoIved NlI.
5. Number of cQMP4aints pencinQ NlI.

PanA

Complaint ~ of Indo Count industries Umlted (Tra_ Company)

~ 20'" Nowmb«. 2020 to 10"' Doc:lombe<. 2020
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tiN 117119PN1990PLC05S139
RrCD.OffiCE & MILlS: Office No.2. PlOINo. 266.Village Aile, Kumbhoj Road,TalukaHOlkanangale,Dis]. Kolhapur ·416 109.
101: (02301 2<163'OOI2~6'929• E'rllail : works@pranavaditya.com,accounl.~pranavadltya.com

Date: 15th December, 2020
Place:Mumbai

Amruta Avasare
Company Secretary&Compliance Officer
Membership No.: ACS18844

Yours faithfully
For PranavadityaSpinning Mills Umited

Not Applicable

.1 Status_(Resolved/pendin.9l_I Date of complaintSr.No. I Name of complainant

Part B

Sr.No. Particulars Number
1. Number of complaints received directly_ NIL
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/SEal NIL
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received11+?l_ NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NIL
5 Number of complaints pending NIL

Part A

Period: 20th November, 2020 to lOth December, 2020

Complaint Report of PranavadityaSpinning Mills Umited (Transferor Company)

PRANAVAOITYA

CORPORATEOFFICE:
301. 'ARCADIA',
3RDfLOOR, NCPAMARG
NARIMAI';POINT.
MUMBAI • .cOO021
TEL (91-22) .c3<C I 9500
FAX (9\-22)22823098
_w.pranavadl:ya com

PRANAVADITYA
SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED
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Yoo" faithfully
For Ptan.ovadltya Spinning Mills Umited

~
Amruta Avasare
Comp.ony Sea."IY 5< Compllonco Officer
"'embenhlp No; ACS18844

,Thanlcingl"'U

As per SEBICir",l.r No. CFDJDIL3/C1R.l2017/21 dated .... rd1 la, 2017. we are ... bmitung herfWlth
Campl.in! RopoI1 for 1M poriod 01 21 diys from the dot. 01 filltog 01 Sd>eme ";th sst Unvttd am
hosting the Sc:htmt on web.". by SSf Umited.

This ISwith (eferena to tho Application No. 12~3 midwith SSELimited (SSE)on glJ\Novembtt, 2020
seeking ~NoObJtctlon Lottor" for the Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavadi~yaSpinning Mills Umited
(Tran$f~ror Company) with Indo Count lndostlies Llmhed (Transferee Company) ('"'The Sch&me·) and
with referenceto tho documents uploaded on website 0185£ on 18""Nowmber. 2020.

Dear Sir IMadof"l\

~ Cgmp!tlnts Btpgrt

.Bet.: Appfic.'loo uod". ReoulatjooV of the $fRfOk'ing Obligatipnsand piu;tps"e BrgKircmcotl
BeguJ.tipM ?O1S for the smeme of .mt'G'tnIt1oo of PAnayadjtya sq;onIog Milts limited
«moWOf' ComMnyl wjIb IndoCqyOllodySIdt1: Umitcd ffiamfereeCqrnpan:fJ

Scrip Cod.: 531172

To,
~ ....~
lisring Oep.ortrnf<1t
BSELtd.
PlUroz. Jeej•• bhoy Towe"
Dalal Street
Mumbai 400001

14(11December, 2020

PRANAVAOIlYA

CORPORATEOFFICE :
30t, 'ARCADIA',
lRD FLOOR. NCPAMARG,
HARIMAN POINT.
MUMOAI- ..00021
TEL (9'.22) <:101, MOO
FAX (9'·22) 2282 3<l9S
wwwp'.n .....d'tya.eom

PRANAVADITYA
SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED
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CIN l17119PN'HOPLC\t58139
REeD. OFFICE" MIllS: O1f'loClll No. 2. Pkx No, 25&.VItI.g.AJ~•• K~ Ao.d. TM. ~tU~'. Dill. KOIMpu,~416109.
lel.: (0230) 2463100(2461929 • E·mai : worb@pran"vadit.,..,com, KCOU"ts@'pr'MV1IdI~y•.~

o.t.: 14'" D.cember. 2020
Place: Mumbal

~",­

~
Company Secretary & Compliance Offlco<
M""'bershlp No, ACS18844

Yours faithfully
For Pranevaditya Spinning Milts Umited

Not AppIicoble

ndinQ)I Smu,10. •• 01comDlalntSr. NO:! I'll_ of comololnon.

Plrt8

Sr. No. Partlculo,. Numbor
1. Number of (oll''II)jaints receiwd di...aJ" NIL
2. Numbo< 01comololnts1000ordod byStock Exclu",nell SEBI Nit
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1 ...2) Nll
4. Number of comOJaints resolved Nll
S. NumbO<01ComOiOln,iI);ndi;;Q Nll

Port A

Complaint Report of Pranavaditya Spinning Milts Umited (TrallSferor Company)

PRANAVADITYA

CORPORATEOFFICE:
)01. 'ARC/4)IA',
3RD FLOOR. HCPAMARG,
MAR MAH POINT,
NUMBAI • 400 021
TEL (Q1·22)43019!<lO
~A.X (9"1.22) 2282 QS
WWWpranav-.drty. com

PRANAVADITYA
SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED*!i
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BSE - INTERNAL 

 

DCS/AMAL/JR/R37/1934/2020-21     “E-Letter”                      March 25, 2021 

The Company Secretary, 
Indo Count Industries Limited   
Office No.1, Plot No. 266, Village Alte,  
Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale,  
Dist. Kolhapur, Kolhapur, Maharashtra, 416109 
 
Sir, 
 
Sub: Observation letter regarding Draft Scheme of Amalgamation by way of Merger by 
Absorption of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (PSML) with Indo Count Industries Limited 
(ICIL) and their respective shareholders. 

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation by way of Merger by Absorption of Pranavaditya 
Spinning Mills Limited (PSML) with Indo Count Industries Limited  filed as required under SEBI Circular 
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated March 25, 2021 has inter 
alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of Arrangement:     

 
• “Company shall ensure that they separately and prominently disclose to the 

Shareholders and NCLT via the draft scheme of arrangement documents following 
information’s and facts: 
 

i. In case of ICIL only one method of valuation i.e. Market Approach has been used 
because its shares are frequently traded on Stock Exchanges, and market price 
reflects significant multiple of book value. Therefore, it was inappropriate to 
consider cost and income approach in case of ICIL. Further, ICIL is a listed 
Company and information related to the future profit and loss account, balance 
sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the valuer. 
 

ii. Two Methods of Valuation i.e.  Cost and Market Approach have been used for 
PSML and Income approach method has not been used as PSML is a listed 
Company and information related to the future profit and loss account, balance 
sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the valuer. 
Further, PSML’s production was stopped at the time of appointed date. 
 

• “Company shall ensure that suitable disclosure about the latest financials of the 
companies involved in the Scheme being not more than 6 months old is done before 
filing the same with the Hon'ble NCLT.” 
 

• “Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme is acted upon only if approved by the 
NCLT and if the majority votes cast by the public shareholders are in favour of the 
proposal.” 
 

• “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, 
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, and from the date of receipt of this 
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.” 

 
• “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.” 

 
• “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be 

incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT." 
 

 
 
 
 

ANNEXURE X



133

BSE Limited Registered Office: Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001, India 
T : +91 22 2272 8045 / 8055      F : +91 22 2272 3457      www.bseindia.com 
Corporate Identity Number: L67120MH2005PLC155188 

 

BSE - INTERNAL 

 
• “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing 

and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock 
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as 
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments 
/ observations / representations.” 

 
Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 
 

• To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the 
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website. 

• To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents 
are disseminated on their (company) website. 

• To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 
 
In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to 
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions 
of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.  

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted 
company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated 
March 10, 2017.  

Kindly   note   that   as   required   under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the 
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.  
 
The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information 
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any 
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, 
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
 
Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any 
other requirements. 
 
Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read 
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company 
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order 
passed by the  Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of  the proposed scheme of 
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of  the Companies Act 2013 as 
the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or 
objections if any. 
 
In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served 
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice 
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre. 
 
Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking 
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the 
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular 
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company. 
 
  
Yours faithfully, 
 
Sd/-  
 
Nitinkumar Pujari                                                                                            
Senior Manager 
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Confidential 

Ref: NSE/LIST/25235_II           March 26, 2021 

The Company Secretary  
Indo Count Industries Limited 
Office No.1, Plot No.266, Village Alte, 
Kumbhoj Road, Taluk Hatkanangale, 
Kolhapur, Maharashtra - 416109 
 
    

Kind Attn.: Ms. Amruta Avasare 

Dear Madam,  

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 
with Indo Count Industries Limited and their respective shareholders 
 
We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“PSML”) 
with Indo Count Industries Limited (“ICIL”) and their respective shareholders vide application dated 
November 09, 2020. 

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/25235 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI Circular 
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), kindly find following comments on the 
draft scheme: 

a. The companies involved in the scheme shall ensure to separately and prominently disclose to the 
shareholders and NCLT via the draft scheme of arrangement documents following information and 
facts: 

i. In case of ICIL only one method of valuation i.e. Market Approach has been used because its 
shares are frequently traded on stock exchanges and market price reflects significant multiple 
of book value. Therefore, it was inappropriate to consider cost and income approach in case 
of ICIL. Further, ICIL is a listed company and information related to future profit and loss 
account, balance sheet and cashflows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the 
valuer. 

ii. Two methods of valuations i.e. cost and Market approach have been used for PSML and 
income approach method has not been used as PSML is a listed company and  information 
related to future profit and loss account, balance sheet and cashflows is price sensitive and 
hence was not provided to the valuer. Further, PSML’s production was stopped at the time of 
appointed date. 

b. The company shall ensure that suitable disclosure about the latest financials of the companies involved 
in the scheme being not more than 6 months old is done before filing the same with the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal 

 

 
This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Jiten Bharat Patel
Date: Fri, Mar 26, 2021 14:34:39 IST
Location: NSE
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c. The Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme is acted upon only if approved by the NCLT and 
if the majority votes cast by the public shareholders are in favour of the proposal. 

d. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any submitted by the Company, after filing 
the scheme with the stock exchange, and from the date of receipt of this letter is displayed on the 
websites of the listed company 

e. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular. 

f. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the 
petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is obliged to 
bring the observations to the notice of NCLT. 

g. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the 
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations. 

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the 
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its 
comments/observations/ representations. 

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given 
in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-objection” in 
terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft 
scheme with NCLT. 

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to 
the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, 
Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines / Regulations issued by 
statutory authorities. 
 
The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from March 26, 2021 within which the scheme 
shall be submitted to NCLT. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
 

Jiten Patel                    
Manager 
 
P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL 
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm 

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Jiten Bharat Patel
Date: Fri, Mar 26, 2021 14:34:39 IST
Location: NSE
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DCS/AMAL/BA/R37/1933/2020-21     “E-Letter”                      March 25, 2021 

 
The Company Secretary, 
PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LTD.  
Office No. 2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte,  
Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale,  
Kolhapur , Maharashtra, 416109 
 
Sir, 
 
Sub: Observation letter regarding Draft Scheme of Amalgamation by way of Merger by 
Absorption of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (PSML) with Indo Count Industries Limited 
(ICIL) and their respective shareholders. 

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation by way of Merger by Absorption of Pranavaditya 
Spinning Mills Limited (PSML) with Indo Count Industries Limited  filed as required under SEBI Circular 
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated March 25, 2021 has inter 
alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of Arrangement:     

 
• “Company shall ensure that they separately and prominently disclose to the 

Shareholders and NCLT via the draft scheme of arrangement documents following 
informations and facts: 
 

i. In case of ICIL only one method of valuation i.e. Market Approach has been used 
because its shares are frequently traded on Stock Exchanges, and market price 
reflects significant multiple of book value. Therefore, it was inappropriate to 
consider cost and income approach in case of ICIL. Further, ICIL is a listed 
Company and information related to the future profit and loss account, balance 
sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the valuer. 
 

ii. Two Methods of Valuation i.e.  Cost and Market Approach have been used for 
PSML and Income approach method has not been used for PSML is a listed 
Company and information related to the future profit and loss account, balance 
sheet and cash flows is price sensitive and hence was not provided to the valuer. 
Further, PSML production was stopped at the time of appointed date. 
 

• “Company shall ensure that suitable disclosure about the latest financials of the 
companies involved in the Scheme being not more than 6 months old is done before 
filing the same with the Hon'ble NCLT.” 
 

 
• “Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme is acted upon only if approved by the 

NCLT and if the majority votes cast by the public shareholders are in favour of the 
proposal.” 
 

 
• “Company shall ensure that additional information/undertakings, if any, submitted by 

the Company, after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, and from the date of 
receipt of this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock 
exchanges.” 

ANNEXURE XII
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• “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.” 

 
 

• “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges and undertakings 
submitted by the Company after filing the scheme with Stock Exchanges shall be 
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
and the company is obliged to bring the them to the notice of NCLT." 
 
 

• “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing 
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock 
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as 
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments 
/ observations / representations.” 
 

 
Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 
 

• To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the 
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website. 

• To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents 
are disseminated on their (company) website. 

• To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 
 
In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to 
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions 
of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.  

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted 
company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated 
March 10, 2017.  

Kindly   note   that   as   required   under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the 
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.  
 
The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information 
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any 
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, 
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
 
Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any 
other requirements. 
 
Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read 
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company 
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order 
passed by the  Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of  the proposed scheme of 
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of  the Companies Act 2013 as 
the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or 
objections if any. 
 
In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served 
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice 
along with the relevant documegrannts of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing 
Centre. 
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Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking 
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the 
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular 
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company. 
 
  
Yours faithfully, 
 
sd/-  
 
Nitinkumar Pujari                                                                                            
Senior Manager 
 

  
                                                                                           
 



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 55 to the standalone financial statements. which describes the
uncertainties and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company's operations and results
as assessed by the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Indo Count Industries Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the statement of
Profitand Loss (including other comprehensive income). statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 20133 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31.2021 and profit. changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 'Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

To the Members of Indo Count Industries Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion
and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this
regard.

1. The company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several
currencies and consequently the company is exposed to foreign exchange risk. Foreign
currency exchange rate exposure through its sales are partly balanced by purchasing of
goods, commodities and services in the respective currencies. The balance foreign currency
exchange rate exposure is hedged through derivative like foreign exchange forward
contracts. (Refer Note No. 52 to the standalone financial statements). We assessed the
foreign exchange risk management policies adopted by the company. The company
manages risk through a treasury department which formulates risk management objectives
and policies which are reviewed by the senior management, Audit Committee and Board of
Directors. Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and substantive
procedures to evaluate chances of minimizing the risk involved.

2. The company has material matters under dispute which involves significant Judgement to
determine the possible outcome of these disputes (Refer Note No. 42 to the standalone
financial statements). We obtained the details of the disputes with their present status and
documents. We made an in-depth analysis of the dispute. We also considered legal
procedures and other rulings in evaluating managements position on these disputes to
evaluate whether any change was required to management's position on these disputes.

3. As on 3151 March 2021, current tax assets and other current assets includes amounts
recoverable from government department for which efforts for recovery are being made
(refer Note No. 19 and 20 to the standalone financial statements). Our audit procedures
consisted of evaluating whether any change was required to management's position on
these uncertainties and the likelihood of recoverability

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordancewith the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relatedto going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the
StandaloneFinancialStatements
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position In its standalone Financial Statements - Refer Note No. 42 to the
financial statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March. 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March. 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014.

C) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income). Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016 ("the Order"). issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act. 2013. we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
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ForSuresh Kumar Mittal & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 500063N

flbta~la
Partner

Membership No.: 521915
Place: New Delhi
Date: 1ih May, 2021
UDIN:-< I~ Iq \0 AFl8I1LD~33'I

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

ii. The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, in respect of long
term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note No, 52 to the financial
statements,

60, 1st Floor, Pocket H-3,
Sector-18, Rohini, DELHI- 110085,
Mobile: 9871411946
E-mail: sureshkmittal@gmail.com

SURESH KUMAR MITTAL & co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

144



(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73,74,75 and 76

I
· of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and hence reporting under clause (v) of the ,

order is not applicable to the company. I

, (vi)--- -We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant!

I
· to the order made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records I

under section 148(1) of the Act, and we are of the opinion that prima facie the

I
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we are!
neither required to carry out nor have carried out detailed examination of such cost I
accounting records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. .

I I

1

~-TAcco-rd'iilg to'the records of the company, examined byu-s 'and Inform-alion and 1
. explanations given to us:

I .
! (a) ! The company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities

undisputed statutory dues including pr fund. employees' state insurance.
! Income tax, sales tax, service tax, du.;;:' ar' , duty of excise. value added tax, '
I goods & service tax, cess and others appllcao here are .flo undisi)utecJ. 9.1Tl<:Junt~.

--- --- --- - - ---~- OJ -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect to grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and'
securities.

(iv)

As explained to us, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as such clauses (iii)
(a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(iii)

As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management
during the year except stocks lying with third parties in respect of whom
confirmations have been obtained and the discrepancies noticed on physical
verification as compared to book record, which are not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable.

I (ii)

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year as
per the phased program designed to cover all the fixed assets over a period, which in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
assets. Discrepancies noticed on such verification, which are not material, have been
properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

AnnexureA referred to in Paragraph(I) under the headingof "Report on Other Legaland
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of Indo Count
Industries Limited on the standaloneFinancialStatementsfor the year ended 31st March
2021.
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! banks and Government and dues to debenture holders I

1-----+-------,--------,---,---,,------,---. .---- -J
I
(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during I

I the year the company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or i

I
further public offer (including debt instruments). Further, the Term loans have been I
applied by the company for the purposes for which they were raised. ,

~---j Based on the---audit procedures-'performed and' according to -the information and-)
, : explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or :
I i employees has been noticed or reported during the year -=_~
; I ~ f._\)\IIar MI;:~/
_'__ ._____L__ _ _ _

payable in respect of aforesaid dues outstanding as at 31st March 2021 for a period oil
more than six months from the date they became payable. I

(b) There are no disputed dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of I
customs or duty of excise or value added tax or goods and service lax outstanding as ;
at 31st March 2021 except:

11SI. Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
No. statute dues (Rs in which the dispute is

lakh) amount pending
relates

I
1. Central Cenvat Credit 40.30 2012-2013 Commissioner of

Excise Act availed on Central Excise
excise duty (A), Pune

Ipaid
2. Central Cenvat Credit 34.24 2011-2012 CESTAT --'1

Excise Act availed on (Tribunal)

I
excise duty
paid

3. Central Excise Duty 1.40 2007-2008 Commissioner ofl
Excise Act Central Excise

(A)
4. Central Rebate Claim 13.98 2012-2013 Commissioner of

Excise Act Central Excise
(A)

5. Bombay Electricity Duty 292.07 2000-2006 Supreme Court
Electricity
Duty
Act,1958

6. Central Service tax on 23.54 2010-2013 Commissioner

I
Excise Act commission on Appeal, Pune

Sales
7_ MVAT VATlnput 93_89 2012-2013 Maharashtra II

Credit Sales Tax
i Tribunal, Pune '!

i (viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the I
I

company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institution, .
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For Suresh KumarMittal & Co.
CharteredAccountants

Firm Reg. No.: 500063N

~B~gla
Partner

Membership Number 521915

Place New Delhi
Date: 17thMay, 2021
UDIN:~)S~lq ISAf)fl8CD~~fl

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to US, the-I
company has paid! providedmanagerial remuneration in accordancewith the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisionsof section 197·readwith ScheduleV to the Act.

(xii) The company Is not a nldhl company and hence provisions of clause I'") of the o,de, I
are not applicable to the company

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given-to us~e-I
company's transactions with its related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of related party transactions have i
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the accounting
standards in notes to the financial statements

(xiv) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the order is not applicable to the company

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the
year, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him

I

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934

-- __J
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indo Count Industries
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31st, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considerinq the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the desiqn,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor'S judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

Annexure B referred to in Paragraph (lI)(f) under the heading of "Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of
Indo Count Industries Limited on the standalone Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2021.

60, 1st Floor, Pocket H-3,
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For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm ~e~00~63N

r lnk"ur 8agla
Partner

Membership Number: 521915
Place New Delhi
Date: 17thMay, 2021
UDIN:) \S~!q 1':;F)(:0P1ACD3!>?I

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on "the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI".

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

60, 1st Floor, Pocket H-3,
Sector-18, Rohini, DELHI - 110085.
Mobile: 9871411946
E-mail: sureshkmitlal@gmail.com

SURESH KUMAR MITTAl & CO.
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CO"TI;'.;GE:'\T LlAIlILlTIES .·\:',D C()'\I.\lInIE'T~
SIGNIFICANT ACCOII:'-lTiNGPOLlCl[S

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

ti) Borrowings
(ii) Trade-Payebtes

- Micro & Small Enrcrprises
- Other [han Micro & Small Enterprises

(iii) Other Fmancial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabihues

TOTAL EQLITY ..\:,\0 I.IAIlII.ITIES

IJ,\BILlTIF.S
(I) Non-Current Liahiiities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other Non-Current I.iabilities

EQUITY AND LlAB[UTIES
EQl!UT

(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trau~ Receivables
(iii) Cash ana Cash Equivalents
(iv) Bank Balances other than (ill) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Others

Cc) Current Tax Assets (Net]
(d) Other Current Assets

rOTAl ASSETS

ASSETS
(I) Non-Current Asscl!l

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capitol Work-In-Progress
(C) Rigm-ot-Use
(d) OtherIntangibleAss~IS
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Others

(t) Other NOll-Current Assets

Particulars

1:\'00 COIj';T iNUl;STRIES U\IITI-:D

STANDALO,'iE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2011
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements
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41

36

37
38
39
40

2,51,474.72 1,96,507.17
3,773.95 5.431.77

2,55,148.67 2,01,938.94

1,33,280.43 1,09.070.45
7,315.17 347.35

(I 1,461.82) (929.29)

14,527.44 12,462.40
2,693.41 3,692.98
4,031.10 4.064.52

69,604.68 57,760.95
2,19,990.41 1,86,469.36

35,258,26 15,469.58
(9,84645)

35,258.26 5,(.23.13

8.739.54 I.73944
113.64 0.21
37906 (3,492.79)

26,026.02 7,376.27

79.07 (~2 65)
(1990) 20.80

8, I77.89 (6,21273)
(2,058.21 ) 1.563 62

32,204.87 2,665.31

\3,13 3.74
13.18 3.74

35

33
34

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Rs. in lakhsRs. in lakhsNote No.

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+VIII)

X Earntngs per E'luity Share
a) Basic (Rs.)
b) Diluted (Rs)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

III Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax (I-II)
IV Exceptional Items

V Profit before Tax (III-IV)

VITa.' Expense
a) Current Tax
b) Previous Year Tax
c) Deferred Tax

VII Profit for the Year (V-VI)

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss:

(i) Remcasurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability I Asset
(ii) Income Tax relating 10 items Ihat will not be reclassified 10 Profit and Loss

B hems that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss'
(i) Remeasurernent of the net change in Forex Liability / Asset
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss

II EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade
Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance COSI
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses
TOTAL EXP~;NSES

CONTINVING OPERA nONS
I INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
TOTAL INCOME

Particulars

INDO COUNT I"'DlJSTRIES LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOil THE \'E.-\R ENDED 31ST MARCIl, 2021
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Fur Suresh Kumar "ittal & Cu.,
Chartered Accountants
Finn Regd. No.: 500063N

For and on behalf of Board of DirectorsThe accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements

iii) Securities Premium Reserve:
Securities Premium Reserve is created when shares issued 31 premium.

ii) Capital Redemption Reserve:
Capital Redemption Reserve was created for redemption orPreference Shares as per requirement of provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
Since the PreferenceShares stand fully redeemed, the balance under Capital Redemption Reserve has been transferred to Retained

Nature and purpose of Reserves:
i) Capital Reserve:
Capital Reservestanding in books against capital subsidy receivedagainst establishing manufacturing unit.

Particulars Reserves & Surplus Total
Capital Reserve Securities Premium Retained Earnings

Reserve

Balance as at 31.03.2019 198.81 1,653.72 90,198.67 92,051.20
Profit for the Year - 7,376.27 7.376.27
Other Comprehensive Income lor the Year - (4,710.96) (4,710.96)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 2,665.31 2,665.31
Final Dividend on Equity Shares - (1,184.40) (1,184.40)
Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend (243.46) (243.46)
Balance as at 31.03.2020 198.81 1,653.72 91,436.12 93,288.65
Loss on Purchaseof Business (819.45) - (819.45)
Profit for the Year - 26,026.02 26,026.02
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 6,178.85 6,178.85
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 32,204.87 32,204.87
Final Dividendon Equity Shares - (1,184.40) (1.184.40)
Balance as at 31.03.2021 (620.64) 1,653.72 1,22,456.59 1,23,489.67

Rs. in lakhsB. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Note No. Rs. in lakhs
As at 31st March, 2019 3,947.99
Changes in Equity Share Capital 21(a)
.-\5 at 31st March, 2020 3,947.99
Changes ill Equity Share Capital 21(a)
As at 31st March, 2021 3,947.99

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

INDO COUNT INDliSTRIES LIMITED
STANDALOi'OE ST.·\ TEMENT OF CH.-\:\GES IN EQI'ITY FOR TIlE YEAR DIDED 31ST MARCH, 2U21
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Rs in lakhs

Particulars For the year ended 31 ;\[ar<lI, 2021 For the year ended 31 :\'larch, 2020

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPER<\TlNG ACTIVITIES
Set Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax 35,258.26 15,469.58

Adjustmenls for:
Depreciation and Amortisation 4,031.10 4.064.52

Profit on Sale of Assets
(49.94) (0.06)

Finance Cost
2,693.41 3,692.98

Interest Income (998.89) (232.93)

Other Comprehensive Income 8,256.96 (6.295.38)

Dividend Income on Mutual Funds - (8052)

Loss on Sale of Assets
199.00 - 1.51

Loss/(Profit) on Redemption of Mutual Funds (8.22) i8.20

Loss in value of NAV of Mutual Funds (94.16) 7.82

Exceptional Items - (9,846.45 )

Operating Profil before Working Capital changes 49,287.52 6,799.27

Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustment for (Increase) I Decrease in Operating Assets:

Non-Current Financial Assets 141.60 ( 160.49)

Other Non-Current Assets ( 183.87) 122.49

Inventories ( 17,627.96) (3.429.95)

Trade Receivables (26,722.49) 1.711.55

Current Financial Assets (4,805.72) 1,435.95

Other Current Assets 3.588.97 (45.609.47) (4,103.09) (4,423.54 )

Adjustment for Increase I (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Non Current Financial Liabilities (432.38) 588.72

Non-Current Provisions (302.72) 77.66

Other Non-Current Liabilities (39.37) (39.37)

Trade Payables 11,354.09 (1,010.77)

Other Current Financial Liabilities (6,202.48) 5,893.54

Other Current Liabilities 2,036.33 6,413.47 4,795.92 10,305.70

Net Taxes (paid) I refund received
(7,437.95) (2.602.66)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 2,653.57 10,078,77

Il) CASII FLOW FROM [NVESTING ACTlV[TIES
Capital Expenditure

(3,508.13) (3.282.06)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets
273.71 O.7~

Purchase of Non-CurrenI Investments 0.51 (0 JR)

Purchase of Current lnvestmerns
(16.581.55) ~.59S.99

Dividend Income on Mutual Funds
80.52

tnterest lncome
998.S9 232.93

Loss on Purchase of Business Activity
(SI9.45)

Not Cash Flow froin Investing .·\eli,·itics (B)
(19,636.02) 1,630.9~

C) CASH FLOW FRO:l-I fINA"CING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase I (Decrease) in Non-Current Borrowings (1.674.47) (2.133.80)

Net Increase J (Decrease) in Current Borrowings
21.401.62 6,334.58

Finance Cost
(2,693.41 ) (3.6929R)

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATHIE'IT FOR THE YEAR £NOEO 31ST ;\IARCH, 2021

[NDO COUNT [NDUSTR[ES LTD
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Particulars For the year ended 31 March, 2021 For the year ended 31 ~"'rch, 2020

Final Dividend on Equity Shares (including DDT) (1,184.40) (1,427.86)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Aclivities (C) 15,849.3"' (920.06)

Net Increase I (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (1,133.11) 10,789.65

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,563.67 1.774.02

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 11,430.56 12,563.67

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 11,430.56 12,563.67

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprises of:
(a) Cash in Hand 7.42 27.G9
(b) Balance with Banks

(i) In Current Accounts 2,765.14 4,218.61
(ii) In Fixed Deposits 8,658.00 8,317.97

As pH our report of even dare attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

~\11;~
, ~ , '\, )L~W 'ut:: \~-

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Anil Kumar Jain Kailash R. Lalpuria
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Executive Director & C.E.O.
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN: 000&6106 DIN: D0059758

~. le ~I

Partner Amruta Avasarc

Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

New Delhi. May 17,2021 Mumbai. May 17.2021

Indo Countfndustries limited
1311 MAR ~12'
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The Company has opted to follow cost model for accounting of its entire property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost inclusive of incidental
expenses related to acquisition net of tax / duty credit availed, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major repair is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria is satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or lossas incurred. The present value of the expected

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets:

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

Derivative financial instruments
Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments)

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assetsand liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as 'Ind AS') as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rulesasamended from time to time.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2021 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 17 May, 2021.

The Company is one of India's leading Home Textiles manufacturer. The Company has focused in
some of the world's finest fashion, institutional and utility bedding and has built significant presence
acrossthe globe. It exports to more than 54 countries.

Indo Count Industries Limited (the 'Company') is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in
India whose shares are publicly traded. The registered office is located at Office No.1, Plot No.266,
Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road,Taluka Hatkanagale, Dist. Kolhapur-416109, Maharashtra, India.

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Indo eoant Industries Limited

13:1 MAR ~2'NOTES ACCOMPANYING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expec_tedfrom its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and losswhen the asset is derecognised.

leasehold lands forming part of ROU are amortised over the period of lease. Building
constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based on the useful life specified in schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the life of the building. In
other case, building constructed on leasehold lands are amortised over the primary lease period
of the land.

ROUassets are depreciated on straight line basis from the commencement date to the end of
useful life of asset or leaseterm whichever is earlier.

In case of some items of plant, depreciation has been provided in range of 26 years (minimum)
to 35 years (maximum) based on the technical evaluation of the remaining useful life which is
different from the one specified in schedule II to the CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates the certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assetsare likely to be used.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are
added /disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basiswith reference to
the month of addition/deletion.

Right-of-use (ROU)assetsare stated at cost, lessaccumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any. The carrying amount of ROUassets is adjusted for remeasurement of lease liability, if any,
in future. Cost of ROU assets comprises the amount of initial measurement of lease liability,
lease payments made before the commencement date (net of incentives received), initial direct
costs and present value of estimated costs of dismantling and restoration, if any.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation
/under development as at the balance sheet date.

Indo Count Industries Limited
If3rrM(\R "n~,

cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective
asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessedfor
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life

The useful lives of intangible assetsare assessedas either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assetsacquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

3.3 Intangible assets

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed off or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal.

Though the company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a
valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

-
Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in schedule II to
the Companies Act,2013. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of
investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted on prospective basis as appropriate, at each
financial year end. The effects of any revision are included in the statement of profit and loss
when the change arise.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing cost for long term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit and
1055 as incurred.

Investment properties comprise portions of freehold land and office building that are held for
long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially
recognized at cost. Subsequently, investment property comprising of building is carried at cost
lessaccumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

3.2 Investment properties

tide Count IndustTles limited
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Patents and trade marks:
The Company made upfront payments to purchase patents and trade-marks. The patents have
been granted for a period of 20 years by the relevant agency with the option of renewal at the
end of this period. Trade-marks for the useof intellectual property are granted for a period of 10
years with the option of renewal at the end of this period.

During the period of development. the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset. the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised
over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Research and development cost:

Researchcosts are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available
for use or sale
Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to useor sell the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits
- The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Gainsor losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or losswhen the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessmentof indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite ismade on a prospective basis.

are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changesin the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

bIo Count In1ustries Umited
3 1 MAR "021
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The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company's [GUs to which the individual assets

In assessingvalue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmentof the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Recoverable amount is determined:
In the caseof an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value lesscost to sell and the value
in use; and
In the case of cash generating unit (a group of assetsthat generates identified, independent
cash flows) at the higher of the cashgenerating unit's fair value lesscost to sell and the value
in use.

As at each balance sheet date, the Company assesseswhether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss
recognized in the previous periods. If any indication exists or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, if any, the Company determines the recoverable amount and
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.4 Borrowing costs

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated
or acquired

Trade-Marks Finite (10 years) Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the
trade-mark

Patents Finite (20 years) Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the
patent

A summary trade-marks of the policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is, as follows:

Indo Count Industries limited
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Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency,
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's
functional currency.

3.8 Foreign currency transactions

Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks which are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.7 Cashand cash equivalents

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessaryto make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, obsolescence, defective inventories are duly provided for and
valued at net realisable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred
upto the date of balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be usedare expected
to be sold at or above cost.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:
a) Rawmaterial, packing material, construction material, stores & spares: -

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

b) Finishedgoods and work in progress:
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

c) Traded goods:
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

d) Wastage and rejections are valued at estimated realizable value.

3.6 Inventories

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in profit and loss section of the statement of profit and loss, except for properties
previously revalued, with the revaluation taken to Other Comprehensive Income (the OCI). For
such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation.

are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.

3 1 MAR 2021
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

3.10 Fair value measurement

A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assetsand liabilities are
classified as non-current assetsand liabilities.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company presents assetsand liabilities in the balance sheet basedon current / non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cashor cashequivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

3.9 Current versus non-current classification

currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchangedifferences
that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the
Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the
period in which they are arise. Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on transaction of non-monetary items is recognized in line with the gain or loss of the item that
gave rise to the translation difference (i.e. translation differences on items whose gain or loss is
recognized in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit and loss is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit and loss respectively).

tIdo Count Industries limited
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The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all
of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it
has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The Company has adopted Ind AS l1S w.e.f. 1 April, 2018 using the modified retrospective
approach. However, the adoption of the standard did not have any impact on the financial
statements.

The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2018 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS l1S "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" related
to revenue recognition which replaced Ind AS 11 "Construction Contracts" and Ind AS 18 u

Revenue" and provide a single, comprehensive model for all contracts with customers. The
revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of
when it is recognized. The amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts,
including significant judgments and changes in those judgments as well as assets recognized
from costs incurred to fulfill these contracts.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based On the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is direclly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

3 1 MAR 2021
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.
When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying

When the grant relates to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non­
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
income.

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

3.12 Government Grants

lease Income:
Lease agreements where the risks and rewards incident to the ownership of an asset
substantially vest with the lessor are recognized as operating leases. lease rentals are
recognized on straight-line basis as per the terms of the agreements in the statement of profit
and loss.

Dividends:
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest Income:
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR),which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Rendering of Services:
Revenue from sale of service is recongised as per terms of the contract with customers when
the outcome of the transactions involving rendering of servicescan be estimated reliably.

Saleof goods:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. Revenuefrom the sale of goods is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates.

3' 1 MAR 2021
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The break-up of the major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance
sheet date has been arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets and liabilities where the
Company have a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities and where such
assetsand liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized
outside the statement of profit and loss.Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assetsare reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred Tax:
Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between
the tax basesof assetsand liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.

Current Income Tax:
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basison estimated taxable income
and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and
based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals.
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates position taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

3.14Taxes

Basicearnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total
profit, both attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity sharesoutstanding during the period.

3.13 Earnings per share

value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

3 1 MAR 2011
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(i) the contract involves the useof an identified asset,
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through

the period of the lease, and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the useof the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU)asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements include
the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROUassetsand

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesseswhether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the useof an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to
control the useof an identified asset, the Company assesseswhether:

The Company as a lessee:

3.16 Leases

Inter-Segment transfer pricing
Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other businesssegments is accounted on the
basisof transfer price agreed between the segments. Suchtransfer prices are either determined
to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis.

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.
The operating segments have been identified on the basisof the nature of products / services.
a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the

segment including inter-segment revenue.
b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for

determining the segment result. Expenseswhich relate to the Company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

c) Income which relates to the Company as a whole and allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

d) Segment result includes margins on inter-segment sales which are reduced in arriving at the
profit before tax to the Company.

e) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

3 1 MAR 20213.15Segment accounting
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b) Defined Benefit Plans
The employee Gratuity Fund scheme and Leave Encashment scheme managed by
different trusts are defined benefit plans.

ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plans

State Government Provident Scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid
jpayable under the scheme is recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related services.

3.17 Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and the excepted cost of
bonus, ex-gratia, and incentives are recognized in the period during which the employee
renders the related service.

Leasesfor which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease.All other leasesare classified asoperating leases.

TheCompany as a lessor:

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
ROUasset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the
BalanceSheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROUassets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value lesscost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CashGenerating Unit
(CGU)to which the asset belongs.

fDdo Count Industries Limited
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liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost lessaccumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passageof time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.18 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Long-term employee benefit
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
under employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losseson
curtailments and non-routine settlements.
Net interest expense or income.

Net Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gain and loss, the effect of asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss
in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the period of plan amendment.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

Dio Count Industries limited
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3.20Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non­
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their
carrying amount and fair value lesscosts to sell. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition asa completed salewithin one year from the date of classification.

3.19 Exceptional Items
On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to
the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of
the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying the financial statements.

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value lower of the expected costs
of terminating the contract and the expected cost of continuing with the 'contract. Before a
provision is established, the Company recognizes impairment on the assetsunder the contract.

Other litigation claims
Provision for litigation related obligation represents liabilities that are expected to materialize in
respect of matters in appeal.

Liquidated damages
Provision for liquidated damages are recognized on contracts for which delivery dates are
exceeded and computed in reasonable manner.

Warranty Provisions
Provision for warranty-related costs are recognizedwhen the product is sold or service provided
to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The- initial estimate of
warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Provision, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

3: 1 MAR 2021
Contingent liability is disclosed in the caseof:

a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources
is remote.
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A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of
any write down for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss
under the fair value option.
- Business model test: The objective of the Company's businessmodel is to hold the financial

asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its
contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes).
Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and lossesare either recognized entirely in the
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other
comprehensive income (i.e fair value through other comprehensive income).

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:

Financial asset at fair value
Financial assetsat amortised cost

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or
as financial assetsmeasured at amortised cost.

3.21Financial Instruments
i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition ofthe financial asset.

An entity shall not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while it is classified as held for
sale or while it is part of a disposal group classifiedas held for sale.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of the Company that
either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale and:
- represents a separate major line of businessor geographical area of operations,
- is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or

geographical area of operations,
or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Assetsand liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately from other assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the
statement of profit and loss.

tide Count Industries limited
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of
financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a "pass-through" arrangement and either;
a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has tra nsferred control of the asset.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial
recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend
income recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the
entity has elected to present value changes in 'other comprehensive income'.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through
profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 'accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different
basis.

~ Count Industries Limited
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A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under
the fair value option.

Business model test: The Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

- Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increase in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 - months' ECl is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECl is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognize
impairment loss allowance based on 12 - months' ECL.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio
of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward­
looking estimates are analysed.

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECls at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

All lease receivables

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to;
- The 12 - months' expected credit losses (expected credit losses that- result from those

default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or
Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instrument).

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on Expected Credit losses (ECl) model to the
following:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCJ);

Investment in associates, joint venture and subsidiaries
The Company has accounted for its investment in associates, joint venture and subsidiaries at
cost.

b:to Count Industries Umited
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms of an existing liability substantially modified, such as
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuanceof the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS109 and amount recognized lesscumulative amortization.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EJR.The EIRamortization is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EJRmethod. Gains and lossesare recognized in profit or losswhen the
liabilities are derecognized aswell as through the EIRamortization process.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind AS109 are satisfied.

Gainsor losseson liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging inst-ruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

ii) Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

3 1 MAR 2021
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3.23 Preference Shares
i) Non-convertible Preference Shares

On issuance of non-convertible preference shares, the fair value is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves
with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from
that date.

Businesscombinations involving entities or businessesunder common control are accounted for
using the pooling of interest method. Under pooling of interest, the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustments that are made
are to harmonise accounting policies. -

3.22 Businesscombination under common control
Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses,between entities within a group.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
statement of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity
which is later reclassified to statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or
loss.

iv) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The company enters into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency /price risk on
unexecuted firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivate
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assetswhen the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis,to realize the assetsand settle the liabilities simultaneously.

indo Count IndustriesLimited

3 1 MAR 2021
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.
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The kElYassumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change

Estimates and assumptions

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management hasmade judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Judgements

The preparation of the separate financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assetsor liabilities affected in future periods.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

3.24Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in equity. Transaction costs are deducted
from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not remeasured in subsequent years.

ii) Convertible Preference Shares
Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on
the terms of the contract.

financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

3 1 MAR 2021
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The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

Impairment of financial assets

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined benefit plans

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is higher of an
asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely indepen-dentof those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets

due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

trdo COUNtIndustries Umited
3 1 MAR 2021
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The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries.
In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial
statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related
information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions
used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these financial statements.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-Iease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of
the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the Company's operations and the availability
of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure 'that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions,
the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease
contracts.

Leases
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Particulars Software Patents Total
Gross Carrying Amount
As at 01.04.2020 529.23 207.90 737.13
Additions 23.05 57.14 80.19
Disposals I Transfers - -
As at 31.03.2021 552.28 265.04 817.32

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.04.2020 411.88 62.63 474.51
Depreciation charged for the year 58.51 19.35 77.86
Disposals I Transfers - - -

As at 31.03.2021 470.39 81.98 552.37

Net Carrying Amount
As at 31.03.2020 117.35 145.27 262.62
As at 31.03.2021 81.89 183.06 264.95

Rs. in lakhs
7. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer Note No. 43 for Information about Leases.

Particulars Land - Buildings Total
Leasehold

Gross Carrying Amount
As at 01.04.2020 833.70 1,605.05 2,438.75
Additions 586.74 - 586.74
Disposals I Transfers - 468.06 468.06
As at 31.03.2021 1,420.44 1.136.99 2,557.43

Accurnalated Depreciation
As at 01.04.2020 52.66 560.63 613.29
Depreciation charged for the year 3.75 488.12 491.87 -

Disposals / Transfers - 37103 371.03
As at 31.03.2021 56.41 677.72 734.13

Net Carrying Amount
As at 31.03.2020 781.04 1,044.42 1,825.46
As at 31.03.2021 1,364.03 459.27 1,823.30

Rs in lakhs
6. Right-or-Use (ROU)

INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITE
NOTES TO THE ST ANDALONE FINANCIAL ST ATEM ENTS
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Includes receipts lor Rs. 0.0 I lakhs (previous year Rs. IU)) lukhs) lodged with Sale, I ax Department.

- ,
Particulars Rs, in lakhs

As al 31.03.2021 As lit 3 [.03.2020

Balances with Banks
- Held as Margin I Fixed Deposits O.DI 0,01

TOTAL O.O[ O.O[

[0. OTHFR NON CURREi\T F[iHNCIAL ASSETS

Refer Note No. )2 for information about Credit Risk and Market RISk of Loans.

-
Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As al 31.03.2020

Security Deposits 170.16 287.04
Deferred Expenditure 21.30 46.02

TOTAL 191.46 333.06

Break-up:
Loans considered good - Secured
Loans considered good - Unsecured 191.46 333.06
Loans which hay" significant increase in Credit -
Risk
Loans - Credit Impaired
TOTAL 191.46 333.06
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans

TOTAL [91.46 333.06

9. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LOANS

(b) The Company entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with ICRVPL. wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) on March 30. 2020,
whereby the domestic home textile business of the WOS was acquired by the Company on 'slump sale' basis w.e.f April I, 2020. The
assets and liabilities transferred pursuant to the arrangement are dealt with by the Company in its books in financial year 2020-21.

<aJ Pursuant to the acquisition of remaining 17,50% shareholdlng, Indo Count Retail Ventures Pvt Ltd (ICRVPL) became the Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of the Company with effect from March 9, 2020.

Particulars !'io. of Shares Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

QUOTED
Subsidiary Company
In fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited 1,43,41.280 1,43,41,280 1,434.13 1,434.13
SUB-TOTAL " 1.434.13 1,434.13
UNQUOTED
Subsidiary Company
In fully paid up Equity Shares
Indo Count Global Inc., USA 800 800 446.18 446,18
Indo Count UK Limited 86,000 86,000 79.62 79,62
Indo Count Retail Ventures Pvt. Ltd. 10,000 10.000 1.00 1.00
Indo Count Australia Pry Ltd. - 1,000 0.52
Indo Count Global DMCC, UAE 2,750 2,750 530.64 530.64
SUB-TOTAL u 1,057.44 1,057.96
TOTAL '\+B 2,491.57 2,492.09

Aggregate Value of:
Quoted Investments 1,434.13 1,434.13
Unquoted Investments 1,057.44 1,057.96
Market Value of Quo led Investments 2,308.95 2,330.46

311 MAR 2021NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEi\IENTS

8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITE
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Particulars No. of lin its Rs, in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Investments carried at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss

QUOTED
In Mutual Funds:
Union Prudence Fund 99,990 9.54

Aditya Birla SL Arbitrage Fund Growth 49,17,570 - 1,023.58

IDFC Arbitrage Fund Growth 40,14,907 1,022.81 -

KOTAK Arbitrage Fund-Growth 17,66,184 5I3.13

ICICIEquity Arbitrage Fund-Growth. 38, I6,997 1,022.96

INVESCOMutual Fund 20,59.536 509.50

Union Hybrid Equity-Regular-Growth 99,985 10.70

Aditya Birla Sunlife Saving Fund 47,508 200.82 -
Avendus Absolute Return Fund 50.017 499.98

TOTAL ,\ 4,803.48 9.5~

In Short Term Investments:
HDFC Corporate Fixed Deposit 3,400.00

LIC Ilousing Finance Limited Fixed Deposit 7,990.00

Bajaj Finance Limited - 50000

TOTAL II 11,890.00 -
TOTAL :\+H 16,693.48 9.54

Aggregate Value of:
Quoted Investments 16.693.48 9.54

-=
Unquoted lnvcstmenrs £~~Market Value otQuored lnvcsuucms 16,693.48 4.54

t;~!~(;J;))
'\ "') 'J i'J)

13. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Includes goods in transit Rs. 1,862.26 lakhs (previous year Rs. 98.13 lakhs).
Includes goods in transit Rs. 135.971akhs (previous year Rs. 9.17 lakhs).

Includes goods in transit Rs. 44.19 lakhs (previous year Rs. 3.96 lakhs).

..

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Raw Materials' 18.383.75 13,666.45
Work-in-Progress 24.920.88 20,259.43
Finished Goods 19,069.84 12,265.10
Waste 68.94 73.31
Stores & Spares .. 4.309.99 3,120.13
Dyes and Chemicals ... 975.06 716.08
TOTAL 67,728,46 50,100.50

12. INVENTORIES

Particulars Rs, in Iakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As a131.03.2020

Capital Advances 400.53 76 16
Security Deposits 107.11 107.01
Others 319.06 459.65
TOTAL 826.70 642.82

11. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured-cbnsidered good)

3 1 MAR 2021
NOTES TO TIlE STANDALONE fINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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a) Includes receipts for Rs. 212.67 lakhs (previous year Rs. 231.08 lakhs) held with bank as margin money against
bankguarantees for Letter of Credit facilities.

b) Includes receipts for Rs. 0.05 lakhs (previous year Rs. 0.05 Iakhs) lodged with Excise Department.

c) Includes receipts for Rs. 11.25 lakhs (previous year Rs. I 1.25 lakhs)held with bank as margin money against
guarantee given to MSEB.

Particulars Rs, in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Balances with Banks
- Held as Margin / Fixed Deposits 223.97 254.37
TOTAL 223.97 254.37

16. BANKBALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Cash in Hand 7.42 27.09
Foreign currency in hand - -
Balances with Banks :
- In Current Acounts 2,765.14 4,218.61
- Held as Fixed Deposits 8,658.00 8,317.97
TOTAL 11,430.56 12,563.67

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Refer Note No. 52 for information about Credit RIsk and Market Risk of Trade Receivables.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Receivables exceeding Six Months 995.33 1,267.18
Receivables - Others 46,547.76 20,974.02
Receivables fromRelated Parties (Refer Note No. 4,971.50 3,550.90
Receivables which have significant increase in Credit -
Receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables -
TOTAL 52,514.59 25,792.10
Current Portion 52,514.59 25,792.10
Non-Current Portion - -
Break-up of Security Details:
Secured, Considered Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 52,514.59 25,792.10
Doubtful - -
TOTAL 52,514.59 25,792.10
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables -
TOTAL 52,514.59 25,792.10

14. CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
3 1 MAR 2021
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nsecure -consi ere goo
Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Export Incentives / Claims Recoverable 2,889.05 8,226.80
Balances with Excise / Service Tax Authorities 70.83 97.05
Balances with VAT / GST Authorities 6,789.57 5,624.56
Interest Accrued on Loans & Deposits 221.09 19.08
Advance to Suppl iers 1,611.30 882.85
Others 1.074.07 961.11
Security Deposits 4.01 4.01
TOTAL 12,659.92 J 5,815.46

l.ess: Allowance for Doubtful l.oans 433.43 --= J 5,8 J 5.46TOTAL A-'V~I~ 12,226.49

~t~J~J!~. ~~
~\::\'): ,-j"S

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(U d id d d)

Particulars Rs, in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Advance Income Tax (including Tax Deducted at Source) 29.92 1,718.41
Refund Due 688.08 414.83
MAT Credit Entitlement - -
TOTAL 718.00 2,133.24

19. CURRENT TAX ASSETS

nsecure - consi ere goo
Particulars Rs, in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Derivative Asset 4,763.42 -

Others 367.04 432.93
TOTAL 5,130.46 432.93

18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASS£TS
(U d id d d)

Refer Note No. )2 for information about Credit Risk and Market Risk of Loans.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Security Deposits 169.87 31.29
TOTAL 169.87 31.29
Break-up:
Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 169.87 31.29
Loans which have significant increase in Credit - -
Risk
Loans - Credit Impaired -
TOTAL 169.87 31.29
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Loans -
TOTAL 169.87 31.29

-

17. CURRENT FINANCIAL LOANS
31 MAR "'71
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(e) Dividend paid and proposed:
Particulars Rs. in lakhs

2020-21 2019-20

Final Dividend for F.Y. 2018-19: Re. 0.60 per 1.184.40
share (Face Value of Rs. 2 each)

Final Dividend for F.Y 2019-20: Re. 0.60 per l.18·UO -
share (Face value of Rs. 2 each)

(d) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts I commitments for the sale of shares I disinvestment.

"Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

No. of Shares Percentage No. of Shares Percentage

Indo Count Securities Limited 3,10,41.385 15.73% 3.10.41.385 15.73%
Sandridge Investments Limited 6,20,02,455 31.41% 6)0,02,455 31.41%

(c) Details of Equity Shares in the Company held bv each shareholder holding more than 5% of shares is as under'

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by
the shareholders.

(b) Terms I Rights attached to Equity Shares:
(i) The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 2 each. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one
vote per share and pro-rata dividend on the shares held.

-
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 - As at 31.03.2020

No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs

Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 27,50,00,000 5.500.00 27,50,00,000 5..500.00
Increase due to Sub-Division • - - -
Balance at the end of the year 27,50,00,000 5,500.00 27,50,00,000 5,500.00
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each -
Balance at the beginning of the year 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
Balance at the end of the year 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
TOTAL 28,00,00,000 6,000.00 28,00,00,000 6,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up:
Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,73,99.670 3,947.99 19,73,99.670 3,947.99
Increase due to Sub-Division • -
Balance at the end of the year 19,73,99,670 3,947.99 19,73,99,670 3,947.99

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear:

Particulars Rs, in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Authorised:
Equity Shares
27,50,00,000 Shares of Rs. 2 each 5,500.00 5,500.00
Preference Shares
50,00,000 Shares of Rs. 10 each 500.00 500.00
TOTAL 6,000.00 6,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up:
Equity Shares
19,73,99.670 Shares of Rs. 2 each 3,947.99 3,947.99
TOTAL 3,947.99 3,947.99

21. SHARE CAPITAL
131 J MAR iG2J
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Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Provision for Employee Benefits 276.25 578.97

TOTAL 276.25 578.97

24. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars Rs. in Iakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Lease Liability Payable (Refer Note No. 43) 156.33 58S.72

TOTAL 156.33 588.72

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

I) Term Loan
i) Rupee loans
- From Banks - -
- From Financial Institutions 1,113.I I 822.15

TOTAL 1,113.11 822.15

c) Maturity profile of Non-Current Borrowings:

b) Includes amount appearing in current maturity oflong term debts Rs. I06.ISlakhs (previous year Rs. 225.96
lakhs),

a) Secured by first pan-passu charge by way of mortgage of Immovable properties of the Company situated at
Kolhapur and by second pari-passu charge on hypothecation of all movable properties and current assets of the
Company both present and future. Loans include amounts appearing in current maturities of long term debts of Rs.
1,488.11 lakhs, (previous year Rs. 1,765.00 lakhs).

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Secured
I) Term Loan
i) Rupee loans
- FromBanks (a) - 375.00
- From Financial Institutions (a) 1,935.26 3,020.33

Unsecured
I) Foreign Currency Loan

i) Buyer'sCredit (b) - 214.39
TOTAL 1,935.26 3,609.72

3: 1 MAR 202J
22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
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(5,805.54)(8,262.71 )Closing Balance as ut 31 Yla rch

31.03.202031.03.2021

Rs. in IakhsParticulars

(10.882.75)
3,492.79

(5,805.54)
(379.06)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (~et)

1.5844212.1)78.11)

OpeningBalance HS of I April
TJ.\ lncome Z(Expense) Juring the period
recognised in Profit and Loss
Income I (Expense) dunng the year recognised in
OCI

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Deferred Tax Assets 466.08 1.87314

Deferred Tax Liabilities (8,72879) (7,678.68)

Deferred Tax Liabililies (~et) (8,262.71) (5,805.54)

Reflected in the Balance Sheet:

Deferred Tax:asset In respect of long term capital losses of Rs. 67.50 lakhs (preVIOUS year Rs. 67.:;0 lakhs) has not been recognised In

view of uncertainty of irs realisation

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
Balance Sheet Profit & Loss

31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Deferred Tax relates to the following:

Expenses allowable on payment basis 466.08 1.873 14 1.40706 (1,582 19)

Incomes allowable on receipt basis (1,198.86) 1,19886 (50656)

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax purpose (7,529.93) (7,678.68) (148.75) (2,988.46)

(8,262.71) (5,805.54) 2,457.17 (5,077.21)

Deferred Tax Expenses I (Income):
. Recognised in Profit and Loss 37906 (3,49279)

- Recognised in oel 2.078 II (1,584.42)

Deferred Tax Assets I (Liabilities) (8,262.71) (5.80554)
(8,262.71) (5,805.54) 2,457.17 (5,077.21)

DEFERRED TAX

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Net loss I (gain) on remeasurements of Defined 2.078 II (1,58442)
Benefit Planandchange in Forex

Income Tax charged to OCI 2,078.11 (1,584.42)

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section

(a) The Company elected to exercise the opuon permitted under secnon 115BAA ot the Income-tax Act, 1961 as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized
Provision for Current Tax and re-rneasured its Deferred Tax Liabilities based on rate prescribed in the said section

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Current Income Tax:
Current Income Tax charge 8.73954 1.739.44
Adjustments in respect of Current Income Tax of 11364 021
previous years
Deferred Tax:
Relating [0origination and reversal of temporary 37906 (3.492.79)
differences
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement 9,232.24 (1,753.14)
of Profit and Loss

3 1 MAR 20Z125. INCOME TAX
The major components of Income Tax expense for the years ended 31 March, 2021 and J I March, 2020 are
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
Profit and Loss section
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Disclosure at payable to vendors as defined under the ivfSMEDAct IS based 011 the information available with the
Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under ihe said Act, as per the intimation received from
them on requests made by the Company.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 4,065.26 1,887.52
at the end of the year

b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under the Act, on 24.76 54.20
the above amount

c) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond 3.377.38 4,102.46
the appointed day, during the year

d) Interest paid to suppliers under the Act -

e) Interest due and payable to suppliers under the Act, for 21.91 52.19
payments already made

f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 24.76 54.20
year under the Act

g) The amount of further interest remaining due and - -
payable even in the succeeding years for the purpose of
disallowances under Section 23 of the Act

Note:
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

Particulars Rs, in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Payables 4,065.26 1,887.52

TOTAL 4,065.26 1,887.52

28. TRADE PAYABLES DUE TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES

• Secured by first pan-passu charge by way of hypothecation on all current assets and movable assets arrd further
secured by second pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company situated at Kolhapur, both present
and future.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Loans repayable on Demand :
i) From Banks •

- In Rupees 50,586.22 29,184.60
- In Foreign Currency -

TOTAL 50,586.22 29,184.60

27. CURRENT BORROWINGS (Secured)

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Deferred Government Grants related to Property,
Plant & Equipment 758.56 797.93

TOTAL 758.56 797.93

r31.1 MAR 2C2126. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
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(ii) Nature of Provisions:
(a) Bank guarantee amount represents Company's performance obligauon to the holder of guarantee
(b) Provision for excise duty I customs duty I service tax represents the differential duty liability that may be expected to materialise in
respect of rnaners in appeal.

(c) Provision for litigation represents liabilities that may be expected to materialise in respect of matters ill appeal.
(d) Corporate guarantee amount represents guarantee given (0a foreign bank on behalf of a foreign subsidiary.

Carrying amounts compnsc of non-current and current prcvrsrons.

Additional provision made during the year and reversal of unused amounts are included in the respective head of accounts.

Particulars Other Litigation Claims Corporate Guarantee Total

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As .131.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year * 47.51 52.71 7.188.18 6,569.73 8,379.22 7,761.47

Add: Provision madeduring the year .. 0.38 036 618.45 104.70 623.31

Less: Amounts used during the year 5.56 2.436.03 2,927.21 556

Carrying amount at the eod of the year ,. 47.89 47.51 4,752.15 7,188.18 5.556.71 8,379.22

Rs in lakhs

Particulars Bank Guarantees Excise Duty I Customs Duty I VAT/GST
Service Tax

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As 3131.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year ,. 960.69 956.19 182.84 182.84
Add: Provision made during the year •• 4.50 104.32
Less: Amounts used during the year 491.18
Carrying amount at the end of the year ,. 469.51 960.69 182.84 182.84 104.32 -

Rs in lakhs
(i) Movement in Provisions:

32. DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND-AS) 37 "PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS"

Particulars Rs. ill Iakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Advance from Customers 208.48 107.16
Deterred Government Grants related to Property, 39.37 39.37
Plant & Equipment
Other Payables 9,017.02 7,082.00
TOTAL 9,264.87 7,228.53

31. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

• There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund

Particulars Rs. in Iakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 1,594.29 1.990.96
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 0.12 1.35
Unpaid Dividend' 132.09 108.45
Derivative Liabilities 5,639.00
Lease Liability Payable (Refer Note No. 43) 355.16 529.66
Other Payables 930.97 945.69
TOTAL 3.012.63 9,215.11

FINAI"CIALCURRENT30. OTHER

• a) Includes payable to an Indian Subsidiary Rs. N.I (previousyear Rs.0.99Iakhs).
b) Includes payable to a Foreign Subsidiary Rs 14.62 Iakhs (previous year Rs.0.36 lakhs).

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Payables' 18.911.20 9.734.86

TOTAL 18,911.20 9,734.86

29. TRADE PAYABLES OTHER THAN MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES
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Particulars Rs, in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Contract Price 2,64,827.52 2,05,082.05

Less:
Sales Returns 575.02 473.00
Rebates& Discounts 1,651.94 1,637.66
Embedded Interest 155.92 17I.II
Others 10,969.92 6,293.11
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2,51,474.72 1,96,507.17

Reconciliation of Revenue from Operations with Contract Price

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Domestic 12,963.18 10,416.82
Export 2,38,511.54 1,86,090.35
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2,51,474.72 1,96,507.17

Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenue based on Geography

• a) Includes sale to an Indian Subsidiary and Associate RS.0.62lakhs (previous year Rs. 2,87: -
b) Includes sale to Foreign Subsidiaries Rs. 13,214.01 lakhs (previous year Rs. 9,675.49 lakhs).

•• The Central Government of India has announced a new scheme called Remission of Duties or Taxes on Export
Product (RoDTEP) which has replaced Merchandise Export from India Scheme (MEIS) and Rebate of State and
Central Taxes and Levies (RoSCTL) benefit w.e.f January 1,2021. As the rates under RoOTEP have not been
declared till date, the income on account of benefits under the new scheme has not been recognized for the Quarter
ended March 31, 202 I.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
I) Sale of Products •

- Manufactured 2,27,193.01 1,79,338.70
- Stock-In-Trade 7,268.71 366.17

2) Sale of Services - 0.77
3) Other Operating Revenue

- Export Incentives I Benefits •• 17,013.00 16,801.53
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2,51,474.72 1,96,507.17

L3LJ MAR L U21
33. REVENUE FROM OPERA nONS
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Particulars Rs. in lakhs

For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 12,265.10 12,483.32
Stock in Process 20,259.43 19,144'.50
Waste 73.31 40.73
SUB-TOTAL A 32,597.84 31,668.55
Less; Closing Stock
Finished Goods 19.069.84 J 2.265.1 0
Stock in Process 24.920.88 20.25943
Waste 68.94 73.3 J

Goods in Transit -
SUB-TOTAL H 44,059.66 32,597.84
(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK A·B (11,461.82) (929.29)

36. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

13L1 MAR 20Z

* Includes purchases from an Indian Subsidiary Rs. 198.67 lakhs (previous year Rs. 129.14
lakhs).

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Raw Material & Components Consumed
Opening Stock 13,666.45 11,594.03
Add: Purchases * 1,37,997.73 1,11,142.87
SUB-TOTAL 1,51,664.18 1,22,736.90
Less: Closing Stock 18,383.75 13,666.45
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 1,33,280.43 1,09,070.45

35. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Interest - Banks 728.27 30.31
lnteresr- Others 270.62 202.62
Government Grants related to Property, Plant & 39.37 39.36
Equipment
Government Grants Received 80.00
Miscellaneous Receipts and Incomes 106.05 33.95
Cash Discount Received 0.63 5..57
Insurance Claim Received 4.31 -
Profit on changes in NAV of Mutual Funds 94.18
Profit on Redumpticn of Mutual funds 8.22
Dividend Received on Mutual Funds - 80.52
Profit on Sale of Assets 49.94 0.05
Exchange Rate Difference (Net) 4,905.43
Rent Received 1.10 1.20
Mark to Market on Forward Contracts 2.224.53 -

Provision for Doubtful Debts Written Back 10.03
Sundry balances / Excess provision written back 6.48 14.01
Liability no longer payable written back 160.25 108.72
TOTAL 3,773.95 5,431.77

34 OTHER INCOME

INDO COUNT INDUSTRJES LlMITE
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Refer Note No. 43 for information about Leases.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Depreciation 4,031.10 4,064.52

TOTAL 4,031.10 4,064.52

39. DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Interest Expense:
- On Term Loans 394.99 588.11
- Banks 1,404.58 2,339.82
- Others 110.68 162.50
Bank Charges 710.69 553.56
Finance Procurement Charges 72.47 48.99
TOTAL 2,693.41 3,692.98

38. FINANCE COST

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Salaries& Wages 11,229.00 10,363.16
Directors' Remuneration 2,280.44 1,088.55
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 654.25 625.09
Gratuity 162.59 144.29
Staff Welfare Expense 171.40 227.94
Recruitment& Training Expense 29.76 13.37
TOTAL 14,527.44 12,462.40

37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITE
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41. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
(a) Includes Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 9,427.12 lakhs) provided against refund of excess export benefits of earlier years by way of
MEIS claimed to the extent ofRs. Nil (previous year Rs. 7,267.87Iakhs) along with interest thereon against Adjudication Order issued
by office of The Commissioner of Customs.

(b) Pursuant to the Notifications dated January 14,2020 and January 29, 2020 issued by The Ministry of Textiles & the Ministry of
Commerce, Government of India, withdrawing the entitlement under Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) with
retrospective effect from March 07, 2019 on certain products exported in the past, the Company had written off the MEIS benefit of
Rs.Nil (previous year Rs 419.33 lakhs) for the period fromMarch 07.2019 to March 31,2019 as Exceptional Item.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
As Statutory Audit Fees 13.00 13.00
As Quarterly Audit / Limited Review Fees 9.00 9.00
As Tax Audit Fees 3.00 300
For Certification Work 0.28 0.20
In Other Capacity 3.52 1.68
For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.70 1.28
TOTAL 29.50 28.16

(b) Includes Payment to Auditors

(a) Refer Note No. 43 for information about Leases.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Consumption of Stores, Dyes and Packing Materials 18,432.64 15,110.45
Jobwork Charges 29,280.32 20,181.42
Power& Fuel 6,386.59 7,312.38
Rent (a) 208.88 129.87
Rates, Taxes & Fees 108.76 112.14
Insurance 494.45 420.65
Repairs to Machinery 572.72 402.57
Repairs to Buildings 85.69 95.82
Commission& Brokerage 1,309.65 1,663.93
Freight Outward 4,382.19 3,586.90
Other Selling Expenses 1,804.53 2,803.06
Loss on Sale of Assets 199.00 1.51
Loss on sale ofInvestments 0.51
Loss in value ofNAV of Mutual Funds - 7.82
Loss on Redemption of Mutual Funds - 18.20
Bad Debts / Advances written off 13.82 54.29
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances 433.43 -
Exchange Rate Difference (Net) 296.62 -

Mark to Market on Forward Contracts - 875.92
Miscellaneous Expenses (b) 5,594.88 4,984.02
TOTAL 69,604.68 57,760.95

40. OTHER EXPENSES
'3i1 MAR 2021
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Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

a) Estimated amount of contracts (net of 3,266.02 76.16
advances) remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for

b) Letter of credits opened for which the 7,170.65
material has not yet been shipped

B. Commitments

(d) No provision has been made in the accounts towards Electricity Duty on electricity generated for capti ve use during the period
01.04.2000 to 30.04.2005 amounting to Rs, 292.07 lakhs (previous year Rs. 292.07 lakhs) excluding interest, as the Company has won
the case against MSEDCL vide order number 2204 of2007 dated 07.11.2009 of the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai whereby it was
decided that no such duty is payable. MSEDCL has appealed before the Hon'ble Supreme Court with condonation of delay and matter
is yet to be heard. As the matter is subjudice, the management feels that no provision is necessary. _

(c) Under the package scheme of incentives ofGovemment of Maharashtra for Mega Projects, the Company was eligible for VAT
and Electricity duty refund benefits. However, ifit contravenes any of the conditions of the scheme or eligibility certificate of
entitlement, it shall repay forthwith the entire benefits drawn I availed alongwith interest thereon together with costs, charges and
expenses.

(b) The Company does not have any Advance Authorization (Advance Import Licenses) at the year end.

(a) In terms of EPCG Licences issued, the company has undertaken an export obligation for Rs. 64,797 lakhs, which is to be fulfilled
over a period of 6 years. The company has completed the export obligation to the extent of Rs. 64,797 lakhs till the year end, of whicl
licenses having Export Obligation of Rs, 50,442 lakhs redeemed by the DGFT and balance licenses having completed Export
Obligation value of'Rs. 14,355 lakhs are under redemption at DGFT. Further, there are licenses issued by the DGFT amounting to Rs.
4,439 lakhs for which capital goods are under imports.

Pa rtieu la rs Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

i) Bank Guarantees 469.51 960.69
ii) Excise Duty I Custom Duty / Service Tax 182.84 182.84
demands disputed in Appeals

iii) VAT I GST demands disputed in appeals 104.32

iv) Other litigation claims (Including Pending 47.89 47.51
Labour cases)

v) Corporate Guarantee given to a Foreign Bank 4,752.15 7,188.18
outside India for securing financial assistance to a
Foreign Subsidiary

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

f3il MAR ~~~
3 1 MAR 202

A. Contingent Liabilities
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h) The Company does not face a Significant liquidity fisk with regard to ItS lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet
the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Particulars Rs, in lakhs

For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

A) The total of future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable leases for each of the
following years:
i) Not later than one year 625.95 591.90

ii) Later than one year and not later than f ve 268.39 668.74

B) Lease payments recognized in the Statement 208.88 129.87
of Profit and Loss . . ...

e) Carrying value of Right-of-Use (ROU) assets amounted to Rs. 1,823.30 lakhs are disclosed under Note 6 to the financial statements.
t) The break-up of non-current and current lease liabilities as at March 31,2021 are disclosed under Note No. 23 & 30 respectively.
g) The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

d) Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low value assets amounted to Rs. 208.88 lakhs has been disclosed under Note 39
to the financial statements.

c) The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Particulars Gross Carrying Depreciation Net Carrying
Amount Amount

Land 1,420.44 56.41 1,364.03

Building 1,136.99 677.72 459.27

TOTAL 2,557.43 734.13 1,823.30

Rs. in lakhs

b) The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31,2021 are as follows:

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1,2020 is 8.55%.

43. LEASES
a) The effect of adoption of Ind AS I 16 is as follows:

The Following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
i) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.
ii) Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of
'initial application,
iii) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the ROU asset at the date of initial application.
iv) Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS I 16 is applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

3 1 MAR 2021
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C. Others
I. Indo Count Foundation

B. Associates
1. A. K. Jain HUF

iii) Parties where Control Exists
A. Subsidiaries

I. Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Ltd.

2. Indo Count Retail Ventures Pvt. Ltd.

3. Indo Count Global Inc., (USA)

4. Indo Count UK Ltd., (United Kingdom)

5. Indo Count Australia PTY Ltd.

6. Indo Count Global DMCC, UAE (Formerly Hometex Global DMCC)

ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
I. Smt. G. D. Jain
2. Smt. Shikha Jain

Executive Director & C.E.O.

Director (Works)

Independent Director (upto 15.08.2019)

Independent Director (upto [5.08.20[9)

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

3. Shri K. R. Lalpuria

4. Shri Kamal Mitra
5. Shri P. N. Shah

6. Shri R. Anand
7. Shri Dilip Thakkar
8. Shri Prern Malik

9. Shri Sushil Kumar Jiwarajka
10. Dr. (Mrs.) Vaijayanti Pandit

I I. Shri Sanjay Kumar Panda
12. Shri Siddharth Mehta

Executive Chairman

Executive Vice Chairman (w.e.f. 01.07.2019), Non Executive
Director tfrorn 01.07.2018lO 30.06.2019)

I. Shri Anil Kumar Jain
2. Shri Mohit .lain

44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Related party disclosures as required by IND-AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given below;

i) Key Management Personnel
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a) Previous year! igurcs are given 1!l brackets.
b) Related parties enlisted above are th05C having transactions with the Companv.

Particulars Associates I Relatives of Key Key Others Total

Subsidiaries Management Management
Personnel Personnel

Remuneration Paid 40.08 2,280.44 2,320.52

(-) (40.08) (1,088 55) (-) (1,12863)

Commission Paid 232.49 6.00 238.49

(363.69) (-) (7.00) (-) (370.69)

Sitting Fees
20.45 20.45

(-) (-) ( 16.30) (-) (16.30)

Service Charges Paid
(273.61) (-) (-) (-) (273.61)

Commission Received 58.00 58.00

(17.04) (-) (-) (,) ( 17.04)

Sale of Goods 13,214.63 25.00 13,239.63

(12,541.08) (-) (-) ( 1.16) ( 12,542.24)

Lease Rent Paid 80.75 80.75

(81.95) (-) (-) (-) (81.95)

Reimbursemt of Expenes 0.20 0.20

(-) (-) (-)- (-) (-)

Rcimbursernt of Expenes 0.20 0.20

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Services Charges against Deputation of Staff 11.60 11.60

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Business Purchase under Slump Sale from ICRVPL 1.00 1.00

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

CSR Expenses -- 33623 336.23

(-) (-) (-) (276.30) (276.30)

Purchase of Goods 198.67 198.67

(476.49) (-) (-) (-) (476.49)

Purchase of Stores, Spares & Packing Material 8.86 8.86

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

Sale of Machinery
(0.39) (.) (.). (-) (0.39)

Balance outstanding at the end of the year:

a) Investments 2,491.58 2,491.58

(2,492.09) (-) (-) (-) (2,492.09)

b) Sundry Debtors 4,971.50 - 4,971.50

(3,550.90) (.) (-) (-) (3,550.90)

c) Deposit- Rent 15.60 15.60

(15.60) (-) (-)' (-) (IS 60)

d) Deposit· Lease Machinery 30.00 - 30.00

(-) (-J (-) (-) (.)

0) Other Payables:

Remuneration Payable 1,048.48 1,04848

(-) (.) (24205) (0) (242.05)

Commission Payable 95.58 6.00 101.58

(6549) (.) (7.00) (-) (72.49)

Service Charges Payable 14.62 14.62

(1<164) (-) (-) (0) (l4.M)

Lease Rent Payable 1.17 1.17

(-l (-) (.) (.) (-)

Rs in lakhs
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Particulars Rs, in lakhs

For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

err Value of Imports:

· Capital Goods 729.47 133,66

- Raw Materials 7,067,56 5,946.60
· Stores, Dyes and Packing Materials 1,855.40 595.01

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
- Travelling 24.38 152,90

• Selling Commission / Claims 1,288,41 1.651.21

- Others 4,229,35 1,131.56

Earnings in Foreign Currency:
- FOB Value of Exports 2,31,789.94 1,73,777.93

48. OTHER Ij'llFORMAnON

Particulars HoM For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Face Value of Equity Shares Rs, 2.00 200
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares Nos. 19,73,99,670 19,73,99,670
outstanding
Profit for the year (Continuing Operations) Rs, In 26,026.02 7,376,27

lakhs
Weighted Average earnings per share (Basic and Rs, 13,18 3,74
Diluted)

47. DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOliNTING STANDARD (IND-AS) 33 "EARNINGS PER SHARE"

Out of the above, the Company has paid Rs. 336.23 lakhs (previous year Rs. 276,30 lakhs) to Indo Colint

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

i) Construction / Acquisition of Asset -

ii) On purpose other than (i) above 390,34

46. EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR)
The particulars of expenditure are as follows:
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. 235,2 I lakhs (previous year Rs. 430.87 lakhs).
b) Amount incurred during the year:

45. It is Management's opinion that since the Company is exclusively engaged in the activity of manufacture of textile products which constitutes a single
reportable segment in the context of Indian Accounting Standard (lnd-AS) 108 on "Operating Segments" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
oflndia.
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The Company makes annual contributions to the Life Insurance Corporation of India, which is funded defined benefit plan for
qualifying employees.

Leave Encashment Benefit
The Company provides for leave encashment, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The leave cncashment plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
equivalent to 12days salary for each completed year of service till retirement, subject to maximum of 90 days.

Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity
The Company provides tor gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. of an amount equivalent to 15 days
salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service in accordance with Indian
law. -
The Company makes annual contributions to the Life Insurance Corporation of India, which is funded detined benefit plan for
qualifying employees.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
For the year For the year
01.04.2020 to 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Benefits:
Provident Fund 589.44 545.95
Employee State Insurance Scheme 62.51 75.70
Labour Welfare Scheme 2.30 3.44
TOTAL 654.25 625.09

49. DISCLOSURES AS REQlJIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (lND-AS) 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"
Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount of Rs. 654.25 lakhs (previous year Rs. 625.09 lakhs) is recognised a, an expense and included in Employee Benefits Expense
under the following defined contribution plans (Refer Note 37, supra):
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(2.329.13) 0,209.35) (590.35) (536.79)

1,954.63 1.872.92 513.81 469.01

1.964.07 1.841.86 515.38 468.25

(2,313.21) (1,103.04) (587.89) (537.06)

240.38
467.82

1,036.78

19094
96.71
182.93

265.3'1
393.82
855.59

196.87
76.32
135.59

(14.16)
(53.00)
(11.91)
(79.07)

(1.10)
124.74
(38.78)
(2.22)
82.65

175.20 184.30

2.68
(20.90)

(0.55)

52.42

168.23
6.97

157.62
26.68

74.05
(2.85)

40.33
(4.20)
(0.20)
30.47

(27.04)

0.05

39.41

(222.69) (540.69) (53.56) (38.28)

2.127.76
1,905.07
222.69

2,026.01
1,485.32
540.69

54928
495.72
53.56

500.35
462.07
38.28

11.91
1,905.07

2.22
1.485.32

0.55
49572

(0.05:
462.0i

1.485.32
99.96

434.47
(126.59)

1.256.08
96.72
191.33
(61.03)

462.07
31.10
30.59

(28.58)

409.1
3U(
37.3:

( 15.86

(14.16)
(53.00)

2,127.76

(2.68)
(20.90)
549.28

(126.59) (61.03)
(1.10)
124.74
(38.78)

2.026.01

(28.58) ( 15.86
(0.20
30.4'

(27.04
500.3:

2,026.01
127.27
168.23

1,721.16
123.40
157.62

500.35
27.05
74.05

445.3
27.3
40.3

I Change in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation during the Year
I PresentValue of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the Year
2 InterestCost
3 Current ServiceCost
4 Past Service Cost
5 LiabilityTransfer fromother Company
6 LiabilityTransferred out I Divestment
7 Benefits Paid Directly by Employer
8 BenefitsPaid
9 Actuarial Changes Arising fromChanges in DemographicAssumptions
10 ActuarialChanges Arising fromChanges in Financial Assumptions
II Actuarial Changes Arising fromChanges in ExperienceAdjustments
12 PresentValueof Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Year

II Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the Year
I Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Year
2 Interest Income
3 Contributions Paid by the Employer
4 BenefitsPaid from the Fund
5 AssetsTransferred Out I Divestments
6 Returnon Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income
7 Actuarial Losses I (Gains)
8 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year

'" Net Asset I (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
I PresentValue of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Year
2 FairValue of Plan Assets at the end of the Year
3 Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
4 Net (Liability) I Asset - Current
5 Net (Liability) I Asset -Non-Current

IV Expenses recognised in the Statement of Protit and Loss for the Year
I Current service Cost
2 InterestCost on Benefit Obligation (Net)
3 Actuarial Changes Arising from Changes in DemographicAssumptions
4 ActuarialChanges Arising fromChanges in Financial Assumptions
5 ActuarialChanges Arising fromChanges in ExperienceAdjustments
6 Returnon Plan Assets excluding amount included
in 'Net Interest on net Defined Liability I (Asset)'

7 Total Expenses included in Employee Benefits Expense
V Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

1 ActuarialChanges Arising from Changes in DemographicAssumptions
2 ActuarialChanges Arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions
3 ActuarialChanges Arising fromChanges in Experience Adjustments
4 Returnon Plan Assets excluding Interest Income
5 Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

VI Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
1 Within the next 12Months (Next Annual Reporting Period)
2 Between2 and 5 Years
3 Between6 and lOY ears

VII Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumption is as below:

IncreaseI (Decrease) on Present Value of Defined
BenefitsObligation at the end of the Year
(i) One Percentage Point increase in Discount Rate
(ii) One Percentage Point decrease in Discount Rate
{i) One Percentage Point increase in Rate of Salary Increase
(ii) One Percentage Point decrease in Rate of Salary Increase

(funded) (funded) (funded) (fundcc
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-2ParticularsSr.

No.
GRATUITY LEAVE Ei'\CASHMENT

Rs. in lakhs
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Level J : Techniques which usc inputs that have a significant effect Oil the recorded fair value that are not based 011

observable market data,

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments hy valuation
Level I : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded tair value arc
observable, either directly or indirectly.

b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates
and individual credit worthiness of the countcrparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected lossess
of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
a) Fair valueof cash and short- term deposits, trade and other shOI1term receivables, trade payables. other current liabilities, short term
loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing panics, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

51. Jo'INANClALINSTRUMENTS· ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICA TIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASliREMENTS

Particulars 2020·21 2019·20

Plant and Machinery 0.11

TOTAL 0.11

50. DETAILS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE INCURRED DURING THE YEAR FOR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Rs In lakhs

(ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

(iii) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority. the promotion and other relevant factors, such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

Expected contribution 10 (he delined benefit plan for the next annual reporting period:
(i) The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit Obligationwere carried out at March 31. 2021.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashrnent

2020·21 2019·20 2020·21 2019·20

(funded) (funded) (funded) (funded)
Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.73% p.a. 6.73% p.a. 6.73% p.a. 6.73% p.a.
Salary Escalation (p.a.) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Mortality Rate during Employment Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured

Lives Mortality Lives Mortality LivesMortality LivesMortality
(2012·14) (2006·08) (2012·14) (2006·08)

Mortality Post Retirement Rate NA NA NA NA
Employee Turnover Rate (p.a.) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Future Benefit Cost Inflation NA NA NA NA

x Actuarial Assumptions

'" '"
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

2020.2t! 2019·20 2020.2lf 2019·20
Insurer Managed Funds 100%1 100% 100%/ 100%

IX The major catezori es of plan assets as a percentage of total

VIIJ Sensitivity Analysis Method
Sensitivity analysis is determined based on the expected movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different count
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measurements.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

~arrying Amount Fair value

As at 31.03,2021 Levell Levell Level 3

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
Trade Receivables 52,514.59 -
Loans and Other Receivables (Non-Current) 19147 191.47
Loans and Other Receivables (Current) 536.91 536.91
Cash and Bank Balances I 1,430.56 -
Bank Deposits 223.97 - -
TOTAL 64,897.50 - 728.38

Financial Assets at fair Value through Profit and Loss:
Investments 16,693.48 16,693.48

TOTAL 16,693.48 16,693.48 -
financial Asset, at fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income:
Derivative Instruments 4.763.42 4.763.42 -

TOTAL 4,763.42 4,763.42 -
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Non-Current Borrowings 1.935.26
Current Borrowings 50,586.22

Trade and Other Payab1<." 22.976.46
Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current) 15633 156.33

Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 3,012.63 IA18.21

TOTAL 78,666.90 - 1.57-t,5-t

During the reporting period ending March 31. 2021 and March 31~e were no transfers between l.cvel I and l.cvel ~ fair value
- ."_

Particulars Rs. in lakhs
"arrying Amount Fair value
As at 31.03.2020 Level I Level z Lenl3

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
Trade Receivables 25,792.10 -
Loans and Other Receivables (Non-Current) 333.07 333.Q7
Loans and Other Receivables (Current) 464.22 - 464.22
Cash and Bank Balances 12,563.67 -

Bank Deposits 254.37
TOTAL 39,407.43 - 797.29
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss:
Investments 9.54 9.54 -
TOTAL 9.54 9.54 - -
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Non-Current Borrowings 3,609.72
Current Borrowings 29,184.60 - -
Trade and Other Payables 11,622.38
Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current) 588.72 - 588.72
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 3,576.11 1,583.80
TOTAL 48,581.53 - 2,172.52
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income:
Derivative Instruments 5,639.00 - 5,639.00
TOTAL 5,639,00 - 5,639.00 -
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Partlculars Rs. In Iakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

50 bps increase would decrease the Profit before Tax by 270.58 173.93

50 bps decrease would increase the Profit before Tax by (270.58) ( 173.93)

Interest Rate Sensitivity

A change of 50 bps in interest rates would have following impact on Profit before Tax:

Particulars Rs. In lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Total Borrowings 54,115.77 34,785.28

% of Borrowings out of above bearing Variable 100% 100%
Rate of Interest

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

According to the Company, interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities, an analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. Above 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. In order to optimise the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest
rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and
floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire
process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved
by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, implementing
hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from ii change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates,
equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive
financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial
risk management policy is set by the Board of Directors.

Pa rticu la rs As at 31.03.2021 IAs at 31.03.2020

Non-Current Security Deposits Discounted Cash Flow method using
current interest rate.

Derivative Instruments Based on quotes from banks.
Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current) Discounted Cash Flow method using

risk adjusted discount rate.

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

The following table shows the valuation techniques and inputs used for financial instruments:
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Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of' increase I decrease of the BSE index on [he Company's equity and gain / Ioss for the period. The anctvsis is based
on the assumpnon that the index has iocrcased by 5% or decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and that all the Company's equity instruments
moved in line with the Index

Market Risk. Price Risk
Exposure
The Company's exposure to equity securities' price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the Balance Sheet at fair value through
Profit and Loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversities its portfolio Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by (he Company

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

5 % Increase 5 % Decrease 5 % lncrease 5 °IG Decrease

USD 3,005.65 (3,005.65) 1,555.44 (1,555.44)

EUR 2,93 (2.93) 4.47 (4.47)

GBP 20.60 (20,60) 7.62 (7.62)

CHF 9,55 (9.55) 25.94 (25,94)

lPV 13.42 (13.42)

INCREASE I (DECREASE) IN PROFIT AND LOSS 3,038,73 (3,038.73) 1,606.90 (1,696.90)

R" In lakhs

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
5 % increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before lax:

Particulars Number 0 Foreign Rs. iD lakhs Bu)'/SeU
Contracts Currency in

lakhs (USD)

As at 31,03.2021 268 2,595.00 1,99,822.59 Sell

As at 31,03,2020 202 1,588.98 1,14,34328 Sell

Forward Contracts
Foreign currency hedges taken by the Company against export trade receivables are as under'

Particulars USD EUR GBP CHF JPV Tala
For~ign Currency Exposure as at 31 March, 2020
Trade and Other Receivables 298.07 0.80 0.91 1.45 19.27 320.5
Non-Current Borrowings 5.64 5.6
Current Borrowings 2.24 2.2,
Bank Balances 36.82 36,8
Trade and Other Payables 74.01 0.28 0,72 75,0
Foreign Currency Exposure. as atJI March, 2021 -
Trade and Other Receivables 694.48 0.68 3,12 1.09 699,3'
Non-Current Borrowings 1.37 13'
Current Borrowings 37.72 )7,7:
Bank Balances 1034 10.3'
Trade and Other Payables 79,69 0.01 0.97 80.6:

Foreign Currency in Iakh

Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods, commodities and services in the respective currencies.
The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the Company follows established risk management policies,
including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company operates internationally and portion of the business IS transacted in serveral currencies and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign
exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases from OVerseas suppliers in various foreign currencies.

3 1 MAR Z(
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATf,\If.NTS

INDO COUNT INDUSTRIES LIMITI

202



Balance II'Ith banks IS subject to 101\'credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to these banks.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As a131.03.2021 IAs 3131.03.2020
Trade Receivables 52,514.591 25.792.10

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Financial Assets for which loss allowance is
measured using 12-months' Expected Credit
Losses (ECL)

Investments in Debentures or Bonds 16,693.48 9.54

Non-Current Loans and Advances 191.46 333.06
Cash and Bank Balances 11,430.56 12,563.67

. Bank Deposits 223.97 254.37

Current Loans and Advances 536.91 464.22

Exposure to Credit Risk

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend,
industrial practices and the business enviornment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and
past trends. Based on historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material, hence, no additional provision considered.

Financial assets arc written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment
plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, they are recognised in profit and loss.

Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

Actual or expected significant changes in the operating resuits of the counterpart)',
Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligations,

Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,
Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or credit

enhancements.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forward looking information such as:

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends,
and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

Abpve referred sensitivity pertams to quoted equity Investment (Refer Note No. 13). Profit for the year would increase I decrease as a
result of gains I losses on equity securities at fair value through profit and loss.

Particulars Rs. In lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As a131.03.2020
BSE Sensex 30 - Increase 5% 834.67 0.48
BSE Sensex 30 - Decrease 5% (834.67) (0.48)

...

Impact on Profit before Tax
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Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

As at 31.03.2021
Non-Current Borrowings 1,935.26 1,935.26
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities - 156.33 156.33
Current Borrowings 50,586.22 - 50,586.22
Trade Payables 22,976.46 - 22,976.46

Other Current Financial Liabilities 3,012.63 - 3,012.63
As at 31.03.2020
Non-Current Borrowings 3,609.72 3,609.72
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities - 588.72 588.72
Current Borrowings 29,184.60 - 29,184.60

Trade Payables 11,622.38 11,622.38
Other Financial Liabilities 9,215.11 - 9,215.11

Rs, in lakhs

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time Or at a reasonable price.
The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through
rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021
Not Due 49,653.13
Up to 3 months 1,664.72
3 to 6 months 201.41
More than 6 months 995.33
TOTAL 52,514.59
As at 31.03.2020
Not Due 22,088.60
Up to 3 months 1,765.69
3 to 6 months 670.63
More than 6 months 1,267.18
TOTAL 25,792.10

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provision) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:
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Particulars Cash and Cash Non Current Current Interest Total
Equivalents Borrowings Borrowings Accrued but not

(including Due
Current

Maturities) -
As at 31.03.2021

Opening Net Debt 12,563.67 (5,600.68) (29,184.60) (1.35) (22,222.96)

Cash Flows (1,133.11) 2,071.13 (21,401.62) (20,463.60)

Finance Cost (2,693.41) (2,693.41 )

Interest Paid 2,694.64 2,694.64

CLOSING NET DEBT 11,430.56 (3,529.55) (50,586.22) (0.12) (42.685.33)

As 0131.03.2020

Opening Net Debl 1.774.02 (8,035.62) (22,850.03) (53.58) (29,165.21)

Cash Flows 10,789.65 2.434.94 (6,334.57) 6.890.02

Finance Cost (3,692.98) (3.692.98)

Interest Paid 3,745.21 3,745.21

CLOSING NET DEBT 12,563.67 (5,600.68) (29,184.60) (1.35) (22,222.96)

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,430.56 12,563.67

Non-Current Borrowings (including Current Maturities) (3,529.55) (5,600.68)

Current Borrowings (50,586.22) (29,184.60)

Interest Accrued but not Due (0.12) (1.35)

NET DEBT (42,685.33) (22,222.96)

53. NET DEBT RECONCILIA TlON

Particulars Rs. in lakhs

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Exposure to Credit Risk

Total Debt 5~,115.77 34,785,28

Equity 1,27,437.66 97,236.64

Capital and Debt 1,81,553.43 1.32,021.92

GEARING RATIO 29.81% 26.35%

The Company monitors capital using Gearing Ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt

Capital Management

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary
objective of the Company's Capital Management is to maximise shareholde'rs value. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants,
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Company Secretary
Mumbai,May 17,2021

Chief Financial Officer

~
Arnruta AvasarePartner

Membership No.: 52 1915
New Delhi, May 17,202 I

DIN: 000SnS3DIN: 00086106

For Suresh Kumar Miltal & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N

JfH'
Kailash R. Lalpuria

Executive Director & C.E.O.

~ 'Iv)' 1 j(_ """tilt(_.,1hi't-
Anil Kumar Jain

Executive Chairman

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Board of DirectThe accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements

55. IMPACT OF COVID PANDEMIC AND RELATED LOCKDOWN MEASURES

Due to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent lockdown enforced by the Government of India, the
manufacturing operations were temporarily shut down from 23rd March 2020 and after a period of - 30 days, restarted
partially from 26th April, 2020 subject to conditions imposed by the Government. Asa result of lockdown, the volumes for
the month of April 2020 and May 2020 were impacted and accordingly, results of FY2021 are not comparable with
corresponding FY2020. The Company hasassessed,and is continuously reviewing, its liquidity, future cashflow
projections and the probability of occurrence of the forecasted transactions underlying the hedgesbasedon orders in
hand and current indicators of future economic conditions. The financial results for Q4 FY21 takes into consideration such
assessmentof the possible effects of the Covid 19 and the recoverability of the carrying value of its assets.However, the
impact of pandemic in the subsequent period may be different from the estimations usedat the time of finalising these
financial results

Name of the Company Rs. in lakhs
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Indo CountGlobal lnc., USA 4,752.15 7,188.18
TOTAL 4,752.15 7,188.18

Corporate guaranteegiven by the Company in respect of loans as at 31 March, 2021:

There are no loans given, which are covered under section 186(4)of the CompaniesACI, 2013. Investmentsmade are-given under the respective heads.

54. DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED UNDER SECTION 186(4)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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PI".: NowDeihl
Dote:3" Augu5l,202l
UDIN'1..'S'\\~ IS AI\j:\III'S>T81.~3

ForSureshKumarM,II.t & Co
Ch.rtered Accountants

Firm Reeom.tlon No. SOOO63N

H'.
(Ankur Bagla)

PARTNER
Membership Number. 521,915

S. The Statement Includes tile results for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 beina tho b.lanc'na fiaure
between the audited ngures In respect of the futl financial year cnded March 31,2021 and tile publlshtd
unaudited year·to-date fiBures up to the third quarter of that flnanclal year, whl<:hwere subjected to a
limited review by us, as required under the listing Regulations.

4. aasedon our relliew conducted .s above, nothing has come to our attention tIm causes us to belIeve
that the accompanyIngstatement of unaudited financial results prepared In accordancewith .pplll:able
accounting standards and other recognlled accounting practices and polldes has not disdosed the
Information required to be disclosed In wms of Regutation 33 of the SE81 (Llstina Obll'.'ions and
Ol,ctosule Requirements) Regulations,2015lncludlns the manner In whiChIt Is to be disclosed,or that It
conUllnsanv malerlat misstatement.

3. We conducted our (evlelN of the Statement In accord.nce with the Standard On Review Ene.gements
(SRE)2410 NRevlewof Interim Financial Information Perlormed by the Independent AuditOr of the
Entltv". Issued bv the Institute of Ch.rtered Accountants of India. This stfndard requires that we plan
and perform the review to obt.ln moderate assuranceasto whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. A review Is limited primarily to Inquiries of company personnet and Inatytl .. 1
procedure, applied to financial data and thus provides less as,urence than an audit We have not
performed an audIt and accordingly, we do not e.press an audit opinion.

2. The preparation of the statement In accordancewith the re<osnition and me.surement prlOClpleslaid
down In Indian Accountine Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial Reportlns" prescribed under
Section 133 of tho Companle. Act, 2013, es amended, read with relevant rules ,ssued thereunder and
other accounting princlptes generally accepted In Ind,a, Is the responsibility of the Company's
Managemont and has been approved bv the Boardof Directors of the company. Our responslblhty Is to
fSSUI) Il report on these financfal statements based on our rtvlew

1. We halle reviewed the accompanyl"s statement of unaudited slIndalone financial results of Indo Count
tndustrtes Umlted for the period endod 30" June 2021 .tt.ched herew,th, being s:"mintd by tho
company pUl'$uantto the requirements of Resulatlon 33 of the SEBI(Ustlng ObUsatlonsand Dl$c;losure
Requirements) RegulDilons,2015 asamended ('the Regulation').

To
The Bonrdof DireCtorsof
Indo Count Industries Limited

Auditor's Revlow Roport on Quarterly Financial ResulU andYear to oat. ResulUof lI>e CompanyPursuant
to the Resul3tion 33 of the SEBI(Listing Obligation, and Olsclosur. Requlremenu) Reaulatlons, 2015

eo. '11 Floor. _ Ho;l.
Sedor·ta, R_ DEUlI· 110085.
_ • 88114118411
E...... :~ ....

SURESH KUMAR MITTAL & CO.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordancewith the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India togetherwith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statementsunder the provisions of the CompaniesAct. 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities m accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a baSISfor our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment.were of most
significance In our audit of the financial statements of the current penod These matters
were addressedm the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not prOVidea separate opinion on these
matters.

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills
limited ("the Company"), which cornpnse the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021,
and the Statement of Profitand Loss, Statement of Changes In Equtty and Statementof
Cash Flows for the year then ended,and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of Significantaccounting policies andother explanatorymformation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by theAct in the manner so requiredand give a true and fair view m conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31.2021. and loss. changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

REPORTONTHE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Membersof
PranavadityaSpinning Mills Limited

80. '11 Floor. Pocket H·3,
Sector·18. RDhinl. DELHI· 110085.
MobIle 9871.11946
E-mail aureshkmittat@gmell.com

SURESH KUMAR MITTAL & CO.
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
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The Company's Board of Directors IS responsible for the preparation of the other
Information. The other Informahon compnses the information Included In the
Management DISCUSSionand Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report. BUSiness Respcnsibihty Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information,but does not include the standalone financral statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financlal statementsdoes not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assuranceconclusion thereon

In connectionWIthour audit of the standalone financral statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and in doing so. consider whether the other InformationIS
matenally Inconsistent With the standalone finanCial statements or our knowledge
obtainedduring the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there IS a matenal
misstatement of thiS other Information, we are required to report that fact We have
nothing to report In thiSregard

Responsibilities of Managemont and Those Charged With Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated In section
134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a, true and fair view of the financral cosmon,
Mao",' performance,oh'"9" mGh flowsof the Compao, maccordance

The plant operations were temporarily shut down anApril and May 2020 with lockdown
declared by the Government pursuant to outbreak of Covld 19 pandemic The Board
approved VRS/Separation Scheme on July 15, 2020which resulted In production
stoppage. Thereafter, the Boardat its meeting held on 21st October 2020 approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation of the Company with MIs Indo Count Industries LImited. the
HoldingCompany from the Appointed Date i.e., 1st October 20200r such other date as
directed by the Mumbal Bench of the National Company Law Tnbunal (NCLT). The
Company has received No-objection to the said scheme fromBSE Limited and
SEBI The Company ISIn the process of filing apphcabonWIthNCLT Consequently the
accounts have been preparedwithout giVingeffect of amalgamation on a gOingconcern
baSIS(refer notes 15. 31and 41 to the financial statements).

As on 3111 March 2021, current tax assets and other current assets Includes amounts
recoverable from government department for which efforts for recovery are being made
(refer note 12 and 13 to the financial statements) Our audit procedures consisted of
evaluahng whether any change was requirec to managements posmon on these
uncertamuesand the likelihoodof recoverabihty

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statoments and Auditor's Report
Thereon

110. , II Floor PocbI H-3.
Sec:Ior-la. Rotn. OELHI· 110085
Mobile 8871411W
E~ SlftShlcrnlllaI@gITllNIcom
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In prepanng the financial statements, management IS responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable matters
relatedto going concern and using the going concern baSISof accounting unless
managementeither Intendsto liquidale the Companyor to cease operations,or has no
reausticalternativebut to do so.

Those Board of Directorsare also responsiblefor overseeing the Company's flnanctal
reportingprocess.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statementsas a whole are free from material misstatement,whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includesour opinion Reasonableassurance
IS a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In
accordance With SAs Will always detect a material misstatement when It exists
Misstatementscan arise from fraud or error and are consideredmatenal if, Individually
or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic
decisionsof users taken on the basis of these financialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintainprofessionalskepticismthroughouttheaudit We also'

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whetherdue to fraud or error, deSignand performaudit proceduresresponsiveto those
nsks, and obtain audit evidence that ISsufficientand appropriateto provioea baSISfor
our opinion The fisk of not detecllng a material misstatement resulting from fraud IS
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentionalomissions.misrepresentations.or the overrideof mternalcontrol

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenanceof adequate accounting records In accordancewith the provisionsof the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventmgand detecting
frauds and other irregularities selecbon and applicallon of appropnate accounllng
policies,makingJudgmentsand esllmates that are reasonableand prudent.anddesign.
Implementationand maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records,relevantto the preparationand presentationof the financial statementthai give
a true and fair view and are free from materialmisstatement.whether due to fraud or
error

60. lit Floor.Pocket H·3.
Sector·1S. Rohinl. DElHI· 110085.
Mobile : 9871411948
E-mail IUflShkmlIUIlCgmaR com
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• Obtain an understandingof internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i)of
the Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Companyhas adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operaltngeffectivenessof such controls,

• Evaluatethe appropriatenessof accountingpolicies used and the reasonablenessof
accountingestimatesand relateddisclosuresmadebymanagement.

• Concludeon the appropriatenessof management'suse of the going concernbasisof
accountingand, based on the audit evidence obtained,whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditionsthat may cast significantdoubt on the Company's
ability to conltnue as a gOingconcern. If we concludethat a matenal uncertaintyexrsts
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the relateddisclosuresIn Ihe
financial statementsor, If such disclosuresare inadequate, 10 mOdifyour opinion Our
conclusionsare based on the auctt evidence obtamedup 10 the date of our auditor's
report However, future events or conditions may cause Ihe Company to cease to
ccounueas a goingconcern

• Evaluate the overall presentauon,structure and content of the financial statements,
IncludIngthedisclosures,andwhether the financialstalements represent the underlying
transactronsandevents in a mannerIhat achievesfair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of rrusstatementsin the standalone financial statements
that, IndiVIduallyor in aggregate, makes it probable that the econormcdecrstons of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be Influenced We
considerquanlltative matenalityand quahtativefactors In (i) planning the scope of our
auduwork and Inevatuaunqthe resultsof ourwork; and (il) to evaluate the effectof any
Identifiedmisstatementsin the financialstatements.

We communicatewith those chargedWithgovernanceregardIng,amongothermatters,
the plannedscope and timIng of the audit and signIficantaudit findings, Includingany
signrficantdeficienciesin internalcontrol thatwe identifyduringour audit

We also provide those charged With governance WIth a statement that we have
complred With relevant ethical requuements regarding Independence. and to
communicateWith them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thoughtto bearon our independence,andwhereapplrcable,relatedsafeguards

From the matters communicatedwith those charged with governance,we determine
thosematters that were of most signtficancein the audit of the financial statementsof
the current periodandare therefore the keyaudit matters We describethesematters In
our auduor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matteror when, in extremely rare circumstances,we determine that a matter shouldnot
be communicatedin our report ~ecau~~~verse consequencesof dOingso w~uld
reasonablybe expectedto outweIghth7f! st benefitsof such communication

~~ ~
, ~.f

I('~At':,.fI"i:.
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h)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 10 the
explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not paidlprovided
any remuneration to its directors

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B' Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting

e) On the basis of the wntten representallons received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors IS
dIsqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director In terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid standalone financial statements oomply with the
AccountlngStandards specffled under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies(Accounts) Rules. 2014

c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and loss, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt withbythis Report are in agreement
wtth the books of account.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Ihe
Companyso far as it appears from our examination of those books

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A' statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

As required by secnon 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all Ihe information and explanations which to the
best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

SO. lit Floor. Podlat H-3.
Sector·18. Rohinl, DELHI·110085.
Mobile : 9871411946
E-maU : sure$hkmittal@gmaO.com
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Partner
Membership No.: 521915

ANKURBAGLA
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.04.2021
UD1N:& IS2-lif I.f1'+AA,q B't 33/~

ForSuresh Kumar Mlttal & Co
CharteredAccountants

F'~ Reg"'''pj.OO63N

iv. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iii The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which therewere any material foreseeable losses.

Ii The Company does not have any pending litigations which would Impact us
financial position.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on Its flnanoal
position In Its standalone Financial Statements - refer notes22 and 32 to the
financial statements.

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanaltons
given to us'

60. 1st FIOot.POCketH-3.
Seclor·18. Rohini. DELHI· 110085
Mobile .9871411946
E-me~: IUreahktnitlel@gmaft.com
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(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the order made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under section 148(1)of the Act, and we are of the opinion that prima
facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and malntaln~
H" .. ever, we are neither '.9'"''€1nor have earned 0" detailed

'l"'!'edA~

(v) According to the Information and explanation given to US,"theCompany has not
accepted any ceccsu from the public Therefore. the provrsions of clause (v) of
the order are not applicable to the Company

The title deeds of immovable properties are held In the name of the Company

ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH (I) UNDER THE HEADING OF
"REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR
REPORTOF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED31sT MARCH 2021.

eo. lat Floor. Poct8I K.3,
Sedor·18, Rotn. DElHI· 110085
Mobile : 9871.11946
E-mail sueshtm,llalCgmai com

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us no
loans Investments, guarantees and security covered under section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act. 2013 has been given by the Company Therefore, the
provrstons of clause (IV)of the order are not applicable to the Company.

!

(c)

~I) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically venfied by the
management dUring the year except stocks lYingwith third parties In respect of
whom confirmations have been obtained and the discrepances noticed on
physical venncancn as compared to book record. which are not material. have
been properly dealt with In the books of account In our opimcn. the frequencyof
such verification ISreasonable

(iii) As explained to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered In the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013
and as such clauses (Iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the
Com an .

I(i) ITho Cornpan has mamtatned proper records ,"owm, ,," pa rnculars 000"""" I
(a) quantitative details and situation of fixed assets

The fixed assets have been physically venfied by the management dunng the
(b) year as per the phased program destqned to cover all the fixed assets over a

period, which In our opinion is reasonable haVing regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. Discrepancies noticed on such venficauon.
which are not material, have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts
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examination of such cost accounting records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the records of the Company, examined by us and information and
explanations given to us:

The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
(a) undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,

income tax, sales lax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and others as applicable. There are no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of aforesaid dues outstanding as at 31"1March 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable

(b) There are no disputed dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of
customs or duty of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax
outstanding as at 31'1March zoz texceot

SI. Nameof Nature of the Amount Period to Forumwhere
No the statute dues (Rs in which the dispute IS

lakh) amount pending Irelates
1. MVAT Act Reversal of 39.48 2012- Maharashtra 1

input tax 2013 Sales Tax
credit and Tribunal
interest

Ithereon I
(viii) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the

Company has no outstanding loans or borrowings from financial Institutional,
bank or government hence prcvlstone of clause (viii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company,

(Ix) In our opinion. during the year no moneyhas been raised by way of Initial pubhc
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans hence
provisions of clause (ix) of the order are not applicable to the Company

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us,
during the year the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration
and hence provisions of clause (xi) of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhl company and hence provisions of clause (xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company

-=f=,
I.&"i.Ill'J( I.'~0?II"' ~'• •

l~ ~"'I'tJA~
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For Suresh Kumar MiHal& Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No.' 500063N

~BA~LA
Partner

Membership Number 521915

Place New Deihl
Date 23 04.2021
UDIN ~1,S"'l.191S A~I1.l113'13.31~

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non cash transacllons With directors or
ersons connected Withhim.

l-:-(xv~i)----=T'.='he==:C==-o:;"m=panyIS not requ'''''ir-ed-:-t:-'o-=-be-reglsteredunder section 45-1A of the
'-- __ _...:R_:;e:::se=.;rv:_:eBank of India Act,,-,.:.:19=.::34:..:,_ _

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferentJal allotment I private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures dUring the year ended 3111March
2021

(xiii) According to the records examined by us, and information and explanauonsgIVen
to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188
and 177 of the Act and necessary details as required by the accounting
standards have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

80. ,., FlooJ. Pod<eI H-3.
s.c:t«·18. Rohini. DElHI· 110085
MobIle 8871411948
E-ma~ aureshkmlllalCgmel com
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We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained ISsuffiCient and appropriate to prOVidea baSIS
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal finanoal controls system over financial reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-secuen 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited Ihe Inlernal financIal controls over (Inancal reporting of Pranavadllya Spllllllng Mlns
LlrMed ( the Company") as of March 31"', 2021 In conjunctIon w,th our aud't of the Standalone Ind
AS Flnancal Slatements of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management's Responsibility (or Intornal Financial Controls

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and rnamtamrng inlernal fmancal
controls based on "the Internal control over financial reporling cnterta established by the Company
conSldenng the essential components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internat Flnancal Controls Over Financial Reporting (the -Guidance Note") Issued by the Inslltute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), These responsibilities Include the deSign, Implementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operallng effectively for ensunng the
orderly and effioent conduct of Its business mcludlOg adherence 10 company's pouoes the
safeguarding of Its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of rehable financial InformatJon,
as required under the Act

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responslb,lIty IS to express an opiniOnon the Company's Internal fmanclal controls over flnanOlal
reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit In accordance With the GUidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, Issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal finanoat controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Finanoal Controls and, both Issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the GUidance Note
reqUile that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate Inlemal financial controls over finanCial reporting was established
and mamtamed and If such controls operated effectively In all material respects

Our audit Involves performing procedures 10 obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
',nancial controls system over flnancal reportUlg and thell operabng effectiveness Our a<ld,t of
Intema financal controls over financial reporbng included obtaining an understanding of mtemal
fJ/l3ncai controls over financial reporting, assessmg the nsk Ihat a matenal weakness exests and
lesllng and evaluaMg the deSign and operating effectiveness of mternat control based on the
assessed nsk The procedures selected depend on the auditor s Judgement IncludIng the
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financiat statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

ANNEXURE B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH (II)(F) UNDER THE HEADING OF "REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO
THE MEMBERS OF PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sT MARCH 2021.

eo, lat Floor, POCk. H-3,
Sedor· 18, RoNni, DElHI· 110085
MoIIUe 8&714111148
E-maII'~com
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For Suresh Kumar Mlttal & Co
CharteredAccountants

Firm~063N

ANKURBAGLA
Partner

MembershipNumber 521g15
Place NewDelhi
Date. 23 ().4 2021
UolN J.1S'l1«ISI1/l,t7AlJy.H/If

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becauseof the Inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over finanCialreporttng including the
possibility of collusion or Impropermanagementovernde of controls. matenal misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected Also. projections of any evalualton of the Internal
flnancral controls over financial reporting to future penods are subject to the risk that the Internal
financial control over flnancial reporting may become Inadequatebecause of changes In condmons
or that the degree of complianceWiththe policies or proceduresmay deteriorate

Opinion

In our opnuon, the Company has. in all material respects an adequate Internal finanCialcontrols
system over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over finanCial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021 based on "the Internal control over 'Inanclal reporting
cntenaestablishedby the Company consideringthe essential componentsof Internal control stated In
the GuidanceNote Issuedby the ICAI"

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed
aoqutsrtion. use or dlspoSltJonof the Company's assets that could have a matenal effect on
the finanCialstatements

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements In accordance With generally accepted accounting
principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only In
accordanceWithauthorizatJonsof managementand directors of the Company and

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's Internal financial control over financial repor1tngIS a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples A
Company's Internal financial control over financial reporttng Includes those poheresand procedures
thal

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect
the transacuonsand dispositJonsof the assets of the Company.

eo. , at Floor. Pod<et 1+-3.
SecIof-18. Rohini. DELHI·110085.
~ 9811.11948
E.fNIiI : aureshl<mllWOgmeil.com
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PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
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The company has opted to follow cost model for accounting of its entire property, plant and
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost inclusive of Incidentill
expensesrelated to acquisition net of tax / duty credit availed,net of accumulated depreciatIon
and accumulated Impairment losses,If any. Suchcost Includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrOWingcosts for long-term construction project.sIf the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
Intervals, the Companydepredates them separatelybasedon their spedflt useful lives.Ukewlse.
when a major repair Is performed, its cost Is recognisedIn the carry",! amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement If the recognition criteria Is satisfied. All other repair and
maintenancecosts are recognisedin profit or lossasIncurred. Thepresent value of the expected

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and rlcht-of-use 1I.Ssets:

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOUCIES

The financial statement are presented in Indian Rupees('INR') and all values are rounded to the
nearestlakhs, except otherwise Indicated.

Derivative financial Instruments,
Certain flnanclal assetsand liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

flnanclallnstruments)

The financial statements have been preparedon a historical cost baSIS,except for the following assets
and liabilities which havebeenmeasuredat fair value:

The financial statements have been prepared In accordancewith the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as 'Ind AS') as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read WIth

Companies(Indian AccountingStandards)Rulesasamended from time to time.

2. BASISOFPREPARATION

TheAnancial statements of the Companyfor the year ended March 31,2021were authorized for Issue
In accordancewith a resolution of the Boardof Directorson April 23, 2021.

TheCompanyIs 11 SpinningUnit engagedIn the manufacture of cotton yam.

PranavadltyaSpinningMills Umlted (the 'Company) Is a limIted company incorporated and domiciled
in India whose sharesare publicly traded. The registered office is located at Office No.2, Plot No.266.
VillageAIle. Kumbhoj Road.TalukaHatkanagale,Dist.Kolhapur-416109.Maharashtra, India

1. CORPORATEINFORMATION

NOTESTO THE FINANOAL STATIMENTS FORYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2021

PRAN.AVADITYA SPINNING MIllS UMITED
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In caseof pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depredation of property. plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any Significant part Initially recognised 15
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss ariSIng on derecognltion of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is Included in the
statement of profit and losswhen the asset is derecognised.

In caseof some Items of plant, depredation has been provided In range of 26 years (minimum) to
3S years (maximum) based on the technical evaluation of the remaining useful life which Is
different from the one specified in schedule 1110 the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates certain Items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives

which are different from the useful life prescribed In Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assetsare likely to be used.

The present value ofthe expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use 15Included
In the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as
specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are
added / disposed off during the year, depreciation Is provided on pro-rata basiswith reference to
the date of addition / deletion.

Rlght-ol-use (ROU) assetsare stated at cost,less accumulated depreciation and Impairment loss,
If any. The carrying amount of ROUassets is adjusted for remeasurement of lease liability, If any,
In future. Cost of ROUassetscomprises the amount of initial measurement of lease liability, lease
payments made before the commencement date (net of incentives received). Initial direct costs
and present value of estimated costs of dismantling and restoration, if any.

Capital work-In-progress Includes COSt of property, plant and equipment under Installation / under
development asat the balance sheet date.

cost lor the decommissioning ofan asset after Its use Is Included in the cost of the respective asset
If the recognition criteria tor a provision are met.

NOTES TO THE fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS fOR YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2021

PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MilLS LIMITED

226



The useful lives of Intangible assetsare assessed3S either flnlte or indefinite.

3.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost. Following Initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated Impairment losses. Internally generated Intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs. are not capitalized and the related expenditure Is reflected In profit or loss In
the period In which the expenditure is incurred.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset Is
recognlled In the statement o( profit and loss in the perIod of derecognltlon.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed off or when the
Investment property Is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit Is
expected (rom Its disposal.

Though the company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of Investment property is disclosed In the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation
model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment
properties are reviewed, and adjusted on prospective basisas appropriate, at each financial year
end. The effects of any revision are included In the statement of profit and loss when the change
arise.

The cost Includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing cost for long term construction
projects If the recognition criteria are met.When significant parts of the Investment property are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit and loss as
Incurred.

Investment properties compnse portions of freehold land and office building that are held for
long-term rental yields and/or for capital appredatlon. Investment properties are InitJally
recognized at cost. Subsequently, Investment property comprising of building is carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses.

3.2 Investment properties
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3.4 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost lessany accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impairment losses.Amortisatlon 01the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It Isamortised over
the period of expected luture benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised In the statement 01
profit and loss.

Research and Development Cost:
Researchcosts are expensed as Incurred. Development expenditures on an Individual project are
recognlzed asan Intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate;
- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available

for use or sale
- Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the <lsset
- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Gains or losses arising from derecognitlon of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 01the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit or losswhen the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets With indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for Impairment
annually, either Individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment 01indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determtne whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indeflnlte to flnite Is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed lor
impairment whenever there is an indication that the Intangible asset may be Impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reportong period. Changes In the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In the asset are
conSidered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes In accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on Intangible assets with finite lives
Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
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b) Finished goods and work in progress:

3.6 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred In bringing each
product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:
a) Raw material, packing material, construction material, stores & spares:

Cost Includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred In bringing the inventOries to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Impairment lossesof continuing operanons, Indudlng impairment on inventories, are recognized
In profit and loss section of the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation taken to Other Comprehensive Income (the OCI) for such
properties, the impairment is recogmzed in 00 up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

The company bases its Impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUsto which the Individual assetsare
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
ionger periods, a long-term growth rate Iscalculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year.

In assessingvalue In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks speclflc to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transaction is taken into account. If no such transactions can be Identified, an appropriate
valuation model Isused. Thesecalculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value Indicators.

Recoverable amount Is determined:
In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value
in use; and
In the case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates Identified, independent
cash flows) at the higher of the cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the value
in use.

3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets:
As at each balance sheet date, the Company assesseswhether there is an Indication that an asset
may be Impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of Impairment loss recognized
In the previous periods. If any indication exists or when annual Impairment testing for an asset Is
required, If any, the Company determines the recoverable amount and Impairment loss is
recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for Its Intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
In which they occur.
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3.9 Current versus non-current classffication
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification. An asset Is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed In normal operating cycle
Held primarily tor the purpose of trading

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Foreign currency rranseenons are recorded on 'Oltial recognition in the functional currency, USing
the e~change rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency
monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. ~chan8e differences that arise on
settlement of monetary Items or on reporting at each balance sheet date at the closing rate are
recognized as Income or expenses in the period in which they are arise. Non-monetary Items
which are carried at historical cost denominated In a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Non-monetary Items measured at fair value In a foreign
currency are translated using the 6change rates at the date when the fair value Is determined.
The gain or loss arising on transac:tJonof non-monetary items Is recognized In line with the gain
or losses of the Item that gave arise to the translation difference (I.e. translation differences on
items whose gain or loss Is recognized in other comprehensive Income or the statement of profit
and loss Is also recognized in other comprehensrve income or the statement of profit and loss
respectively).

3.8 Foreign currency transactions
The Company's financial statements are presented In INR,which is also the Company's functional
currency.

3.7 Cashand cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks which are
short-term, highly liquid Investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cashand
which are subject to inSignificant risk of changes in value.

Net realisable value isthe estimated sellir.g price in the ordinary course of business, lessestimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessarv to make the sale.

Slow and non-moving material, obsolescence, defective inventories are duly provided for and
valued at net realisable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost Incurred.
Materials and supplies held for use In the production of Inventories are not written down if the
finished products in which they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred In bringing the Inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

c) Traded goods:
Cost Includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost Isdetermined on weighted average basis.

d) Wastage and rejections are valued at estimated realizable value.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level
Input that is significant to the fair value measurement asa whole:
- Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assetsor liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectJy observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is slgnillcant to the fair
val ue measurement Is unobservable

The Company usesvaluation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable
Inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes Into account amarket participant's ability
to 8enerate economic benefits by using the asset In Its highest and best use or by seiling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of an ISset or a liability Is measured usinglhe assumptions that market partlclpilnts
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assumln8 that market participants act In their
economiC beSt Interest.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

3.10 Fair value mea.surement
The Company measures finandal instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market,ln the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A liability Is current when:
It Isexpected to be settled In normal operating cycle
Ills held primarily for the purpose of trading
It Isdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or
There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liablliUes asnon-current. Deferred tax assets and lIablitties are
classified as non-current assetsand liabilities.

All other assets are cJasslfll!dasnon-current.

Cashor cashequivalent unless restncted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period
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Interest Income:

Rendering of Services:
Revenue from saie of service is recongised as per terms of the contract with customers when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably.

Sale of goods:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the consideration recelved or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates.

The speclfic recosnitlon crnena described beiow must also be met before revenue Is recognised.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment Is being
made. Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taldng
Into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. The Company hasconcluded that it Is the principal In all of Its revenue
arrangements since It Is the primary obhgor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to Inventory and credit risks.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 w.e.f. 1 April, 2018 using the modified retrospective
approach. However, the adoption of the standard did not have any Impact on the financial
statements.

3.11 Revenue Recosnitlon
The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 Issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" related to
revenue recognition which replaced Ind AS11 "Construction Contracts" and Ind AS18 ..Revenue"
and provide a single, comprehensive model for aft contracts with customers. The revised standard
contains principies to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognized,
The amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including Significant
Judgements and changes in those judgements aswell asassets recognized from costs incurred to
fulfill these contracts.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For assets and liabilities that are recosnised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (~sed on the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement asa whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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3.14Taxes
Current Income Tax:

3.13 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operauens and total
profit, both attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded
at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the e~pected useful life In a pattern of
consumption of the benefit 01 the underlying asset by equal annual Instalments. When loans or
similar assistanceare provided by governments or related Institutions, with an interest rate below
the current applicable market rate, the effect 01 this favorable Interest is regarded as a
government grant. The loan or assistance Is initially recognised and measured at fair value and
the government grant Is measured as the difference between the Initial carrying value 01 the loan
and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
applicable to financlaillabilities.

When the grant relates to the purchase of property, plant and equipment, It Is included in non­
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
Income.

3.U Government Grants
Government grants are recognised where there Is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
Item, It Is recognlsed as income on a systematic basisover the periods that the related costs, for
which It Is Intended to compensate, are expensed.

lease Income:
lease agreements by which the risks and rewards Incident to the ownership of an asset
substantially vest with the lessor are recogniled asoperating leases. lease rentals are recognized
on straight-line basis asper the terms of the agreements In the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends:
Revenue Is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment Is established, which Is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

For all flnanclallnstruments measured at amortised cost, Interest Income Is recorded uslns the
effective Interest rate (EIR),which Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts throueh the expected life of the financial Instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest Income Is Included
In other Income In the statement of profit and loss.
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3.1SSelment accountlnl
The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of Its business segments
separately for the purpose of making dedslons about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance IS evaluated based on profit or loss and Is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the finandal statements.
The operating segments have been identified on the basisof the nature of products I services.
a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with I allocable to the

segment including Inter-segment revenue.
b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with I allocable to segments are considered for

determining the segment result. Expenseswhich relate to the Company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

c) Income which relates to the Company as a whole and allocable to segments is Included In
unallocable Income.

The break-up of the major components of the deferred ta~assetsand liabilities asat balance sheet
date has been arrived at after setting off deferred ta)( assets and liabilities where the Company
have a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities and where such assets and
liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Deferred tax relating to items recosnized outside the statement of profit and loss Is recognized
outside the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recosnlzed In correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehenSive Income or directly In equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the
year when the asset Is realized or the liability is settled, basedon tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets IS reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sulfident taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecosnized deferred tax assets are reassessedat
each reporting date and art! recosnized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred Tax:
Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Tax on Income for the current period Isdetermined on the basis on estimated taxable Income
and tax credits computed In accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based
on the expected outcome of assessmentsI appeals.
Current income tax relatlOi to Items recosnlzed directly In equity and not In the statement of
profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates position taken In the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to Interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROUassets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of Impairment testing. the recoverable amount (t.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-In-use) is determined on an Individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash fiows that are largely independent of those from

(I) the contract involves the useof an identified asset,
(II) the Company hassubstantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the

period of the lease, and
(Ill) the Company has the fight to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the tease, the Company recognizes a rlght-ot-use (ROU) asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leaseswith a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short­
term and low-value leases. the Company recognIzes the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line bastsover the term of the lease. Certain leasearrangements Include the options
to extend or terminate the leasebefore the end of the lease term. ROUassetsand lease liabilities
Indudes these options when It Is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The ROUassets
are Initially recognized at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease Incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The Company's leaseasset classesprimarily consist of leases for land and buildings. TheCompany
assesseswhether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assesswhether a COntractconveys the right to control the

use of an identlfied asset, the Company assesseswhether:

3.16 leases
The Company as a lessee:

Inter-Segment transfer pricing
Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments Is accounted on the
basisof transfer price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined
to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotlated basis.

d) Segment result Includes margins on Inter-segment and sales which are reduced In arriving at
the profit before tax to the Company.

e) Segment assets and liabilities Indude those directly Identifiable with respective segments.
Unallocable assetsand liabilitIeS represent the assetsand l1abilitlesthat relate to the Company
as a whole and not allocable to any segment
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gain and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling.
exdudlng amounts included In net interest on the net defined benefit lIablllty and the
return on plan assets(excluding amounts Included In net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately In the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which

The cost of providing benefits under the deRned benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

b) Defined Benefit Plans
The employee Gratuity Fund scheme and leave Encashment scheme managed by different
trusts are defined benefit plans.

II) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plans

State Government Provtdent Scheme Is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid
I payable under the scheme Is recognized In the statement of profit and loss during the
period In which the emplovee renders the related services.

3.17 Employee benefits
I) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable only within twelve months of rendering the service are dassified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and the expected cost
of bonus. ex-gratia. and Incentives are recognized in the period during which the employee
renders the related service.

Leasesfor which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other ieasesare classified asoperating leases.

The Company as a lessor:

The lease liability Is Initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate Implicit In the lease or, If
not readily determinable, using the Incremental borrowing rates In the country of domicile of
these leases. lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU
asset If the Company chanaes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. lease lIabihty and ROU assets have been separately presented In the Balance
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CashGenerating Unit
(CGU)to which the asset belongs.
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Commitments indude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Contlncent liability Is disclosed In the case of:
a present obligation arising from past events, when It Is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
it present obligation ariSing from past events, when no reliable estimate Is possible;
a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre­
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the Increase In the provision due to the passageof time Is recognized asa finance COSt.

3.18 Provision, Contingent liabilities, Contlnsent assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the company expects some or all of it provision to be reimbursed, for example,
underan Insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as it separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement Is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expenses In the period In which they are
Incurred.

Long-term employee benefit
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period In which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
employee benefit expenses In the statement of profit and loss.

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements.
Net Interest expense or income.

Net Interest Is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net deflned benefit liability
or asset.

they occur. Remeasurements are not redasslfled to the statement of profit and loss In
subsequent periods. Past service cost Is recogniled In the statement of profit and loss In
the period of plan amendment.
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A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if It Is a component of the Company that
either has been disposed of, or Isclassified as held for sale and:

Assetsand liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately from other assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations In the
statement of prollt and loss.

3.20 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non·current assetsand disposal groups are classified asheld for sale If their carrying amounts will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non­
current assets and dlsposal,roups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the,r
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. This condition Is regarded as met only when the
sale Is highly probable and the asset or dlsposalsroup Isavailable lor Immediate sale In Its present
conditIon. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to quality for
recognition asa completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

3.19 Exceptional Items
On certain occasions, the size, type or Incidence of an item of Income or expense, pertaining to
the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure Improves the understanding of
the performance of the Company. Such income or expense Isclassified asan exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying the financial statements.

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts Is measured at the present value lower of the expected costs of
terminating the contract and the expected cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Company recognlzes impairment on the assets under the contract.

Other Lltlcatlon claims
Provision for litigation related obligation represents liabilities that are expected to materialize in
respect of matters In appeal.

liquidated damages
ProviSion for liquidated damages are recosnlzed on contracts lor which delivery dates are
exceeded and computed In reasonable manner.

Provision, contingent liabilities, contingent assetsand commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.
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Business model test; The Rnanoal asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and seiling financial assets,

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions 15measured at fair value through other
comprehensive Income unless the asset isdesignated at fair value through profit or loss under the
fair value option,

A financial asset that meets the follOWIngtwo conditions Is measured at amortised cost (net of
any write down for Impairment) unless the asset Is designated at fair value through profit or loss
under the fair value option,

Business model test: The objectIve of the Company's business model 15to hold the financial
asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its
contractual maturity to realize its faorvalue changes),
Cashflow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specifoed
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prindpal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the
statement of profit and loss (I.e, fair value through profit or loss), or recognized In other
comprehensive income (I,e fair value through other comprehensive Income),

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assetsare classified In two broad categories:
- Financial asset at fair value
- Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assetsare classified, at initial recognition, as flnanclal assetsmeasured at fair value or as
financial assetsmeasured at amortised cost,

3,21 Financial Instruments
I) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value thnough profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset,

An entity shall not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while It 15classified as held for
sale or while it is part of a disposal group classified asheld for sale,

represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
- Is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or

geographic.al area of operations,
or

- Is a subsidiary acquired exdustvely with a view to resale,
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Continuing Inllolvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset Ismeasured
at the lower of the original arrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

When the Company has transferred us rights to receive ash flows from an asset or has entered
Into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent .t has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control ohhe asset, the Company continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obhgations rnat the Company nas retained.

Oe~nltlon
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) Is primarily derecognised (I.e. removed from the Company's statement of
financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset nave expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive ash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received ash flows In full w.thout material delay to a lnird party under a
·pass-through· arrangement and either;
a) The Company has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or
b) TheCompany has neither transferred nor retaonedsubstantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If an equity Investment is not held for trading, an irrellOC<lbleelection ismade at initial recognition
to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive mcome WIth only dividend Income
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

All equity Inllestments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, witn value changes
recognized In the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity Investments for which the
entity hiS elected to present value changes In 'other eemprebenswe income'

All other financial asset Is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Ellen Ifan Instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive mcome, a financial asset ismeasured at fair value through profit or
loss if doing so eliminates or Signlflantly reduces a measurement or recognition Inconsistency
(sometimes referred to asan 'accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recogniz.lngthe gains and losseson them on d.fferent basis.

- cash flow char.cteristlcs test: Thecontractual terms of the flnandal asset glve rise on speclfled
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount
outst ..nding
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For assessing Increase In credit risk and Impairment loss, the COmpany combines finandal
Instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objectIve of facllitating an
analysis that Is designed to enable significant increase in credit risk LO be identifled on a timely
basiS.

for recocnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a signifianl increase In the credit risk since initial
recocnitJon. If credit risk has not increased signiflantly, 12-months' Ea. Is used to provide for
Impairment loss. However, If credit risk has increased slgnifianlly, lifetime ECl is used. If, In a
subsequent period, credit qualoty of the Instrument Improves such that there is no longer a
slgnifiant Increa.sein credit risk since initial recog.nitlon, then the COmpany reverts to recognhe
impairment loss allowance based on 12-months' EeL

The COmpanyusesa provision matrix to determine Impairment lossallowance on the portfolio of
trade receivables. The provision matrix Is based on its hlstorlQlly observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historially observed default rates are updated and changes In the forward­
looking estimates are analysed.

Under the slmplifled approach, the COmpanydoes not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime EUs at each reporting date, right from
its lnrtlal recognition.

The COmpanyfollows 'slmpllfled approach' for re,ocnitlon of Impairment loss allowance on:
Trade reo:eivablesor contract revenue reo:elvables;and

- All lease receivables

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
The 12-months' expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the flnandallnstrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date);
or
Fulillfetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all pOSsibledefault
events over the life of the finanCial instrument).

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assessesimpairment based on expected credit losses(Ea.) model to the following:

Financial assetsmeasured at amortised cost;
- F1nanclalassetsmeasured at fair value through other comprehensive income (MOO);

Investment In associates, Joint venture and subsidiaries
The Company has accounted for lIS Investment In associates, Joint venture, and subsidiaries at
cost.
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Flnanciaicuarantee (ontram
Financial guarantee contracts Issued by thr Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantee

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acqulsltlon and
fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR. The erR amortization Is Included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

loans and borrowings
Alter Initial recognition, lnterest- bearing loans and borrowing are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIRmethod. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognlzed aswell as through the EIRamortization process.

Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
desIgnated at the Initial date 01recognition, only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Gains or losses on liabilities held lor trading are recocnized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held lor trading II they are Incurred for the purpose 01
repurchasing In the near term. ThIscategory also includes derivative financial Instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging Instruments In hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financlaillablllhes at fair value through profit or loss Indude Iinanc1alliabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition asat fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of flnanclalliabilitles depends on their classification, asdescribed below:

II) Flnanclalllabllltles:
Initial recocnltIon and measurement
All finandalliabllities are recognized Initially at fair value and, in the caseof loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, and derivative finandal instruments.
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The financial information In the financial statements In respects of prior periods are restated as If
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the finandal
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business combination
had occurred after that date, the prior period Information is restated only from that date.

Businesscombinations involving entities or businesses under common control are acc.ounted for
using the pooling of interest method. Under pooling of interest, the assets and liabilities of the
combining entitles are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustments that are made
are to harmonise accounting policies.

3.22Business combination under common control
Common control business combinations indude transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a group.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
statement of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, whIch is
recognized In other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity
which is later reclassified to statement of profit and 1055 when the hedge Item affects profit or
loss.

Iv) Derivative financial Instruments and hedge accounting
The company enters into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency / price risk on unexecuted
firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivate contract is
entered Into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assetswhen the fair value Ispositive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

III) Offsetting of flnanclallnstruments
FJnancialassets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance
sheet If there Is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an Intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assetsand settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognitlon
A financial liability Is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms of an existing liability substantially modified, such as
exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts Is recognized In
the statement of profit and loss.

contracts are recosnited Initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the Issuanceof the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
higher of the amount of lossallowance determined asper impairment requirements of Ind AS109
and the amount recognized lesscumulative amortization.
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In assessingvalue In use, the estJrnated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the

The Company assessesat each reporting date whether there is an Indication that an asset may be
Impaired. If any Indication exists, or when annual Impairment testing for an asset Is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount Is the higher of an
asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value In use. It rsdetermined for an individual
asset, unless the assetdoesnot generate cashInflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGUexceeds Its recoverable
amount, the asset Is considered Impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment of non·flnanclal4lssets

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causingamaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based Its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existingcircumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changesare reflected In the assumptions when they occur.

Estimates and assumptions

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrused In the financial statements.

Judgements

The preparation of the separate financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assetsor liabilities affected in Mure periods.

4. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTlMATESAND ASSUMPTIONS

3.23 Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

The difference, If any, between the amount recorded as share capitillissued plus any additional
consideration In the form of cashor other assetsand the amount of share capital of the transferor
Is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves with
disclosure of Its nature and purpose In the notes.
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Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, If the use of such option Is reasonably
certain. The Company makesan assessmenton the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basisand
thereby assesseswhether it is reasonably cenaln that any options to extend or terminate the contract
will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any slgnlncanl
leasehold Improvements undenaken over the leaseterm, costs relating to the termination of the lease
and the Imponance of the underlying asset to the COmpany'soperiJIlons and the availability of suitable
alternatives. The lease term In future periods Is reassessedto ensure that the lease term renects the
current economic circumstances. AIier considering current and future economic conditions, the
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease
contracts.

L.....

The Impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses Judgement In making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the Impalrmenl calculation. based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reponing period.

Impairment of financial assets

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fajr value is measured uslng valuation
techniques Including the DCFmodel. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements Include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes In assumptions about these factors could affect the reponed fair value of financial
instruments.

Fair value measurement of financiallnstNments

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future. These Indude the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increasesandmonality rates. Due to the complexitIes
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligatIon Is highly sensitive to
changesIn these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reponing date.

nsks specific to the asset. In determining fair value leu costs of dJsposal,recent market transactions
are taken Into account. If no such transactions can be Identified, an appropriate valuation model Is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
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TheCompanyhasconsidered the possibleeffectsthat may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-
19 on the carrying amounts of receivables and unbilled revenues. In developing the assumptions
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condinons because of this
pandemic, the Company,asat the date of approval of these financial statements hasused Internal and
external sourcesof Information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts.
The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current
estimates expects the carrying amount of these assetswill be recovered. The impact of CQVID-19on
the Company'sfinancial statements maydiffer from that estimated as at the date of approval ofthese
financial statements.

estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19
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Sh."boldcft .r" ••• r,,,,, .... ""'y,rOlt.try IS fFJII_) oqullyoil .... ofRl 101·ucJ> fullypol.up

1$, Th .. 80atd or DlrCGtOOlor)'OU,Compatl)' lilt Its flKlCUq beld 002 tot Oc:mbcr. 2020 "PPm,,"" the Sc:.banc or Amalpmation orIN Campiin)' ....,'" I_
Count lrwll.llfnet umhcd. J lol(ilna ComPllt)' lut!fClCIto requlIlhllppnwftJa rbc awmn1C!d _ (orMidarrWlMlJlhOn l' l" Oetober.lrno IN ..,d
IImltlpnlllimn sl\all betrr«bveu~ flUnaor1hcordtto(Jloa'hloNanontlCompany Lawl'nbunal(NCL1)'Iflth RClJltrlW orCamc-rua ThcComPMY
hItSt'CClCived ObtC'NI1Jonkiter from B.'iP. Llmloc:dIIWI~IUCS and F~han. &ltd of IndlAC~E8I) coovC)inj their No-Obj«uOCIeothCIlChcmc Tbt
Compeny .. In the process ornlml.pplaeacloo UrWcfS«11Oft230 ott~ Comp.nid Ad, lOJ) WithNeLT

IndoCoutU tndUSlllct Limikld (Hoidin Com

(t) Iktillt Orsh.rtho&dfnholdin& mON: thin 5% ,hllu In Iht Compel,,:

(il) In the C:\'elll ofhquJd.lltion OrIN Comj)AII)'.lhc holders o(F.quity Shares "'111be enhllcd t.o fec.%tVCrmAlftlna ti.'I& ortheComJ)On)". aftc1 dlS1J1bubOD
of ,.II pn-(mruiAI amounts '·be chJlnbu:uon will be In P",POnton 10 lb. num~ orEqU(1)'Sbam Iwtd b)t the Ih&tt.boldel1

(I) The COmpMYhas0111)onoell» .requJI)' Siwa haYlnC. pot ..J.. orR, 10pet >lion: &<II hollkr dequur S_ II enulkd to.".YOWper ill..
and pro-qm diV,dend on 1MWItS be1d
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(Rs. in Lakhs except EPS)

30-Jun-21 31-Mar-21 30-Jun-20 31-Mar-21
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited

1 Income
Revenue from Operations -               -              197.07         520.08          
Other Operating Income 32.84          31.43           6.66             80.15            
Total Income 32.84          31.43           203.73         600.23          

2 Expenditure
Cost of Materials Consumed -               -               130.18         157.80          
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and
Stock-in-Trade

-              -               50.92           398.93          

 Employee Benefits Expense 29.26          46.48           103.13         224.33          
Finance Costs 0.65            2.73             4.45             7.72              
Depreciation and Amortisation 21.38          29.59           30.13           120.27          
Power and Fuel 3.29            3.07             32.96           79.70            
Other Expenses 11.35          14.54           18.21           73.46            
Total Expenses 65.93          96.41           369.98         1062.21       

3 Profit/ (loss) before Exceptional items and Tax (1-2) (33.09)         (64.98)         (166.25)       (461.98)        
4 Exceptional items (Refer Note No. 4) -              -              -              (365.04)        
5 Profit/ (loss) before Tax (3+4) (33.09)         (64.98)         (166.25)       (827.02)        
6 Tax Expense

Current Tax -               -               -               -               
Deferred Tax (3.46)           (18.01)         (46.25)         (236.16)        
Total Tax Expense (3.46)           (18.01)         (46.25)         (236.16)        

7 Net Profit / (Loss) for the Period (3-4) (29.63)         (46.97)         (120.00)       (590.86)        
8 Other Comprehensive Income (after tax)

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.70             30.53           (0.50)           30.03            
9 Total Comprehensive Income (5+6) (28.93)         (16.44)         (120.50)       (560.83)        

10 Paid up Equity Share Capital (Face Value of Rs 10/- each) 1924.13      1924.13       1924.13       1924.13       
11 Other Equity 474.16          
12 Earnings Per Share of Rs. 10/- each (not annualised for the 

quarters):- 
a) Basic (0.15)           (0.24)           (0.62)           (3.07)            
b) Diluted (0.15)           (0.24)           (0.62)           (3.07)            

Notes:
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

`

Exceptional item represents the expenditure incurred on account of VRS/Separation Scheme approved by the Board on July
15, 2020.

The Company mainly operates only in one segment namely "Textiles" and hence segment details are not required to be
published.
In line with the requirements of Regulation 47(2) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the results are available on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the Company's website at
www.pranavaditya.com.

The figures for the corresponding previous period have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them
comparable.

Figures for Quarter ended June 30, 2021 are not comparable with Quarter ended June 30, 2020 due to (a) temporary
shutdown of plant operations in April and May 2020 with lockdown declared by the Government pursuant to outbreak of
Covid 19 pandemic; and (b) production stoppage, due to separation of workers by exercising option for VRS/SS announced
by the Company in July 2020.
Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company approved by
the Board and No-objection received from BSE Limited and SEBI for the scheme, the Company has filed the application for
amalgamation with Hon’ble NCLT during the quarter ended 30th June 2021. The appointed date for the amalgamation is 1st
October, 2020 and the scheme will be effective upon filing of order of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) approving
the scheme with Registrar of Companies.

            PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
CIN No.: L17119PN1990PLC058139

Regd. Off. - Office No.2, Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Dist. Kolhapur - 416 109.
e-mail - investors@pranavaditya.com; website - www.pranavaditya.com

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2021

PART - I
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Quarter Ended Year Ended

The above results were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on July 23, 2021. The Statutory Auditors have carried out a limited review of the above financial results.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. K. Agrawal
Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: July 23, 2021 DIN: 00400892

ANNEXURE XVI
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5 The Staloment Includes tho results 10' tho qUlrttr ended March 31, 2021 belna Iht bolanclna flgu,.
bot.... n tho audited RguresIn "sptct of the lull financialyur ended March 31,2021 Dndthe published
unaud'ted V"INo·d.le r.,u,es up 10 tho third qUI"e, of thaI financialV"", which we'. subjected to 0
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ISRE)2410 "Reviewof Inle,lm FlnanelolInformation Performed by the Independent Audlto, of the
Enhty".Issued by the Inst.tute of Chartered Accountanls of India.This standard requires that we plan
.nd perform the revlltw to obtJln mod."t. 'loSUfJnQ as to whither the fin.nei.1 51'temenlS art free
of rn.le,,,,1 Mr$$tJttt'M'ftt A (fV~W II Lm,1td Pf'man ....to inqulnes of compJiny Pf1$Onnel.nd '""'ytlt.1
p'oced~. applied to ',nandll cU~ .nd Ihus provode less assurance Ih,n In lud'l W. hiVe nol
porfe<med In aud'l Ind lCCOrd'naiy .we do nol •• prHS In lud.t oponoCn.

2 1M pr~tJOn of tM st~t.tfT\e"tin«COINnct -.,lh the I'f!'COII"tJon and measurement pntKlp~s lafd
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Manas,menl and hi. betn .ppr"".d by tho Boardof o"ectors of lho company. Ou, ,espon"b,)ity is to
Issue. report on these financ~l stateme-nts based on our rMew.

w~ ~ ~-ed the accompanYl"C stotement of unaudited standalOne finol\Clal rosults of
Ptanavod'ty. Sl>inn,"I! Mil. Um'led for tho quo"" onded 3rt" JUn" 202lalt..:hod h"ev.,th. btln,
"",,,,ned by the <ornpaoy """Ulnl 10 the ~Ul .. ment. of ResulallOn 33 of thO S[BI 1........1
Ob1C>to", _ Oi5<:loWroRoquam .... ) ~o, .... tons. 2015 os ."",oded ('tho Rosulatlon·).

TO
Tho 80ard of Directorsof
Pra_odn:y. Sl>inninc Millslimited

Auditor's Revitow R.@pon on Qv~rterty Financial Results and Year to Date Results of tho Company
Pursuant to the Regufition 33 of the Sfal (Ustln, ObUgations and OisclCdurt RequIrements) Relulltions,
2015

6O.1"-'_~.
_·Ia. _ DaH!·t10085
Phone : 98714t194ae............... , I Ogrooll.cctn

SURESH KUMAR MmAL & CO.
o.AAtEJIED ACCOl.tITA.'<TS
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v."'~p,es.nt andtile 80"""cons;cered andopprovod. ~ ",_d Sch«no 01 """'9>""'tion (by
wryoj ""'-got by absorJ>OOnJ 01 Pronavodl)'aSp.n-.ing Md, Liro'tedn,..,.(ercr~"1)'" «
'0SMl, -..tIl t'le Ccrr.pony Md "- ro<p«tiv. __ uncle< Sett.ons 230 to 232 <cod "''''
olher ',,1>. ",bI. p<OV ....... o! tile COTpan:es Act. 2013 and rule. ("mod 1_ ("the
Scnemel.

A. 8fdtgmund

RfPOIIf ADO?TED BY 1M( 80ARD Of O:;L"COAS Of INOO CO'JNT IJ'.'!lUSTICEStJNIru)
fCOMPANY" O~ 1en.1 AT THEMtrnr:G HElD 0lIl OCTOSERa, 2020 AT 12:30 P.M.om THROUGH
VlDEO CONF£RfNONG (YQ PlJRSUANT TO THE PROVlSlOlllS OF S£cnOlll 232(2)(Q OF THE
CQVp_..es ACT.2013 IN THEsom~E OFAM...lGA....Ano ..~ Of PAANAVMXrYASP:NJlllNGMIU.S
ll v rm> WITH Tl'E COll.i?A.'IY
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Indo Count Industries Ltd
"-!o...» .)':s~."'__PwIl"""'" _Itt ~'1"'''' T I_' Ci1U1/11"'"

v• ._.,.01"13 0cIIa 0''''*'*'' __ ..... M.__ , on.'S"D,~ ClZl:l"72O'1"
..... tIoIIIIOMt.... l) ~.,. ...A4.. IM)CN.~ ~·4Mi1 _ ?on1."", o:tl'W,.,.

~""Oo. ... , 01MOe GoIU~ KCIIt....,_,.·.fC)4 M,.'tOO' ot1I8'~I.,
..... ,o.c. ow.Ho t.N .. _ .... MIt I(!,..,....No.o, ......... , O'~.4,.,ot~ ... 'cruottu'OOIW'.

r.1fr(02~1~" ' ..._ "' .... ~~

3. V.luation Repon

There _.$ no e-ffC<t of the S(.htnw on the K"Ps CO-.:KtOfS.. Que( F"If\OtOODIOffiCI" and CompJny
Seaet>ry) of tho eomp.ny All l(MPs sh." continue", hold tiI.;r "'PO<"'" po.it.." In ,,,­
CompoIT/ f\.rthe<. as »SIAL ... gel _. ory KMP holding -'I'll ICMP pen ~ In
P$\<l ....... "',Ie to I:c ~ thost ~ positoons. My tc..,Ps ""'" ng equity shares ....PSM.. as
on record "-,e..... rt!U'OV9l1>e "'Itacl JC!I. IS pe< the .""..".'lliotted sha'. ~ rat ..

Due '0 e!Io(m"", of equity ."., .. t>y Ill.Compony on ,ho .forOSOtd shatt ~ "'10.
tho o"era! 'h.~ang pet<"'~g.of PfOITlOlOf' Promoter Group of Iht Company will
901diluted by - 01.9"-

t) Promot ... Sha,eholders:

Due to .fOlesaid oIlountnL the To~t Pub'", Sh.reholcl,,'9 of the C_ M1t i~_ by
- O.l~ This voiDin Cumin:aN$e the ndlng nod cf the f'q\rity wrH of ~ C~ny.

The oqu,ty shares of til. Compony willet.will bo I,wed & .!IoIted to the Sha,.._, of
PSMl.ha~ be ~ on lISEUmi:ed .nd the NoIlOnll Stod: !xctlng' cf Indoa lilT' led and
'hi ,.....pan ~ In .. 'espeo ,.,t~the «1Lng ~:ty ~ of lite Compony.

"2 (Two) ruDy pood up eqIo ty sher.. of loa> ,-aIu. Re. 2/. .oci> 10 tho equOly
shreholders o! PSMLas on _ o.~for fYtty 15 <'"...... 1 ~-'Ypajd up "'I"iIY
sham of Rs. 10/·net. hold by them in P$\Il-"

a) Non-Promo:E<Sllal-el>olders: Upon ,''' _ btcoming -. ... 1M C_tTl ..iI
aa.e equity s."WH to the shar"ehoIdm of ?2.~as ee Rrcoro O.at. in 1M foIow.r~ $hare
~r." .."

1. Effea on Shor_ld!,.,

e. EFFKT OF THE SQalE Of k'MLGA.....ATlON ON EACHQASS OF SHAR!HOlDERS, I(EY
MANAG~ PERSONNaPROMOTERSAND NON-PROMOrnt SHAIWlotJ)(;lS

c....-eon-.
• A.I6:O(, cerIif.a!r •• ted Oem;"21. 202'>is~ by MIs. SoJmI'I Ku:mr MiIIM at Co.

SbIUl"'YAudi"-"'l 10the Compory cc,fnring that the ocrooobng Inltment proposed ..
the Sc:nMM is m (onrOfmity with the KCOUnting st~d.j)rds presmbtd undet Secbon 133
of the ~oies Act. lOLl;

1...00 COUH"T
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Indo Count Industries Ltd
t..... C)!I • Xt.~~,_ H....."".. ........ ~ 400021...,..,•.,... ""!Q:l24.)4I~r flnnNlOiI

......e ..c..0MIl....... ",.....,"~ ~~ ...... c-) • .eoo.,r.~_ .. 1an ..", 1_, =t'''Ol''
........ 0.. .' n ~.~n.. ... "JCw.AtN WIIW' ..,12' .,.. ~,m'tuttOO.1 cnl1fl7tttt

~ .. ......oft 01 MIOC,CoIoIoi~ 1(01,,",1* .~~. MANtW'II IfY.I,.. T.02:.I12GO'400 •• Of'" 7ft"'"
__ OlIn ()I'IiIt».... t. PlOt"'" _. V4IIIOtAM.Ka.IIWq,.Oef r.u.. ",kilt.,.•.DIitI 1(0000If)III•• to to" ....I• ...,"., 11'dIII;"01'»1./$"001 '4"0~

GIN,'nilM'",8deP\c:oon72,' In~~c«"l W _1ncblour"anM

&'bee:Mumbai
oat!'! 21" O<tcb.r. <020

~
AmnJtz AVlIsare
Company SoaetillY
ACS18M4

By ordor 01111.Board
Fer Indo C~fnt [ndustrfesUmired

Whit. d ....'~ting the Scheme. Ihe Soird has consider~ UI Impact on Nch 01 the shlfehokjetS.
p...-on non·pramoc ... $h.)r_rs. Key "'"Mg<'flal "",sonne\. cr.d,tO<S and empIc>yoe<. Tho
Scho'TI " on th. best Int.~S! 01 ,h. sh.",llolde'" ptomot.,~ non·promoter shareholders. lCey
t"'anagtfial personn.I, creditors and empfoyeH of the CCtlnr)[Iny end th,r. shall 00 no prejudice
Ca\I$I'd to the-m in any manner by ttl. Sd1em•.

C. Voewan III, SdIt....

INDO I;ULJHT
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CIH L1 1'- P"ItOPLCOst~3'
R[Cn. O."C£ .. MIW : ()fic. No 2. AOII 140 2&8. VW. A.bt. Kl,lf'l'lbhOi ""*'- r.t ..... HttlLeN.'-. o.t. ~ • el, t08
rei .. JOJ """0012401'" . (~~ : worl-JOptIN.,ao.rya_cOlP\, ~~~. t.0I8

• Rope" of the Audit Committ .. dOled0c1_ 21. 2020 (eccmrntndlng the _ to the
80Ird for opproYot

• F_ ()pnoo<\ on !he shira e>oCI>ango ....... datld oa_ 21. 2020 "sued by Soliton
CopotalAcMson Privat.UInItId • SEBI '"!I1St_ Cattgory I _t _

• Draft Sd1.me of .mllg,,,,,t.ton of tM Company with JOL as rec:ommtnded by the Audit
Common" 01 the Compony;

• VoIuo_ ropon dated <Id_ 21. 2020 "sued by ArM Kumor ~ R.og<mred V......
OB3I Reg. No. IBBl/RVi06I2019/l.2357) and AZR & _ .... ~odepe<.,o"t Chlnffed
""ountanto (FRN: 0275SON). reconvnending the ""'re oxchang. rotio 012:15 1.•• 2 (Two)
fully paid up oquity ""'r.s of loco valuo Re. 2/- oech 01 the Company fOt every IS (fik...,)
fully paid up tqUoty ""'res of lis. 10/· NCh hold In tho T,..,.f ..... Compony;

3. Tho s<homo contemplat es tho amo!glmotoon of !he Compony with Indo Count Industr"" Ulnlltd.
ftolding Company. PSMl is • subslcfllry of IOl "".,t!n ICIl holds 7<.53" of paid up capitol of
PSML The Appointed Date for !he $O" amalgamation Is 1"Oct_ 2020 0< such 0_ dat. IS
may~ approytd by Hon1>le NeL T.

'. WhiIo cis<u"'"9 on !he Scheme. !he 80Ird hid ",.., w_ and tocIc on _1oIIooMng
documont~

2. As ptr Section 232(2X<) 01 tho Compo"'" Act. 2013. a ropon adoptod by !he directort O>CpIaIning
effect of COn'Ipromis~ on each dlss of shareholders, key ~I ptrsonnel promolm ,nd
non-procnotor""".holders laying out in partkular !he ""' ... _~ ratio. is reqwed to ~
cwtUlated to !he shareholdersalong with tho notICe corwering !he mooting. A«""ingl). tNs
ropon of the 8oIrd" INdo under _ 232(2)(<) 04 tho Companies Act. 2013.

L A meeting of !he 80Ird of Ditocton r8oord1 of Pro.novodiIyo Spinning Mils lMMed rrronsfOfO<
Company" or ·PSMl· or ·Compo")"') was held on October 21. 2020. -.in an the [l;recton were
present and tho 80Ird considerod and apprOYed, the PfOPOStd Scheme of Amalgamation (by way
01 mergee by absorption) 01 Compony with Indo Count IncNSIrits Lirritld nOI: 0< -rransf .. ee
Compony1 and their respe<tNe ~ under S«bons 230 to 232 rMd with _ appk_
prooOsions 04 !he ~ Act. 2013 and Ilks fromod _ rIht Scheme").

A.. "<tgmsmd

RfPORT ADOPTED Iff THE BOARD Of DIRECTORS Of PRANAVJOOYA Sl'lHNING IoIlUS LDm'EO
rCOMPAHY" OR ·PSMl1 AT THE MEETlNG HElD ON OCTOBER 21. 2021) THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING (VC) PURSUANT TO THE PROII!SIONS OF SECTION 232(;n(Q Of THE COMPANIES
ACT. lOUIN THE SCHEME Of AMAlGAMATION OF THE COMPANY WITH INOO COUNT INDUSTRIES
LlMITED

PRANAVADITYA

CORPORATE OF'FleE ~
leu ',\RCAOt"'.
lRO'I.00R. NCPAMAltG.
HAJlIM,\.t,j pro_..,..
UUWBAI ·400 C21
TEL '1'·271041eoa
FAX {t1.27) 2282 30Mwww".,. .....cury •. COtn

PRAf\.AVADITYA
SPI I\JI G \!\ILLS
LI,\1ITED
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~N l 1'Utp'_"h\ ~LCO$l~3'
R[(,U. OFF"lcr & MILLS: Oft'.u ho.'. "'OIl "40. 266. V~I.g.tAr:., KUMbhOjAo.cI, 1,1,*, "'tIUNlng,'t. o.,t. K~haPU1'41' 101.
l, I~)O) 2443100"l4Vlm • [-mI' • 'NOrtIOPrt"'l'tIG<ty.,cOtn. 1CCO\;1'It.ePr.ntYecI4Y' Con'I

4. VIIUlIlonReport

Upon tho """I~tion bocomong .ff_ in t...... of the ~me. III ~ .. of the
Company. IS on ,he [IIKIM Date (OSdefined in 111,Schtm'~ slllil be dttmed '0 hi....become
,mployHs 01 the TraMI ... , Company. WIthout Iny "'tlmJ_ 01 _ and on tho btsis 01
ContinUity of MMe. and on tM wme terms Md condot.ons as enos.. S"OCFr.abMto them wiIh
rtltrtnu '0 the Company. "" the EIIoaNo 01te,

3_ EIfKI on Employe ..

AI KMPs(Oorecton. CIIift ~ 011_.Chief RnontiII Offic« and Company Secrow,! _
CU.. to hold "- _ posruon. in tho Compony. My KMPs holding tqUI1y ,hare< i.
PSMt...s on record d.lt. will recC'ivethe ~res of IOL as per the .fCM"tmtntioned shm tJC:Change
ratk>.

2_ Effecton OiroctonOt ICMPs

lOt (Promote<) holds ].'3 .. 1.280 oqurty >hi.... 01 lace vow R$. 10/· _ of PS.v..L
ropr....,ung 74.s3% of pod up _ cap'" of PSMLn.. so.d shire< _ by lC!L in
PSMLwi! sand anc_ pu......,., to this .- onoc:~ oIl~tion _
Iny lurtht< Ipplat 0<\ Ict and-.

b) Promotor SIIIrtholders:

The equiIy sill,.. of IOL _ W1Ilbe _ & allotted to tho ShamIoIcIenof PSMt _
be isted on SSEl.ini1ed and tho National SIodcEl«Nn9oof _ Lirritfd.

'2 (Two) t.AIy paid up equi<y _ of ,_ value III. 1/- .oct> to tho ec;OIy
shareholders of PSML IS onRecord OIt .. for ew:ry IS (f"dteen) fully paid up oquily
shares of R$.10/· each held by them in PSML'

I) N•• -Promo.... Shoreholden: Upon tho sd>ome be<oming tffKIM. tho sIIIroholde<s of
PSMl as on lWcord Oal~ Willbe issutd fqUity shares of IOl in the following share
exchange ratio::

1. Effecton ShatehoIden:

S. Eff<CT Of THE SCHEME OF AMAlGAMATION ON EACH ClASS OF SHAREHOlDERS. KEY
MANAGERIALPERSONNE~ PROMOTERSAND NON-PROMOTER SHAAEHOIDERS

PRANAVADJTYA

CORPOAATE o,,,ce :
301, 'ARCADIA
3ItO flOOR.. NCPA YAItG.
HARIWAHPO "fT
'''UUBAI • 400 021
TEL (il.22)4)4t t500
FAX (91·Z2)22'823088
VI'troII ",." ..... dIty. COtI'I

PRA".AVADITYA
SPI'lNING MILLS
LIMITED
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CIN ,-t,.nIP"'" 'LeoS"';
A(CD. OffICf .. MILLS: O:'I'<.t M. 2."'" No _ VIC:. AI! •. J(~ ~ T.4,Ae t~._.0IIt.KoIhIIM. '" ,W.
" ~lClt 2C1OC?461rl't • EoftO. ~~>J..:t.~ ................~ COfft

_M_
Date: 21" 0C10b0r. 2020

Wllol. doIibenttog the ScIlo-. the 80aJd !>os<_tel its i"l'Kl en _ of the shatoholdon.
pomotIn. _i><omotffsilo'_" Key ~ ~ aodCo<s one! ... 4'10,.... The
_ is .. the best inttftit 01 the _oIioIdo<1._t....",,"-_'ff shareliolclotl. K<y
Managenll ~rsonnet.aedrtOf1 one! ~ 01 the Compony and tho.. sh.. be no prejudiu
QV$od 10 th,m in any mann.t by the Sa.eme.

c. VI... on the Sd\~

PIIANAVADITYA

eORPORAn C)F'FIC'E•
3;01, 'ARCAD'A'
JROFLOOR. HCPAMARG.
NARt:MAH P()fNT.
IoIUIlBAI .00 e2t
TEl. ",.22') Qc' t5DO
FAX li'.U] ZZI2X$8
www"' ....... ..,.. co.
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3. Our responSibility, for this certJflCate, is limited to certifying whether the proposed accounting
treatment in the books of Company as contalOed in the draft SCheme of Amalgamation is in
compliance with all the Accounting Standards and did not include the evaluation of adherence by the
Company with alilhe applicable guidelines.

4. We conducted our examination of the Stateme~t In accordance with the Guidance Note on reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes Issued by the Insbtute of Chanered Accountants of India. The
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics Issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Auditor's Rosponsiblllty

2. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and Its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the proposed
accounting treatment specified in Clause 7 of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation complies with the
applicable Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Nothing
contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or In connection with the
services that are subject to this Certificate. will extend any duty of care that we may have In our
capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

Management's Responsibility

1. We, the statutory auditors of Indo Count Induslnes Limited ("the Company") have been engaged 10
examine the proposed accounting treatment specified In Clause 7 of the Draft Scheme of
Amalgamation between Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (the Transferor Company) with Indo
Count Industries Limited (the Transferee Company) and their respective shareholders In terms of the
provisions of SectIons 230 10 232 read with SecIlon 52 and other apphcable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 with reference 10 its comphance with the applicable Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rule 2014 and Other Generally Accepted Accounllng Principles.

To,
The Board of Directors,
Indo Count Industries Limited
Office No.1, Plot No. 266,
Village Aile Kumbhoj Road,
Taluka Hatkanangale,
Kolhapur - 416109
Maharashtra, India

Auditor's Certificate certifying accounting treatment contained in Draft Scheme (as defined
hereinafter) as prescribed in Annexure I, in respect of Scheme of Amalgamation of Pranavaditya
Spinning Mills Limited (the Transferor Company) Indo Count Industries Limited (the Transferee
Company) and their respective shareholders

60. lSI Floor, PockelH-3,
Seclor·18, ROO!ni,DELHI· 110085
Phone; 9871411946
E'mall ; 8ureshkmillalcoOgmail,com

SURESH KUMAR MITTAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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7. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

7.1 The Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company shall be accounted
for in the books of account of the Transferee Company In accordance with 'Poollng of Interest

Method' of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination)

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, which Is applicable to the Company

since this Is a common control business combination as follows:

7.2 All the assets, liabillhes and reserves in the books of the Transferor Company shall stand

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to the scheme and shall be
recorded by the Transferee Company at theIr carrying amounts as appearing in the books of

Transferor Company, on the Appointed Date.

7.3 The Transferee Company shall credit to its share captlal account. the aggregate face value of
the new shares issued by it pursuant to clJuse 6 of this Scheme.

7.4 The carrying amount of investments III the equity shares of the Transferor Company to the

extent held by Transferee Company, shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further
obligation in that behalf.

7.5 Upon the scheme coming into effect. the surplus Ideficit. If any of the net value of assets,

liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company acquired and recorded by the Transferee

Company in terms of clause 7.2 over the sum of (a) the lace value of the new shares on

Amalgamation issued and allotted pursuant to clause 6: and (b) the value of investments

cancelled pursuant to Clause 7.4. shaHbe adjusted In "caPItal Reserve Account" in the financial
statements of the Transferee Company.

7.6 Any inter-<:empany balanoe(s) and Inter-<X>mpanyIIlvestments, debts, borrOwings (secured or

unsecured). If any between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall stand

canoelied and corresponding effect shall \>B given in the books of account and the records of

Transferee Company for the reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be. There

would be no accrual of Interest or other charges and there shall be no obligation/outstanding in
that behalf in respect of any such intercompany loans. debt, securities or balances with effect

from the Appointed Date.

7. For ease of references, Clause 7 of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation ISreproduced below:
I

6. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that the accounting treatment contained in the Clause 7 of the aforesaid Draft Scheme of
Amalgamation is In compliance with the app5cable Accounting Standards notified by the Central
Govemment under the Companies Act. 2013. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule
2014 and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Opinion

60. tst Floor. Pockol H·3.
SccI()(·18. AOOlni. DELHI· 110085
Phone: 9871411946
E·mail; sureshkmil1alCOOgmad.com

SURESH KUMAR MITIAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCX>UNTANTS
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ForSuresh KumarMittal & Co.
CharteredAccountants
FirmReg.No.500063N

f!t~la)
Partner

MembershipNumber521915
Place.Delhi
Date:21· October,2020
CertificateNo.:SKMIOLn020-211032
UDIN:20521915MAAEX5408

8. This CertifICateis issued at the request of the Management of the Company pursuant to the
requirements of Companies Act. 2013 for {,"ward submission to the National Company law
Tribunal. Mumbai.This Certificateshouldnot be used for any other purposewithout our priorwritten
consenl Accordingly. we do nol accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purposeor to any other person to whom th,s certificateis shown or into whose hands It maycome
WIthout our priorconsent Inwriting.

ResttictJon on Use

the TransfereeCompany,the impact of the same in the merger by absorptionwill be quantified

and adjusted in the Capital Reservesof the TransfereeCompany to ensure that the financial
statements of the Transferee CompanyIreflect the true financial position on the basis of
consistentaocountingpolicies.

7.8 Upon the Scheme coming into effea, the accounts of the Transferee Company. as on the
AppointedDateshall be reconstructedwith the termsof thisScheme.

7.9 The balance of the retained eamings appeanng in the financial statements of the Transferor
Company shall be aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing In the financial
statementsof the TransfereeCompany.

7.10 The identity of the reservesshall be preservedand shall appear in the financial statementsof
the TransfereeCompanyin the same form in whICh they appeared,n the finanCIalstatementsof
the TransferorCompany.

60. 1$I Floor. Pod<et H-3.
Sector·1S. RoIllni.DELHI- 110085
Phone: 98714t 1946
E·mail • suresl1kmil!alcoOgmail.com
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